
Hart, Rosemary (OLC) 

From: Hart, Rosemary {OLC) 

Sent: Thursday, June 8, 2017 9:25 AM 

To: il11'fi1ft0-:' (OGC) {FBI); (b)(6), (b)(7)(C) per FBI 

Subject: two cases we discussed 

Hi,. Here are the citations to the two cases we just discussed: 

(b)(5) per OLC 

(b)(5) per OLC (Only available on Westlaw) 

Let us know if you we can be of further assistance. 

Rosemary 
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Gannon, Curtis E. (OLC) 

From: Gannon, Curtis E. (OLC) 

Sent: Thursday, June 8, 2017 10:06 AM 

To: Dreeben, Michael R (OSG) 

Cc: Colborn, Paul P (OLC) 

Subject: RE: Final Disposition, Appeal DOJ-AP-2017-004349 

Michael, 

We haven't contacted the FBl's FOIA processors. But I could give you a little more background on how we think 
the processing would happen, and I think it would make sense fo8t121:WI •o ensure that the FBI FOIA 

line of the Wednesday 3:45 pm email below) know (b)(6), (b)(7)(C), (b)(7)(E) per FBIprocessors (led by David Hardy in 'to· 

I'm at (b) (6) per OLC 

Curtis 

From: Gannon, Curtis E. (OLC} 
Sent : Wednesday, June 7, 201710:57 PM 
To: Oreeben, Michael R (OSG) (b) (6) > 
Cc: Colborn, Paul P (OLC (b) (6) per OLC 

Subject: RE: Final Disposition, Appeal OOJ-AP-2017-004349 

Thanks, Michael. We'll let you know if we find out anything. The letter that was attached indicates that the FOIA 
request has been remanded to FBI. 

From: Oreeben, Michael R (OSG} 
Sent: Wednesday, June 7, 2017 7:27 PM 
To: Gannon, Curtis E. (OLC) (b) (6) per OLC 

Subject: Fwd: Final Disposition, Appeal OOJ-AP-2017-004349 

Fixing your email address, Curtis. My iPad still thinks you're at OSG. 

-Michael 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: "Dreeben, Michael R (OSG)" ◄(b ) (6) 

Date: June 7, 2017 at 7:24:23 PM EDT 
To: "Gannon, Curtis (OSG)" ◄ (b) (6) per OLC '.>, "Colborn, Paul P (OLC)" 
◄ (b) (6) per OLC '.> 

Cc: "Schools, Scott (ODAG)" (b) (6) 

Subject: Fwd: Final Disposition, Appeal DOJ-AP-2017-004349 

Curtis and Paul, 
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I'm not sure what process is being pursued within the Department to address this FOL4. request 
or who the decisionmakers might be. But I wanted to put this reference to an "expedited appeal" 
on your radar screen (b) (5) per OLC 

■ 
Also, I am not sure how Special Counsel's 

views would be considered in an "expedited appeal." 

Any light you can shed would be helpful. 

Thanks much, 

Michael 

Begin forwarded message: 

(OGC) (FBI)" (b X6) (b )(7)(C ) (b)(7 i(E ) per FBIFrom: 
Date: June 7, 2017 at 539:42 PM EDT 
To: A..\IIZ ·, JLQ ~ -, "Dreebe~ 
?vlichael R (OSG)" so(b) (6 ) 

Subject: F\V: Final Disposition, Appeal DOJ-AP-2017-004349 

Please see below. My understanding is that this means that DOJ has granted an 
expedited administrative appeal with respect to this FOIA request for the Corney 
memos. Our attorneys' assessment is that (b) (5) per FBI 

knowledge, this w as not coordinat ed with FBI. 

From: Shenkman, Drew 1(b) (6 ) 

Sent: Wednesday, June 07, 2017 3:45 PM 
To: FOIPAQUESTIONS <FOIPAQUESTIONS@ic.fbi .gov>; Hardy, David M. (RMD} (FBI} 
(b)(6 ) (b )(7)(C) (b)(7)(E ) per FB I 

Cc: Wallace, Gregory (b) (6) Levi tt, Ross 
(b ) (6) >; Levine, Adam S (CNN DC Bureau) 
(b ) (6) ; Kupperman, Tammy 
(b ) (6) 
Subject: Fwd: Final Disposition, Appeal DOJ-AP-2017-O04349 

:M.t-. Hardy, 

I am an attorney for CI\TN and journalist Greg \Vallace. As you may already be 
awai-e, DOJ granted CNN's appeal and remanded om request for expedited 
processing offormer Director Camey'smemos of his interactions with President 
Trump, as descnbed more fully in ow- original request # 1374094 (appeal decision 
attached). 

G±ven that today ~- Corney publicly confirmed that the memos exist, are not 
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for the FBI to comply with CNN's FOIA request immediately. 

Please let us know when we c:.an expect the doctnnents today. 

:Vlany thanks, 

Drew Shenkman 
Senior Counsel, C1'7N 
(b) (6) Office 
(b ) (6 ) :\llobile 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: "OIP-NoReplyr@usdoj.gov" <OIP-NoRepl:v@usdoj.gov> 
Date: June 2, 2017 at 11:5634 AM EDT 
To: '(b) (6): Drew Shenkman Email Address 

Subject: Final Disposition, Appeal DOJ-AP-2017-004349 

DOJ-AP-2017-004349 has been processed with the following final 
disposition: Completely revers edlremanded. 
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Ramer, Sam (OLA) 

From: Ramer, Sam (OLA) 

Sent: Thursday, May 18, 2017 12:21 PM 

To: Gannon, Curtis E. (Ole); Terwilliger, Zachary (ODAG} 

Cc: Schools, Scott (ODAG); Gauhar, Tashina (ODAG); Goldberg, Stuart M. {TAX); 
Colborn, Paul P (OLC) 

Subject: RE: Squibs 

Attachments: DAG Draft Answers -SR edits.doc>< 

Proposed edits attached. 

From: Gannon, Curtis E. (Ole} 
Sent: Thursday, May 18, 201712:00 PM 
To: Terwilliger, Zachary (ODAG) (b)(6) Ramer, Sam {OLA) (b) (6) > 
Cc: Schools, Scott {ODAG} (b) (6) ; Gauhar, Tashina {ODAG) (b) (6) 

Goldberg, Stuart M. (TAX) '>; Colborn, Paul P {OLC} 
• (b) (6) per OLC > 
Subject: Squibs 

Here are an opening caveat and some proposed answers along the lines we discussed. 

Thanks, 

Curtis 
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Schools, Scott (ODAG} 

From: Schools, Scott (ODAG) 

Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2017 10:01 AM 

To: Colborn, Paul P (Ole) 

Subject: Request for Document Review 

From: Colborn, Paul P (OLC) 
Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2017 9:59 AM 
To: Schools, Scott (ODAG) (b)(6) 
Subject: RE: Request for Document Review 

Sure. I'll come by then. 

From: Schools, Scott (ODAG} 
Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2017 9:58 AM 
To: Colborn, Paul P (OLC) ◄ (b)(6) per0LC > 
Subject: RE: Request for Document Review 

Can you do 10:30? 

From: Colborn, Paul P {OLC) 
Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2017 9:30AM 
To: Schools, Scott (ODAG) (b)(6) 

Subject: RE: Request for Document Review 

Just called. Want me to come by? 

From: Schools, Scott {OOAG} 
Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2017 8:19 AM 
To: Colborn, Paul P (OLC) ◄ (b)(6) per0LC 
Subject: FW: Request for Document Review 

can you call me re this when you have a minute?Thanks. m>IBJ 

From: Rybicki, James E. (DO} (FBI) (b )(7)(E) per FBI 
Sent: Tuesday, May 30, 201710:13 AM 
To: Schools, Scott (ODAG) (b)(6) > 
Cc: AMZ (b) (6), (b) (7)(C) : Baker. James A. IOGC) {FBll (b )(7)(E) per FBI 
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Subject: Request for Document Review 

Scott-

At the request of the Special Counsel's Office, the FBI contacted Director Camey on May 26 to notify 
him that their office does not object to his testifying before Congress prior to any potential interview 
by the attorneys and/or agents working on matters being reviewed by the Special Counsel. Director 
Corney had been holding pending direction from the Special Counsel's Office. Director Corney 
indicated that he intends to testify before the Senate Select Committee on Intelligence as they have 
requested. To prepare for his testimony, Director Corney has requested access to all memos and 
emails he created following communications with the President (including a January 7 encounter 
with him while he was President~elect). Please advise what coordination needs to be done with 
respect to his notification of intent to testify and his request to review these documents. The FBI will 
take no further steps until we hear back from you. Note that Director Corney is represented by legal 
counsel and we can pass a long that information to you. 

Thanks, 
Jim Rybicki 

iwiemer:: 
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(b)(6 ) (b )(7)(C ) (b )(7)(E) per FBI • (DO) (FBI}(b)(6), (b)(7)(C), (b)(7)(E) per FBI 

Colborn, Paul P (OLC) 

From: Colborn, Paul P (OLC} 

Sent: Monday, September 11, 2017 11:52 AM 

To: Medina, Amelia {ODAG} 

Cc: Schools, Scott (ODAG) 

Subject: FW: 2017-08-30 CEG + LG to FBI (Camey Statement) 

Attachments: 2017-08-30 CEG + LG to FBI (Corney Statement).pdf 

Amelia, are you in the loop on this? 

From: Colborn, Paul P (OLC) 
Sent: Monday, September 11, 201710:53 AM 
To: 'Brower, Gregory {OGC) (FBI)' (b )(7)(E) per FBI Macklin, Jay (USAEO) 

(OGC) (FBI) (b)(6), (b)(7)(C), (b)(7XE) per FBI Cc: ; Shea, Carol (USAEO 
Schools, Scott ( ODAG) (b) (6) 

(DO) (FBI) (b)(6), (b)(7)(C), (b)(7)(E) per FBI . (OGC} (FBI) (b )(6), (b)(7)(C), (b )(7)(E) per FBI- · 
(OGC) (FBI) (b)(6), (b)(7)(C), (b)(7)(E) per FBI 

Subject: RE: 2017-08-30 CEG + LG to FBI (Camey Statement) 

Thanks for loopingme in, Greg. (b) (5) per OLC & FBI 

Addin ~(b)(6), (b)(7)(C) per FBI of FBI OGC, with whom I discussed these issues this morning. 

Also, DOJ-OLA should be brought into this discussion. 

Paul 

From: Brower, Gregory {OGC} (FBI} (b )(7)(E) per FBI 

Sent: Sunday, September 10, 2017 9:46 AM 
To: Macklin, Jay (USAEO} 
Cc: I (OGC) {FBI) (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) (b)(7)(E ) per FB I>; Shea, Carol (USAEO) 
Schools, Scott ( ODAG) (b)(6) (b)(7 )(C) (b)(7WE) per FBI (DO} {FBI} (b)(6), (b)(7)(C), (bX7)(E) per FBI (b) (6) 
Colborn, Paul P {OLC) ◄ (b) (6) per OLC rm::rr:rrm ~oo) (FBI) (b)(6). (b)(7)(C), (b)(7)(E ) per FBI 

(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) (b)(7)(E) per FBI 
- · {OGC} {FBI) 
Subject: RE: 2017-08-30 CEG +LG to FBI {Corney Statement ) 

All: 

Thanks again Jay. After further discussions withlllill about the history of our interactions with the OSC on 
this matter, it seems to me that we should respond to the Senators' requests as follows: 

1. 
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2. 

Does anyone have a differentview? 

We will need to bring this to a decision point early this week as the Senators' letter seeks a production by 
September 13. 

{Paul: I am includingyou on this atJay's request. Any advice from you would be most welcome.) 

Thank you. 

Greg 

Gregory A. Brower 
Assistant Director 
FBI Conoressional Affairs 
(Direct (b )(7)(E) per 
(Mobil - (b )(7)(E) per 

From: Macklin, Jay (USAEO) 
Sent Tuesday, September 05, 201710:35 AM 
To: Brower, Gregory (OGC} {FBI) (b )(7)(E) per FBI 
Cc: • (OGC} {FBI} >; Shea, Carol (USAEO} 
Subject: RE: 2017-08-30 CEG + LG t o FBI (Corney Statement } 

Greg, 
Please see my answers below in red. As to the last question, the 

Thanks Greg. 
Jay 

From: Brower, Gregory (OGC} (FBI) (b )(7)(E) per FBI 
Sent: Monday, September 04, 201711:46 AM 

(b )(6) (b )(7 )(C ) (b )(7 )(E ) per FBI OGC) {FBI) (bW6) (b)(7WC) (b)(7WE) per FBI To: >; Macklin, Jay (USAEO) > 
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~liiilllallllI , J.ay. 

From my discussions with each of you, I understand the following: 

1. 
2. 
3. 

4. 

Is my understanding correct? 

Thank you. 

Greg 

Gregory A. Brower 
Assistant Director 
FB[ Conaressional Affairs 
(Direct) (b )(7)(E) per 
(Mobile FBI 

From:. Flynn-Brow n, Josh (Judiciary-Rep) i(b) (6) J 
Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2017 6:57 PM 
To: Brower, Gregory (OGC} (FBI) (b)(6), (b)(7)(C ), (b)(7)(E) per FBI :. (00) (FBI)(b)(6), (b)(7)(C), (b)(7)(E) per FBI 

Tyson, Jill C. (OLA) {JMD) (b)(6) (b)(6): Mary Blanche Hankey (OLA) email > 
Cc: CEG {Judiciary-Rep) (b) (6) ; Foster, Jason {Judiciary-Rep) 
(b) (6) Davis, Patrick {Judiciary-Rep) ·(b) (6) 

; Holmes, Lee (Judiciary-Rep) ·(b)(6 ) Sawyer, Heather 
(Judiciary-Dem) (b) (6) Quint, Lara (Judiciary-Dem) 
(b) (6) 
Subject: 2017-08- 30 CEG +LG to FBI {Corney Statement ) 

Gregan. 

Please see attached letter from Senator Grassley and Senator Graham. Please confirm receipt and send all 
formal follow-up correspondence electronically in PDF format to CEG@judiciarv-rep.senate.gov, 
(b)(6 ): Jason Foster email (b)(6 ): Patrick Davis email . and me. For Senator 
Graham' s staf(, please use as the poc. rve also cc ' d Senator Feinstein 
and Senator Whitehouse staffers for follow-up correspondence. 

Very Respectfully, 

Josh Flynn-Brown 
Investigative CoU!l5el 
Chairman Charles E. Grassley 
U .S. Senate Committee on the Judiciary 
(202) 224-5225 
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COMMlmE ON THE JUDICIARY 

WASHINGTON. DC 2051~27S 

August  30,  2017 

VIA  ELECTRONIC  TRANSMISSION 

The  Honorable  Christopher  Wray 
Director  


Federal  Bureau  of  Investigation 
935 

 

Pennsylvania 
 

Avenue, 
 

N.W. 
Washington, 

 

D.C. 
 

20535 

Dear 
 

Director 
 

Wray: 

The 
 

Senate 
 

Judiciary 
 

Committee 
 

has 
 

been 
 

investigating 
 

the 
 

circumstances 
 

surrounding 
Director 

 

Corney's 
 

removal, 
 

including 
 

his 
 

conduct 
 

in 
 

handling 
 

the 
 

Clinton 
 

and 
 

Russia 
investigations. On the wro 


 

June 
 

30, 
 

2017, 
  

Committee te 
 

the Office of 1 
  

to 
   

Specia
   

l Counsel (OSC)
requesting 

 

transcripts 
 

of 
 

OSC's 
 

interviews 
 

with 
 

then-Director 
 

Corney's 
 

Chief 
 

of 
 

Staff, 
 

Jim 
Rybicki, 

 

and 
 

the 
 

Principal 
 

Deputy 
 

General 
 

Counsel 
 

of 
 

National 
 

Security 
 

and 
 

Cyberlaw, 
 

Trisha 
Anderson. 

 

OSC 
 

investigators 
 

had 
 

interviewed 
 

them 
 

as 
 

part 
 

of 
 

the 
 

OSC's 
  

investigation 
 

into 
whether 

 

then-Director 
 

Corney's 
 

actions 
 

in 
 

the 
 

Clinton 
 

investigation violated Hatch 


  

the 
  

Act.2 

OSC 
 

closed 
 

its 
 

inquiry 
 

after 
 

Mr. 
 

Corney's 
 

removal 
 

pursuant 
 

to 
 

its 
 

standard 
 

policy 
 

of 
 

not 
investigating 

 

former 
 

government 
 

employees. 
 

On 
 

August 
 

8, 
 

2017, 
 

the 
 

OSC 
 

provided 
 

transcripts 
of 
 

those 
 

interviews at Committee's  

  

the 
  

request.3 Since 
 

then, 
 

Committee 
 

staff has 
 

been 
 

asking 
 

the 
Department 

 

informally 
 

to 
 

explain 
 

the 
 

reasons 
 

for 
 

the 
 

extensive 
 

redactions 
 

to 
 

the 
 

transcripts. 

According 
 

to 
 

the 
 

unredacted 
 

portions 
 

of 
 

the 
 

transcripts, 
 

it 
 

appears 
 

that 
 

in 
 

April 
 

or 
 

early 
May 

 

of 
 

2016, 
 

Mr. 
 

Corney 
 

had 
 

already 
 

decided 
 

he 
 

would 
 

issue 
 

a 
 

statement 
 

exonerating 
 

Secretary 
Clinton. 

 

That 
 

was 
 

long 
 

before 
 

FBI 
 

agents finished 
 

their 
 

work. 
 

Mr. 
 

Corney 
 

even 
 

circulated 
 

an 
early 

 

draft 
 

statement 
 

to 
 

select 
 

members 
 

of 
 

senior 
 

FBI 
 

leadership. 
 

The 
 

outcome 
 

of 
 

an 
investigation 

 

should 
 

not 
 

be 
 

prejudged 
 

while 
 

FBI 
 

agents 
 

are 
 

still 
 

hard 
 

at 
 

work 
 

trying 
 

to 
 

gather 
 

the 
facts. 




OSC 
 

attorneys 
 

questioned 
 

two 
 

witnesses, 
 

presumably 
 

Mr. 
 

Rybicki 
 

and 
 

Ms. 
 

Anderson, 
about 

 

Mr. 
 

Corney's 
 

July 
 

5, 
 

2016, 
 

statement 
 

exonerating 
 

Secretary 
 

Clinton. 
 

The 
 

transcript 
 

of 
 

what 
appears 

 

to 
 

be 
 

Mr. 
 

Rybicki's 
 

interview 
 

contains 
 

the 
 

following 
 

exchanges: 

1  OSC 
 

is 
 

the 
 

pennanent, 
 

independent 
 

investigative 
 

agency 
 

for 
 

personnel 
 

matters, 
 

not 
 

Robert 
 

Mueller' s 
 

temporary 
 

prosecutorial 
office 

 

within 
 

the 
 

Justice 
 

Department. 
2 
 Letter 

 

from 
 

Senator 
 

Harry 
 

Reid 
 

to 
 

James 
 

Corney 
 

(October 
 

30. 
 

2016). 
 

Mica 
 

Rosenberg, 
 

Uproar 
 

over 
 

whether 
 

FBI 
 

chief broke 
 

law 
 

by 
 

raising 
 

new 
 

Clinton 
 

emails, 
 

Reuters 
 

(October 
 

31, 
 

2016 ). 
3 
 OSC 

 

first 
 

provided 
 

the 
 

transcripts 
 

to 
 

the 
 

Justice 
 

Department. 
 

which 
 

redacted 
 

significant 
 

portions 
 

of 
 

the 
 

transcripts 
 

without 
explanation. It 

 

redacted 
 

the 
 

names 
 

of 
 

the 
 

witnesses, 
 

even 
 

though 
       
 

those names were in the Committee' s request. 
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Q:  ...  We  talked  about  outcome  of  the  investigation,  ...  how  did 
the  statement  - I  guess  the  idea  of  the  statement  come  about? 
A:  Sure.  We're  talking  about  July  5th,  correct? 
Q:  Yes.  I'm  sorry.  July  5th. 

A:  The  - so  in  the  - sometime  in  the  spring  - again,  I  don't 
remember  exactly  when,  I- early  spring  I  would  say,  the  Director 
emailed  a  couple  folks  - I  can't  remember  exactly;  I  know  I  was  on 
there,  probably  the  Deputy  Director,  not   the full,  what  I'll  call  the 
briefing group, but  a  subset  of  that  -   to  say,  you  know,  again 
knowing  sort  of  where  - knowing  the  direction  the  investigation 
is  headed,  right,  what  would  be  the  most  forward-leaning  thing 
we  could  do,  right,  information  that  we  could  put  out  about  it. .. And 
-- and,  you  know,  by  that  -- you  know,  so  that  -- and  he  sent  a  draft 
around of,  you          know what - what it might look like .... 

*** 

A:  ...  So  that  was  the  early  spring. 
Q:  Yeah.  And  I  think  we've  seen  maybe  that  email  where  he  sent  it 
out,  it  was  early  May  of  2016;  does  that  sound  about  right? 
A:  That  sounds  right.  That  -- quite  honestly,  that  strikes  me  as  a 

little  late,  but  may  --
Q:  Okay. 
A:  -- but  again,  I  definitely  remember  spring.  I  had  in  my  head  like 
the  April  timeframe,  but  May  doesn't  seem  out  of  the  -- out  of  the 
realm. 

*** 


Q:  And  so  at  that  point  in  time,  whether  it  was  April  or  early 
May,  the  team  hadn't  yet  interviewed  Secretary  Clinton  -
A:  Correct. 
Q:  - but  was  there  - I  guess,  based  on  what  you're  saying,  it 
sounds  like  there  was  an  idea  of  where  the  outcome  of  the 
investigation  was  going  to  go? 
A:  Sure.  There  was  a  - right,  there  was  - based  on  - [ redacted 
section]. 

Similarly,  the  transcript  of  what  appears  to  be  Ms.  Anderson's  interview  states: 


Q:  So  moving  along  to  the  first  public  statement  on  the  case  or 
Director  Corney's  first  statement  the  July  5,  2016  statement.  When 
did  you  first  learn  that  Director  Corney  was  planning  to  make 
some  kind  of  public  statement  about  the  outcome  of  the  Clinton 
email  investigation? 
A:  The  idea,  I'm  not  entirely  sure  exactly  when  the  idea  of  the 
public  statement  um  first  emerged.  Um  it  was,  I  just,  I  can't  put  a 


Mr. Wray 
August 30, 2017 
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precise  timeframe  on  it  um  but  [redaction].  And  then  I  believe  it 
was  in  early  May  of2016  that  the  Director  himself  wrote  a  draft 
of  that  statement  ... 

Q:  So  when  you  found  out  in  early  May  that  there  was,  that  the 
Director  had  written  a  draft  of  what  the  statement  might  look  like, 

how  did  you  learn  about  that? 
A:  [Redacted]  gave  me  a  hard  copy  of  it ... 
Q:  So  what  happened  next  with  respect  to  the  draft? 

A:  I  don't  know  for  sure  um,  I  don't  know.  There  were  many 
iterations,  at  some  point  there  were  many  iterations  of the  draft 
that  circulated  ... 

As  of  early  May  2016,  the  FBI  had  not  yet  interviewed  Secretary  Clinton.  Moreover,  it  had  yet 
to  finish  interviewing  sixteen  other  key  witnesses,  including  Cheryl  Mills,  Bryan  Pagliano, 
Heather 


 Samuelson,  Justin  Cooper,  and  John  Bentel.4 

These  individuals  had  intimate  and  personal  knowledge  relating  to  Secretary  Clinton's 
non-government  server,  including  helping  her  build  and  administer  the  device.  Yet,  it  appears 

that  the  following  key  FBI  interviews  had  not  yet  occurred  when  Mr.  Corney  began  drafting  his 

exoneration  statement: 


1.  May  3,  2016  - Paul  Combetta 9.      

 

June 10, 2016 - John  Bentel 
2.       

 May  12,  2016- Sean  Misko  10. June 15, 2016 - Lewis Lukens 
3.  May  17,  2016- Unnamed  June  

 CIA  11. 21,  2016  - Justin  Cooper 
employee5  12.  June  21,  2016- Unnamed  State 


4.    

Employee  
 May 19, 2016- Unnamed CIA 


 

Dept. 7 
 

employee6  13.  June  21,  2016  - Bryan  Pagliano 
5.  May  24,  2016-Heather    Samuelson  14.  June  21,  2016  - Purcell  Lee 
6. 2016 - Marcel  

 May  26,    Lehel  (aka  15. June  23,  2016-Monica  Hanley 
Guccifer) 16.  June  29,    

 

2016 - Hannah  Richert 
7.  May  28,  2016  - Cheryl  

 Mills  17. July  -   2,  2016  Hillary Clinton 
8.  June  3,  2016- Charlie  Wisecarver 

Conclusion  first,  fact-gathering  second-that's  no  way  to  run  an  investigation.  The  FBI  should 
be  held  to  a  higher  standard  than  that,  especially  in  a  matter  of  such  great  public  interest  and 
controversy. 


Mr.  Corney's  final  statement  acknowledged  "there  is  evidence  of  potential  violations  of 
the  statutes  regarding  the  handling  of  classified  information"  but  nonetheless  cleared  Secretary 
Clinton  because  he  claimed  there  was  no  intent  or  obstruction  of  justice.  Yet,  evidence  of 
destruction  of  emails  known  to  be  under  subpoena  by  the  House  of  Representatives,  and  subject 

4  Notably,  some  witnesses  had  been  interviewed.  However,  their  follow  up  interviews  had  not  taken  place  yet. 

5  The  name  of  the  interviewee  was  redacted  from  the  publicly  released  version  of  the  302. 
6  The  name  of  the  interviewee  was  redacted  from  the  publicly  released  version  of  the  302. 
7  The  name  of  the  interviewee  was  redacted  from  the  publicly  released  version  of  the  302. 

Mr. Wray 
August 30, 2017 
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to  congressional  preservation  requests,  was  obtained  in  interviews  around  the  time  that  Mr. 
Corney began  

  drafting  his  exoneration 8 
 statement. Moreover,  the  Justice  Department  entered 

into  highly  unusual  immunity  agreements  with  Cheryl  Mills  and  Heather  Samuelson  in  June 
2016-after  Mr.  Corney  began  drafting  his  exoneration  statement-to  review  Clinton  email 
archives 9 


 on  their  laptops.  

The  immunity  agreements  limited  the  FBI' s  ability  to  review  Clinton  email  archives 
from  Platte  River  Networks  that  were  created  after  June  1,  2014,  and  before  February  1,  2015, 
and  which  had  been  sent  or  received  from  Secretary  Clinton's  four  email  addresses  during  her 
tenure  as  Secretary  of  

 State.10 These  limitations  prevented  the  FBI  from  reviewing  records 
surrounding  a  March  2015  conference  call  that  Paul  Combetta,  an  employee  of  Platte  River 
Networks,  had  with  David  Kendall  and  Ms.  Mills,  the  attorneys  for  Secretary  Clinton.  I  I  After 
having  been  initially  untruthful  and  then  receiving  his  own  immunity  agreement,  Mr.  Combetta 
admitted in his third FBI interview, in May 2016,  that  after  a  March          2015 conference  call   with 
Secretary  Clinton's  attorneys,  he  used  BleachBit  to  destroy  any  remaining  copies  of  Clinton's 
emails. 12 


The  limitations  in  the  immunity  agreements  with  Ms.  Mills  and  Ms.  Samuelson  also 
kept  the  FBI  from  looking  at  emails  after  Secretary  Clinton  left  office-the  period  in  which 
communications  regarding  destruction  or  concealment  of  federal  records  would  have  most  likely 
taken 13  

 place.  And  finally,  the  agreements  provided  that  the  Department  would  destroy  any 
records  which  it  retrieved  that  were  not  turned  over  to  the  investigative  team  and  would  destroy 
the 14  

 laptops. Despite  public  claims  by  the  FBI  that  the  laptops  were  not  in  fact  destroyed,  the 
purpose  of  that  promise  to  destroy has not been explained. 15  

 them     However,  Judiciary 
Committee  staff reviewed  the  immunity  agreements  as  part  of  their  oversight  work,  so  there  is  no 


8  The  House  Oversight  and  Government  Reform  Committee  subpoenaed  the  State  Department  for  records  on  August  1,  2013. 
The  House  Benghazi  Committee  subpoenaed  the  State  Department  for  its  records  on  January  28,  2015.  The  first  subpoena  sent 
directly  to  Secretary  Clinton  that  asked  for  her  records  was  on  March  4,  2015.  According  to  the  FBI's  Letterhead  Memorandum 
(LHM)  summarizing  its  witness  interviews  in  the  Clinton  investigation  on  "March  25,  2015,  PRN  held  a  conference  call  with 
President  Clinton's  staff'  and  also  the  "[i]nvestigation  identified  a  PRN  work  ticket,  which  referenced  a  conference  call  among 
PRN,  Kendall,  and  Mills  on  March  31,  2015."  Mr.  Combetta's  302  summary  noted  that  he  deleted  Secretary  Clinton's  email 
archives  on  March  31,  2015  using  BleachBit,  a  software  program  designed  to  prevent  forensic  recovery.  This  information  was 
obtained  by  the  FBI  on  May  3,  2016,  around  the  time  that  Mr.  Corney  began  drafting  his  exoneration  statement.  In  addition  to 

subpoenas,  multiple  congressional  committees  had  already  sent  the  State  Department  and  Secretary  Clinton  preservation  letters 
starting  on  September  20,  2012,  prior  to  Mr.  Combetta's  deletions  and  Secretary  Clinton's  December  2014  instruction  to  her  staff 
to  delete  her  emails.  See  also,  Letter  from  Senator  Chuck  Grassley,  Chairman,  Senate  Committee  on  the  Judiciary, 
Representative  Jason  Chaffetz,  Chairman,  House  Committee  on  Oversight  and  Government  Reform,  Representative  Bob 
Goodlatte,  Chairman,  House  Committee  on  the  Judiciary,  Representative  Devin  Nunes,  Chairman,   House  Permanent Select 
Committee  on  Intelligence  to  Ms.  Loretta  Lynch,  Attorney  General,  Department  of  Justice  (Oct.  5,  2016)  citing  Oversight  of  the 

Federal th 

 Bureau  of Investigation:   Hearing  before  the  H  Comm.  on  the  Judiciary,  114  Cong.  (2016);  U.  S.  House  Select 
Committee  on  Benghazi,  Final  Report  (Dec.  7,  2016). 
9  Letter  from  Senator  Chuck  Grassley,  Chairman,  Senate  Committee  on  the  Judiciary,  Representative  Jason  Chaffetz,  Chairman, 
House  Committee  on  Oversight  and  Government  Reform,  Representative  Bob  Goodlatte,  Chairman,  House  Committee  on  the 
Judiciary,  Representative  Devin  Nunes,  Chairman,  House  Permanent  Select  Committee  on  Intelligence  to  Ms.  Loretta  Lynch, 
Attorney  General,  Department  ofJustice  (Oct.  5,  2016). 
10  Id. 

11  Id. 

12  Id. 

13  Id. 

14  Jd. 

15  Letter  from  Peter  J.  Kadzik,  Assistant  Attorney  General,  Dep't  of  Justice,  to  Senator  Chuck  Grassley,  Chairman,  Senate 
Committee   on   the Judiciary  (October  26, 2016). 
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question  that  the  terms  of  the  agreement  called  for  the  Department  to  destroy  evidence  that  had 
not  been  fully  and completely 16 


  reviewed.  

It  is  unclear  whether  the  FBI  agents  actually  investigating  the  case  were  aware  that  Mr. 

Corney  had  already  decided  on  the  investigation's  outcome  while  their  work  was  ongoing. 
However,  it  appears  that  the  answer  to  that  question  may  be  underneath  some  of  the  extensive 
redactions that the Department 17  

    made  to  the  transcripts.  In  testimony  before  Congress,  Mr. 

Corney  was  asked  whether  his  decision  to  not  recommend  charges  "was  [a]  unanimous  opinion 
within  the  FBI.  ..  "  to  which  he  responded,  "[w]ell,  the  whole  FBI  wasn't  involved,  but  the  team 
of  

 agents,  investigators,  analysts,  technologists,  yes."18 Seeing  under  the  redactions  is  necessary 
for  the  Committee  to  assess  Mr.  Corney's  testimony  before  Congress. 

Pursuant  to  the  Committee's  responsibility  and  authority to review the  circumstances     of 
the  Director's  removal,  please  provide  the  following  without  redactions  by  September  13,  2017: 

1.  All  drafts  of  Mr.  Corney's  statement  closing  the  Clinton  investigation,  from  his  original 
draft  in  April  or  May  to  the  final  version. 

2.  All  records  related  to  communications  between  or  among  FBI  officials  regarding 
Corney's  draft  statement  closing  the  Clinton  investigation,  including  all  memoranda  or 
analyses  of  the  factual  or  legal  justification  for  the  announcement. 

3.  All  records  previously  provided  to  the  Office  of  Special  Counsel  in  the  course  of  its  now­
closed  Hatch  Act  investigation  of  Mr.  Corney. 


We  anticipate  that  your  written  response  and  most  of  the  responsive  documents  will  be 
unclassified.  Please  send  all  unclassified  material  directly  to  the  Committee.  In  keeping  with  the 
requirements  of  Executive  Order  13526,  if  any  of  the  responsive  documents  do  contain  classified 
information,  please  segregate  all  unclassified  material  within  the  classified  documents,  provide 
,all  unclassified  information  directly  to  the  Committee,  and  provide  a  classified  addendum  to  the 
Office  of  Senate  Security.  The  Committee  complies  with  all  laws  and  regulations  governing  the 
handling  of  classified  information.  The  Committee  is  not  bound,  absent  its  prior  agreement,  by 
any  handling  restrictions  or  instructions  on  unclassified  information  unilaterally  asserted  by  the 
Executive  Branch. 

16  Letter  from  Senator  Chuck  Grassley,  Chairman,  Senate  Committee  on  the  Judiciary,  Representative  Jason  Chaffetz,  Chairman, 
House  Committee  on  Oversight  and  Government  Reform,  Representative  Bob  Goodlatte,  Chairman,  House  Committee  on  the 
Judiciary,  Representative  Devin  Nunes,  Chairman,  House  Permanent  Select  Committee  on  Intelligence  to  Ms.  Loretta  Lynch, 
Attorney  General,  Department  of  Justice  (Oct.  5,  2016). 
17  Office  of  Special  Counsel,  Interviewee  Transcript#!  at  19-20;  #2  at  25-33. 
18  Oversight  of the   State  Department:  Hearing  before  the  Committee  on  Oversight  and  Government  Reform,  House  of 
Representatives,  One  Hundred  Fourteenth  Congress,  Second Session,  July  7,  2016.  Washington:  U.S.  Government  Publishing 
Office,  2016.  Available  at  https ://oversight.house.gov /wp-content/up  loads/2016/07 /7-7-2016-0versight-of-the-State­
Department. pdf,  p.  33 
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Thank 
 

you 
 

for 
 

your 
 

attention 
 

to 
 

this 
 

important 
 

matter. 
 

Transparency 
 

is 
 

essential 
 

to 
restoring  the  public's  trust  in  the  FBI.  If  you  have  questions,  please  contact  Josh  Flynn-Brown 
of 
 

Chairman 
 

Grassley's 
 

staff at 
 

(202) 
 

224-5225 
 

or 
 

Lee 
 

Holmes 
 

of 
 

Chairman 
 

Graham' s 
 

staff at 



(202)  224-5972. 

Charles 
 

E. 
 

Grassley 
Chairman 
Committee 

 

on 
 

the 
 

Judiciary 

Lindsey 
  

0. Graham 
Chairman 
Subcommittee 

 

on 
 

Crime 
 

and 
 

Terrorism 
Committee 

 

on 
 

the 
 

Judiciary 
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Rosenstein, Rod (ODAG) 

From: Rosenstein, Rod (OOAG) 

Sent: Wednesday, January 3, 2018 3:39 AM 

To: Engel, Steven A. (O LC) 

Subject: FW: Draft letter 

Attachments: CHM ltr to DAG re Subpoena Compliance - 28 Dec 17 FINAL.pdf; Linderletter.pdf; 
FederallnvestigationofSchedulingError.pdf 

Steve-

I would appreciate your office' s comments on this draft. Koffsky and Colborn are the institutional experts on 
congressional oversight. 

From: Rosenstein, Rod (ODAG) 
Sent: Wednesday, January 3, 2018 3:24 AM 
To: Boyd, Stephen E. (OLA) (b) (6) ; Schools, Scott (ODAG) (b) (6) 

Subject: Draft letter 

Please fact-check and let me know about any major concerns. Let's try to finalize this by noon. I am meeting 
with Ryan at5:00 and probably won't send it until after the meeting, but I want to have it ready. 
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HVC-304,  THE  CAPITOL  
WASHINGTON,  DC  2051  5U.S.  HOUSE  OF  REPRESENTATIVES  

(202)  225  4121  

PERMANENT  SELECT  COMMITTEE  

ON  INTELLIGENCE  

December  2  017  8,  2  

The Honorable  Rod Rosenstein  
Deputy Attorey General  
U.S. Department ofJustice  
1201  Pen sylva ia Ave, NW  
Washington,  D.C.  20004  

Dear Mr.  Rosenstein:  

The  House Permanent Select Committee  on Intelligence  (the  Committee)  writes in  
response  to  the Department ofJustice's  (DOJ)  and the Federal  Bureau ofInvestigation's (FBD  
filure  to  flly produce  responsive  documents  and provide  the requested  witnesses  in compliance  
with the subpoenas  issued  overfur  months  ago,  on August 2  017.  4,  2  

Several  weeks  ago, DOJ infrmed the Committee  that the  basic  investigatory documents  
demanded  by the  subpoenas,  FBI Form  FD-302 interview summaries,  did  not exist.  However,  
shortly befre my  meeting with you  in  early  December,  DOJ  subsequently located  and  produced  
numerous  FD-302 pertaining to  the Steele  dossier,  thereby rendering the initial response  s  
disingenuous  at best.  As  itts out,  not  only did documents  exist that were directly responsive  
to  the Committee's  subpoenas,  but they  i volved  senior DOJ  and FBI  officials who  were swifly  
reassigned  when  their  roles  in matters  under the  Committee's investigation  were brought to  
light.  s,  the  Given  the content  and impact  of these  supposedly  newly-discovered FD-302  
Committee  is  no  longer  able  to  accept your  purported basisfr DOJ's blaet refsal to  provide  
responsive FBI Form  FD-1023s-ocumenting  meetings  between  FBI  officials  and FBI  
confidential  human  sources-r anything  less  than  fll  ad complete compliance  with its  
subpoenas.  

As a result ofthe  numerous  delays  and discrepancies  that have  hampered  the  process  of  
subpoena compliance,  the  Committee  no  longer credits  the  representations  made  by  DOJ  and/or  
the  FBI  regarding  these  matters.  Accordingly,  DOJ  and the FBI  are  instructed to  promptly  
produce  to  the  Committee  no  018later than January  3,  2  ALL  outstanding  records  identified  
as responsive  to  the  August  24  subpoenas,  including  but  not  limited  to:  
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• All responsive FD-I 023s, including all reports that summarize meetings between 
FBI confidential human sources and FBI officials pertaining to the Steele dossier; 

• All responsive FD-302s not previously provided to the Committee; and 
• In addition to the FD-302s and FD-I 023s, certain responsive analytical and 

reference documents that were specifically identified and requested by the 
Committee, and supposedly subject to imminent production, as of December 15. 

Should DOJ decide to withhold any responsive records, or portions thereof, from the 
Committee, it must, consistent with the subpoena instructions, provide a written response, under 
your signature, detailing the legal j ustification for failing to comply with valid congressional 
subpoenas. 

Additionally, by the same deadline, please provide- in writing- available dates in 
January 2018 for interviews with the following officials: 

• Former DOJ Associate Deputy Attorney General Bruce Ohr; 
• FBI Supervisory Special Agent (SSA) Peter Strzok; 
• FBI Attorney James Baker; 
• FBI Attorney Lisa Page; 
• FBI Attorney Sally Moyer; and 
• FBI Assistant Director for Congressional Affairs Greg Brower. 

The Committee further reminds you of these other outstanding requests for information: 

• Details concerning an apparent April 2017 meeting with the media involving 
DOJ/FBI personnel, including DOJ Attorney Andrew Weissman (due December 
13) and 

• The remaining text messages between SSA Strzok and Ms. Page ( due December 
15). 

Unfortunately, DOJ/FBl's intransigence with respect to the August 24 subpoenas is part 
ofa broader pattern ofbehavior that can no longer be tolerated. As I said in a public statement 
several weeks ago, when the reason for SSA Strzok's removal from the Special Counsel 
investigation was leaked to the Washington Post before that reason was provided to this 
Committee, at this point it seems the DOJ and FBI need to be investigating themselves. 

I look forward to your timely written response. 
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Mon 12/11/2017 8:20 PM 

.I ________ .. lg)mail.house.gov> 

Subpoena Issuance 
To Boyd, Stephen E. (OLA); Schools, Scott (ODAG) 

Cc Glabe, Scott; Nelson, Damon; Stewart, Mark 

O vou forwarded this message on 12/11/2017 8:24 PM. 

All, 

As a result ofFBI/DOJ conduct this evening, the Committee is proceeding as follows: 

The Committee will issue subpoenas tomorrow for all communications (email, text, or otherwise) 
amongst DOJ/FBI officials and any other relevant party involved in the scheduling and handling 
of witnesses relevant to our investigation, to include Greg Browder, head of FBI Leg Affairs. 

The Committee will also immediately issue a subpoena for Deputy Director McCabe if he fails to 
appear for his agreed upon interview scheduled for tomorrow, Tuesday December 12 at 2pm. 

Furthermore, the Committee will continue its constitutional oversight obligations owed to the 
America people, and talce action accordingly. Thus, the Committee will issue all other subpoenas 
and preservation requests it deems necessary in a prompt and timely fashion. 

Regards, 

1 
Semor Counsel for Counterterronsm 

1 
House Permanent Select Committee on Intelligence 

Document  ID:  0.7.23922.36543-000002  



  

. ···· ·· - ········· ...... .. ···- ..... . 

The  Honorable  John  Linder 

Chairman.,  Subcommittee  on  Rules  and 


Organization  of  the  House 

Commitlee  on  Rules 

U.S.  House  of  Representatives 

Washington,  D.C.  20515 


Dear  Mr.  Chairman: 


We  have  carefully  reviewed  the  testimony  presented  to  the  Subcommittee  on  Rules 

and  Organization  of  the  House  at  its  hearing  on  July  15,  1999;  on  "Cooperation,  Comity,  and 

Confrontation:  Congressional  Oversight  of  the  Executive  Branch."  The  Department  of  Justice 

appreciates  the  Subcommittee's  interest  in  this  area,  and  we  would  like  to  take  this  opportunity 

to  present  in  this  letter,  for  the  benefit  of  both  Members  of  Congress  and  the  public  at  large,  the 

approach  we  take  to  the  issues  raised  at  the  hear.ng.  As  always,  we  are  committed  to  cooperating 

with  your  Subcommittee,  and  all  committees  of  Congress,  with  respect  to  the  oversight  process. 


The  testimony  presented  at  the  hearing  suggests  to  us  that  there  is  a  need  for  improved 

communication  and  sensitivity  between  the  Executive  and  Legislative  Branches  regarding  our 

respective  institutional  needs  and  interests.  It  also  suggests  that  there  is  considerable 

misunderstanding  about  the  principles  that  govern  the  Department's  longstanding  positions  and 

practices  on  responding  to  cougressionai  oversight  requests.  We  hope  that  this  discussion  of 

those  governing  principles  will  be  helpful  to  the  Committee  and  foster  an  improved 

understanding  of  the  Department's  interests  in  responding  to  oversight  requests. 


General  Approach 


The  oversight  process  is,  of  course,  an  important  underpinning  of  the  legislative  process. 

Congressional  committees  need  to  gather  information  about  how  statutes  are  applied  and  funds 

are  spent  so  that  they  can  assess  whether  additional  legislation  is  necessary  either  to  rectify 

practical  problems  in  current  law  or  to  address  problems  not  covered  by  current  law.  By  helping 

Congress  be  better  informed  when  it  makes  legislative  decisions,  oversight  promotes  the 

accountability  of  government.  The  information  that  committees  gather  in  this  oversight.capacity  


is  also  important  for  the  Executive  Branch  in  the  future  implementation  of  the  l~w  and  its 

participation  in  the  legislative  process.  ·we  have  found  that  the  oversight  process  can  shed 


U.S.  Department  of  Justice 


Office  of  Legislative  Affairs 


11'<1shington,  D.C.  20530 
Office  of  the  Assistant  Auome~  General 


January  27,  2000 
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valuable  lighl  on  Department  op~ratiuns  and  assist  our  leadership  in  addressing  problems  that 

might  noc  otherwise  have  been  clear. 


President  Reagan's  November  4,  1982  Memorandum  for  the  Heads  of  Executive 

Departments  and  Agencies  on  "Procedures  Governing  Responses  to  Congressional  Requests 

for  Information"  sets  forth  the  longstanding  Executive  Branch  policy  on  cooperating  with 

Congressional  oversight: 


The  policy  of  this  Administration  is  to  comply  with  Congressional  requests  for 

information  to  the  fullest  extent  consistent  with  the  constitutional  and  statutory 

obligations  of  the  Executive  Branch  ..  .  (E]xecutive  privilege  will  be  asserted 

only  in  the  most  compelling  circumstances,  and  only  after  careful  review  demon­
strates  that  assertion  of  the  privilege  is  necessary.  Historically,  good  faith 

negotiations  between  Congress  and  the  Executive  Branch  have  minimized  the 

need  for  invoking  executive  privilege,  and  this  tradition  of  accommodation  should 

continue  as  the  primary  means  of  resolving  conflicts  between  the  _!3ranches. 


The  D.C.  Circuit  Court  of  Appeals  has  recognized  the  obligations  of  Congress 

and  the  Executive  Branch  to  seek  to  accommodate  the  legitimate  needs  of  the  other: 


The  framers  ..  .  expect[ ed]  that  where  conflicts  in  scope  of  authority  arose 

between  the  coordinate  branches,  a  spirit  of  dynamic  compro!:!ise  would  promote 

resolution  of  the  dispute  in  the  manner  most  !ikely  to  result  in  efficient  and 

effective  functioning  of  our  governmental  system.  Under  this  view,  the 

coordinate  branches  do  not  exist  in  an  exclusively  adversary  relationship  to  one 

another  when  a  conflict  in  authority  arises.  Rather,  each  branch  should  take 

cognizance  of  an  implicit  constitutional  mandate  to  seek  optimal  accommodation 

through  a  realistic  evaluation  of  the  needs  of  the  conflicting  branches  in  the 


particular  fact  situation. 


United  Stat~s  v.  American  Tel.  &  Tel.  Co.,  567  F.2d  121,  127  (D.C.  Cir.  1977).  Attorney 

Geneial  William  French  Smith  captured  the  essence  of  the  accommodation  process  in  a  198 l 

opinion:  "The  accommodation  required  is  not  f.imply  an  exchange  of  concessions  or  a  test  of 

political  strength.  It  is  an  obligation  of  each  branch  to  make  a  principled  effort  to  acknowledge, 

and  if  possible  to  meet,  the  legitimate  needs  of  the  other  branch."  Opinion  of  the  Attorney 

General  for  the  President,  Assertion  of  Executive  Privilege  in  Response  to  a  Congressional 

Subpoena,  5  Op.  O.L.C.  27,  31  (1981). 


In  implementing  the  longstanding  policy  of  the  Executive  Branch  to  comply  with 

Congressional  requests  for  information  to  the  fullest  extent  consistent  with  the  cc;mstitutional 

and  statutory  obli.gations  of  the  Executive  Branch,  the  Department's  goal  in  all  cases  is-to   satisfy 

legitimate  legislative  interests  while  protecting  Executive  Branch  cor.fidentiality  interests. 

Examples  of  confidential  information  include  national  security  information,  mateiials  that  are 
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.... .. .. ............... ····-- -· .. 

protected  by  law  (such  as  grand  jury  information  pursuant  lo  Rule  6( e)  of  the  Federal  Rules  of 

Criminal  Procedu1e  and  taxpayer  information  pursuant  to  26  U.S.C.  §  6103);  information  the 

disclosure  of  which  might  compromise  open  criminal  investigations  or  prosecutions  or  civil 

cases  or  constitute  an  unwarranted  invasion  of  personal  privacy;  and  predecisional  deliberative 

communications  (such  as  internal  advice  and  preliminary  positions  and  recommendations). 


We  believe  that  it  must  be  the  Department's  efforts  to  safeguard  these  important 

Executive  Branch  institutional  interests  that  have  led  to  the  frustrations  expressed  during  the 

Subcommittee's  hearing.  We  hope  that  we  can  reduce  those  frustrations  in  the  future  by  setting 

forth  here  our  perspective  on  some  of  the  more  important  institutional  interests  that  are 

implicated  during  the  course  of  Congressional  oversight. 


Open  Matters 


Much  of  the  testimony  at  the  hearing  addressed  oversight  of  ongoing  Department 

investigations  and  litigation.  Although  Congress  has  a  clearly  legitimate  interest  in  determi11in_g 

how  the  Department  enforces  statutes,  Congressional  inquiries  during  the  pendency  of  a  matter 

pose  an  inherent  threat  to  the  integrity  of  the  Department's  law  enforcement  and  litigation 

functions_  Such  inquiries  inescapably  create  the  risk  that  the  public  and  the  courts  will  perceive 

undue  political  and  Congressional  influence  over  law  enforcement  and  litigation  decisions.  Such 

inquiries  also  often  seek  records  and  other  information  that  our  responsibilities  for  these  matters 

preclude  us  from  disclosing.  Consequently,  we  have  sought  whenever  possible  to  provide 

information  about  closed,  rather  than  open,  matters.  This  enables  Congress  to  anJ.lyze  and 

evaluate  how  statutory  programs  are  handled  and  the  Department  conducts  its  business,  while 

avoiding  the  potential  interference  that  inquiries  into  open  matters  entail. 


The  open  matters  concern  is  especially  significant  with  respect  to  ongoing  law 

enforcement  investigations.  The  Department's  longstanding  policy  is  to  decline  to  provide 

Congressional  committees  with  access  to  open  law  enforcement  files.  Almost  60  years  ago, 

Attorney  General  Robert  H  Jackson  informed  Congress  that: 


It  is  the  position  of  the  Department,  restated  now  with  the  approvai  of  and  at  the  direction 

of  the  President,  that  all  investigative  reports  are  confidential  documents  of  the  executive 

department  of  the  Government,  to  aid  in  the  duty  laid  upon  the  President  by  the 

Constit•Jtion  to  "take  care  that  the  Laws  be  faithfully  executed,"  and  that  congressional 

or  public  access  to  them  would  not  be  in  the  public  interest       ..   ..   


40  Op.  Att'y.  Gen.  45,  46  (I 941).  Attorney  General  Jackson's  position  was  not  new.  His  letter 

cited  prior  Attorney  General  letters  taking  the  same  position  dating  back  to  the  beginning  of  the 

20th  century  QQ...  at  47-48). 


The  rationale  for  this  policy  is  set  forth  in  a  published  opinion  of  the  Office  of  Legal 

Counsel  issued  by  Charl~s  J.  Cooper,  Assistant  Att0mey  Generai  for  the  Office  of  Legal  Counsel 
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during  part  or  the  Reagan  Administration.  See  Response  to  Congressional  Requests  for 

Information  Regarding  Decisions  made  Under  the  lndependent  Cou11sel  Act,  IO  Op.  O.L.C.  68, 

76-77  ( l 986).  Mr.  Cooper  noted  that  providing  a  Congressional  committee  with  confidential 

information  about  active  criminal  investigations  would  place  the  Congress  in  a  position  to  exert 

pressure  or  artempt  to  influence  the  prosecution  of  criminal  cases.  M:.  at  76.  Congress  wou!d 

become,  "in  a  sense,  a  partner  i:1  the  investigation,"  id.,  and  could  thereby  attempt  to  second­
guess  tactical  and  strategic  decisions,  question  witness  interview  schedules,  debate  conflicting 

internal  recommendations,  and  generally  attempt  to  influence  the  outcome  of  the  criminal 

investigation.  Such  a  practice  would  significantly  damage  law  enforcement  efforts  and  shake 

public  and  jvdic.ial  confidence  in  the  criminal  justice  system.  Id.  at  76-77. 


Decisions  about  the  course  of  an  investigation  must  be  made  without  reference  to 

political  considerations.  As  one  Justice  Department  official  noted  30  years  ago,  "the  Executive 

cannot  effectively  investigate  if  Congress  is,  in  a  sense,  a  partner  in  the  investigation.  If  a 

congressional  committee  is  fully  apprised  of  all  details  of  an  investigation  as  the  investigation 

proceeds, _ there  is  a  substantial  danger  that  congressional  pressures  will  influence  the  course  o.f 

the  investigation."  Memorandum  for  Edward  L.  Morgan,  Deputy  Counsel  to  the  President,  from 

Thomas  E.  Kauper,  Deputy  Assistant  Attorney  General,  Office  of  Legal  Counsel,  Re:  Submission 

of  Open  CID  Investigation  Files  2  (Dec.  19,  1969) 


In  addition  to  the  problem  of  Congressional  pressure  and  the  appearance  of  such  pressure, 

the  disclosure  of  documents  from  our  open  files  could  also  pr~vide  a  "road  map"of  the 

Department's  ongoing  investi;ations.  The  documents,  or  information  that  they  contain,  could 

come  into  the  possession  of  the  targets  of  the  investigation  through  inadvertence  or  a  deliberatt: 

act  on  the  part  of  someone  having  access  to  them.  The  investigation  would  be  seriously 

prejudiced  by  the  revelation  of  the  direction  of  the  investigation,  infonnation  about  the  evidence 

that  the  prosecutors  have  obtained,  and  assessments  of  the  strengths  and  weaknesses  of  various 

aspects  of  the  investigation.  As  Attorney  General  Jackson  observed: 


Disclosure  of  the  [law  enforcement]  reports  could  not  do  otherwiss::  than  seriously 

prejudice  law  enforcement.  Counsel  for  a  defendant  or  a  prospectiv~  defendant,  could 

have  no  greater  help  than  to  know  how  much  or  how  little  informatioa  the  Government 

has,  and  what  witnesses  or  sources  of  infonnation  it  can  rely  upon.  This  is  exactly  what 

these  reports  are  intended  to  contain. 


40  Op.  Atty.  Gen . at  46.  The  Department  has  similar  interests  in  the  confidentiality  of  internal 

documents  relating  to  its  representation  of  the  United  States  in  civil  litigation.  Our  litigation  files 

usually  contain  confidential  correspondence  with  client  agencies  as  well  as  the  work  product  of 

our  attorneys  in  suits  that  frequently  seek  millions  of  tax  dollars.  They  also  contain  "road  maps" 

of  our  litigation  plans  and  preparations,  as  well  as  confidential  reports  from  experts  and 

consultants.  Those  plans  could  be  seriously  jeopardized  and  our  positions  in  litigation 

compromised  ifw e  are  obliged  to  disclose  our  internal  deliberations  including,  but  nof  limited  to, 
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our  assessments  of  the  strengths  and  weaknesses  of  evidence  or  the  law,  before  they  are 

presented  in  court.  That  nny  result  in  an  unfair  advantage  to  those  who  seek  public  funds  and 

deprive  the  taxpayers  of  confidential  representation  enjoyed  by  other  litigants. 


In  addition,  the  reputations  of  individuals  mentioned  in  internal  law  enforcement  and 

litigation  documents  could  be  severely  damaged  by  the  public  release  of  information  about  them, 

even  though  the  case  might  ultimately  not  warrant  prosecution  or  other  legal  action.  The 

Department  takes  very  seriously  its  responsibility  to  respect  the  privacy  interests  of  individuals 

about  whom  information  is  developed  during  the  law  enforcement  process  or  litigation. 


Internal  Department  Deliberations 


With  respect  to  oversight  on  closed  matters,  the  Department  has  a  broad  confidentiality 

interest  in  materials  that  reflect  its  internal  deliberative  process.  In  particular,  we  have  sought 

to  ensure  that  all  law  enforcement  and  litigation  decisions  are  products  of  open,  frank  and 

independent  assessments  of  the  pertinent  law  and  facts  -- uninhibited  by  political  and  imp·rop_er. 

influences  that  may  be  present  outside  the  Department.  We  have  long  bien  concerned  about  the 

chilling  effect  that  would  ripple  throughout  government  if  prosecutors,  policy  advisors  at  all 

levels  and  line  attorneys  believed  that  their  honest  opinion  -- be  i t "good"  or  "bad"-- may  be  the  


topic  of  debate  in  Congressional  hearings  or  floor  debates.  These  include  assessments 

of  evidence  and  law,  candid  advice  on  strengths  and  weaknesses  of  legal  arguments,  and 

recommendations  to  take  or  not  to  take  kgal  action  against  individuals  and  corporate  entities. 


The  Department  must  seek  to  protect  this  give-and-take  process  so  that  the  participants  in 

the  process  can  vigorously  debate  issues  before  them  and  remain  able  to  provide  decisionmakers 

with  complete  and  honest  counsel  regarding  the  conduct  of  the  Department's  business.  If  each 

participant's  contribution  can  be  dissected  by  Congress  in  a  public  forum,  then  the  free  and 

candid  flow  of  ideas  and  recommendations  would  certainly  be  jeopardized.  The  Supreme  Court 

has  recognized  the  legitimacy  of  this  "chilling  effect"  concern:  "Human  experience  teaches  that 

those  who  expect  pubiic  disseminatiou  of  their  remarks  may  well  temper  candor  with  a  concern 

for  appearances  and  for  their  own  interests  to  the  detriment  of  the  decisionmaking  process." 

United  States  v.  Nixon,  4 18  U.S.  683,  705  (1974).  Our  experience  indicates  that  the  Department 

can  develop  accommodations  with  Congressional  committees  that  satisfy  their  needs  for 

infonnation  that  may  be  contained  in  deliberative  material  while  at  the  same  time  protecting 

the  Department's  interest  in  avoiding  a  chill  on  the  candor  of  future  deliberations. 


The  foregoing  concerns  apply  with  special  force  to  Congressional  requests  for 

prosecution  and  declination  memoranda  and  similar  documents.  These  are  extremely  sensitive 


law  enforcement  materials.  The  Department's  attorneys  are  asked  to  render  unbiased, 

professional  judgments  about  the  merits  of  potential  criminal  and  civil  law  enfor~ment  cases. 

If  their  deliberative  documents  were  made  subject  to  Congressional  challenge  and  scrutiny, 

we  would  face  a  grave  danger  that  they  would  be  chilled  from  providing  the  candid  and 

independent  analysis  essential  to  just  and  effective  law  enforcement  or,  just  as  troubling,  that 
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they  m;~hl  err  oa  the  side  of  prosecution  simply  to  avoid  public  second-guessing.  This  in  turn 

would  undermine  public  and  judicial  confidence  in  cur  law  enforcement  processes,  untoward 

consequences  we  &re  confident  that  Congress,  like  the  Department,  wishes  to  avoid. 


Privacy 


In  addition  to  these  concerns,  disclosure  of  declination  memoranda  would  implicate 

significant  individual  privacy  interests  as  well.  Such  documents  discuss  the  possibility  of 

bringing  charges  against  individuals  who  are  investigated  but  not  prosecuted,  and  often  contain 

unflattering  personal  ir.formation  as  well  as  assessments  of  witness  credibility  and  legal 

positions.  The  disclosure  of  the  contents  of  these  documents  could  be  devastating  to  the 

individuals  they  discuss.  We  try  to  accommodate  Congressional  needs  for  information  about 

declinations  whenever  possible  by  making  appropriate  Department  officials  available  to  brief 

Comrruttee  Members  and  staff.  This  affords  us  an  opportunity  to  answer  their  questions,  y.,hich 

can  be  helpful  because  it  can  include  the  context  and  process  that  accompanied  the  decision. 

Hence,  the  discussion  with  staff  may  provide  useful  information  and  minimize  the  intrusion  on 

individual  privacy  and  the  chill  on  our  attorneys'  preparation  of  future  deliberative  documents. 
· 

Line  Attorneys 


The  Department  also  has  a  strong  institutional  interest  in  ensuring  that  appropriate 

superv:sory  personnel,  rather  than  line  attorneys  and  agents,  answer  Congressional  questions 

abcut  Department  actions.  This  is  based  in  part  upon  our  view  that  supervisory  personnel,  not 

line  employees,  make  the  decisions  that  are  the  subjects  of  congressional  review,  and  therefore 

they  should  be  the  ones  to  explain  the  decisions.  More  fundamentally,  however,  we  need  to 

ensure  that  our  attorneys  and  agents  can  exercise  the  independent  judgment  essential  to  the 

integrity  oflaw   enforcement  and  litigation  functions  and  to  public  confidence  in  those  decisions. 

Senator  Orrin  Hatch  has  recognized  the  legitimacy  of  the  Department's  practice  in  this  area, 

olJserving  that  Congressional  examination  of  line  attorneys  "could  chill  career  Department  of 

Justice  lawyers  in  !he  exer:;ise  of  their  da:ly  duties."  See  Letter  to  Attorney  General  Janet  Reno 

from  Senator  Orrin  Hatch,  dated  September  21,  1993.  Representatiue  Henry  Hyde  bas  likewise 

opposed  Congressional  interviews  of  line  prosecutors.  See  Leaer  of  Representative  Hyde  to 

Representative  Carlos  Moorhead,  dated  September  7,  1993.  By  questioning  supervisors  and 

ultimately  the  Department's  Senate-confirmed  leadership,  Congress  can  falfi.11  its  oversight 

responsibilities  without  underrruning  the  independence  of  line  attorneys  and  agents. 


*  *  * 


ln  sum,  the  Department  recognizes  that  the  process  of  Congressional  oversight  is  an 

important  part  of  our  system  of  government.  We  are  cornruitted  to  cooperating  with  oversight 

requests  to  the  fullest  e>..ient  consistent  with  our  constitutional  and  statutory  resp·onsibilitie_s. 


6 

Document  ID:  0.7.23922.36543-000003  



   

 


  





  

We  welcome  yc..ir  s..iggestions  about  how  \'le  should  work  together  to  accommodate  tl,e  needs 

of  our  respective  branches  of  government.  Please  do  noi  hesitate  to  cont.:.ct  me  if  you  would  like 

to  discuss  these  matters  further.  I  intend  at  all  times  to  work  diligently  with  you  toward 

satisfying  the  respective  needs  of  our  coordinate  branches. 


Sincerely, 


cc:  The  Honorable  Tony  Hall 

Ranking  Minority  Member 
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Assistant Attorney General 
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Schools, Scott (ODAG} 

From: Schools, Scott (ODAG) 

Sent: Tuesday, February 20, 2018 1:59 PM 

To: Colborn, Paul P (OLC) 

Subject: Part S.pdf 

Attachments: Part S.pdf 

Per our discussion. Further to that discussion, these are a subset of documents previously provided bythe 
FBI to the IG. Thanks! 

Document ID: 0.7.23922.5114 



BAKER, JAMES A. {OGC} {FBI) 

From; BAKER, JAMES A. {OGC) {FBI) 
Sent: Friday, July 22, 2016 9:09 AM 

b5 per FBITo: ANDERSON, TRl5HA B. {OGC) {FBl)I ~OGC) {FBI); STEINBACH, 
b6 per FBI

MICHAEL B. (DO) (FBI); KELLY, STEPHEN {DO) (fBl); BEERS, ELIZABETH RAE {OCA) 
b7C per FBI 

{FBI); PRIEST.AP, E W. (CD) (FBl); STRZOK, PETER P. {CD) {FB!); MOFFA, JONATHAN 

C. CD' FBI\· BROWER, GREGORY {OGC){fBl) 

Cc: ,__________.OGC) (FBI) 

Subject: RE: Draft MYE Congressional response "template"······ UNClASS!FIED 
Attachments: ocx 

Classifica~ion: UNCLASSIFIED 
•U•P1:f.~FGf"<_-1'\Jf\-~f'........,t:;;.f1·f-~;~\}!F,uu].lf<_.;t.:v.;1~~f~r~{if\-{).n•~E-1\JJ~!\)l'·?.t'-~l~:i·-~F0f:❖/•I~g<b<{;.g.E,.f<,-J:'t:f'.;1~~v:.~-HHP•F{.Q(;.1~;~~.;.,s 

.,,f{R":~~i":~--~1.g..~..fl..,~....,.,.~f>~~ii'-{~;f"~· 

TRANSITORY RECORD 

!f 'N'.':. must 5eod thl5 to DOJ tod;iv, th:.::.r: we shou;d make clear th;it we h;~ve not had a char.c.e to discuss 
it yet with the Director (which v.e rnust do in rny opinion) and that it is not the FBl's final version. 

Thanks.. 

Jirn 

From: ANDERSON, TRISHA B. (OGC) {fBI) 
Sent: Thursda , July 21, 2D16 2:44 PM 
To~~i-,-,-,~"!""C"'OGC) (FBI); STEINBACH, MTCH/1.EL B. (DO) {FBT); KELLY, STEPHEN (DO) {FBT); 
BE ~, t: RAE (OCA) (FBI); PRIESTAP, E W. (CD) (FBI); STRZOK, PETER P. (CD) (FBI); MOFFA, 
JONATHAN C 1CD FBI'· BAKER, J.t..MES .t... (OGC) (FBI); BROWER, GREGORY (OGC)(FBI) 
Cc _....,,....,,.......,...,,.,,..,.,,,,..,,..__..OGC) {fBI) 
SubJect: Dra MYE Con-;_iressional response "template" --- UNCLASSIFIED 

b6 per FBI 
b7C per FBI 

CJ.a:;s if:icat.i.on: UlJCLASS IFISD 

TRANSITORY RECORD 

Document ID: 0.7.23922.5114-000001 

F81001890 

https://PRIEST.AP


All, 

Attached please find a draft template for responding to rnngressional letters related to the Midyear 
Exam investigation . .iim is out today and therefore has not yet had a chance to provide input. Please 

b6 per FBIprovide any comments or thoughts to me anLJ 
b7C per FBI 

Thanks, 
Trisha 

b5 per FBI 
<< Filej~...................................................................................................................,...........................-ldocx » 

-----·---------·------·---------·---·------------·---·---------

Classifi.cation: UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 

F81001891 
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I{OGC) (FBI) 

From; _____l{OGC) (FBI) 

Sent: Friday, July 22, 2016 9:49 AM 

To: BAKER, JAMES A. (OGC) (FBI); ANDERSON, TRISHA B. {OGC) (FBI); STEINBACH, 

MICHAEL B. {DO) (FBI); KELLY, STEPHEN {DO) (FBI); BEERS, ELIZABETH RAE (OCA) 

{FBI); PRIESTAP, E W. (CD} {FBI}; STRZOK, PETER P. (CD) (FBI); MOFFA, JONATHAN 

Cc: 
C. {CD) {FBI); BROWER, GREGORY (OGC){fBl}

I pGC} (FBl) 
Subject: RE: Draft MYE Congressional response "template"······ UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 

TRANSITORY RECORD 

From: BAKER, JAMES I\. (OGC) {fBT) 
Sent: Frlday, July 22, 2016 9:09 AM .---------. 
To: ANDERSON, TRISHA B. (OGC) (FBI)j !(OGC) (FBI); STEINBACH, MICHAEL B. (DO) 
(FBI); KELLY, STEPHEN (DO) (FBI); BEERS, ELIZABETH RAE (OCA) (fBI); PRIESTAP, E W. (CD) (FBI); 
STR(QK PFJF: p (~-~' lBI); MOFFA, JONATHAN C. (CD) (fBI); BROWER, GREGORY (OGC)(FBI) 
Cc: ; ; ; (OGC) (fBI) 
SubJect: RE: rat; 0:1gressional response "template" --- UNCU\SSIFIED 

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 

TRANSITORY RECORD 

Attached are some edits and comments. 

if we must send this to D01 tod,ry, then we shouid rnake dear that we have not had a chance to disrnss 
it yet with the Director (v.,'hic.h we must do in rnv opinion) and that it is not the r:f.-i!'s fincii ve-r,;ion. 

Thanks, 

b6 per FBI 
b7C per FBI 

b6 per FBI 
b7C per FBI 

ocx >> bS per FBI 

F81001895 
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From: ANDERSON, TRISHA B. (OGC) {FBI) 
Sent: Thursday, July 21, 2016 2:44 PM
Toi fOGC) (FBI); STEINBACH, MICHAEL B. (DO) {FBI); KELLY, STEPHEN (DO) {FBI); b6 per FBI 
BEERS, ELIZABETH RAE (OCA) (FBI); PRIESTAP, E W. (CD) (FBI); STRZOK, PETER P. (CD) (FBI); MOFFA, b7C per FBI 
JONATHAN C.~CD) {FBI): BAKER, JAMES A. {OGC) (FBI); BROWER, GREGORY (OGC)(fBI)
cc:! koGc) (fBI) 
Subject: Dra MYE Congn~ssionai response "template" --- UNCLASSffIED 

Class'L f.i cat.ion: UNCLASSIFIED 
~"~'¥tt1~:NE,¥,,,,~,}·b-f-,EI·l~"~''''F'F:'±';l..f,~£f:H3,B,,,,i,NF,~~R·f+fa.~~,f,lo/l'l,f·'5'E~,{,r_}5'1':~..,~,f,~l£,,,,p,E\~\~")E,t1f)"· 

TRANSITORY RECORD 

All, 

Attached please find a draft temp!<1te for responding to congressional letters related to the i'v1idyear 
Exam investigation. jirn is out today and therefore has not yet had a chance to provide input. Please 
provide any comments or thoughts to me anLJ b6 per FBI 

b7C per FBI 

Thanks, 
Trisha 

<< File: ocx >> bS per FBI 

Classificacion: UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: Ui"J(~Li:\SSIE?ISD 

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 

F81001896 
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KELLY, STEPHEN {DO) {FBI) 

From; !<ELLY, STEPHEN (DO) iFSI) 
Sent: Friday, July 22, 2016 11:30 AM 

To: I loGC) (FBI); Bt-.KER, JAMES A. (OGC) (FBI); ANDERSON, TRISHA B. 
{OGC) {FBI): STEINBACH, MICHAEL B. {DO) (FBI); BEERS, ELIZABETH RAE (OCA) 
{FBI); PRIESTAP, E W. (CD) (FBl}; STRZOK, PETER P. (CD) (FBI); MOFFA, JONATHAN 

C. {CDi (FBI); BROV,JER, GREGORY (OGC){fBl) 
Cc: I bGC) (FBI) 
Subject: RE: Draft MYE Congressional response "template"······ UNCLASSIFIED 

Attachments: I ~ocx 

Classifica~ion: UNCLASSIFIED 

TRANSITORY RECORD 

Here are fl':V cornrnents ,H,d edits on the document. Let rne h!ghl±ght on0. overarchinq Doint. I 

b5 per FBI 
b6 per FBI 
b7C per FBI 

b6 per FBI 
b7C per FBI 

bS per FBI 
b6 per FBI 
b7C per FBI 

I! sooke td I 
I 

.. Stephen 

b6 per FBIFronl1 l(oGc) (FBI) 
b7C per FBISent: Friday, Juiy 22, 2016 9:49 AM 

To: BAKER, .JAMES A. (OGC) (FBI); ANDERSON, TRISHA B. {OGC) (FBI); STEINBACH, MICHt1EL B. {DO) 
(FBI}; KELLY, STEPHEN (DO) (FBI); BEERS, ELIZABETH RAE {OG1) {FBI); PRIESTAP, E W. (CD) (FBI); 
sTyoK, PETER P. (CD) (FBI); MOFFJ\ .JONATHAN C (CD) {FBI); BROWER, GREGORY (OGC){FBI) 
Cc:..,,_--,-....,,....,,,.......,,........,,.....,....,,....,.,,,..~tOGC) (f B[) 
Subject: RE: Draft MYE Congressional response "template" --- UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 

F81001897 
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TRANSITORY RECORD 

/'-,greed. The Deputy is uriiike!y to have rev!ewed it as we!I. 

From: Bt1KER1 JAMES A. (OGC) {FBI) 
Sent: Friday, July 22, 2016 9:09 AM 
To: AMDERSOM, TRISHA B, (OGC) (FBI);! !(OGC) (FBI); STE[NBACH, MICHAEL B. (DO) b6 per FBI 
(FBI); KELLY, STEPHEN (DO) (FBI); BEERS, i::LJZA.BETH RAE {OCA) {FBI); PRIESTAP, E W. (CD) (FBI); b7C per FBI 
~"'TrOK PEifR p {CQ) {rI); MOFFA, JONATHAN C. (CD) {FBI); BRO\rVER, GREGORY (OGC){FBl) 
Cc !'--,----,-...,,,..,,,....,,,.......,,,...,..,"""'='..,,,.oGC) {FBI) 
Subject: RE: Draft MYE Congressional response "template" --- IJNCLASSIF[ED 

TRANSITORY RECORD 

l~ttached are some edits and cornrnents. 

if we must send Uiis to DOJ today, then we :::houid rnake cle3r that we r,ave not lud " chance rn discuss 

it vet with the Director (wh!ch v.;e must do in my opinion) and th;it it is not the FBI' s final version. 

Thanks. 

Jirn 

b5 per FBI<< File ocx >> 

From: ANDERSON, TRISHA B. (OGC) {FBI) 
Sent: Thursday, July 21, 2016 2:44 PM 
Toj i(OGC) (FSI); STE[NBACH, MICHAEL B. (DO) (FBI); KELLY, STEPHEN (DO) (FBI); 
BEERS, ELIZABETH R.A.E (OCA) (FSI); PRIESTAP, E W, {CD) (FBI); STRZOK, PETER P, (CD) (FBI); MOFFA,JO~rTHA:C !~~1 f:BI\· ~KER, JAMES A. (OGC) (FBI); BROWER, GREGORY (OGC){FB[) 

b6 per FBICc: GC) {FBT) 
Su6Jec:; ra~ ~ E.ongressiona! response "template" --- UNCLASSIFIED b7C per FBI 

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 
'"·"''~'..,{,'9f<_,Nf.,.4,"";;~,++~~,,,f'------Pfl+¾',++&;;-f;Hf,,,--+,N-FG-I-'H½,-,_\,~'..+-8#/,BE+rf-B,½H-.,l¥~'--+\,q,;;""{'<H8G¾£,i, 

TRANSITORY RECORD 

F81001893 
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All, 

Attached plea<;e find a draft template for n>.,,µonding to congressional letter,, related to the Midyear 
Exam iMestigation. Jim is out today and therefore has not yet had a chance to provide input. Please 
provide ar,y comments or thoughts to me andD b6 per FBI 

b7C per FBI 

Thanks, 
Trisha 

bS per FBIdocx >> 

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 

c: .l.a ss j_ f i cat i.()n: (Jt\JCT.:ASS T. FI ED 

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 

F81001899 
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From; ______.....l(oGC) (FBI) 

Sent: Friday, July 22, 2016 4:53 PM 

To: ANDERSON, TRlSHA B, {OGC) {Fmd ~OGC) {FBI); STEINBACH, 
MICHAEL B. {DO) (FBI); KELLY, STEPHEN {DO) (FBI); BEERS, ELIZABETH RAE {OCAj 

{FBI); PRIEST.AP, E W. (CD) {FBl); STRZOK, PETER P. (CD) (FBI); MOFFA, JONATHAN 

C. {CD) {FBI); Bf...KER, JAMES A. (OGC) (fBl); BROWER, GREGORY {OGC){FBl) 
Subject; RE: Draft MYE Congressional response "ternplate"•-- UNCLASSIFIED 

Attachments: I ~ocx 

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 
A-'f'R~~NE-¥----+1-ErFBh'-(f----'f-%t-V-I-fi-EffE-B-----HH''~:1R'M-A'1'-I-6'N-fB-EH:,-~B5-R~.-'f,f-¥-E----P·F1.~HEfi-S------

TRANSITORY RECORD 

,f\l! -

Please find attached a revised !etter responding to Con -re$sionai inquiries an !'v1idvear Exarn. Thi$ 

...._________________________. Pk:,Vi,e !i~t rn<:: know if you hcive -imy 
crnnrnents or questions. 

Thanks, 

From: .A.NDERSON, TRISHA B. (OGC) (fBI) 
Sent: Thursday, July 21, 2016 2:44 PMTot l(OGC) (FBI); STEINBACH, MICHAEL B. (DO} {FBI}; KELLY, STEPHEN (DO) (FBI); 
BEERS, ELIZABETH RAE (OCA) (FBI); PRIESTAP, E W. {CD) (FBI); STRZOK, PETER P. (CD) (FBI); MOFFA., 
JONI\THAN C. (CD) (FBI); BAKER, Jt1MES 1;. {OGC) (FBI); BROWER, GREGORY (OGC}{fBI) 
Cd !OGC) {fBI) 
Subject: Draft MYE Con-:;iressional response "template" --- UNCLJ\SSIFIED 

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 

F81001904 

bS per FBI 
b6 per FBI 
b7C per FBI 

bS per FBI 
b6 per FBI 
b7C per FBI 

b6 per FBI 
b7C per FBI 

b6 per FBI 
b7C per FBI 

Document ID: 0.7_23922.5114-000001 

https://PRIEST.AP


All, 

Attached ple"1se find a draft template for responding to congressional letters related to the Midyear 
Exam investigation. jim is out today and therefore has not yet had a chance to provide input, Please 
provide any comments or thoughts to me anQ b6 per FBI 

b7C per FBI 

Thanks, 
Trisha 

b5 per FBI<< File: ocx >> 

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 

F81001905 
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toGC) (FBI) 

From; .______toGC) (FBI) 

Sent: Tuesday, July 26, 2016 4:19 PM 
To: BAKER, JAMES A. (OGC) (FBI); STRZOK, PETER P. (CD) (FBl);I_______ 

{OGC) (FBI): ANDERSON, TRISHA B. {OGC} {FBl}; STEINBACH, fv1lCHAEL B. {DO) 

{FBI); KELLY, STEPHEN iDO) (FBI); BEERS, ELIZABETH RAE (OCA) (FBI); PRIEST AP, E 

W. (CD} (fBl}; MOFFA, JONATHAN C. {CD) (FBI); BROVVER, GREGORY (OGC)(FBI) 

Subject; RE: Draft MYE Congressional responq~ "ternoiatg" ·-- UNCLASSlflED 

Attachments: I ~ocx 

TRANSITORY RECORD 

Attach,,·,d, p!,icisi~ find tiw i,)l,ist vNs!on of the MYE n~spon~t). i hilv,~ ,)CC~:pt,~d necidy i)li char,gt)~ frnrn 
Pete, Stephen, and Jim Baker, and working with Pete, added a !ittie more substantive information. That 
new information is in redline. Couid foiks plc)se cake a qu,d. iook at thi~ addition~ b,~for,,, Is,~ncl this to 
Hybicki and the Deputy for their apprnvai? Thank$ so much. 

D 
From: BAKER, JAMES A. (OGC) (FB[) 
Sent: Monday, July 25, 2016 4:53 PM 
To: STRZOK, PETER P. (CD) (FBi)j.--------.[OGC) (FBI); ANDERSON, TRISHA B. (OGC) 
(FBI);! toGC) (Fm); STEINBACH, MICHAEL B. (DO) (FBI); KELLY, STEPHEN (DO) (FBI); 
BEERS, EUZABETH Rft.E {OCA) {FSI); PRIESTAP, E V,J, (CD) (FBI); MOFF.ll., JmJ.ll.THAN C {CD) (FBI); 
BROVVER, GREGORY (OGC)(FBI) 
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

F81001910 
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Thanks. Here are sorne additiona! corniT1ent,; frnrn me (note that I was working off of the version pr:or 
to Pete's most recent one). f:'!ease !et me know if anvone has concerns/questions about mv comments 
and iet',, chat if any of you think thf,y should not be adopt,~d. 

Thanks. 

b5 per FBI<< File: ocx >> 

From: STRZOK, PETER P, (CD) (FBI) 
Sent: Monday, July 25, 2016 4:28 PM ,--------. 

b6 per FBITo:I [OGC) (FBI); ANDERSON, TRISHA B. (OGC) (FBI); lcoGC) (FBI); b7C per FBI
STEINBACH, MICHAEL B. (DO) (FBI); KELLY, STEPHEN (DO) (FBI); BEERS, jLiZABtTH RAE {OG\) (FBI); 
PRIESTAP, E W. (CD) (FB[); MOFFA., JONA.THAN C. (CD) {FB[); BAKER, JAMES A. (OGC) {FB[); BROWER, 
GREGORY (OGC)(FBI) 
Subject: RE: Draft MYE Congressional response "template" --- UNCU1SSIFIED 

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 

TRANSITORY RECORD 

bS per FBIGreat job a few cornrner:ts oin attached. i wi!I draft a few senter:r:es...l______. 
<< File: ocx >> 

FromJ !(OGC) (FBI) 
Sent: Fr1day, Juiy 22, 2016 4:53 PM .-----. 
To: ANDERSON, TRISHA B. (OGC) (FBI);! l(OGC) (FBI); STE[NBACH, MICH.AEL B. (DO) 
(FBI); KELLY, STEPHEN (DO) (FBI); BEERS, ELIZABETH RAE (QC.A.) (FBI); PRIESTAP, E W. (CD) (FBI); 
STRZOK, PETER P. (CD) {FBl); MOFFA, JONATHAN C. (CD) (FBI); BAKER, JAMES A. (OGC) (FBI); 
BROWER, GREGORY {OGC)(FBI) 
Subject: RE: Draft MYE Congressional response "template" -·-- UNCLASSIF[ED 

b6 per FBI 
b7C per FBI 

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 

TRANSITORY RECORD 

includes edits frotT: OGC, CD1 OC.A, an• Per the Deputy Director a;;ked bS per FBI 
b6 per FBI 
b7C per FBI 

F81001911 
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--------------------------
b5 per FBI

~'!eas,~ li,t rne know if you have any 
comments or questions. 

b6 per FBI 
b7C per FBI 

bS per FBI<< File ocx >> 

From: ANDERSON, TRISHA B. (OGC) (FBI) 
Sent: Thursda Juiy 21, 2016 2:44 PM 
To: Ji,;-r..,..,.v-,-,i_.,,.,-f.oGC) (FSI); STE[NBACH, MICHAEL B. (DO) {FBI); KELLY, STEPHEN (DO) {FBI); 
BEE< , ; RAE (OCA) (FSI); PRIESTAP, E W. {CD) (FBI); STRZOK, PETER P. (CD) (FBI); MOFFA, 
JONATHAN C~CD) (FBI); BAKER, JAMES A. {OGC) (FBI); BROWER, GREGORY (OGC){fB[) 
Cc !OGC) {FBT) 
sulject: Dra~ MYE Congressional response "template" --- UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 

TRANSITORY RECORD 

All, 

f\ttached please find a draft template for responding to congressional letters related to the Midyear 
Exam investigatjon. Jirn is out today and therefore has not yet had a chance to provide input. Please 

provide any comments or thoughts to me and□ 

Thanks., 
Trisha 

b6 per FBI 
b7C per FBI 

b6 per FBI 
b7C per FBI 

ocx >> b5 per FBI 

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 

Clas:; .i. f i cat: ion: UNCLASS I FIFD 

F81001912 
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Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 

F81001913 

Document ID: 0.7_23922.5114-000001 



From; I ~OGC) (FBI) 
Sent: I uesday, July 19, 201 5:15 PM 

To: STRZOK, PETER P. (CD) (FBl); ~,llOFFA, JONATHAN C {CD) (FBI) 
Cc: j l(OGC) {FBI) 

Subject: FW: MYE .. Copgressionai Respopse ..... UNCLASSlF!ED 

Attachments: I racx 

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 
-EH:\-f)·f·fS·l~;f~}\-'fu:{;.\[i;uuP.f~-(~,G-8-&{.;.unll}l;t.:\l~EJ:,g{;;i.:..;.E;\u.,E{;~'";{~H~·4f~-t'1:fu• 

;-:y1_ Here·~ whclt I sent to Trisha 1ast night. ! sti!I haven't looked at it ;:igain, but i welrnine a!i rninrnents 
or ~ugge~t,on~. 

From:I !(OGC) {fBI) 
Sent: Monday, July 18, 2016 9:37 PM 
To: ANDERSON, TRISHA B. (OGC) (FBI) 
Cc:! !{OGC) (FBI) 
Subject: MYE - Congressional Response --- UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 

Trisha -

Please find attached a very rough draft of the Congre;;sion<d Response. l believe we have actually 
answered almost allot the {numerous) questions that have corne in from Cor,gress sine€ the Director's 

statement/testimony. Some ofthe transitions need work, but I wanted to get you something. l'H come 
in tomorrow and louk at this with fresh eyes, but thought you might want to review it before! get in. 

Thanks,

D 

bS per FBI 
b6 per FBI 
b7C per FBI 

b6 per FBI 
b7C per FBI 

b6 per FBI 
b7C per FBI 

b6 per FBI 
b7C per FBI 

F81001913 
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Assistant Genera! Counsel 
National Securit Law Branch 

b6 per FBI 
b7C per FBI 
b7E per FBI 

Confojentiality Statement: 

This message :s tra:ismitted to vou by th0 Office of' the Ger,eral Cou:is0I cf the F0deral Bureau of' lnvestigation. 
The message, along with any attachments, may be confidential and legally privileged. If '{OU are not the intended 
recipient of this mess;,ge; pi ease destroy ii promptly without further retention or dissemination (unless otherwise 
mquir,~d by im,v). Pk~;i,;e notify the sendE of 1Jw error by a sqlaratP ;>-mail or by call:r1~ ! 

Classifica~ion: UNCLASSIFIED 

Cla:::sificaticn: UNCLASSIFIED 

F81001919 
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STRZOK, PETER P. (CD) (FBI) 

From; STRZOK, PETER P. (CD) (FBl) 
Sent: Tlwrsdav !qll21, 2016 12:13 PM 

b6 per FBI
To: I -OGC) (FBI) 

b7C per FBI 
Subject; Pis --- UNCLA.SS!FlED/fFOUO 

Try this on for size ... and thank you, thank you, thank you (;;,) 

b6 per FBI 
b7C per FBI 
b7E per FBI 

F81001924 
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STRZOK, PETER P. (CD) (FBI) 

From; STRZOK, PETER P. (CD) (FBl) 
Sent: Thursday, July 21, 2016 11:16 PM 

bS per FBITo: I l(OGC) (FBI): ANDERSON. JRISHJ B. (OGC) (FBI); MOFFA, 
b6 per FBIJONATHAN C. {CD) (FBI):! _ {OGC) (FBI) 
b7C per FBI

Cc: PRIESTAP, E W. (CD) (FBI) 
Subject: RE: Draft MYE Congresslonal response "template"--· UNClASSlflED 

Attachments: I ~ocx 

Cla .ss j_ f j_ CB. t ion: U!~I(: Lf\SST FI~:D 
~:'f~~,~~¾\~'½~-:-~~\~~'fJ~i:h\~~~~~~~~~f~~~\'}~~f~f)fi\.~~w~~~~~~¾"'~'}F-.~t~f\~'f~~I,~}ti,<~f}tt-t-s~i~~~-R-~:'f~~t~\~~tt-~~~~f\'R--~}'&~S-'B-~ 

TRANSITORY RECORD 

(-) rn,my cf the distro so as to not overload inboxes. 

b6 per FBIDrlsha, this !ooks great. Thanks very rnw::h. Mv comments attached. 
b7C per FBI 

b6 per FBIFromi I(OGC) (FBI) 
Sent: Thursday, Juiy 21, 2016 4:24 PM b7C per FBI 

To: ANDERSON, TRISHJ.\ B. (OGC) (FBI); STEINB1'\CH, MICH,;EL B. (DO) (FBI); KELLY, STEPHEN {DO) 
(FBI}; BEERS, EUZJ'\BETH RAE {OC,;) {FBI); PRIESTAP, E W. (CD) (FBI); STRZOK, PETER P. {CD) (FBI); 
MOFFA. JONATHAM C. (CD) (FBI); BAKER, JAMES A. (OGC) (FBI); BROWER, GREGORY {OGC)(FBI)
cd loGC) (FBI); RYBICKI, JAMES E. (DO) (FBI) 
Subject: RE: Draft MYE Congressional response "template" --- UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 
--1~\:q;,f-~',,-HN-f:?i----{-:H:,-±Bi\'-':.F-----P-FH:-V-f-b--BBfrB----I-N-F{:>f':Mi1/I-f-1:JN-/-l:}B-h-l-BS--H-l,./Ff-V--B---+'HiWHS,S--

TRANSITORY RECORD 

,~n, could you pltas~? provid(;: comrntnts by 1:00 tornorrov-1? To tht gn?<:t!~~-J !~Xt!~nt po<:.s!bl~:; ~ve 'Jvou;d 
iike to try t o get thi5 to the Department tomorrow; i'm hoping i.:00 gives us enough ti(ne to do so. 

Thank you so much. 

D b6 per FBI 
b7C per FBI 

From: ANDERSON, TR[SHA B. (OGC) {fBI) 
Sent: Thursday, July 21, 2016 2.:44 PM 
To:! l(OGC) (FBI); STEINBACH, MICHAEL B. (DO} (FBT); KELLY, STEPHEN (DO) (FBI}; b6 per FBI 

b7C per FBI 

F81001925 
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BEERS, ELIZABETH RAE (OCA) (FBI); f>RIESTAP, E W. {CD) (FBI); STRZOK, PETER P. (CD) (FBI); MOFFA., 
JONATHAN C {CD) (FBI); BAKER, Y1Mf.S 1;. {OGC) (FBI); BROWER, GREGORY (OGC){FBI) 
Cc:I !(OGC) {FBI) 
Subject: Draft MYE Congressional response "template" --- UNCLf,SSIFIED 

Classification: UNCLA_S,SIFIED 
·-A,T-'-I·C)HNGY----(:.r-.,+-E<?,'-'f·----P·H·IV-l·-I-,EGE·f·)-----I·NF-0P:MATI·9N-/-·1·)E-I-rI-BEH:AcT-l·V-E----f''H9SES-.S· 
@f:t,';l:\~,W\'i,,W,@@fu,,ccf}:-.,_'\:<,~\'<!,'<t1~Wi@ 

All. 

Attached please find a draft t2mp!ate for responding to rnngressional l~tters related to the Midyear 
barn investiga lion. Jim is out today and therefore has not yet had a chance to provide input. Please 
provide any comments or thoughts to rne andD 

Thanks, 
Trisha 

b6 per FBI 
b7C per FBI 

b6 per FBI 
b7C per FBI 

bS per FBIOCX>:> 

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 

Cla:.=:;sific~1ti(Jn: lJt'.JC:LA_S.SIFIED 

F81001926 

Document ID: 0.7_23922.5114-000001 
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Schools, Scott (ODAG) 

From: Schools, Scott (ODAG) 

Sent: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 8:48 AM 

To: O'Callaghan, Edward C. (ODAG); Terwilliger, Zachary (ODAG); Flores, Sarah 
Isgur (OPA) 

Cc: Lasseter, David F. (OLA}; Boyd, Stephen E. (OLA); (b)(6), (b)(7)(C) per FBI (DO) 
(FBI); Engel, Steven A. (OLC) 

Subject: RE: Corney memos 

Attachments: (b)(5) per FBI 1l.docx 

Draft letter. Adding OLC. (b) (5) per OLC 

. FWIW, I think noting (b) (5) is important. 

ss 

----Original Message-
From: O'Callaghan, Edward C. (ODAG} 
Sent: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 8:19 AM 
To: Schools, Scott (ODAG) ; Terwilliger, Zachary {ODAG) 

(b) (6) >; Flores, Sarah Isgur (OPA) (b) (6) 

Cc: Lasseter, David F. (OLA) ·; Boyd, Stephen E. (OLA) 
, , per(b) (6) (b)(6), (b)(7)(C) per FBI (DO) (FBI) 

Subject: RE: Corney memos 

To be clear re: last email related just to process and status of responding to request. 

Edward C. O'Callaghan 

IIIIIIGmDIII 

---Original Message­
From: Schools, Scott (ODAG) 
Sent: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 8:13 AM 
To: Terwilliger, Zachary (ODAG) (b) (6) ; Flores, Sarah Isgur (OPA) 

(b) (6) > 
Cc: Lasseter, David F. {OLA) ·; Boyd, Stephen E. (OLA) 

(b) (6) ; O'Callaghan, Edward C. (ODAG) (b) (6) 
(b)(6). (b)(7)(C) per FBI {DO) (FBI) (b)(6), (b)(7)(C), (b)(7)(E) per FBI 

Subject: RE: Corney memos 

Document ID: 0.7.23922.40353 



-

I do have the latest. The ball is in WHC's court. (b) (5) per OLC 
. SCO has cleared. 

---Original Message-
From: Terwilliger, Zachary (ODAG) 
Sent: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 8:11 AM 
To: Flores, Sarah Isgur (OPA) (b) (6) > 
Cc: Lasseter, David F. (OLA) (b) (6) ·; Boyd, Stephen E. {OLA) 

(b) (6) Schools, Scott (ODAG} (b) (6) ; O'Callaghan, Edward 
(b) (6) (b)(6), (b)(7)(C ) per FBI (b)(6). (b)(7)(C). (b)(7)(E) per FBIC. (ODAG) (DO) (FBI) 

Subject: Re: Corney memos 

Scott, 
Do you have the latest? I thought we had a plan and were executing? 

> On Apr 18, 2018, at 7:59 AM, Flores, Sarah Isgur (OPA) (b) (6) wrote: 
> 
> Yes 
> 
» On Apr 18, 2018, at 7:53 AM, Lasseter, David F. (OLA) (b) (6) •> wrote: 
>> 
» Good morning Patriots. Can some mix of this group get together this morning and discuss the 
latest on request to release "Corney memos"? I think we need to provide some answer today. 
>> 
>> Would 10am work? 
>> 
» Thanks, 
» David 
>> 
>> 
>> David F. Lasseter 

Document ID: 0.7.23922.40353 



Engel, Steven A. (OLC) 

From: Engel, Steven A. (Ole) 

Sent: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 9:04 AM 

To: Schools, Scott (ODAG); O'Callaghan, Edward C. (ODAG); Terwilliger, Zachary 
{ODAG}; Flores, Sarah Isgur {OPA) 

Cc: (b)(6), (b)(7)(C) per FBILasseter, David F. (OLA}; Boyd, Stephen E. {OLA); . {DO) (FBI) 

Subject: RE: Corney memos 

Adding Paul Colborn, (b) (5) per OLC 

---Original Message-­
From: Schools, Scott (ODAG) 
Sent: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 8:48 AM 
To: O'Callaghan, Edward C. (ODAG) Terwilliger, Zachary (ODAG) 
(b) (6) Flores, Sarah Isgur (OPA) (b) (6) 

Cc: Lasseter, David F. {OlA) ; Boyd, Stephen E. {OLA) 
(b)(6), (b)(7)(C) per FBI (b)(6) (b)(?)(C) (b)(?)(E) per FB I (b) (6) (DO} (FBI} >; Engel, Steven A. 

(Ole) (b) (6) per OLC 
Subject: RE: Corney memos 

Duplicative Material (Document ID: 0.7.23922.40353) 
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Tucker, Rachael (OAG) 

From: Tucker, Rachael (OAG) 

Sent: Wednesday, May 9, 2018 5:47 PM 

To: Whitaker, Henry C. (OLC); Hickey, Adam (NSD); Raman, Sujit (ODAG); Downing, 
Richard (CRM) 

Cc: Hart, Rosemary (OLC) 

Subject: RE: For Review: Post regarding Cyber EO 13800 (efforts/anniversary) 

Thanks for the suggestion. I'll pass to tt,em. 

From: Whitaker, Henry C. {Ole} 
Sent: Wednesday, May 9, 2018 4:51 PM 
To: Tucker, Rachael (OAG) (b) (6) >; Hickey, Adam (NSD) 
Raman, Sujit (OOAG (b) (6) Downing, Richard (CRM) 
(b )(6), (b )(7)(C) per CRM 
Cc: Hart, Rosemary (OLC} (b) (6) per OLC 
Subject: RE: For Review: Post regarding Cyber EO 13800 (efforts/anniversary) 

Rachael, 

OLC has no comment on this, except to suggest that you send to the FBI for review as well. 

Thanks very much, 

Henry 

Henry Whitaker 
Deputy Assistant Attorney General 
Office of Legal Counsel 
U.S. Department of Justice 

tm •1e (office) 
,_ •le (cell) 

From: Tucker, Rachael (OAG} 
Sent: Wednesday, May 9, 2018 2:15 PM 
To: Hickey, Adam {NSO} ; Raman, Sujit {OOAG) (b) (6) 
Downing, Richard (CRM} (b )(6), (b )(7)(C) per CRM > 
Cc: Whitaker, Henry C. (OLC} > 
Subject: RE: For Review: Post regarding Cyber EO 13800 (efforts/anniversary) 

Thanks. I'll do that. 

From: Hickey, Adam (NSD) 
Sent: Wednesday, May 9, 2018 2:14 PM 
To: Tucker, Rachael (OAG) (b) (6) ; Raman, Sujit (ODAG) (b) (6) 
Downing, Richard {CRM} (b )(6), (b )(7)(C) per CRM 
Cc: Whitaker, Henry C. {OLC} (b) (6) per OLC > 
C:,1hiort-• 1)1'.'.• 1'.'.nr l)ouiou,• o,...ct- r oa,::irrlina f'\,ho r l'.'./"'I 1~!UV\ foffnrt-c/,::inni\forcoan,\ 
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I don't have any objections to this; I would run it by Tash just b/cthe reference to the SCO's indictment 
( although I don't see any issue with how the indictment is described). 

From: Tucker, Rachael {OAG} 
Sent; Wednesday, May 09, 2018 2:06 PM 
To: Raman, Sujit (ODAG) >; Hickey, Adam (NSD) 
Downing, Richard {CRM) (b)(6), (b)(7 )(C) per CRM 

Cc: Whitaker, Henry C. (OLC} , (b) (6) per OLC 

Subject: FW: For Review: Post regarding cyber EO 13800 (efforts/anniversary) 

Hi all, 

See below and attached. Will you please return any edits to me by 10am tomorrow? Let me know if this 
needs to go to anyone else. 

Thanks, 

Rachael 

From: Whitaker, Matthew (OAG) 
Sent: Wednesday, May 9, 2018 1:53 PM 
To: Tucker, Rachael (OAG) (b) (6) 

Subject: Fwd: For Review: Post regard ing cyber EO 13800 ( efforts/anniversary) 

Begin forwarded message: 
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Rosenstein, Rod (ODAG) 

From: Rosenstein, Rod (ODAG) 

Sent: Thursday, June 28, 2018 8 :44 AM 

To: Lasseter, David F. {OLA) 

Cc: Bolitho, Zachary (ODAG); Flores, Sarah Isgur (OPA); Boyd, Stephen E. (OLA}; 
O'Callaghan, Edward C. (ODAG); Engel, Steven A. (OLC); Colborn, Paul P (OLC); 
Tyson, Jill C. (DO) {OGA) (FBI); Schools, Scott (ODAG); Gannon, Curtis E. (OLC); 
Gauhar, Tashina {ODAG) 

Subject: FW: Letters 

Attachments: 2018.06.27.Chairman.Grassley_SC.pdf; 2018.06.27.Speaker.Ryan_SC.pdf 

The versions of the letters appear to be ready to go. Thanks. 

From: Bolitho, Zachary (ODAG) 
Sent: Thursday, June 28, 2018 8:40 AM 
To: Rosenstein, Rod (ODAG) (b) (6) 

Subje ct: l etters 
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O'Callaghan, Edward C. (ODAG) 

From: O'Callaghan, Edward C. (ODAG) 

Sent: Wednesday, October 17, 2018 9:18 AM 

To: Engel, Steven A. (O LC); Gannon, Curtis E. (OLC); Demers, John C. (NSO); Gauhar, 
Tashina (ODAG) 

Subject: FW: Letter to J Raskin.10-16-18.draft.pdf 

Attachments: Letter to J Raskin.10-16-18.draft.pdf; ATT00001.htm 

Attached proposed letter re: (b) (5) 

i ■' but please let me know if you have a 
different view and/or would like to discuss further. 

Edward C. O'Callaghan 

-11111---■' 

From:AMZ 
Sent: Tuesday, October 16, 2018 10:27 PM 

To: O'Callaghan, Edward C. (ODAG (b) (6 ) 

Subject: Fwd: Letter to J Raskin.10-16-18.draft.pdf 

DELIBERATIVE 
Not sent yet. Thanks. 

Sent from my iPhone 

Begin forwarded message: 

Will need to put new date on it tomorrow. 
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O'Callaghan, Edward C. (ODAG) 

From: O'Callaghan, Edward C. (ODAG) 

Sent: Wednesday, October 17 , 2018 5 :19 PM 

To: Demers, John C. (NSO); Engel, Steven A. (Ole} 

Cc: Gannon, Curtis E. (OLC); Gauhar, Tashina (OOAG) 

Subject: RE: Letter to J Raskin.10-16-18.draft.pdf 

Thanks all. 

Edward C. O'Callaghan 

llllmDIIII 

From: Demers, John C. (NSD) 
Sent: Wednesday, October 17, 2018 5:18 PM 
To: Engel, Steven A. (Ole) ◄ (b )(6) per OLC 
Cc: O'Callaghan, Edward C. (ODAG} (b) (6) >; Gannon, Curtis E. {OLC} 

• (b)(6) per OLC >; Gauhar, Tashina (ODAG) (b) (6) 
Subject: Re: Letter to J Raskin.10-16-18.draft.pdf 

Agree, Ed. 

On Oct 17, 2018, at 9:32 AM, Engel, Steven A. (OLC) ◄ (b )(6) per OLC >wrote: 

Agreed. 

Sent from my iPhone 

On Oct 17, 2018, at 9:17 AM, O'callaghan, Edward C. (ODAG) (b) (6) > 
wrote: 

Duplicative Material (Document ID: 0.7.23922.42163) 
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Scott, McGregor (USACAE) 

From: Scott, McGregor {USACAE) 

Sent: Thursday, November 15, 2018 11:05 AM 

To: Engel, Steven A. (O LC); Gannon, Curtis E. (OLC) 

Cc: Barnett, Gary E. (OAG) 

Subject: Fwd: meeting 

Attachments: Whitaker Recusal Talking Points 111418.docx; ATT00001.htm 

Sent from my iPhone 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: "Weinsheimer, Bradley (ODAG)" (b) (6) 

Date: November 15, 2018 at 10:52:51 AM EST 
To: "Barnett, Gary E. (OAG)" (b) (6) , "Scott, McGregor (USACAE)" 
(b) (6) 

Cc: "O'Callaghan, Edward C. (ODAG)" (b) (6) 

Subject: FW: meeting 

Gary and Greg: As requested, here is the updated recusal talking points. 
Thanks, Brad. 

From: Weinsheimer, Bradley (ODAG) 
Sent: Wednesday, November 14, 2018 6:15 PM 
To: Barnett, Gary E. {OAG) (b) (6) 

Cc: Engel, Steven A. (OLC) >; Lofthus, Lee J (JMD) 
(b) (6) Shaw, Cynthia K. (JMD) 
(b) (6) ; O'Callaghan, Edward C. (ODAG) 
(b) (6) Gannon, Curtis E. {Ole) • (b) (6) >; Scott, 
McGregor (USACAE) (b) (6) > 
Subject: meeting 

Following our meeting, I have updated the recusal talking points with some additional 
statements relevant to our analysis that I was able to locate. I also went back to some of the 
statements to make sure the quotes we have culled accurately portray what was said (for 
example looking for complementary comments about Robert Mueller). Each statement also 
has a link for its source. I am happy to share the updated talking points electronically or when 
we meet again. 

Please let us know if there is a good time to meet with the Acting Attorney General in the next 
day or so to gather additional information that might inform our recommendation, as I think we 
agreed that probably was the best next step. 

Thanks, Brad. 
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Brad Weinsheimer 
Associate Deputy Attorney General 
Office: tfDDIIIIIIII 
Cell: [amllllllll 
(b) (6) 
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Scott, McGregor (USACAE) 

From: Scott, McGregor (USACAE) 

Sent: Tuesday, December 4, 2018 6:22 PM 

To: Barnett, Gary E. {OAG); Engel, Steven A. (Ole); Gannon, Curtis E. (OLC} 

Subject: FW: Statements 

Attachments: Problematic Statements.docx 

From: Weinsheimer, Bradley (ODAG) (b) (6) 
Sent: Tuesday, December 4, 2018 3:16 PM 
To: Scott, McGregor (USACAE (b)(6) 
Subject: RE: Statements 

As discussed. Thanks, Brad. 

From: Scott, McGregor ( USACAE) (b) (6) 
Sent: Tuesday, December 4, 2018 4:28 PM 
To: Weinsheimer, Bradley (ODAG} (b) (6) >; Barnett, Gary E. (OAG) 
(b) (6) > 
Cc: Shaw, Cynthia K. (JMD) (b) (6) 
Subject: RE: Statements 

Thanks Brad. 

From: Weinsheimer, Bradley (ODAG) (b) (6) 
Sent: Tuesday, December 4, 2018 1:27 PM 
To: Scott, McGregor (USACAE) (b) (6) >; Barnett, Gary E. (OAG) (JMD} 
(b) (6) 
Cc: Shaw, Cynthia K. (JMD) (b) (6) 

Subject: Statements 

As we discussed, I have reviewed statements relevant to the recusal analysis made by the Acting Attorney 
General prior to his re-joining the Department of Justice in September 2017. I also have collected media 
reports of relevant statements he has made since being selected to serve as Acting Attorney General. These 
statements are summarized as reflected in the attached document. I will incorporate them into my 
recommendations on recusal. Thanks, Brad. 

Brad Weinsheimer 
Associate Deputy Attorney General 
Office: W>m11111111 
Cel l: W>milllllll' 
(b)(6) 
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Engel, Steven A. (OLC) 

From: Engel, Steven A. (OLC) 

Sent: Tuesday, December 11, 2018 12:05 PM 

To: Barnett, Gary E. (OAG) 

Subject: RE: Letter Text 

Attachments: DRAFT Response to Schumer et al recusal + olc.docx 

A few comments in th e a ttached. 

Big picture question - (b)(5) per OLC 

From: Barnett, Gary E. (OAG) (b) (6) 
Sent:Tuesday, December 11, 2018 11:30 AM 
To: Engel, Steven A. (OLC) ◄ (b)(6) > 
Subject: Fwd: Letter Text 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: "Lofthus, Lee J (JMD)" (b) (6) 
Date: December 11, 2018 at 11:28:57 AM EST 
To: "Weinsheimer, Bradley (ODAG)' (b) (6) >, "Boyd, Stephen E. 
(OlA)" >, "Barnett, Gary E. {OAG)" (b) (6) , "Scott, 
McGregor (USACAE)" •(b) (6) 
Cc: "Hankey, Mary Blanche (OLA)' (b) (6) 
Subject: RE: LetterText 

Here it is. I received no edits yesterday afternoon. Here it is again. Stephen, with this email, I'm 
returning the pen to you and OLA since I'm out at[G)IGIJafter lunch. Given Schumer office call 
to me directly yesterday (that OLA was returning), they are pressing this, we really need 
something out today. 

From: Weinsheimer, Bradley (ODAG) (b) (6) 
Sent: Tuesday, December 11, 2018 11:08 AM 
To: Boyd, Stephen E. (OLA) (b) (6) ; Lofthus, Lee J (JMD) 
(b) (6) Barnett, Gary E. (OAG) (b) (6) 
Cc: Hankey, Mary Blanche (OlA} •(b) (6) 
Subject: RE: Letter Text 

I believe Lee has the pen. 
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From: Boyd, Stephen E. (OLA) (b) (6) 
Sent: Tuesday, December 11, 2018 11:06 AM 
To: Lofthus, Lee J (JMD) >; Weinsheimer, Bradley (ODAG) 
(b) (6) ; Barnett, Gary E. (OAG) (b) (6) 
Cc: Hankey, Mary Blanche (OLA} ◄( b ) (6) 
Subject: LetterText 

Gentlemen: 

Who has the latest/last version of text for the response to questions related to Whit aker's 
recusal status? 

SB 

Stephen E. Boyd 
Assistant Attorney General 
C.S. Department of Justice 
Washington, D.C. 

(b) (6) 
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Scott, McGregor (USACAE) 

From: Scott, McGregor (USACAE) 

Sent: Friday, December 14, 2018 5:57 PM 

To: Engel, Steven A. (O LC); Barnett, Gary E. (OAG) 

Att achments: Trump articles.pdf; Ethicslssue.docx; Ethicslssue2.docx 

Gentlemen, 

Per our discussions, please find attached three items: 1) Brad's original document entitled "Statements 
Relevant to the Acting Attorney General's Recusal Analysis" with track change additions to reflect a more 
fulsome record of the discussion; 2) Brad's second document entitled "Problematic Statements" with the 
same track change additions pertaining to just the statements contained in that document; and 3) the two 
news articles which Brad references in "Problematic Statements" in which MW forwarded and wrote "worth 
a read.1' 

Let me know if you have any questions. 

Thanks. 

Greg 

McGregor W. Scott 
United States Attorney 
Eastern District of california 

Document ID: 0.7.23922.53909 






  

Could Truntp 
 

 




 

Fire Mueller? 
It's 

 

Contplicated. 



But  

 

the 
 

 

real question is 
 

what 
 

Congress 
 

 

would do 
 

to 
 

stop 
 

him. 



By 
 

ERIC 
 

COLUMBUS 



August 
 

03, 2017 



As 
 

President 
 

Donald 
 

Trump 
 

continues 
 

to 
 

rage 
 

against 
 

the 
 

Russia 



investigation 
 

and 
 

hint at firing his attorney general, 
 

   

  

the rules 
 

 

of 
 

the 



game  are 
 

baffling 
 

to 
 

some-including 
 

to 
 

 

members of 



 

Congress. 
 

Here's 
an 
 

attempt 
 

to 
 

sort 



 

out 
 

the 
 

major 
 

legal 
 

questions. 

Can 
 

Trump 
 

fire 
 

Special 
 

Counsel 
 

Robert 
 

Mueller 
 

directly? 



Probably 
 

not, 
 

although 
 

some 
 

disagree. 



So 
  

 

who can? 
 

Department of 
 

 

Justice 
 

regulations make 
 

clear 
 

that 



· 
Mueller 

 

 

may 
 

 

be fired 
 

 

by 
 

the 
 

attorney 
 

general only 
 

 

for "good cause." 



Deputy  Attorney 
 

General Rod 
  

 

Rosenstein, who 
 

serves 
 

as 
 

the 
 

acting 



attorney general  for 
 

Mueller-related 
 

 

issues 
 

due 
 

to 
 

Jeff 
 

Sessions' 



recusal, 
 

has 
 

made 
 

clear 
 

in 
 

congressional 
 

testimony 
 

that 
 

he's 



seen 
 

 

nothing of 
 

the 
 

sort. 



If  Sessions  

 is replaced as general,   

 attorney 
 

then 
 


 

his successor 
 

would 
not  be recused, 

 

 

and 
 

could 
 

either 
 

gin up   

 

good cause 
 

 

to 
 

fire Mueller 
 

or 



(more  likely) 
 

rescind 
 

the 
 

good-cause  requirement 
 

and 
 

then 
 

terminate 



him. 



Various  

  

senators 
  

 

have publicly warned Trump not 
 

to 
 

 

fire Sessions, 



which 
 

suggests 
 

that 
 

if d 
 

 

he's 
 

inclined 
 

to 
 

do 
 

so, he'
 

prefer 
 

 

a 
 

method that 



lets 
 

him 
 

sidestep 
 

the 
 

Senate. 



If 
 

Trump 
 

fires 
 

Sessions, 
 

can 
 

he 
 

install 
 

a 
 

 

replacement without 
going  through the Senate process? 




   

confirmation 
 

Almost 
 

definitely. 



While  many  (including  me)  have  fretted  

 

about 
 

the 
 

possibility of 
 

a 



recess 
 

appointment, 
 

that 
 

door 
 

is 
 

likely 
 

to 
 

shut, 
 

even 
 

though 
 

the 
 

Senate 



is 
 

expected 
  

to 
 

break 
 

on 
 

Thursday for 
 

its 
 

August 
 

vacation. 
 

Under 
 

the 



Constitution,  

 

"The President 
 

shall 
 

have 
 

Power 
 

to 
 

 

fill up 
 

all 
 

Vacancies 
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that  may  happen  during 
 

the 
 

Recess 
 

of 



 

the 
 

Senate, 
 

by 
 

granting 
Commissions  which 

 

shall 
 

expire 
 

at 
 

the 
 

End 
 

of 
 

their 
 

next 
 

Session." 
 

In 



other  words,  if  the 
 

Senate 
 

skips 
 

town, 
 

 

he doesn't 
 

need 
 

their 
 

vote, 
 

and 



the  

 new  person would  serve 
 

until 
 

the 
 

end 
 

of 
 

the 
 

next 
 

congressional 



session, 
 

i.e. 
 

the 
 

end 
 

of 
 

2018. 



In  recent years,   however, 
 

the 
 

Senate 
 

has 
 

tried 
 

to 
 

clamp 
 

down 
 

on 



attempts  to  sidestep 
 

its 
 

authority 
 

through 
 

recess 
 

appointments. 



Starting  in 
 

2007, 
 

the 
 

Senate 
 

began 
 

 

convening 
 

"proforma 
 

sessions" 



during  what  would  otherwise 
 

be 
 

a 
 

recess. 
 

No 
 

actual 
 

work 
 

transpired 
 

at 



these  

 

sessions, 
 

just a quick   

 

 

gavel-in and 
 

gavel-out. President 
 

Barack 



Obama  tried  to  call  the 
 

Senate's 
 

bluff 
 

by 
 

 

making recess 
 

appointments 



during 
 

these 
 

times, 
 

on 
 

the 
 

theory 
 

that 
 

a recess 
 

 

interspersed 



with  meaningless 
 

kabuki 
 

is 
 

still 
 

a recess. 
 

 

The 
 

Supreme 
 

Court 



disagreed,  and invalidated  
 

those 
 

recess 
 

appointments 
 

in 
 

2014. 
 

The 



court  held  that  

 it's for  the 
 

Senate 
 

to 
 

decide 
 

what 
 

is 
 

and 
 

isn't 
 

a 



 

recess, 
and 

 

that 
 

even 
 

 

if it 
 

walks 
 

and 
 

talks 
 

like 
 

a 
 

duck, 
 

the 
 

Senate 
 

can 
 

still 
 

call 
 

it 
a 
 

chicken. 



It 
 

turns 
 

out 
 

that 
 

Senate 
 

Majority 
 

Leader 
 

Mitch 
 

McConnell 
 

has 
 

been 



calling  ducks chickens all year  
 

  

long. 
 

In 
 

February, 
 

April 
 

and 
 

July, 
 

the 



Senate  broke  for  10  days 
 

or 
 

more. Each time, the Senate convened pro 

  

 

  

 

forma  sessions. 
 

Subsequent 
 

reporting 
 

indicated 
 

that 
 

 

this 
 

was 
 

part of 
 

a 



plan  hatched  by  

 

the 
 

Senate 
 

GOP 
 

to 
 

prevent Trump 
 

from 
 

making 
 

any 



recess  appointments 
 

at 
 

all. 
 

So 
  

 

it's highly unlikely 
 

that 
 

Trump 
 

will 
 

be 



able 
 

to 
 

make 
 

a 
 

recess 
 

appointment 
 

during 
 

the 
 

upcoming 
 

break. 



Does 
 

this mean 
  

 

Trump can't 
 

ease 
 

out 
 

Sessions 
 

without 



sparking  

 

a 
 

 

messy confirmation 
 

process for 
 

his 
 

successor? 



A  Judiciary  Committee 
 

confirmation 
 

hearing 
 

would 
 

inevitably 
 

rehash 



the firing  of FBI   

  Director James 
 

Corney, 
  

and even 
 

Republicans 
 

would 



be 
 

unlikely 
 

to confirm a nominee 
 


    

who 
 

didn't 
 

pledge to 
 

protect 
Mueller's 

 

investigation. 



But  Trump  has 
 

other 
 

cards 
 

to 
 

play.  He 
 

can 
 

appoint 
 

an 
 

acting 
 

attorney 



general  and  

 

 

never get around 
 

to 
 

nominating 
 

a 
 

 

real one. 
 

By 
 

default, 



Rosenstein 
 

would 
 

take 
 

the 
 

  

helm. But Rosenstein 
 

is 
 

the 
 

one 
 

who 
 

hired 



Mueller,   

 so 
  

 

if Trump's goal is 
 

to 
 

get rid 
 

of 
 

the 
 

special 
 

counsel, 
 

he 
 

needs 



to  




 

pick someone 
 

else 
 

as 
 

acting 
 

attorney 
 

general. 
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A 1998  law,  the  Vacancies  
 

 

Reform Act, 
 

allows 
 

him 
 

to 
as 

 

do 
 

so. 
 

The 
 

VRA 
lets 




 him  install   attorney  general,  for 
 

a 
 

 

limited time, 
 

any 
 

Senate­
confirmed  official or  any Department  of 

 

Justice 
 

employee 
 

who 
of seniority 

 

has 
attained a certain level and 




 

  

 

 

 

 

has 
 

been on the job  at least 
90 

 for 

days. This means 

 

 

 

 


 

 he  has  about  3,000 lawyers  to 
 

choose 
 

 

 

 

from. That 
said, the 




 

 vast  majority  are  career  employees  who 
 

would not serve his 
purposes.  Even  his 

 

 

 




 political  appointees  aren't likely to be more 
than Sessions 

 

 

 and 
 

 Rosenstein
 

. 
 


 

pliable 
 But 

 

he 
 

needs 
 

only one, and with a little 
planning he 

 

 could 
 

install 
 

a true 
 

believer 



 

 

 

 

  

 to 
 

a 
 

political  position 
as a sleeper 

 at 
agent-and then 

 

DOJ­
 

  

  

 (after easing  out 
 

Sessions) 
 

elevate 
 

him 
 

or 
her to attorney general in 90 days. Under 




 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 




 

 

the VRA, such a 
 

person 
could  serve  as 

 

acting 
 

attorney  general  for 
days 

 

only 210 days-plus another 
210 if 




 

Trump 
 

 

 eventually 
 

 gets  around 
but 

 

to 
  

  

nominating someone­
 

that's 
 

plenty  of 
 

time 
 

to 
 

engineer 
 

Mueller's 
 firing 

his work. 
 

or 
 

otherwise 
 

limit 



 


To 
 

be 
 

sure, 
 

it's 
 not  crystal 

 clear 
 

whether  Trump can use the 
 

VRA when 
there

 

's 
 

 

 

 

a 
 

deputy 
 

attorney 
 

general 



 and 
 

associate 
are 

 

attorney 
 

 

general who 



 

able 
 

to 
 

serve. 
 

He 
 

could, 
 

of 
 

course, 
 

moot 
 

that 
 

issue 
well. 

 

by 
 

axing 
 

them 



 

 also 
 

an 
 

argument 
 

as 
There's 

 that 
 

the 
 

VRA  doesn't  apply in  cases 
which 

 in 

 

the 
 

vacancy 
 

 

is 
 

created  by 
 

a 
 

firing,  rather  than 
 

resignation  or 
disability, 




 but 
  

as 
 

DOJ's Office  of  Legal  Counsel  noted 
enactment

 shortly  after 
, 




 the 
 

legislative  history  suggests  that 
 it  does.  As  a  practical 


matter,  Trump  need  not  wait  to  resolve  these  issues  but  could  follow 
the 




 

VRA 
 

and 
 

take 
 

his  chances  if  litigation  ensues. 

The 

 

intricacies  of 
 

the 
 

 

law seem 
 

to 
 

baffle 
 even 

 

some senators. Sasse 
of Nebraska, 

 

 Ben  



  

who 
 

at 
 

every 
 

opportunity  talks about the need 
bolster 

 

  

 to 

 

civics 
 

education, 
 

made 
 

an impassioned   speech  imploring 
Trump not 




 

 

to 
 

 

make a 
 

recess 
 appointment.  Yet  Sasse  seemed 

realize 
 not 

that 
 to 

 

 

the 
 

Senate 



 itself  can 
 

block  that-not  to 
been 

 

 

mention that it has 
blocking it for 

  


 

  

 

months. 

Senator 

 

Chuck 
 

Grassley 
 of 
 

Iowa  took  to  Twitter,  with his typical quirks 
of 




 

capitalization 
 

 

 

 and 
 

abbreviation, 
Sessions-but 

 

to  caution  Trump  against  firing 

 

his 
 

caution  was  an 
 

odd 
 

one.  "Everybody 
warned that 

 in  D.C.  Shld  b 

 

 

 

the 
 

agenda 
 

for 
 

the 
 

judiciary Comm  is set for rest of 2017," 
Grassley 

 

tweete
 

   

dlast 
 


 

week.  

 "Judges first  subcabinet  2nd/  
 

 


 

AG no way." 
Yet 

 

as 
 

discussed 
 

above, 
 

Trump  wouldn't  want  his  Sessions 
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replacement  to  

 

go before 
 

the 
 

Judiciary  Committee. 
 

And 
 

now 
 

he 
 

can 
cite 




 Grassley  as 
 

a reason   not  to, 
 

and 
 

take 
 

his 
 

chances 
 

with 
 

the 
 

VRA! 



Another  devilish  option  is  for  Trump  to move 
Department 

 

 

Sessions 
 

to the 
 of 
 

Homeland  Security-a 
 




 way 
 

to 
 

ease 
 

him 
 

out 
enraging 

 

without 



 conservatives  who 
 

rallied 
 

to the attorney general's defense 
after  Trump 

  

 started 
  


disparaging him.  If 



 

Sessions 
 

is happy, 
happy. And 

 

 

 

they'll be 
 why wouldn't Sessions be happy? 




 

 

 Moving to DHS 
enable 

  

him to focus 
 

on two issues 
 

would 
 near 




 

 

 

 

 

 to his immigration and 
terrorism 

 

(he 
  

heart: 
 dislikes 

 

both). 
 

 

 

 

And 
 

he 
 

would be 



 

 

free 
 

of 
 

Trump's 
incessant 




 Russia-related  undermining.  His former Judiciary 
Committee  counsel, 

 

 




 Gene 
 

Hamilton, 
and 

 is 
his former 

 

already 
staffer 

 

in 
 

the 
 

DHS 
 

front 
 

office, 



  

 

 

Stephen 
 

Miller 
 

is 
 

Trump's 
immigration. 

 point  man on 
 The 

 




 

White 
 

House  is 
 

denying  this 
 

will 
 

happen,  but 
 

this 
White 




 

House 
 

denies 
 

a 
 

 

lot of 
 

things. 



Of 
 

course, 
 

another 
 

Sessions 
 

confirmation  hearing  could be dicey, given 
questions about whether 

 




 

 

 

  

he 
 

testified 
 

truthfully 
 

regarding his Russian 
contacts at his 

 

 




 

  

last 
 

one. 
 

Trump 
 

could avoid 
acting 

 this headache by making 
him 

 

secretary 
 

  

 

under 
 

the 
 

VRA
 


, 
wo

 

although 
uld 

 

the 
 

210-day  clocks 
 

start 
 

to r . 
 

 

un That 
 

could 



 

be 
 

enough Sessions a soft 
landing and 

 

give   

time to 
 

 

 


 

 

even  

 

to 
 

position himself  to  

 

run for  governor  of 
next 

 Alabama 




 year. 

To sum up, 
 

 

it's 
 

quite likely  Trump  can 
is able 

 

install  an 
 

attorney general who 
 

 

and willing 
  

 

  

to 
 

fire 
 

Mueller. 



 

 

The 
 

tougher question, 
another 

 

 best 
 

left  for 

 

day, 
 

is 
 

whether  and 
 

how  Congress 
Lindsey 

 can 
 

act 
 

to 
 

stop  it.  Senator 

 

Graham 
 

has 
 

announced  that 
 

he's working on legislation that 
would 

 

 

a judicial 
  

 review 



 

enable 
 

 

 of 
 

any 
 

firing  of 
 

a 
questions 

 

special counsel. There 
are 

 

the 



 

 

as 
 

to 
 

 

 

constitutionality  of 
 

such 
 a 

in 
 

 

provision. What's 
 

 

 

that 
 not 

doubt, 



 

however, is 
 

Congress 
 

could, 
 if 
 

it 
 

chooses,  turn  up 
 

the 
political 




 heat 
 

if 
 

Trump  fires  Mueller,  and  could 
an impeachable 

 even  deem  such  an  act 

  offense. 

 

Graham 
 

said 
 

that 
 

firing  Mueller  "could  be the 
beginning 

 

of 
 

the end of the 
 


 

 

    

Trump presidency." This, more  than 
anything, 




 

could 


 

be 
 

why 
 

Mueller  keeps  his  job. 
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Note  to 
 

Trump's 
 

lawyer: 
 

Do 
 

not 



cooperate  with  IVlueller 
 

lynch 
 

mob 



Updated:  NOVEMBER  9, 2018 
 

- 10:00 
 

AM 
 

EST 



George  

 

Parry 



The  Wall  Street  Journal  reports  that  special 
 

counsel 
 

Robert 
 

Mueller 
 

has 
 

convened a grand 
 

  

 

jury to 



investigate  purported  collusion 
 

betwecen 
 

the 
 

Trump 
 

campaign 
 

and 
 

the 
 

Russians 
 

to 
 

affect 
 

the 



outcome  of 
 

the 
 

2016  

 

presidential elec1tion. 



For  

 its  part, the Trump people    have 
 

hired a phalanx 
 

 

 

of 
 

high-priced 
 

lawyers. 
 

One 
 

of 
 

them, 
 

special 



counsel  to  the  president  Ty  Cobb,  has 
 

announced 
 

that 
 

"The 
 

White 
 

House 
 

is 
 

committed 
 

to 
 

fully 



cooperating 
 

with 
 

Mr. 
 

Mueller." 



I  sure  hope  Ty  was  kidding.  Cooperatiion 
 

with 
 

Mueller's 
 

lynch 
 

mob 
 

is 
 

the 
 

last 
 

thing 
 

Trump 
 

or 



any  of  his  

 people should 
 

do. 
 

But, just  
 

in 
 

case 
 

Cobb 
 

meant 
 

what 
 

he 
 

said, 
 

let 
 

me 
 

offer 
 

him 
 

some 



free 
 

advice. 



Ty,  

 you don't  know  me.  No 
 

reason 
 

you 
 

should. I'm not high-powered  

 

 

 

a 
  

New 
 

York or 



Washington  lawyer.  A  classy  

 

guy like 
 

 

you would 
 

sneer 
 

at 
 

my 
 

low 
 

hourly 
 

rate 
 

and 
 

my 
 

cheap, 
 

ill­
fitting  wardrobe. 

 

If 
 

I 
 

ever 
 

showed 
 

up 
 

at 
 

your 
 

private 
 

club, you 
 

 

would 
 

undoubtedly 
 

rub your 
 

cigar 
 




out  on  my  forehead  and  have  me  escoirted 
 

off 
 

the 
 

premises 
 

for 
 

vagrancy. 



But, please,   listen  up.  I'm  speaking  to  

 

you as 
 

one 
 

who 
 

spent 
 

more 
 

 

than 
 

20 
 

years as 



 

a 
 

prosecutor 
conducting  federal and state  

  

  grand jury investigations 
 

and 
 

another 
 

20 
 

 

years as 
 

a 
 

defense 
 

lawyer 



representing of grand  juries.   targets   A:s a prosecutor,  
 

 

I 
 

interrogated 
 

hundreds 
 

of 
 

witnesses 
 

under 



oath  for  thousands  of  hours  and  

 presided over 
 

the 
 

return 
 

of grand  

 

 

jury indictments 
 

and 



presentments  resulting  in  thousands 
 

of 
 

felony 
 

charges. 
 

So 
 

listen 
 

carefully. 



The  absolute  last  thing  someone  

 in  yom client's 
 

 

position should 
 

do 
 

is 
 

cooperate 
 

with 
 

Mueller. 



For the target of a grand jury    

  

  investigaLtion,  cooperation 
 

is 
 

a 
  

 

sucker 
 

play guaranteed to 
 

result 
 

in 



disaster.  If your  client  is  a  

 so-called  pe:rson of interest 
 

or 
 

 

potential target, 
 

never, 
 

ever 
 

allow 
 

him 



to  testify  before  the  grand  jury.  Same  1thing for giving  
  

a 
 

statement 
 

to 
 

an 
 

 

investigator. It's 
 

a 
 

trap, 



plain  and 
 

simple. 



Even  if  the prosecutor   can't  

 

prove that 
 

 

your client 
 

committed 
 

the 
 

crime 
 

supposedly 
 

being 



investigated,  he  will  be  charged  with 
 

obstruction 
 

of justice 
 

or 
 

some 
 

similar 
 

offense 
 

for 



 

providing 
false  information  to  agents  or  false  swearing. 

 

This 
 

will 
 

happen 
 

as 
 

surely 
 

as 
 

night 
 

follows 
 

day. 



And  I  don't  care  

 if  your client  is  Mother  Teresa 
 

telling 
 

the 
 

absolute 
 

truth. 
 

All 
 

a 
 

highly 
 

motivated 



prosecutor  has to   do  

 is have  some  lying 
 

sleazebag 
 

contradict 
 

her 
 

testimony, 
 

and 
 

Teresa 
 

will 
 

leave 



the 
 

courthouse 
 

in 
 

handcuffs. 
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Is  this  unfair?  Of  course,  but  
 

it happens 
 

all 
 

the 
 

time 
 

even 
 

under 
 

the 
 

best 
 

of 
 

circumstances. 
 

But, 
 

as 



you  know,  

 your client 
 

is 
 

not 
 

being 
 

investigated 
 

under 
 

optimum 
 

conditions. 



In  addition  to  supposedly  colluding  with 
 

the 
 

Russians, 
 

your 
 

client 
 

is 
 

facing 
 

investigation 
 

for 



obstruction  of justice  because  of  a  conversation 
 

that 
 

he 
 

 

purportedly had 
 

with 
 

former 
 

FBI 
 

Director 



James  Corney  about  the  FBI's  investigation  of 
 

retired 
 

Gen. 
 

Michael 
 

Flynn. 
 

Put 
 

aside 
 

the 
 

law­
review  nicety 

 

that 
 

it 
 

is 
 

legally 
 

impossible 
 

for a president to obstruct justice 
 

 

 

 

 

 

in 
 

this 
 

manner. 
 

Keep 



your  eye  on  the  ball.  If  Trump gives   a 
 

statement 
 

to 
 

an 
 

agent 
 

or 
 

testifies 
 

before the grand 
 

 

 

jury, 
 

all 



Mueller  will  have  to  do 
 

is 
 

have 
 

Corney, 
 

his 
 

friend 
 

and 
 

former 
 

colleague, 
 

 

provide contrary 



evidence.  And 
 

whose 
 

testimony you 
 

 

do 
 

think 
 

Mueller 
 

will 
 

credit? 



Predicting  the  winner  of 
 

that 
 

swearing 
 

contest 
 

becomes 
 

easier 
 

if 
 

one 
 

keeps 
 

in 
 

mind 
 

that 
 

Mueller 



has  hired  a  team  of 
 

assistants, 
 

many 
 

of 
 

whom 
 

either 
 

supported 
 

Hillary 
 

Clinton's 
 

candidacy 
 

or 



worked 
 

for 
 

the 
 

Clinton 
 

Foundation. 
 

And 
 

 

given the 
 

hyperpartisan 
 

rancor 
 

that 



 

pervades 
Washington  as  well  as  the  Clintonistas' 

 

naked 
 

determination 
 

to 
 

undo 
 

the 
 

results 
 

of 
 

the 
 

election, 



your  client's 
 

 

prospects become 
 

bleak 
 

indeed. 



Ty,  

 it  is  your duty to  

  

protect your 
 

client 
 

by 
 

every 
 

legal 
 

and 
 

ethical 
 

means. 
 

But 
 

beyond 
 

the 
 

usual 



duty  of  a 
 

lawyer 
 

to 
 

serve 
 

his 
 

client's 
 

iinterest, 
 

keep 
 

in 
 

mind 
 

that 
 

there 
 

are 
 

more 
 

than 
 

60 
 

million 



very  angry pro-Trump   voters 
 

who 
 

are 
 

watching 
 

to 
 

see 
 

if 
 

the 
 

immutable 
 

and 



 

permanent 
Washington  

 political class 



 

will 
 

effectively 
 

disenfranchise 
 

them 
 

by 
 

using 
 

the 
 

criminal 
 

justice 
system  to 

 

reverse 
 

the 
 

outcome 
 

of 
 

the 
 

election. 
 

In 
 

that 
 

sense, 
 

your 
 

client's 
 

cause 
 

is 
 

their 
 

cause, 



too. 



George  Parry  is  a former  state  and federal  

 

prosecutor practicing 
 

law 
 

in 
 

Philadelphia. 



lgparry@dpt-law.com 
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Engel, Steven A. (OLC) 

From: Engel, Steven A. (OLC) 

Sent: Thursday, December 20, 2018 9:03 AM 

To: Barnett, Gary E. (OAG); Gannon, Curtis E. {Ole); Scott, McGregor (USACAE) 

Subject: RE: Draft Response to Schumer 

Attachments: DRAFT Response to Schumer et al recusal + olc.docx 

(b)(5) per OLC 

Has E d advised SCO about Matt's decision? (b)(5) per OLC 

From: Barnett, Gary E. (OAG) (b) (6) 
Sent: Wednesday, December 19, 2018 8:06 PM 
To: Gannon, Curtis E. (OLC) ◄ (b)(6) '>; Engel, Steven A. {OLC) , (b)(6) 

Scott, McGregor (USACAE) ◄(b ) (6) 
Subject: Draft Response to Schumer 

Document ID: 0.7.23922.52688 



Engel, Steven A. (OLC) 

From: Engel, Steven A. (OLC) 

Sent: Thursday, December 20, 2018 5:31 PM 

To: Barnett, Gary E. (OAG); Scott, McGregor (USACAE); O'Callaghan, Edward C. 

(ODAG); Lofthus, Lee J (JMD); Boyd, Stephen E. (OLA}; Escalona, Prim F. (OLA); 
Kupec, Kerri {OPA} 

Cc: Weinsheimer, Bradley (ODAG) 

Subject : Draft letter 

Attachments: DRAFT Response to Schumer et al recusal - 450 pm.docx 

The attached reflects my suggested. edits to the letter. I have run these edits by Br ad as 
well. Needless to say, (b)(5) per OLC 
Steve 

SteYen A. Engel 
Assistant Attorney General 
Office ofLegal Counsel 
L".S. Department ofJustice 
950 P ennsylvania Ave., K.W. 
\Vashington,D.C. 20530 
Office:-

(b) (6) 

Document ID: 0.7.23922.54679 



Barnett, Gary E. (OAG) 

From: Barnett, Gary E. {OAG} 

Sent: Thursday, December 20, 2018 6:05 PM 

To: Scott, McGregor (USACAE); Weinsheimer, Bradley (ODAG) 

Cc: Engel, Steven A. (OLC); O'Callaghan, Edward C. (ODAG); Lofthus, Lee J (JMD); 

Boyd, Stephen E. {OLA); Escalona, Prim F. {OLA); Kupec, Kerri {OPA) 

Subject: RE: Draft letter 

Attachments: DRAFT Response to Schumer et al recusal - 6 pm.docx 

One edit inODmllllllll 

From: Scott, McGregor {USACAE (b) (6) 
Sent: Thursday, December 20, 2018 5:55 PM 
To: Weinsheimer, Bradley {ODAG} (b) (6) 
Cc: Engel, Steven A. {Ole) ◄ (b)(6) r>; Barnett, Gary E. (OAG) (b) (6) 
O'Callaghan, Edward C. (ODAG) (b) (6) >; Lofthus, Lee J (JMD) 
(b) (6) Boyd, Stephen E. (OLA} (b) (6) >; Escalona, Prim F. (OLA} 
(b) (6) Kupec, Kerri {OPA) (b)(6) 
Subject: Re: Draft letter 

Thanks. 

Sent from my iPhone 

On Dec 20, 2018, atS:47 PM, Weinsheimer, Bradley (ODAG} >wrote: 

I have a call into Steve to discuss one point and also need to confer with Lee, but yes. 

From: Scott, McGregor (USACAE) (b)(6) 
Sent: Thursday, December 20, 2018 5:43 PM 
To: Engel, Steven A. (Ole) ◄ (b)(6) >; Barnett, Gary E. {OAG} 
(b)(6) O'Callaghan, Edward C. {ODAG) (b)(6) 
Lofthus, Lee J (JMD) (b) (6) ; Boyd, Stephen E. (OLA) 
(b)(6) ; Escalona, Prim F. (OLA} (b)(6) >; Kupec, Kerri 
(OPA) (b) (6) 
Cc: Weinsheimer, Bradley (ODAG (b) (6) 
Subject: RE: Draft letter 

Brad, you good with this? 

From: Engel, Steven A. (OLC) ◄ (b) (6) > 
Sent: Thursday, December 20, 2018 2:31 PM 
To: Barnett, Gary E. {OAG) (JMD} l!>; Scott, McGregor {USACAE) 
(b)(6) >; O'Callaghan, Edward C. (ODAG) (JMD} 
·(b) (6) l!>; Lofthus, Lee J {JMD . Boyd, 
Stephen E. {OLA} (JMD} ; Escalona, Prim F. {OLA} {JMD) 
(b)(6) 
f"'r• \A/oil"'\e~oi,...,_.o .,. D .-~ r4lou InnAt:-\ / It.Jin\ 

>; Kupec, Kerri (OPA} (JMD) 

Document ID: 0.7.23922.54691 



'-A,. wvc:111:u1c:11 11c:1 , 01aun::y \VUM~ / \JlVUJJ (b ) (6) 
Subject: Draft letter 

Duplicative Material (Document ID: 0.7.23922.54679) 

Document ID: 0.7.23922.54691 



   


    


      


          


 


    


   


       


     


       


     


       


       


      


       


       


      


     


  


    


                 


                   


                  


       





  


  


  


      





    


  


   


              


                  


       


  


      


       


      


   


  

-(b)(6), (b)(7)
(C) per FBI

(b)(6), (b)(7)(C) per FBI

(b)(6), (b)(7)(C) 
per FBI

Lasseter, David  F. (OLA)  

From:  Lasseter,  David  F.  (OLA)  

Sent:  Wednesday,  December  19,  2018  7:34  PM  

To:  Weinsheimer,  Bradley  (ODAG);  O'Callaghan,  Edward  C.  (ODAG);  Kelly,  Stephen  D.  

(OGC)  (FBI)  

Cc:  Boyd,  Stephen  E.  (OLA)  

Subject:  Fwd: Transcript  Review  

Attachments:  Rybicki  1.18.18  Interveiw  Transcript.pdf;  ATT00001.htm;  12.21.17  McCabe  

Interview.pdf;  ATT00002.htm;  6.27.2018  Strzok  Interview.pdf;  ATT00003.htm;  

Giacalone  6.21.18  Interview  Transcript.pdf;  ATT00004.htm;  Priestap  6.5.18  Interview  

Transcript.pdf;  ATT00005.htm;  7.13.1  Interview.pdf;  ATT00006.htm;  7.16.18  

Interview  (day  2).pdf;  ATT00007.htm;  8.31.18  Anderson  Interview.pdf;  

ATT00008.htm;  Ohr  Interview  Transcript  8.28.18.pdf;  ATT00009.htm;  8.24.18  Moffa  

Interview.pdf;  ATT00010.htm;  8.16.18  Toscas  Interview.pdf;  ATT00011.htm;  9.28.2018  

Sweeney  Interview.pdf;  ATT00012.htm;  10.3.2018  Jim  Baker  Interview  (3).pdf;  

ATT00013.htm;  Baker  Day  2  10.18.18.pdf;  ATT00014.htm;  10.16.18  Simpson  

Deposition.pdf;  ATT00015.htm;  10.19.18  Nellie  Ohr  Interview.pdf;  ATT00016.htm;  

10.23.1  Interview.pdf;  ATT00017.htm;  Papadopoulos  l10.25.18  Interview  

Transcript.pdf;  ATT00018.htm;  Comey-interview-12-17-18-redacted.pdf;  

ATT00019.htm;  Comey  interview  12-7-18_Redacted.pdf;  ATT00020.htm  

HJC  transcripts  attached.  Far  fewer  then  I  thought.  FBI  will  review  and  they  will  focus  on  the  priority  

transcripts.  Thankfully  they  have  reviewed  a  few  of  the  crucial  ones  already  so  they  should  be  able  to  do  a  

fairly  complete  review  of  those.  We  have  informed  the  committee  that  it  is  unlikely  we  would  be  able  to  

fully  and  completely  review  in  the  time  given.  

dfl  

David  F.  Lasseter  

Begin  forwarded  message:  

From: "Baker,  Arthur"  

T  (DO)  (FBI)  ,  "Lasseter,  David  F.  (OLA)"  

>  

Cc: "Parmiter,  Rober  >,  "Breitenbach,  Ryan"  

,  "Somers,  Zachary  

Subject: RE: Transcript  Review  

(b) (6)

(b) (6)

(b) (6)

(b) (6) (b) (6)

(b)(6), (b)(7)(C) per FBI (b)(7)(E) per FBI

Here  are  the  transcripts.  In  order  to  consid r  any  of  your  suggested  redactions/edits/changes,  HJC  

needs  your  suggested  changes  by  12:00p.m. MondayDec. 24th  .  I  realize  the  time  is  tight,  but  most  of  

these  interviews  were  attended  by  FBI  and/or  DOJ.  

From  (DO)  (FBI  (b)(6), (b)(7)(C) per FBI (b)(7)(E) per FBI
S nt:  We  sday,  De mbe 19,  2018  9:29  AM  dne  ce  r  

To:  Baker,  Arthur;  Lassete  .r,  David  F  (OLA)  (JMD)  
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-

-

Cc:  Parmiter,  Robert;  Bre nbach,  Ryan;  Some  ite  rs,  Zachary  

Subj ct:  RE:  Transcript Re wvie  

Art,  

I  am  consulting  with  David  Lasseter  on  the  best  way  to  approach  this.  In  the  mean-time,  If  you  kindly  

send  the  transcripts  over  in  PDF  form  I  can  work  to  get  folks  spooled  up  on  this  task.  I  have  to  say,  

however,  that  the  timeframe  you’ve  proposed  seems  unreasonably  short  given  the  volume  of  the  
(b)(6), (b)(7)(C) per FBI

transcripts  at  issue  and  the  method  by  which  the  Committee  has  requested  the  resul  

From: Baker,  Arthu  (b) (6)

Sent: Tuesday,  December  18,  2018  7:12  PM  

To: Lasseter,  David  F.  (OLA)  (JMD)  .  (DO)  (FBI)  

Cc: Parmiter,  Robe  >;  Breitenbach,  Ryan  

>;  Somers,  Zachary  

(b) (6)

(b) (6)

(b) (6) (b) (6)

(b)(6), (b)(7)(C) per FBI

(b)(7)(E) per FBI

Subject: Transcript  Review  

Importance: High  

David  a  
(b)(6), (b)(7)(C) per F

Now  that  interviews  are  winding  down  and  the  Congress  is  coming  to  a  close,  HJC  would  like  to  officially  

share  the  transcripts  with  FBI  and/or  DOJ  for  the  purpose  of  review  for  possible  redactions  and/or  

corrections.  Can  you  agree  to  not  further  share  or  disseminate  them  beyond  what  is  needed  to  properly  

review  them  for  sugg st d  redactions  and/or  accuracy?  The  suggested  format  to  request  a  redaction  

would  be  to  cite  page,  line(s),  the  actual  sentence  ,  paragraph  etc.,  or  a  beginning  and  end  word  or  

phrase,  so  we  know  specifically  what  you  are  talking  about….also  include  a  reason  for  the  redaction  or  

correction  request.  If  you  can  agree  to  the  “no  further  sharing  or  dissemination”  requirement,  I  will  

respond  with  the  transcripts.  This  review  must  be  completed  and  returned  with  suggested  redactions  

and  /or  edits  no  later  than  Friday,  December  21,  at  3:00p.m.  Additionally,  HJC  will  share  with  FBI/DOJ,  

under  the  same  terms  and  conditions,  the  transcripts  of  any  non-government  witnesses  so  you  can  

review  for  any  FBI/DOJ  equities  that  may  have  been  asked  of  or  offered  by  them.  If  you  have  a  

preferred  method  of  receipt,  i.e.,  everything  first  to  DOJ,  and  then  DOJ  transmits  to  FBI,  we  will  be  

amenable  to  that  as  long  as  that  can  be  managed  by  the  deadline.  Please  advise  me  as  soon  as  

possible.  Thank  you  
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EXECUTIVE  SESSION  

COMMITTEE  ON  THE  JUDICIARY,  

JOINT  WITH  THE  

COMMITTEE  ON  GOVERNMENT  REFORM  AND  OVERSIGHT,  

U. S.  HOUSE  OF  REPRESENTATIVES,  

WASHINGTON,  D. C.  

INTERVIEW  OF:  JAMES  COMEY  

Fri day,  December  7,  2018  

Washi ngton,  D. C.  

The  i ntervi ew  i n  the  above  matter  was  held  i n  Room  2141,  

Rayburn  House  Offi ce  Bui ldi ng,  commenci ng  at  10: 12  a. m.  

Members  Present:  Representati ves  Goodlatte,  Issa,  Ki ng,  

Gohmert,  Jordan,  Buck,  Ratcli ffe,  Gaetz,  Bi ggs,  Nadler,  Jackson  

Lee,  Cohen,  Deutch,  Bass,  Gowdy,  Sanford,  Meadows,  Hurd,  
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Cummi ngs,  Cooper,  Kri shnamoorthi ,  Gomez,  and  Plaskett.  
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Chai rman  Goodlatte.  Thi s  i s  a  transcri bed  i ntervi ew  of  

James  Comey.  Chai rman  Gowdy  and  I  requested  thi s  i ntervi ew  as  

part  of  a  j oi nt  i nvesti gati on  by  the  House  Commi ttee  on  the  

Judi ci ary  and  the  House  Commi ttee  on  Oversi ght  and  Government  

Reform  i nto  deci si ons  made  and  not  made  by  the  Department  of  

Justi ce  and  the  Federal  Bureau  of  Investi gati on  regardi ng  the  

2016  Presi denti al  electi on.  

Would  the  wi tness  please  state  hi s  name  and  the  last  

posi ti on  he  held  at  the  Federal  Bureau  of  Investi gati on  for  the  

record?  

Mr.  Comey.  Certai nly,  Mr.  Chai rman.  My  name  i s  James  

Bri en  Comey,  Jr. ,  and  my  last  posi ti on  was  Di rector  unti l  May  

9th  of  2017.  

Chai rman  Goodlatte.  I  want  to  thank  you  for  appeari ng  

today.  My  name  i s  Bob  Goodlatte.  I am  chai rman  of  the  Judi ci ary  

Commi ttee,  and  I  wi ll  now  ask  everyone  else  who  i s  here  i n  the  

room,  other  than  Mr.  Comey' s  personal  counsel,  who  we  wi ll  get  

to  i n  a  moment,  to  i ntroduce  themselves  for  the  record.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Trey  Gowdy,  South  Caroli na.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  John  Ratcli ffe,  Texas.  

Mr.  Meadows.  Mark  Meadows,  North  Caroli na.  

Mr.  Jordan.  Ji m  Jordan,  Ohi o.  

Mr.  Bi ggs.  Andy  Bi ggs,  Ari zona.  

Mr.  Buck.  Ken  Buck,  Colorado.  
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Mr.  Don.  Ethan  Don,  FBI.  

Ms.  Bessee.  Ceci li a  Bessee,  FBI.  

Mr.  Parmi ter.  Robert  Parmi ter,  House  Judi ci ary  Commi ttee  

staff.  

Mr.  Baker.  Arthur  Baker,  House  Judi ci ary  Commi ttee  staff.  

Mr.  Somers.  Zach  Somers,  House  Judi ci ary  Commi ttee,  

maj ori ty.  

Mr.  Nadler.  Jerrold  Nadler,  New  York.  

Mr.  Ki ng.  Steve  Ki ng,  Iowa,  Four.  

Mr.  Gomez.  Ji mmy  Gomez,  Cali forni a.  

Mr.  Cooper.  Ji m  Cooper,  Fi fth  Di stri ct  of  Tennessee.  

Mr.  Cohen.  Steve  Cohen,  Memphi s.  

Ms.  Bass.  Karen  Bass,  Cali forni a.  

Mr.  Cummi ngs.  Eli j ah  Cummi ngs,  Maryland.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  Shei la  Jackson  Lee,  Texas.  

Mr.  Kri shnamoorthi .  Raj a  Kri shnamoorthi ,  Illi noi s.  

Mr.  Brei tenbach.  Ryan  Brei tenbach,  House  Judi ci ary  

Commi ttee  staff.  

Mr.  Ventura.  Chri s  Ventura,  House  Judi ci ary  Commi ttee  

staff.  

Ms.  Husband.  Shelley  Husband,  House  Judi ci ary,  maj ori ty.  

Mr.  Castor.  Steve  Castor,  Oversi ght  and  Government  

Reform.  

Mr.  Buddharaj u.  Anudeep  Buddharaj u,  Oversi ght  and  

Government  Reform.  
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Ms.  Doocy.  Mary  Doocy.  

Ms.  Greene.  Emi ly  Greene.  

Mr.  Gaetz.  Matt  Gaetz,  Flori da,  House  Judi ci ary  

Commi ttee.  

Mr.  Ri tchi e.  Branden  Ri tchi e,  House  Judi ci ary,  maj ori ty.  

Mr.  Dalton.  Jason  Dalton,  FBI  Congressi onal  Affai rs.  

Ms.  Hari haran.  Arya  Hari haran,  House  Judi ci ary,  mi nori ty  

Ms.  Shen.  Valeri e  Shen,  House  Oversi ght  and  Government  

Reform.  

Ms.  Sachsman  Grooms.  Susanne  Sachsman  Grooms,  House  

Oversi ght.  

Mr.  Thadani .  Akhi l  Thadani ,  House  Judi ci ary,  Democrat.  

Mr.  Gohmert.  Loui e  Gohmert.  

Mr.  Sanford.  Mark  Sanford,  House  Judi ci ary.  

Mr.  Apelbaum.  Perry  Apelbaum.  

Mr.  Hi ller.  Aaron  Hi ller,  House  Judi ci ary,  mi nori ty.  

Chai rman  Goodlatte.  The  Federal  Rules  of  Ci vi l  Procedure  

do  not  apply  i n  thi s  setti ng,  but  there  are  some  gui deli nes  that  

we  follow  that  I' d li ke  to  go  over.  Our  questi oni ng  wi ll  proceed  

i n  rounds.  The  maj ori ty  wi ll  ask  questi ons  fi rst  for  an  hour,  

and  then  the  mi nori ty  wi ll  have  an  opportuni ty  to  ask  questi ons  

for  an  equal  peri od  of  ti me.  We  wi ll  go  back  and  forth  i n  thi s  

manner  unti l  there  are  no  more  questi ons  and  the  i ntervi ew  i s  

over.  

Typi cally,  we  take  a  short  break  at  the  end  of  each  hour  
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of questi oni ng, but i f you would li ke to take a break apart from 

that, please let us know. We also may take a break for lunch 

at the appropri ate poi nt. 

As I noted earli er, you are appeari ng today voluntari ly. 

A cordi ngly, we anti ci pate that our questi ons wi ll recei ve 

complete responses. To the extent that you decli ne to answer 

our questi ons or i f counsel i nstructs you not to answer, we wi ll 

consi der whether a subpoena i s necessary. 

As you can see, there i s an offi ci al reporter taki ng down 

everythi ng that i s sai d to make a wri tten record, so we ask that 

you gi ve verbal responses to all questi ons, and I know you 

understand that. 

Mr. Comey. Yes, si r. 

Chai rman Goodlatte. So that the reporter can take down a 

clear record, i t i s i mportant that we don' t talk over one another 

or i nterrupt each other i f we can help i t. Both commi ttees 

encourage wi tnesses who appear for transcri bed i ntervi ews to 

freely consult wi th counsel i f they so choose, and you are 

appeari ng today wi th counsel. 

Could counsel for Mr. Comey please state thei r names for 

the record? 

Mr. Kelley. Yes, Mr. Chai rman. It i s Davi d N. Kelley from 

Dechert LLP. 

Chai rman Goodlatte. We want you to answer our questi ons 

i n the most complete and truthful manner possi ble, so we wi ll 
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take  our  ti me.  If  you  have  any  questi ons  or  i f  you  do  not  

understand  one  of  our  questi ons,  please  let  us  know.  If  you  

honestly  do  not  know  the  answer  to  a  questi on  or  do  not  remember  

i t,  i t  i s  best  not  to  guess.  Please  gi ve  us  your  best  

recollecti on.  It  i s  okay  to  tell  us  i f  you  learned  i nformati on  

from  someone  else.  If  there  are  thi ngs  you  don' t  know  or  can' t  

remember,  j ust  say  so,  and  please  i nform  us  who,  to  the  best  of  

your  knowledge,  mi ght  be  able  to  provi de  a  more  complete  answer  

to  the  questi on.  

Mr.  Comey,  you  should  also  understand  that,  although  thi s  

i ntervi ew  i s  not  under  oath,  you  are  requi red  by  law  to  answer  

questi ons  from  Congress  truthfully.  

Do  you  understand  that?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes,  I  do,  si r.  

Chai rman  Goodlatte.  Thi s  also  appli es  to  questi ons  posed  

by  congressi onal  staff  i n  an  i ntervi ew.  Do  you  understand  thi s?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes,  si r.  

Chai rman  Goodlatte.  Wi tnesses  who  knowi ngly  provi de  false  

testi mony  could  be  subj ect  to  cri mi nal  prosecuti on  for  perj ury  

or  for  maki ng  false  statements.  

Do  you  understand  thi s?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes,  I  do.  

Chai rman  Goodlatte.  Is  there  any  reason  you  are  unable  to  

provi de  truthful  answers  to  today' s  questi ons?  

Mr.  Comey.  No,  si r.  
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Chai rman  Goodlatte.  Fi nally,  I' d  li ke  to  j ust  note  that,  

as  was  di scussed  last  weekend  wi th  your  attorneys  wi th  regard  

to  wi thdrawi ng  your  moti on  to  quash  our  subpoena,  we  anti ci pate,  

after  speaki ng  wi th  the  Clerk' s  Offi ce,  that  we  wi ll  be  able  to  

provi de  a  copy  of  the  transcri pt  of  today' s  i ntervi ew  someti me  

tomorrow.  

In  the  meanti me,  as  we  also  di scussed  wi th  your  attorneys,  

you  are  free  to  di scuss  today' s  i ntervi ew  publi cly  once  i t  i s  

concluded.  Chai rman  Gowdy  and  I  ask  that  everyone  else  here  i n  

the  room  also  refrai n  from  speaki ng  publi cly  about  today' s  

i ntervi ew  unti l  i t  has  concluded.  

That  i s  the  end  of  my  preamble.  Do  you  have  any  questi ons  

before  we  begi n?  

Mr.  Gaetz.  Matt  Gaetz  from  Flori da.  I  wanted  to  state  

that  I  was  not  a  party  to  any  such  agreement  and  don' t  consi der  

myself  bound  by  i t.  I  also  don' t  know  of  any  provi si on  i n  the  

Consti tuti on,  the  rules  of  the  House,  or  any  Federal  law  that  

would  prohi bi t  members  of  the  commi ttee  from  engagi ng  i n  free  

speech,  debate,  and  opi ni ng  at  any  ti me.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Mr.  Chai rman,  I  thi nk  -- I  do  i ntend  to  comply  

wi th  the  representati ons  we  made  to  thi s  wi tness.  I  would  

encourage  all  of  my  colleagues  to  do  so.  There' s  a  reason  that  

we  have  somethi ng  called  the  rule  of  completeness.  It  i s  

mani festly  unfai r  to  take  part  of  what  someone  says  and  di sregard  

the  whole.  I also  thi nk  there' s an  argument  to  be  made  that  when  
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the  chai rman  of  a  commi ttee  makes  a  representati on  to  a  wi tness,  

that  i t  should  not  only  bi nd  the  members  of  the  commi ttee,  but  

i t  also  reflects  poorly  on  the  House  as  an  i nsti tuti on  to  not  

abi de  by  what  the  chai rman  represented.  

So  I  wi ll  abi de  by  what  the  chai rman  agreed  to  wi th  thi s  

and  other  wi tnesses,  and  I  would  encourage  all  of  my  colleagues  

to  do  so,  i f,  for  no  other  reason,  to  protect  the  i ntegri ty  of  

the  House  and  because  that' s  what  seri ous  i nvesti gati ons  do.  

Mr.  Nadler.  Mr.  Chai rman.  

Chai rman  Goodlatte.  The  gentleman  from  New  York,  the  

ranki ng  member.  

Mr.  Nadler.  Thank  you.  Mr.  Chai rman,  I  fi nd  myself  i n  

rare  but  happy  agreement  wi th  Mr.  Gowdy.  I  thi nk  

representati ons  were  made  to  the  wi tness.  I  thi nk  we  ought  to  

be  bound  by  i t.  

And  I  thi nk  that  i f  Mr.  Gaetz  does  not  consi der  hi mself  

bound  by  i t,  he  should  perhaps  be  asked  to  leave  at  thi s  poi nt,  

as  should  anybody  else  who  tells  us  upfront  they  wi ll  not  feel  

bound  by  what  thi s  commi ttee  has  represented  to  the  wi tnesses.  

Chai rman  Goodlatte.  I  wi ll  not  ask  hi m  to  leave  si nce  he  

hasn' t  vi olated  the  commi tment  we  have  made.  However,  I  would  

ask  hi m  to  respect  that  thi s  i s  a  representati on  made  by  all  of  

the  members  of  these  two  commi ttees  by  the  chai rmen  of  the  

commi ttees.  And,  yes,  you  di d  not  make  the  representati on  

yourself;  I understand  that.  But  i t  i s  i mportant  that  we  respect  
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the i ntegri ty of thi s i ntervi ew. 

And, wi th that, the ti me --

Mr. Gohmert. Mr. Chai rman, may I ask a questi on? Wasn' t 

the terms that you j ust di ctated part of an agreement that was 

i n li eu of li ti gati on, sort of a settlement agreement rather than 

li ti gate the subpoena? 

Chai rman Goodlatte. It i s correct that, i n the proceedi ngs 

that were ongoi ng last weekend wi th regard to Mr. Comey' s moti on 

to quash the subpoena that I i ssued, that an understandi ng was 

reached that he would appear voluntari ly for a pri vate 

transcri bed i ntervi ew wi th the condi ti ons that I read a moment 

earli er. 

Mr. Gohmert. So i t i s actually an agreement between the 

parti es that ended li ti gati on, whi ch normally i s enforceable. 

Chai rman Goodlatte. I thi nk that i s correct. 

The ti me i s now 10: 20. We wi ll get started wi th the fi rst 

round of questi ons. 

Mr. Kelley. If I may, Mr. Chai rman, before we start, I 

appreci ate very much you havi ng read the terms of the agreement, 

whi ch you di d so a curately, and we appreci ate that. And gi ven 

the comments of Mr. Gaetz, we appreci ate and wi ll be sure that 

the chai rmen of both commi ttees wi ll do the best they can to 

ensure that the terms of the agreement are abi ded. 

Mr. Comey i s here voluntari ly, as you sai d, for the 

i ntervi ew. He looks forward to answeri ng your questi ons 
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concerni ng the subj ect matter that you lai d out. We are getti ng 

a li ttle bi t late start, but we have a hard stop at 4: 15, and 

we thi nk we can get a lot done unti l that ti me. Should there 

be any addi ti onal questi ons thereafter, we can certai nly talk 

about how to a compli sh that best, should there be a need to 

schedule a subsequent opportuni ty to i ntervi ew hi m. We also 

would li ke your i ndulgence for maybe a short 30-mi nute, i f less, 

break for lunch. 

Chai rman Goodlatte. We defi ni tely wi ll take that i nto 

a count. 

And, wi th that, the chai r recogni zes the chai rman of the 

Oversi ght Commi ttee, Mr. Gowdy. 

Mr. Gowdy. Good morni ng, Di rector Comey. I' m goi ng to go 

through the fi rst seri es of questi ons i n an unusually leadi ng 

way, but that i s i n the i nterest of ti me and --

Chai rman Goodlatte. I thi nk we have to say that i f we do 

have a hard stop today at 4: 15, we' re goi ng to have to agree that 

we wi ll conti nue i t at another ti me, because we, I thi nk, run 

the ri sk that we' ll not ask all the questi ons that need to be 

asked by that ti me. 

Mr. Kelley. And as I sai d, Mr. Chai rman, i f there are 

addi ti onal questi ons and a compelli ng need to have another 

opportuni ty, we can talk about how to schedule that. 

Mr. Meadows. Mr. Chai rman, I guess what I would rather do 

i s have -- before we get i nto questi oni ng, let' s have an 
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12  

understandi ng  that  the  4: 15  hard  stop  i s  new  i nformati on  ri ght  

now.  And  I  thi nk  i n  a  spi ri t  of  bei ng  here  voluntari ly,  we  need  

to  have  an  understandi ng  that  i f  all  the  questi ons  are  not  asked  

and  answered,  that  an  agreement  to  agree  i n  the  future  i s  

certai nly  a  problem,  Mr.  Chai rman.  

Mr.  Kelley.  What  I  agreed  to  do  i n  the  future,  si r,  i s  to  

schedule  another  ti me.  

Mr.  Meadows.  That' s  fi ne.  As  long  as  we' re  agreei ng  to  

schedule  another  ti me,  that' s  fi ne.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Di rector  Comey,  Peter  Strzok  was  an  FBI  agent  

who  was  assi gned  to  the  Cli nton  Espi onage  Act i nvesti gati on.  Do  

I  have  that  ri ght?  

Mr.  Comey.  That  i s  correct.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  What  was  hi s  ti tle?  

Mr.  Comey.  Hi s  ti tle  was  speci al  agent.  I  thi nk  he  had  

a  vari ety  of  di fferent  supervi sory  assi gnments  duri ng  the  

pendency  of  that  i nvesti gati on  from  mi d-2015  to  the  end  of  ' 16.  

I  don' t  remember  exactly  what  those  were.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Di d  he  i ntervi ew  wi tnesses?  

Mr.  Comey.  Di d  he  i ntervi ew  wi tnesses?  Yes,  he  di d  duri ng  

the  Cli nton  i nvesti gati on,  i s  my  understandi ng.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Di d  he  revi ew  documents?  

Mr.  Comey.  My  understandi ng  i s,  yes,  he  di d  revi ew  

documents.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Di d  he  provi de  advi ce,  counsel,  i nsi ght  to  you  
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i n  your  role  as  the  Di rector?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  -- I' m  j ust  hesi tati ng  over  the  

descri pti on  of  advi ce,  counsel.  He  was  a  supervi sory  speci al  

agent  of  some  role  who  would  peri odi cally  bri ef  me  on  the  status  

of  the  i nvesti gati on,  was  hi s  pri mary  responsi bi li ty  as  i t  

related  to  me.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Let  me  see  i f  I  can  ask  the  questi on  more  

artfully.  Di d  he  help  you  prepare  or  edi t  your  July  5th  press  

statement?  

Mr.  Comey.  July  5th  press  statement?  Yes,  he  di d  help  

edi t  that.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Li sa  Page,  she  was  an  attorney  wi th  the  FBI  i n  

2016.  Is  that  ri ght?  

Mr.  Comey.  Li sa  Page,  yes,  that  i s  correct.  Li sa  Page  was  

an  attorney  I  thi nk  before  2016,  but  certai nly  duri ng  2016  

assi gned  to  the  Offi ce  of  General  Counsel.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  What  role  di d  she  have  wi th  the  Cli nton  

Espi onage  Act  i nvesti gati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  Li sa  Page' s  role  i n  the  i nvesti gati on  i nto  

whether  Hi llary  Cli nton  had  mi shandled  classi fi ed  i nformati on  

was  i n  her  capaci ty  as  a  lawyer  assi gned  to  support  the  Deputy  

Di rector  of  the  FBI,  Andrew  McCabe.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Di d  she  assi st  you  i n  drafti ng  or  edi ti ng  your  

July  5th  press  statement?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  beli eve  she  di d  assi st  i n  drafti ng  -- or  
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14  

edi ti ng  the  statement  of  July  2016.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  So,  from  January  2016  up  unti l  your  July  5th  

press  statement,  i t  i s  fai r  to  say  that  both  Speci al  Agent  Peter  

Strzok  and  FBI  Attorney  Li sa  Page  were  worki ng  on  the  Cli nton  

Espi onage  Act  or  mi shandli ng  of  classi fi ed  i nformati on  

i nvesti gati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  The  reason  I' m  hesi tati ng,  Mr.  Gowdy,  i s  I' ve  

never  appli ed  the  label  of  Espi onage  Act  i nvesti gati on.  It  was  

an  i nvesti gati on  i nto  the  mi shandli ng  of  classi fi ed  i nformati on.  

I don' t mean  to  qui bble,  but  that' s how  I thought  of  i t  and  talked  

about  i t.  

Yes,  they  each  parti ci pated  i n  some  respect  i n  that  

i nvesti gati on  or  i n  our  publi c statement  about  the  i nvesti gati on  

and  thi ngs  li ke  that.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  February  of  2016,  Li sa  Page  wrote:  Trump  si mply  

cannot  be  Presi dent.  

February  of  2016,  Peter  Strzok  wrote:  Trump' s  abysmal,  

hopi ng  people  wi ll  j ust  dump  hi m.  

February  of  2016,  Li sa  Page  wrote:  She  mi ght  be  our  next  

Presi dent.  The  last  thi ng  you  need  us  goi ng  i n  there  loaded  for  

bear.  

March  2016,  Li sa  Page  wrote:  Trump  i s  a  loathsome  human.  

March  of  2016,  Strzok  wrote:  Trump' s  an  i di ot.  

March  of  2016,  Strzok  wrote:  Hi llary  should  wi n  100  

mi lli on  to  zero.  
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15  

Do  you  recall  whether  the  Democrat  pri mary  was  sti ll  ongoi ng  

i n  March  of  2016?  

Mr.  Comey.  I' m  not  i n  a  posi ti on  to  answer  -- you  gave  a  

long  preamble  to  that  about  thi ngs  that  I  don' t  know  from  my  own  

knowledge.  So  I' m  goi ng  to  exclude  that  part  of  your  preamble  

and  j ust  answer  the  questi on  at  the  end.  

Do  I  know  whether  the  Democrati c pri mary  was  ongoi ng  i n  

March  of  2016?  I  thi nk  so,  yes.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Well,  let  me  back  up,  i n  fai rness  to  you,  and  

ask  whether  or  not  you' ve  had  a  chance  to  read  any  of  the  text  

exchanges  between  Peter  Strzok  and  Li sa  Page?  

Mr.  Comey.  I' ve  seen  some  of  them  i n  the  open  source,  i n  

the  medi a,  obvi ously,  si nce  I  was  fi red  as  Di rector.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Di d  you  read  any  of  them  i n  preparati on  for  

today?  

Mr.  Comey.  No,  I  di d  not.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  So,  i f  you  are  correct  that  the  Democrati c  

pri mary  was  sti ll  open  i n  March  of  2016,  I  read  that  as  Speci al  

Agent  Peter  Strzok  commenti ng  that  she  should  wi n  the  pri mary  

100  mi lli on  to  zero.  

And  I  guess  an  alternati ve  readi ng  of  that  would  be  that  

he  already  had  her  as  the  nomi nee  and  she  should  wi n  the  general  

100  mi lli on  to  zero.  

Is  there  another  readi ng  other  than  those  two,  wi nni ng  the  

pri mary  or  wi nni ng  the  general?  
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Mr. Comey. I' m not i n a posi ti on to i nterpret thei r text 

exchanges, so I can' t answer that. 

Mr. Gowdy. In the course of human hi story, has anyone won 

an electi on 100 mi lli on to zero, to your knowledge? 

Mr. Comey. In the Uni ted States? 

Mr. Gowdy. Anywhere. 

Mr. Comey. I don' t mean to be faceti ous. I can' t speak 

to Stali n' s reelecti on or Mao Tse-tung reelecti on campai gns. 

In --

Mr. Gowdy. 100 mi lli on to zero i s a lot. 

Mr. Comey. Sure. I' m not tryi ng to be faceti ous, but I 

remember as a student the vote i n Sovi et Russi a was 99. 9 percent 

to --

Mr. Gowdy. We are goi ng to get to Russi a i n a li ttle bi t. 

We' ll get to Russi a i n a li ttle bi t. 

Mr. Comey. So i n the -- I can answer your questi on, 

Mr. Gowdy. In the Uni ted States, I' m not aware of any such 

lopsi ded vote. 

Mr. Gowdy. So, i n March of 2016, Peter Strzok i s 

i nvesti gati ng Secretary Cli nton -- we' ll use your phrase -- for 

the alleged mi shandli ng of classi fi ed i nformati on. And at least 

a cordi ng to thi s text, he has her wi nni ng the pri mary and/or 

the general electi on. Is that fai r? 

Mr. Comey. I can' t answer that because I don' t know the 

text or what the i ntenti on was. So I' m j ust not the wi tness to 
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answer  that.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  How  about  the  plai n  language  of  the  text,  what  

do  you  i nterpret  that  to  mean?  

Mr.  Comey.  I really  can' t wi thout  knowi ng  them  and  knowi ng  

the  context  of  them.  I' m  j ust  not  your  best  wi tness  to  answer  

that.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  July  of  2016,  do  you  know  whi ch  agent  

i ntervi ewed  Secretary  Cli nton?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  beli eve  two  FBI  agents  parti ci pated  i n  the  

July  i ntervi ew  of  Secretary  Cli nton,  one  of  whi ch  was  Peter  

Strzok,  and  the  other  was  another  veteran  speci al  agent.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Do  you  know  the  other  veteran  speci al  agent' s  

name?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  thi nk  so.  I' m  hesi tati ng  only  because  I  may  

butcher  hi s  name,  and  I  don' t know  whether  the  FBI  wants  the  names  

of  speci al  agents  on  a publi c record.  So  I thi nk  I know  hi s  name.  

Ms.  Bessee.  If  the  agent  i s  not  at  the  SES  level  and  above,  

you  probably  cannot  state  the  name.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  When  you  say  "probably  cannot, "  i s  that  a  legal  

prohi bi ti on,  or  i s  that  an  FBI  poli cy  prohi bi ti on?  

Ms.  Bessee.  An  FBI  poli cy  and  a  DOJ  poli cy  prohi bi ti on.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Does  the  FBI  take  the  posi ti on  that  that' s  

bi ndi ng  on  Congress?  

Ms.  Bessee.  Based  on  my  di recti on  from  the  FBI  Di rector  

and  from  the  Deputy  Attorney  General' s  Offi ce,  that  i s  our  
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di recti on.  We  can  go  back  and  ask  the  questi on  i f  we  can  reveal  

the  name.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Well,  how  about  do  that  for  me.  For  the  

meanti me,  we' ll  j ust  refer  to  that  person  as  FBI  Agent  1.  

Di rector  Comey,  after  the  Cli nton  i ntervi ew  on  July  2nd,  

i f  memory  serves,  2016,  FBI  Agent  1  wrote:  "I' m  done  

i ntervi ewi ng  the  Presi dent, "  dash,  and  then  typed  302.  

Another  FBI  employee  responded:  You  i ntervi ewed  the  

Presi dent,  questi on  mark.  

And  FBI  Agent  1  wrote  back:  You  know,  HRC.  

A couple  days  later,  you  were  before  Congress,  and  you  sai d,  

among  other  thi ngs,  "The  deci si on  was  made  and  the  recommendati on  

was  made  the  way  you  would  want  i t  to  be,  by  people  who  di dn' t  

gi ve  a  hoot  about  poli ti cs. "  

Now,  Representati ve  Ratcli ffe  i s  goi ng  to  go  i nto  how  that  

deci si on  was  made.  My  questi on  to  you  i s,  had  you  known  about  

these  texts,  would  you  have  kept  Peter  Strzok  and  Li sa  Page  on  

the  Espi onage  Act/mi shandli ng  of  classi fi ed  i nformati on  case?  

Mr.  Comey.  In  your  questi on,  Mr.  Gowdy,  you  talked  about  

texts  that  I' m not  aware  of  that  i nvolve  an  agent  other  than  Peter  

Strzok  or  FBI  employee  other  than  Peter  Strzok  and  Li sa  Page,  

so  I  can' t  answer  that  part  of  i t.  

To  the  extent  you' re  aski ng  about  communi cati ons  of  Page  

and  Strzok,  i f  I  had  known  about  those  thi ngs  that  they  were  

communi cati ng  that  I' ve  seen  i n  open  source,  I  would  not  have  
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had  them  stay  on  the  -- playi ng  any  role  i n  connection  wi th  that  

i nvesti gati on.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Would  you  have  fi red  them?  

Mr.  Comey.  That  I  can' t  answer  i n  the  abstract.  I' d  

certai nly  want  the  FBI  di sci pli nary  process  to  work  and  to  look  

at  i t,  to  deci de  whether  di sci pli ne  was  appropri ate  and  what  that  

would  be.  But  I  can' t  answer  the  ulti mate  questi on.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  But  i f  I  understood  your  answer  to  the  fi rst  

part  of  that  correct,  you  would  not  have  allowed  them  to  remai n  

on  the  Cli nton  i nvesti gati on  had  you  been  aware  of  those  texts.  

Mr.  Comey.  My  j udgment  would  have  been  -- and  based  -- the  

challenge  for  me  i s  I  haven' t  read  all  the  texts,  but  based  on  

what  I  saw  -- have  seen  i n  the  medi a  si nce  I  left  the  FBI,  that  

unless  there  was  some  explanati on  for  that  that  I  was  mi ssi ng,  

i n  my  j udgment,  they  wouldn' t  have  remai ned  part  of  the  

i nvesti gati on.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Well,  I  don' t  want  you  to  answer  that  questi on  

i n  the  abstract.  Peter  Strzok  di d  offer  a  j usti fi cati on.  He  

sai d  that  he  was  not  bi ased  for  Cli nton  or  agai nst  Trump.  Not  

that  hi s  bi as  di dn' t i mpact hi s  work,  he  got  around  to  that  later.  

He  j ust  sai d  he  wasn' t  bi ased.  

So,  i f  you  had  brought  hi m  i n  and  he  had  sai d,  "Oh,  but,  

Di rector  Comey,  I  know  I  sai d  he  was  a  loathsome  human  bei ng  and  

I  know  I  sai d  that  she  should  wi n  100  mi lli on  to  zero,  but  that  

doesn' t  mean  I  can' t  do  my  j ob, "  because  that  i s  certai nly  what  
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he  told  my  Democrat  colleagues,  whi ch they  bought,  so  my  questi on  

i s,  would  you  have  bought  that?  Would  you  have  left  hi m  on  the  

i nvesti gati on  had  you  known  about  these  texts?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  would  have  certai nly  been  open  to  li steni ng  

to  any  explanati on,  but  when  you' re  the  leader  of  a  j usti ce  

agency,  the  appearance  of  bi as  i s  as  i mportant  as  the  exi stence  

of  actual  bi as.  

And  although  I  have  seen  no  evi dence  of  any  bi as  i n  any  of  

the  parti ci pants  i n  that  effort,  the  appearance  of  bi as  would  

have  been  very  i mportant  to  me.  So  I  -- agai n,  i t' s  hard  to  go  

back  and  li ve  a  li fe  you  di dn' t  li ve,  but  I  would  i magi ne  my  

j udgment  would  have  been  you  can' t  remai n  on  the  case.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  When  Speci al  Counsel  Mueller  was  made  aware  of  

the  texts,  he  di d  i mmedi ately  ki ck  Strzok  off  of  hi s  team.  Do  

you  have  any  reason  to  di sagree  wi th  hi s  deci si on?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  I  don' t  know  the  detai ls  of  hi s  deci si on,  

but,  agai n,  I' ve  seen  the  open  source  reporti ng  to  that.  And  

i f  that' s  true,  i t' s  a  reasonable  deci si on  by  a  reasonable  

leader.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  And  you  beli eve,  as  we  si t  here  today,  that  had  

you  been  aware  of  the  texts  contemporaneously,  you  too  would  have  

ki cked  Strzok  off  of  the  Mi dyear  Exam  i nvesti gati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  thi nk  I  answered  that  one  already.  I  would  

certai nly  be  open  to  an  explanati on  that  I  don' t  know,  can' t  

i magi ne  si tti ng  here.  But  absent  an  explanati on,  the  appearance  
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i ssue  would  have  been  very  i mportant  to  me,  and  i t' s  unli kely  

I  would  have  left  hi m  on  the  case.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Why  i s  the  appearance  of  bi as  as  i nsi di ous  as  

actual  bi as?  

Mr.  Comey.  The  appearance  of  bi as  i s  as  i mportant.  

don' t  know  exactly  what  the  word  "i nsi di ous"  means,  so  I' m  not  

sayi ng  that  one.  It' s  as  i mportant  as  actual  bi as  because  the  

fai th  and  confi dence  of  the  Ameri can  people  that  your  work  i s  

done  i n  an  i ndependent,  fai r,  and  competent  way  matters  

enormously.  And  so  a  reasonable  appearance  of  bi as  can  corrupt  

that  fai th  i n  your  work  as  much  as  actual  bi as  can.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Had  you  known  about  the  texts  

contemporaneously,  would  you  have  allowed  Peter  Strzok  and  Li sa  

Page  to  move  from  the  Espi onage  Act  or  mi shandli ng  i nvesti gati on  

to  the  Russi a  i nvesti gati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  would  have  thought  of  i t  the  same  way,  i n  that  

i f  ei ther  bi as  or  appearance  of  bi as,  poli ti cal  bi as,  i s  very  

i mportant  to  not  have  as  part  of  your  i nvesti gati ve  work.  So  

I  would  have  thought  that  way  about  any  i nvesti gati on  that  was  

li kely  to  touch  the  publi c i nterest  i n  the  way  that  that  

i nvesti gati on  di d.  So  most  li kely  I  would  thi nk  about  i t  the  

same  way.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Well,  I  don' t  want  to  put  words  i n  your  mouth,  

but  I  do  want  to  gai n  as  much  clari ty  as  I  can  i nto  thi s.  

You  -- i f  I  understand  you  correctly,  you  beli eve  you  would  have  
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not  kept  them  on  ei ther  i nvesti gati on,  but  you  would  be  open  to  

an  explanati on,  but  you  can' t  thi nk  of  what  that  explanati on  

could  have  been  that  would  have  persuaded  you  to  keep  them?  

Mr.  Comey.  That' s  ri ght.  I  try  as  a  leader  always  to  be  

open  to  thi ngs  I  mi ght  be  mi ssi ng,  but  absent  somethi ng  li ke  that,  

I  thi nk  i t' s  li kely  -- agai n,  i t' s  hard  to  li ve  a  li fe  you  di dn' t  

li ve.  But  i t' s  li kely  I  wouldn' t  have  kept  them  on  the  case  for  

that  reason,  the  reasons  I  sai d.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  If  you  had  gai ned  fami li ari ty  wi th  a  text  from  

Li sa  Page  where  she  sai d,  "Please  tell  me  Trump  won' t  ever  be  

Presi dent, "  and  Strzok  responded,  "No,  no,  he  won' t,  we' ll  stop  

i t, "  do  you  thi nk  you  would  have  kept  them  on  the  i nvesti gati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  I thi nk  of  -- agai n,  assumi ng  you' re  recounti ng  

actual  texts,  I  would  thi nk  of  i t  i n  the  same  way  I  thought  of  

the  ones  you  recounted  earli er.  I' d  be  concerned  about  bi as  or  

the  percepti on  of  bi as,  and  -- so  I  thi nk  about  i t  the  same  way  

I  thought  about  the  earli er  text  you  lai d  out.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Well,  I  want  to  remai n  open-mi nded  to  any  other  

i nterpretati ons  of  that  text,  but  what  other  i nterpretati on  

could  there  be:  Please  tell  me  he  won' t  be  Presi dent.  No,  

peri od,  no,  comma,  He  won' t.  We' ll  stop  i t.  

What  explanati on  could  there  be  that  was  beni gn  enough  to  

leave  them  on  the  very  i nvesti gati on  they  were  commenti ng  on?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know.  And  that  -- I  thi nk  that' s  what  

i t  means  to  be  open-mi nded,  to  gi ve  people  a  chance  to  explai n  
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23  

somethi ng  and  then  to  thi nk  about  thei r  explanati on.  I  don' t  

know  what  i t  would  be,  and  maybe  there' s none,  but  -- yeah,  that' s  

how  I  would  thi nk  about  i t.  

Is  there  some  explanati on  for  thi s?  If  there  i s,  tell  me  

what  i t  i s,  and  then  I' ll  make  a  j udgment  based  on  that.  I  can' t  

get  i nsi de  the  head  of  people  wri ti ng  texts  that  I  never  saw,  

so  that' s  why  i t' s  a  li ttle  tri cky  for  me  to  answer.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  What  was  the  Russi a  i nvesti gati on?  When  you  

hear  the  phrase  "Russi a  i nvesti gati on, "  what  do  you  thi nk?  

Mr.  Comey.  To  my  mi nd,  the  term  "Russi a  i nvesti gati on"  

often  refers  to  two  di fferent  thi ngs:  Fi rst,  the  i nvesti gati on  

to  understand  what  are  the  Russi ans  doi ng  to  i nterfere  i n  our  

electi on  duri ng  the  2015-16  peri od;  and  then,  second,  i t' s  often  

used  to  refer  to  the  counteri ntelli gence  i nvesti gati ons  that  the  

FBI  opened  i n  late  July.  

And  so  I  hear  i t  used  i nterchangeably  there,  and  those  two  

thi ngs  obvi ously  connect,  but  I' ve  always  thought  of  i t  i n  two  

separate  elements.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Okay.  We' ll  go  wi th  that.  Late  July  of  2016,  

the  FBI  di d,  i n  fact,  open  a  counteri ntelli gence  i nvesti gati on  

i nto,  i s  i t  fai r  to  say  the  Trump  campai gn  or  Donald  Trump  

hi mself?  

Mr.  Comey.  It' s  not  fai r  to  say  ei ther  of  those  thi ngs,  

i n  my  recollecti on.  We  opened  i nvesti gati ons  on  four  Ameri cans  

to  see  i f  there  was  any  connecti on  between  those  four  Ameri cans  
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and  the  Russi an  i nterference  effort.  And  those  four  Ameri cans  

di d  not  i nclude  the  candi date.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Do  you  recall  who  drafted  the  FBI' s  i ni ti ati on  

document  for  that  late  July  2016  Russi a  i nvesti gati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  do  not.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Would  you  di sagree  that  i t  was  Peter  Strzok?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  one  way  or  the  other.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Do  you  know  who  approved  that  draft  of  an  

i ni ti al  plan  for  the  Russi a  i nvesti gati on  i n  late  July  2016?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Would  you  di sagree  that  i t  was  Peter  Strzok?  

Mr.  Comey.  That  Peter  Strzok  approved?  I  don' t  know  one  

way  or  the  other.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Drafted  and  approved  i t.  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  one  way  or  the  other.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Have  you  read  that  i ni ti ati on  document?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  thi nk  so.  I  don' t  remember  ever  seei ng  

i t.  

Mr.  Comey.  Do  you  recall  seei ng  the  phrase  "Trump  

campai gn"  i n  that  i ni ti ati on  document?  

Mr.  Comey.  Well,  I  don' t  remember  seei ng  i t,  ever  seei ng  

i t,  so  certai nly  don' t remember  any  porti on  of  i t,  because  I  don' t  

remember  ever  seei ng  i t.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  If  i t  sai d  Trump  campai gn,  do  you  sti ll  have  

the  same  answer  you  had  when  I  asked  you  whether  or  not  i t  i nvolved  
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the  Trump  campai gn?  

Mr.  Comey.  That' s  a  questi on,  Mr.  Gowdy,  I  can' t  answer  

wi thout  havi ng  seen  the  document.  So  I' d  be  speculati ng  about  

a  document  I  don' t  thi nk  I' ve  ever  seen.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Well,  I  want  to  be  fai r  to  you  and  make  sure  

I  understand  your  testi mony.  You  have  not,  di d  not  read  the  FBI  

i ni ti ati on  document  that  launched  the  Russi a  i nvesti gati on,  or  

you  read  i t  and  do  not  recall  what  i t  sai d?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  remember  ever  seei ng  i t.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  How  does  the  FBI  launch  counteri ntelli gence  

i nvesti gati ons?  What  documents  are  requi red?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  for  sure  because  i t' s  opened  far  

below  the  Di rector' s  level.  But  there' s  documentati on  i n  

cri mi nal  i nvesti gati ons  and  i n  counteri ntelli gence  

i nvesti gati ons  to  explai n  the  predi cati on  for  the  openi ng  of  a  

fi le,  that  i s,  the  basi s  for  the  openi ng  of  a  fi le.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Who  at  the  FBI  has  the  authori ty  to  launch  a  

counteri ntelli gence  i nvesti gati on  i nto  a  maj or  poli ti cal  

campai gn,  and  would  that  eventually  have  to  be  approved  by  you?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  for  a  vari ety  of  reasons.  I' ve  

never  encountered  a  ci rcumstance  where  an  i nvesti gati on  i nto  a  

poli ti cal  campai gn  was  launched,  and  so  I  don' t  know  how  that  

would  be  done.  And  -- so  that' s my  best  answer  to  that  questi on.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  When  di d  you  learn  there  was  a  

counteri ntelli gence  i nvesti gati on  i nto  potenti al  Russi an  ti es  
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wi th  the  Trump  campai gn?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  was  bri efed  someti me  at  the  end  of  July  that  

the  FBI  had  opened  counteri ntelli gence  i nvesti gati ons  of  four  

i ndi vi duals  to  see  i f  there  was  a connecti on  between  those  -- any  

of  those  four  and  the  Russi an  effort.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  And  who  were  those  four  i ndi vi duals?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  thi nk  that  the  Bureau  has  sai d  that  

publi cly,  and  so  I' m  not  goi ng  to  answer  that  unless  i t' s  okay  

wi th  the  government.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Well,  lucky  for  us  we  have  the  Bureau  ri ght  here  

wi th  us.  

Ms.  Bessee.  Mr.  Chai rman,  my  understandi ng,  thi s  i s  an  

unclassi fi ed  setti ng,  and  also  anythi ng  that  goes  to  the  speci al  

counsel' s  ongoi ng  i nvesti gati on  would  be  off  li mi ts  for  thi s  

wi tness  to  be  able  to  respond  to  i f  they  are  i ndi vi duals  that  

are  currently  bei ng  looked  at  or  i nvesti gated  as  part  of  the  

Russi an  i nvesti gati on,  the  ongoi ng  Russi an  i nvesti gati on.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Let  me  make  sure  I  understand  the  Bureau' s  

posi ti on.  The  former  Di rector,  actually  the  Di rector  at  the  

ti me,  can  confi rm  publi cly  that  there  i s  a  counteri ntelli gence  

i nvesti gati on,  but  he  cannot  now  tell  us  who  that  

counteri ntelli gence  i nvesti gati on  i nvolved?  

Ms.  Bessee.  That  i s  correct.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Di rector  Comey,  can  you  tell  us  the  factual  

predi cate  that  may  have  led  to  the  launchi ng  of  that  
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counteri ntelli gence  i nvesti gati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  thi nk  that  I  can  descri be  the  factual  

predi cate  for  two  reasons:  I  don' t  remember  preci sely;  and  to  

the  extent  I  remember,  I  thi nk  those  are  classi fi ed  facts  that  

i mpli cate  the  concern  the  Bureau  j ust  expressed.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Some  of  our  fri ends  i n  the  medi a  use  the  word  

"collusi on"  from  ti me  to  ti me.  What  i s  the  cri me  of  collusi on?  

Mr.  Comey.  What  i s  the  cri me  of  collusi on?  I  do  not  know.  

I' ve  never  heard  the  term  "collusi on"  used  i n  the  way  i t' s  been  

used  i n  our  world  over  the  last  couple  years  before  that.  I don' t  

know  of  a  cri me  that  i nvolves  collusi on.  I  thi nk  i n  terms  of  

conspi racy  or  ai di ng  and  abetti ng.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Wi th  counteri ntelli gence  i nvesti gati ons,  i s  

there  always  a  cri mi nal  component  or  someti mes  a  cri mi nal  

component?  

Mr.  Comey.  Counteri ntelli gence  i nvesti gati ons  i nvolve  an  

effort  to  understand  the  plans  and  i ntenti ons  and  acti vi ti es  of  

a forei gn  adversary.  Someti mes  that  leads  to  the  use  of  cri mi nal  

tools  to  di srupt.  Someti mes  i t  i nvolves  other  tools  to  di srupt.  

So  cri mi nal  i s  an  element  of  counteri ntelli gence  i nvesti gati ons  

always  because  i t' s  a  potenti al  tool  to  di srupt.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Do  you  recall  your  March  2017  testi mony  i n  an  

open  setti ng  before  the  House  Intelli gence  Commi ttee?  

Mr.  Comey.  In  a  general  way.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  It  was  when  I beli eve  the  Bureau  fi rst  confi rmed  
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the exi stence of a counteri ntelli gence i nvesti gati on. 

Mr. Comey. Okay. I remember that. I remember generally 

i t was i n March, but sure. 

Mr. Gowdy. Do you recall i n what way you used the word 

"cri mi nal" and at what poi nt i n your testi mony? 

Mr. Comey. Wi thout looki ng at the testi mony, I don' t. 

Mr. Gowdy. Do you recall Rod Rosenstei n' s memo appoi nti ng 

speci al counsel? 

Mr. Comey. No, I don' t. 

Mr. Gowdy. What i s the di fference between collusi on and 

conspi racy? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t know because I don' t know what collusi on 

means. It' s a term I haven' t heard i n my career i n the Justi ce 

Department, so I don' t know. 

Mr. Gowdy. Let' s assume that collusi on and conspi racy are 

synonyms, and we' ll j ust use the word "conspi racy" because the 

word "collusi on, " despi te i ts nonstop use, has no cri mi nal 

consequences. 

Would i t be a cri me to a cess the DNC server or Podesta' s 

emai l wi thout permi ssi on or i n an unlawful way? 

Mr. Comey. That' s a hard one to answer i n the abstract. 

It' s potenti ally a cri me whenever someone ei ther, wi thout 

authori zati on, enters a computer system or conspi res to enter 

a computer system wi thout authori zati on. 

Mr. Gowdy. Di d the FBI, i n July of 2016, have any evi dence 

Document ID: 0.7.1278.5117-000034 



 

 

            

             


           


          


         

           


        


         


         

            


         


       


             


        

          


            


         


           


     

          


      


   

           


  

              

  

c

29 

anyone i n the Trump campai gn conspi red to hack the DNC server? 

Mr. Comey. Di d we have evi dence i n July of ' 16 that anyone 

i n the Trump campai gn conspi red to hack the DNC server? The 

challenge i n answeri ng that i s -- and please don' t take thi s 

nonanswer to i mply that there i s such i nformati on. 

I j ust -- I don' t thi nk that the FBI and speci al counsel 

want me answeri ng questi ons that may relate to thei r 

i nvesti gati on of Russi an i nterference duri ng 2016. And I worry 

that that would cross that li ne, Mr. Gowdy. 

Mr. Gowdy. All ri ght. Well, I' m not aski ng you what 

happened after the i ni ti ati on. July 2016, when thi s was 

launched, when Peter Strzok drafted the i ni ti ati on documents, 

di d the FBI have evi dence at the ti me that any member of the Trump 

campai gn conspi red to a cess the DNC server? 

Mr. Comey. And, agai n, the challenge wi th answeri ng that 

i s i t' s a slope to answeri ng questi ons about what we di d or di dn' t 

know about Russi an acti vi ty and the connecti on of any Ameri cans 

to i t duri ng 2016, and I thi nk that i mpli cates the same problem 

I j ust talked about. 

Mr. Gowdy. Well, Di rector, we' re tryi ng to understand what 

the factual predi cate for launchi ng a counteri ntelli gence 

i nvesti gati on was. 

Mr. Comey. Sure. I understand the gravamen of your 

questi on. 

Mr. Gowdy. You can' t tell us, or you won' t tell us? 
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Mr.  Comey.  Probably  a  combi nati on  of  both;  that  i s,  as  I  

sai d  i n  response  to  your  earli er  questi on,  I  don' t  remember  

seei ng  the  openi ng  memos  on  counteri ntelli gence  cases  opened  i n  

late  July,  so  I  can' t  recall  exactly  what  the  predi cati on  was.  

But,  to  the  extent  I  recall  facts  developed  duri ng  our  

i nvesti gati on  of  Russi an  i nterference  and  the  potenti al  

connecti on  of  Ameri cans,  I  thi nk  that' s  a  questi on  that  the  FBI  

doesn' t  want  me  answeri ng.  So  i t' s  both  a  can' t  and  a  won' t.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Do  you  beli eve  your  fi ri ng  i s  evi dence  of  

obstructi on  of  j usti ce?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  that  I  can  answer  that  questi on  

because  I' m  not  -- because  I' m  a  wi tness,  i n  a  sense.  I  don' t  

know  the  uni verse  of  facts  that  would  reflect on  that,  so  I can' t  

answer  i t.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Have  you  ever  had  conversati ons  wi th  Rod  

Rosenstei n  where  he  i ndi cated  that  he  di d  not  beli eve  the  

contents  of  the  memo  he  drafted?  

Mr.  Comey.  I' ve  never  had  any  conversati on  wi th  Rod  

Rosenstei n  about  the  memo  he  drafted,  assumi ng  you  mean  the  memo  

that  related  to  my  fi ri ng.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Yes.  

Mr.  Comey.  I' ve  never  had  any  conversati on  wi th  hi m  about  

that  at  all.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Have  you  read  the  memo?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes.  
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Mr.  Gowdy.  Do  you  thi nk  i t  lays  out  a  defensi ble  case  for  

termi nati ng  you  as  the  FBI  Di rector?  

Ms.  Bessee.  Mr.  Chai rman,  to  the  extent  that  questi on  

goes  -- agai n,  goes  to  the  speci al  counsel' s  i nvesti gati on  i nto  

obstructi on,  the  wi tness  wi ll  not  be  able  to  answer.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  I  thi nk  the  whole  world  has  read  the  memo  

and  -- or  most  of  the  world.  My  questi on  i s  whether  or  not  

Di rector  Comey  -- I  thi nk  he' s  already  answered  he  had  no  

conversati ons  wi th  Rod  Rosenstei n.  

My  questi on  i s,  whether  or  not  -- and  he' s  enti tled  to  hi s  

opi ni on  -- whether  or  not  he  beli eves  that  that  framed  a  

suffi ci ent  factual  basi s  for  hi s  termi nati on  as  the  FBI  Di rector.  

Ms.  Bessee.  He  i s  enti tled  to  hi s  opi ni on,  but  to  the  

extent  -- because  he  also  stated  that  he  i s  also  a  wi tness  i n  

the  i nvesti gati on.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Whi ch  i nvesti gati on  i s  he  a  wi tness  i n?  

Ms.  Bessee.  To  the  speci al  counsel.  He  sai d  he  i s  a  

potenti al  wi tness.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Well,  you  j ust  sai d  wi tness.  Is  there  an  

obstructi on  of  j usti ce  i nvesti gati on?  

Ms.  Bessee.  I  beli eve  there  i s  an  i nvesti gati on  that  the  

speci al  counsel  i s  looki ng  i nto.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Well,  we  all  know  that.  Is  i t  an  obstructi on  

of  j usti ce  i nvesti gati on?  

Ms.  Bessee.  Mr.  Chai rman,  can  you  rephrase  the  questi on,  
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please?  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Yes.  We  all  know  that.  Is  i t  an  obstructi on  

of  j usti ce  i nvesti gati on?  

Ms.  Bessee.  Can  you  rephrase  the  questi on  for  the  wi tness?  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Yes.  Di rector  Comey,  you' re  fami li ar  wi th  the  

memo  drafted  by  Rod  Rosenstei n.  You  have  not  talked  to  Rod  

Rosenstei n,  as  I  understand  your  testi mony.  Do  you  beli eve  the  

memo,  j ust  on  the  cold  four  pages  of  the  memo,  four  corners  of  

that  document,  do  you  beli eve  i t  provi des  suffi ci ent  basi s  for  

your  termi nati on?  Even  i f  you  would  have  done  i t  di fferently,  

i s  i t  a  basi s  for  your  termi nati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  can' t  answer  that,  Mr.  Chai rman,  because  i t  

requi res  me  to  get  i nto  the  mi nd  of  the  deci si onmaker,  who  i s  

the  Presi dent,  and  I' m  not  i n  a  posi ti on  to  do  that.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Do  you  have  any  evi dence the  memo  was  subterfuge  

to  fi re  you,  but  not  for  the  -- but  for  a  di fferent  reason?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  have  no  evi dence  at  all  about  how  the  memo  

came  to  be  created.  I know  that  i t  was  part  of  the  documentati on  

that  was  attached,  what  was  sent  to  me,  deli vered  to  the  FBI  on  

the  day  I  was  fi red.  That' s  the  only  thi ng  I  have  personal  

knowledge  of.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Di rector  Comey,  I' d  li ke  to  ask  you  some  

questi ons  about  the  events  surroundi ng  your  July  5th,  2016,  press  

conference  to  announce  your  deci si on  not  to  charge  Hi llary  

Cli nton  for  the  mi shandli ng  of  classi fi ed  i nformati on.  
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One  of  the  thi ngs  that  happened  the  week  before  that  press  

conference  was,  on  June  27th  of  2016,  a  meeti ng  between  Attorney  

General  Lynch  and  former  Presi dent  Bi ll  Cli nton,  a  meeti ng  that  

got  a  lot  of  attenti on.  Do  you  recall  that?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  do  recall  press  coverage  of  a  meeti ng  on  June  

27th.  Mr.  Ratcli ffe,  one  thi ng  I  have  to  make  sure  i s  clear.  

You  sai d  my  deci si on  not  to  prosecute  Hi llary  Cli nton.  I  made  

a  recommendati on  on  behalf  of  the  FBI  to  the  Department  of  

Justi ce.  I  j ust  want  to  make  sure  that' s  preci se.  I  do  recall  

the  coverage  around  that  meeti ng.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  And  that  i s  a  meeti ng  that  took  place  on  

a  tarmac i n  Phoeni x,  Ari zona?  

Mr.  Comey.  That' s  my  recollecti on,  yes,  si r.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Do  you  agree  that  any  di scussi on  about  the  

Hi llary  Cli nton  mi shandli ng  classi fi ed  i nformati on  

i nvesti gati on,  as  you  called  i t  today,  between  the  Attorney  

General  and  the  spouse  of  the  subj ect  of  the  i nvesti gati on  would  

have  been  i nappropri ate?  

Mr.  Comey.  Any  di scussi on  of  the  substance  of  the  

i nvesti gati on?  Potenti ally  i nappropri ate.  Agai n,  I' d  have  to  

understand  whether  there  was  some  other  appropri ate  basi s  for  

the  communi cati on,  but  i t  would  be  concerni ng.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Potenti ally  i nappropri ate  i s  your  answer.  

Also  potenti ally  i llegal?  

Mr.  Comey.  Well,  that  one' s  a  hard  one  to  answer.  Any  
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conversati on  i s  potenti ally  i llegal,  dependi ng  on  what  people  

talk  about.  And  so  i t  would  be  potenti ally  i nappropri ate,  

absent  some  explanati on  that  would  move  i t  i nto  the  range  of  

appropri ate.  That' s  why  I' m  gi vi ng  you  that  answer  because  I  

don' t  know  what  was  talked  about.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Hi ghly  unusual  for  an  Attorney  General  to  

meet  wi th  the  spouse  of  the  subj ect  of  one  of  her  i nvesti gati ons.  

Do  you  agree  wi th  that?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  would  agree  wi th  that.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  And  i mportant  to  fi nd  out  as  much  detai l  

as  possi ble  about  that  conversati on.  Would  you  agree  wi th  that?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  that  I  would  agree  wi th  that  

because  the  fact  of  the  communi cati on  i s  i n  some  ways  more  

i mportant  than  the  substance  of  i t.  So  I  don' t  thi nk  I' d  agree  

wi th  that  i n  the  abstract.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Di d  you  recall  that  Attorney  General  Lynch  

subsequently  admi tted  that  her  acti ons  i n  meeti ng  wi th  former  

Presi dent  Cli nton  cast  a  shadow  over  the  Department  of  Justi ce?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  actually  don' t  remember  that.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Do  you  remember  what  you  sai d  about  the  

meeti ng  on  the  tarmac?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t.  I  mean,  i f  you  gi ve  me  more  context,  

maybe  I' d  remember.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Do  you  recall  sayi ng  i t  was  part  of  your  

deci si on,  one  of  the  factors  i n  your  deci si on  to  take  the,  I  
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thi nk,  unprecedented  step  of  holdi ng  the  press  conference on  July  

5th  of  2016?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes.  I  remember  i t  bei ng  a  factor,  an  

i mportant  factor  i n  my  deci si on  to  step  away  from  the  Attorney  

General.  I  thi nk  I' ve  talked  about  i t  i n  a  vari ety  of  di fferent  

contexts.  But  I  was  very  concerned  by  the  appearance  of  that  

i nteracti on.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  You  menti oned  i t  was  one  of  a  number  of  

thi ngs  that  caused  you  to  take  that  acti on,  correct?  

Mr.  Comey.  Correct.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  One  of  those  I  beli eve  you' ve  testi fi ed  

previ ously  was  the  fact  that  the  Attorney  General  had  asked  you  

to  refer  to  thi s  i nvesti gati on  as  a  matter,  correct?  

Mr.  Comey.  That  i s  correct.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  One  of  the  other  thi ngs  that  you  were  

concerned  about  was  materi al  or  documentati on,  as  yet  

unveri fi ed,  i ndi cati ng  some  possi ble  agreement  between  Attorney  

General  Lynch  and  the  Cli nton  campai gn  about  the  i nvesti gati on,  

correct?  

Mr.  Comey.  Not  that  second  pi ece  because  I' ve  been  

very  -- tri ed  to  be  very  careful  i n  publi c comments  about  thi s.  

There  was  materi al  that  had  not  been  veri fi ed  that  I  beli eved  

i f  i t  became  publi c would  be  used  to  cast  doubt  on  whether  the  

Attorney  General  had  acted  appropri ately  wi th  respect  to  the  

i nvesti gati on.  I  haven' t  gone  -- I  don' t  thi nk  I' m  allowed  to  
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go  beyond  that  i n  characteri zi ng  that  materi al.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  It  was  i nformati on  that  would,  you  beli eve,  

i f  released,  have  caused  some  to  questi on  the  obj ecti vi ty  of  the  

Department  of  Justi ce?  

Mr.  Comey.  Correct.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Was  there  anythi ng  i n  that  i nformati on  that  

also  would  have  rai sed  questi ons  about  your  obj ecti vi ty  or  

abi li ty?  

Mr.  Comey.  Not  to  my  knowledge.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Di d  you  share  wi th  the  Attorney  General  or  

the  Deputy  Attorney  General  or  anyone  at  Mai n  Justi ce  your  

concerns  that  thi s  i nformati on  rai sed  about  the  Attorney  

General' s  ei ther  real  obj ecti vi ty  or  the  percepti on  of  her  

obj ecti vi ty?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Who?  Who  di d  you  rai se  that  wi th?  

Mr.  Comey.  My  recollecti on  i s  that,  at  some  poi nt  i n  the  

fi rst  half  of  2016,  both  the  Deputy  -- that  the  Deputy  Attorney  

General  was  bri efed  on  the  nature  of  that  materi al,  and  at  some  

ti me  after  that,  the  Attorney  General  was  bri efed  and  i ntervi ewed  

about  the  nature  of  that  materi al.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Do  you  know  who  the  Attorney  General  was  

i ntervi ewed  by?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  for  sure.  I  beli eve  one  of  the  

parti ci pants  i n  the  conversati on  was  the  Deputy  Di rector.  At  
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that poi nt, i t was Andrew McCabe. But there were others present 

as well, i s my recollecti on. I was not there. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. Was there a di scussi on about the Attorney 

General needi ng to recuse herself as a result of that 

i nformati on? 

Mr. Comey. Not to my knowledge. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. In the event of an Attorney General 

recusal, what does the Department of Justi ce poli cy say about 

a su cessi on order of authori ty? 

Mr. Comey. My recollecti on i s that the Department of 

Justi ce poli cy then makes the Deputy Attorney General the Acti ng 

Attorney General for purpose of that matter, that case. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. So, at that poi nt, i n the days leadi ng up 

to the July 5th press conference, had you concluded or di d you 

thi nk that Attorney General Loretta Lynch should not be able to 

make a deci si on about whether to prosecute Hi llary Cli nton for 

the mi shandli ng of classi fi ed i nformati on? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t remember reachi ng that conclusi on. 

remember bei ng concerned about whether she should remai n 

i nvolved, especi ally after the tarmac vi si t, tarmac  

conversati on. But before I had an opportuni ty to di scuss that 

wi th anyone at DOJ, the Attorney General announced that she would 

not recuse but would a cept my recommendati on and that of the 

career prosecutors. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. And 5 days after that tarmac i nci dent, the 
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FBI  and  prosecutors  from  the  Department  of  Justi ce  di d,  i n  fact,  

i ntervi ew  Secretary  -- former  Secretary  Cli nton,  correct?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  thi nk  i t  was  5  days.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  It  was  on  July  2nd.  

Mr.  Comey.  It  was  the  Saturday  after  that  tarmac meeti ng.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  You  menti oned  some  of  the  agents  earli er.  

Do  you  know  how  many  folks  combi ned,  from  the  FBI  and  the  

Department  of  Justi ce,  were  present  for  the  i ntervi ew  of  

Secretary  Cli nton?  

Mr.  Comey.  The  DOJ  team  for  the  i ntervi ew  of  Secretary  

Cli nton  I  thi nk  -- I  could  be  wrong,  but  I  thi nk  was  fi ve  people:  

two  speci al  agents  from  the  FBI  and  three  lawyers  from  the  

Department  of  Justi ce.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  You  di d  not  parti ci pate  i n  the  i ntervi ew?  

Mr.  Comey.  No,  si r.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Who  drafted  the  questi ons  that  Secretary  

Cli nton  was  goi ng  to  be  asked?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Di d  you  parti ci pate  at  all  i n  the  

questi ons?  

Mr.  Comey.  No,  I  di d  not.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Why  wasn' t  that  i ntervi ew  recorded?  

Mr.  Comey.  The  i ntervi ew  wasn' t  recorded  because  the  FBI  

does  not  record  noncustodi al,  voluntary  i ntervi ews.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Why  wasn' t that  i ntervi ew  conducted  before  
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a  grand  j ury?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  recall  exactly.  I  thi nk  for  a  number  

of  strategi c reasons.  You' ll  know,  as  an  experi enced  person,  

that  the  grand  j ury  i s  often  a  li mi ti ng  way  to  conduct  a  

wi de-rangi ng  i ntervi ew,  but  I  don' t  remember  for  sure.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Let  me  see  i f  I  can  refresh  your  

recollecti on.  I  thi nk  you  had  a  conversati on  wi th  Inspector  

General  Horowi tz  about  that.  On  page  141  of  the  i nspector  

general' s  report  --

Mr.  Kelley.  Can  we  have  a  copy  of  that  so  we  can  follow  

along?  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Does  someone  have  an  extra  copy?  

Page  141,  the  top  of  the  page.  See  where  i t  says:  "Comey  

told  us"?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes,  si r.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  So  I' m  readi ng  for  the  record:  Comey  told  

us  that  he  di d  not  remember  di scussi ng  wi th  anyone  the  

possi bi li ty  of  subpoenai ng  Cli nton  before  the  grand  j ury.  

However,  he  stated:  At  that  poi nt,  I  really  di dn' t  thi nk  there  

was  a  there  there.  And  the  questi on  was,  i s  she  goi ng  to  li e  

to  us?  

Di d  I  read  that  correctly?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes,  you  read  i t  correctly.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Does  that  refresh  your  recollecti on?  

Mr.  Comey.  It  really  doesn' t.  I' m  sure  I  sai d  thi s  
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because i t' s a transcri pt from the IG i ntervi ew, but I don' t -- I 

honestly don' t remember sayi ng that. It seems reasonable, 

though. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. Well, as you read that, i f i t' s 

a curately -- i f you' re a curately quoted, i t sounds li ke you 

had your mi nd made up about whether or not Hi llary Cli nton was 

goi ng to be prosecuted for the mi shandli ng of classi fi ed 

i nformati on before her i ntervi ew. 

Mr. Comey. I don' t thi nk that' s exactly ri ght. My 

j udgment goi ng i nto the i ntervi ew was that we had not found 

suffi ci ent evi dence to recommend prosecuti on for any substanti ve 

offenses related to the mi shandli ng of classi fi ed i nformati on. 

Sti ll a possi bi li ty that she would li e to us and gi ve us an openi ng 

to prosecute her or that there would be further i nvesti gati on. 

But goi ng i nto i t, based on almost a year of i nvesti gati on, I 

di dn' t see a substanti ve case there. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. Do you recall, Di rector Comey, an exchange 

that you and I had? You appeared before the House Judi ci ary 

Commi ttee on September 28th of 2016, and I asked you a questi on. 

I sai d: Di d you make the deci si on not to prosecute or not to 

charge Hi llary Cli nton for the mi shandli ng of classi fi ed 

i nformati on before or after her July 2nd, 2016, i ntervi ew? And 

your answer was: After. 

Do you recall that? 

Mr. Comey. Yep. 
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Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  When  I  asked  you  how  that  could  possi bly  

be  the  case,  your  response  was:  If  colleagues  of  ours  thi nk  I' m  

lyi ng,  please  have  them  contact  me  pri vately.  

Now,  I  wi ll  tell  you,  Di rector,  when  I  asked  you  that  

questi on  and  you  gave  me  that  answer,  there  were  a  number  of  

thi ngs  that  I  was  not  aware  of.  One  of  the  thi ngs  that  I  di dn' t  

know  was  that  the  day  before  the  i ntervi ew,  the  Hi llary  Cli nton  

i ntervi ew  on  July  1st,  Li sa  Page  texted  Peter  Strzok  about  

Loretta  Lynch  and  her  deci si on  to  follow  your  recommendati on,  

and  sai d,  quote:  Yeah,  i t' s  a  real  profi le  i n  courage,  si nce  

she  -- meani ng  Lynch  -- knows  no  charges  wi ll  be  brought.  

Do  you  recall  readi ng  that  text  anywhere,  or  heari ng  about  

i t?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  remember  I  read  i t.  I  thi nk  I' ve  heard  

about  i t  i n  the  medi a.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  It' s  also  i n  the  i nspector  general  report.  

Di d  you  read  the  i nspector  general  report?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  di d,  so  I  must  have  seen  i t  there.  Yes,  I  

read  i t,  so  I  must  have  seen  i t  there.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Well,  the  text  doesn' t  -- doesn' t  say  that  

Hi llary  Cli nton  mi ght  not  be  charged  or  that  charges  probably  

won' t  be  brought.  It  says  that  the  Attorney  General  knows  that  

charges  won' t  be  brought.  

Do  you  have  any  explanati on  for  why  Li sa  Page,  Peter  Strzok,  

and  Attorney  General  Loretta  Lynch  mi ght  have  known  that  Hi llary  
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Cli nton  wasn' t  goi ng  to  be  charged  before  her  July  2nd,  2016,  

i ntervi ew  i f  you  hadn' t  made  the  deci si on  yet?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t.  I  don' t  know  what  she  means  i n  there  

or  what  the  nature  of  the  communi cati on  was.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Could  i t  be  based  on  one  of  the  other  thi ngs  

that  I  di dn' t  know  when  you  and  I  had  that  exchange,  and  that  

was  the  fact  that  I  di dn' t  know  that  2  months  before  that  July  

2nd  i ntervi ew,  on  May  the  2nd,  you  had  actually  ci rculated  a draft  

memo  of  a  publi c announcement  stati ng  that  nei ther  you  nor  any  

reasonable  prosecutor  would  charge  Hi llary  Cli nton  wi th  the  

mi shandli ng  of  classi fi ed  i nformati on.  Do  you  recall  that?  

Mr.  Comey.  I' m  sorry.  Recall  what,  Mr.  Ratcli ffe?  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Recall  that  memo?  

Mr.  Comey.  Sure.  I  recall  a  vari ety  of  drafts  i n  May  of  

that  memo.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Would  you  agree  wi th  me  that  that  draft  of  

that  memo  certai nly  would  be  or  i ts  contents  would  appear  to  be  

i nconsi stent  wi th  the  testi mony  that  I  j ust  related  that  you  and  

I  had  i n  September  of  2016?  

Mr.  Comey.  No,  I  don' t  agree.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Who' s  Ji m  Rybi cki ?  

Mr.  Comey.  Ji m  Rybi cki  was  my  chi ef  of  staff.  As  -- I' m  

sorry.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  One  of  the  thi ngs  that  I  di dn' t  know  when  

you  and  I  had  that  exchange  was  how  Mr.  Rybi cki  was  goi ng  to  
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testi fy. And he has testi fi ed that the only charges that could 

have come out of her i ntervi ew would have been false statements 

to an FBI agent, not any vi olati ons of the Espi onage Act. 

Would you agree wi th Mr. Rybi cki ' s testi mony? 

Mr. Comey. No, I would not. I' m not fami li ar wi th i t, but 

assumi ng i t' s what you j ust summari zed, I would not. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. Well, I thi nk I' ve related to you that at 

least a number of folks -- Peter Strzok, Li sa Page, Loretta 

Lynch, Ji m Rybi cki -- all seem to have the i dea that Hi llary 

Cli nton wasn' t goi ng to be charged for the mi shandli ng of 

classi fi ed i nformati on -- she mi ght be charged for lyi ng to the 

FBI -- but that she wasn' t goi ng to be charged for the mi shandli ng 

of classi fi ed i nformati on. 

Do you sti ll thi nk that the answer that you gave me on 

September 28 of 2016 was an a curate statement? 

Mr. Comey. I do. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. Do you thi nk that that statement was at all 

mi sleadi ng to me or other Members of Congress? 

Mr. Comey. I guess I can' t speak to your mental state. It 

wasn' t i ntended to be mi sleadi ng. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. You di dn' t answer my questi on when I asked 

i t by sayi ng: Well, I had pretty much made the deci si on that 

she wasn' t goi ng to be charged because everyone knew I had 

ci rculated a draft memo. 

You di dn' t say to me what you sai d to the i nspector general, 
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that  you  really  di dn' t  thi nk  there  was  no  there  there.  You  j ust  

sai d  no.  

Do  you  thi nk  that' s  a  candi d  statement?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  do.  I  do.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  So  your  testi mony  then  i s  the  same  as  i t  

i s  today,  that  when  you  went  i nto  the  Hi llary  Cli nton  -- or  when  

the  FBI  and  the  Department  of  Justi ce went  i n  to  i ntervi ew  Hi llary  

Cli nton,  a  deci si on  had  not  been  made  about  whether  or  not  to  

prosecute  her  for  anythi ng  and  all  charges  were  sti ll  on  the  table  

at  that  poi nt?  

Mr.  Comey.  Correct.  The  fi nal  deci si on  of  what  our  

recommendati on  would  be  had  not  been  made.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  The  fi nal  deci si on.  

Mr.  Comey.  Well,  sure.  You' d be  i ncompetent  i f  you  di dn' t  

have  a  vi ew  of  the  case  after  a  year.  And,  as  I  sai d,  as  I  sai d  

to  the  i nspector  general,  i t  di dn' t  look  to  me  li ke  there  was  

a  substanti ve  case  there.  But  you' re  about  to  i ntervi ew  the  

subj ect,  and  so  you  want  to  keep  your  mi nd  open  to  the  possi bi li ty  

that  you  wi ll  develop  somethi ng  that  needs  to  be  pursued.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Well,  that' s  a  great  explanati on.  Why  

di dn' t  you  gi ve  me  that  explanati on  i n  September  of  2016  when  

I  asked  you  that  questi on?  

Mr.  Comey.  It' s  an  explanati on,  Mr.  Ratcli ffe,  that' s  

enti rely  consi stent  wi th  the  answer  I gave  you.  I don' t remember  

you  aski ng  me  to  explai n  why  I  say  that.  If  you  di d,  I' m  sorry  
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i f  I  di dn' t  answer  that  questi on,  but  they' re  consi stent.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  So  i t  was  a  seri ous  i ntervi ew  wi th  Hi llary  

Cli nton  that  was  about  to  take  place  i ntended  at  getti ng  at  the  

truth  of  everythi ng  that  was  troubli ng  you?  

Mr.  Comey.  That' s not  how  I thought  about  i t.  It  was  about  

i ntervi ewi ng  the  subj ect  near  the  close  of  a  year-long  

i nvesti gati on.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Okay.  So,  when  the  team  of  FBI  agents  and  

lawyers  i ntervi ewed  Hi llary  Cli nton,  what  questi ons  di d  they  ask  

Secretary  Cli nton  about  the  tarmac meeti ng?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Would  that  be  reflected  i n  the  302  or  i n  

the  FBI  summary  of  the  i ntervi ew?  

Mr.  Comey.  I would  expect so.  You' re  aski ng  about  whether  

they  asked  Hi llary  Cli nton  about  the  meeti ng  that  Bi ll  Cli nton  

had  wi th  Loretta  Lynch.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Yes.  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  whether  they  asked  that.  I  would  

expect  i f  i t  was  asked,  i t  would  li kely  be  reflected  i n  the  302.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Would  you  li ke  to  revi ew  those?  

Mr.  Comey.  Not  unless  you  really  want  me  to.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Well,  I' ve  read  them,  and  I' ve  asked  folks  

about  them.  There' s  no  menti on  of  the  word  "tarmac"  or  "Loretta  

Lynch"  anywhere  that  appears  i n  the  302  or  the  summary  that  the  

FBI  has  made  publi cly  avai lable.  
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So  my  questi on  i s,  do  you  know  whether  or  not  any  questi ons  

were  asked  about  that  tarmac meeti ng?  

Mr.  Comey.  It' s  the  same  answer;  I  don' t  know.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  So  5  days  after  the  Attorney  General  meets  

wi th  the  spouse  of  a  subj ect  on  a  tarmac,  the  meeti ng  that  a  lot  

of  folks  are  talki ng  about  and  that  rai sed  concerns  enough  to  

be  one  of  the  reasons  that  caused  you  to  take  the  acti ons  that  

you  took  i n  holdi ng  the  press  conference,  none  of  those  folks  

i n  the  room  thought  about  aski ng  Hi llary  Cli nton  any  questi ons  

about  that?  

Mr.  Comey.  I don' t know  what  they  thought.  And,  as  I sai d  

earli er,  I  don' t  know  whether  she  was  asked  about  that.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Would  that  have  been  a  reasonable  questi on  

to  Secretary  Cli nton,  what  di d  your  husband  di scuss  about  thi s  

case,  i f  anythi ng,  5  days  ago  wi th  the  Attorney  General?  

Mr.  Comey.  I don' t know  the  answer  to  that.  As  i t  relates  

to  her  mi shandli ng  of  classi fi ed  i nformati on  as  Secretary  of  

State,  I  don' t  know.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Well,  I  thought  you  were  looki ng  for  any  

cri mes,  not  j ust  the  mi shandli ng  of  i nformati on.  

Mr.  Comey.  The  FBI  doesn' t  i nvesti gate  people  to  fi nd  any  

cri mes.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  I  di dn' t  say  i nvesti gate  people,  but  i n  the  

course  of  i nvesti gati ng  i f  you  become  aware  of  thi ngs  that  cause  

concern  to  i nvesti gators,  li ke  you' ve  expressed  you  had,  i sn' t  
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there  an  obli gati on  to  pursue  that?  

Mr.  Comey.  Hard  to  answer  i n  the  abstract.  Depends  upon  

what  the  facts  were  that  you  had.  But  sure,  i f  you  develop  facts  

i n  the  course  of  an  i nvesti gati on  of  the  possi ble  commi ssi on  of  

another  cri me,  i n  almost  all  ci rcumstances,  you  follow  up  on  i t.  

I  don' t  know  what  that  would  dri ve,  i n  terms  of  the  i ntervi ew  

of  Hi llary  Cli nton.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  So  do  you  know  what  questi ons  the  agents  

or  prosecutors  asked  Hi llary  Cli nton  about  that  troubli ng  

i nformati on  that  we  talked  before  about  potenti al  compromi se  of  

Attorney  General  Lynch  wi th  respect  to  her  obj ecti vi ty?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  whether  they  asked  any  questi ons  

that  related  to  Loretta  Lynch  of  Hi llary  Cli nton.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  If  they  di d,  i t  should  be  reflected  i n  the  

302  or  the  FBI  summary  of  the  i ntervi ew,  correct?  

Mr.  Comey.  You  would  expect  that  i n  the  ordi nary  course.  

The  only  reason  I' m  hesi tati ng  i s  that  I  don' t  know  whether  

questi ons  were  asked  about  that,  but  i f  questi ons  are  asked  and  

the  answer  may  i mpli cate  -- may  be  consi dered  classi fi ed,  

someti mes  that' s  not  put  i n  the  302.  But  I  don' t  know  whether  

that' s  the  case  here.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Weren' t  those  questi ons  that  you  wanted  

answered?  

Mr.  Comey.  Of  Hi llary  Cli nton?  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Of  anyone  that  could  answer  a  questi on  
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about  whether  or  not  there  was  any  problem  wi th  the  obj ecti vi ty  

of  the  Attorney  General,  based  on  contacts  wi th  the  Cli nton  

campai gn.  

Mr.  Comey.  I  di d  not  see  anythi ng  that  led  me  to  conclude  

that  Loretta  Lynch  was  acti ng  i nappropri ately  i n  supervi si ng  the  

Department  of  Justi ce  i n  that  i nvesti gati on.  The  appearance  of  

confli ct  or  the  appearance  that  she  was  compromi sed  i n  some  

fashi on  was  what  drove  me  to  separate  myself  from  her  i n  July.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  So,  as  you' ve  already  menti oned,  one  of  the  

thi ngs  you  thought  mi ght  happen  or  you  wanted  to  fi nd  out  was  

whether  or  not  Hi llary  Cli nton  mi ght  li e  duri ng  that  i ntervi ew.  

Knowi ngly  maki ng  a false  statement  to  the  FBI  i s  a crime,  correct?  

Mr.  Comey.  That  i s  correct.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Maki ng  a  false  publi c statement  ordi nari ly  

i s  not  a  cri me,  correct?  

Mr.  Comey.  That  i s  correct.  Thank  goodness,  for  a  lot  of  

people.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  But  false  statements  made  i n  publi c can  be  

evi dence  of  knowledge  or  i ntent,  absence  of  mi stake,  or  provi de  

all  ki nds  of  other  evi denti ary  context,  correct?  

Mr.  Comey.  Potenti ally,  yes.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  In  fact,  correct me  i f  I' m wrong,  but  wasn' t  

Davi d  Petraeus'  comments,  false  comments  i n  publi c a  basi s  for  

why  you  argued  that  he  had  knowledge  or  i ntent  to  commi t  the  cri me  

of  mi shandli ng  classi fi ed  i nformati on?  
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Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  remember  that  about  the  Petraeus  case,  

that  publi c statements  fi gured  i n  i t.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  You  don' t  recall,  or  i t  di dn' t  happen?  

Mr.  Comey.  Well,  I  don' t  remember  i t  bei ng  a  feature,  so  

i t' s  possi ble  I' m  j ust  not  rememberi ng  or  that  i t  di dn' t  happen.  

It  j ust  -- as  I  thi nk  about  that  case,  I  don' t  remember  anythi ng  

about  publi c statements  as  a  factor  i n  that  case.  I  remember  

a  lot  about  lyi ng  to  the  agents  duri ng  an  i ntervi ew,  but  not  

publi c statements.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  All  ri ght.  So  let  me  ask  you  about  Hi llary  

Cli nton' s  publi c statements.  Do  you  recall  Secretary  Cli nton  

publi cly  stati ng  that  she  nei ther  sent  nor  recei ved  classi fi ed  

i nformati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  speci fi cally  i n  her  publi c statements,  

so  I  don' t  speci fi cally.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  If  there  were  those  publi c statements,  

would  you  have  expected  the  agents  to  ask  her  about  that  duri ng  

her  i ntervi ew?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know.  I  would  expect  them  to  ask  about  

what  she  was  thi nki ng  when  she  communi cated  i n  the  way  she  di d,  

but  whether  to  ask  her,  "Di d  you  say  on  the  campai gn  trai l  X  or  

Y, "  I  don' t  know.  That  would  be  up  to  thei r  j udgment.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Do  you  recall  Secretary  Cli nton  maki ng  that  

same  statement  under  oath  before  Congress?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t.  
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Mr. Ratcli ffe. Do you recall -- maybe I can refresh your 

recollecti on. I thi nk, on October 22nd of 2015, i n response to 

a questi on from Congressman Jordan, Secretary Cli nton sai d, 

quote, "There was nothi ng marked classi fi ed i n my emai ls ei ther 

sent or recei ved, " end quote. 

Does that refresh your recollecti on about Secretary Cli nton 

maki ng that statement? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t -- i t doesn' t help me wi th her 

testi mony, but I actually do remember bei ng asked, maybe by 

Mr. Jordan, when I testi fi ed about whether that was a curate or 

not. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. Is i t a curate? 

Mr. Comey. My recollecti on i s there were -- I hope I don' t 

get thi s wrong. In some emai l, there was a letter C deep i n the 

emai l to mark some of the paragraphs that looked to us li ke 

porti on marki ngs, as I recall. And I' m sorry i f I' m mi srecalli ng 

that, but I have the recollecti on of that. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. Well, I have your publi c statement on July 

5th. I thi nk you menti oned the fact that there were actually 

three emai ls that were marked classi fi ed. 

Mr. Comey. When I talked on July the 5th? 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. Yes. 

Mr. Comey. Okay. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. Any reason to --

Mr. Kelley. Do you have a copy of that statement we can 
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take  a  look  at?  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  I  do.  

Do  you  have  -- as  you  revi ew  that,  do  you  i ndependently  have  

a  recollecti on  about  Hi llary  Cli nton' s  July  2nd  i ntervi ew  where  

agents  asked  her  questi ons  about  those  classi fi cati on  marki ngs,  

whether  i t  appeared  on  one  document  or  multi ple  documents?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  You  don' t  have  any  recollecti on?  

Mr.  Comey.  No,  I  don' t  have  an  i ndependent  recollecti on,  

si tti ng  here,  of  what  they  asked  her  about  that.  I  have  some  

recollecti on  that  the  topi c came  up,  but  I  don' t  remember  what  

was  asked  or  sai d  about  that.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  What  do  you  recall  about  -- you  menti oned  

the  letter  C  comi ng  up  duri ng  that  i ntervi ew  and  what  that  mi ght  

mean?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  -- I' m  sorry.  Do  you  want  me  to  sti ll  

look  at  the  statement?  So  far,  I  haven' t  found  the  thi ng  about  

the  C,  so  I' ll  pause  there  for  a  second.  

I  don' t  remember  what  came  up  i n  her  i ntervi ew  about  that.  

What  I  was  referri ng  to  earli er  i s  I  remember  some  member  I  thi nk  

of  the  Judi ci ary  Commi ttee  aski ng  me  about  that  porti on  marki ng  

that  appeared  -- I  was  thi nki ng  i n  one  emai l,  but  i t  sounds  li ke  

you  thi nk  there' s  more  than  one.  

I  don' t  see  anythi ng,  si r,  i n  my  statement  -- I  could  be  

mi ssi ng  i t  -- about  the  porti on  marki ng.  
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Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  I  wi ll  resume  wi th  that  when  we  resume  our  

questi oni ng.  

Mr.  Comey.  Okay.  

Chai rman  Goodlatte.  I  thi nk,  i n  the  i nterest  of  

expedi ency,  we' ll  proceed  wi th  the  Democrats  ri ght  now,  and  then  

we' ll  take  a  30-mi nute  lunch  break  after  the  Democrats.  
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[11: 32 a. m. ] 

Ms. Chen. Okay. The ti me i s 11: 32, and we' re back on the 

record for the Democrat' s fi rst round. 

Mr. Cohen, i f you would li ke to ask a few questi ons. 

Mr. Cohen. Are we ready? 

Mr. Comey. Yes, si r. 

Mr. Cohen. Thank you. I' m Steve Cohen from Tennessee. 

Fi rst thi ng I' d li ke to ask you, Mr. Comey, i s, Mr. Trump 

asked you once to lay off the Flynn i nvesti gati on, and I was j ust 

wonderi ng what your reacti on was to hi s havi ng pled gui lty and 

hi m havi ng, a cordi ng to Mr. Mueller, provi ded much truthful 

i nformati on that i s apparently goi ng to be a part of the 

i nvesti gati on that Mr. Mueller i s pursui ng. 

What was your reacti on? Di d you feel ki nd of good that you 

di dn' t tell Mr. Trump that you would be loyal and drop that 

i nvesti gati on? How di d i t make you feel? 

Mr. Comey. Well, there was no chance at all that I was goi ng 

to abi de that di recti on to let that go. When I saw the publi c  

a counts of hi s plea and cooperation, I felt, as a ci ti zen, glad 

that he was held a countable for hi s cri mes and that he was 

assi sti ng the Uni ted States. So i t seemed to me li ke a j ust 

outcome. 

Mr. Cohen. Di d Mr. Trump or anybody else i n the 

admi ni strati on ever ask you anythi ng about speci fi cs about the 

Russi a i nvolvement i n the 2016 electi on? 
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Ms. Bessee. Congressman, to the extent i t goes i nto the 

purvi ew of the speci al counsel, the wi tness wi ll not be able to 

answer that questi on. 

Mr. Cohen. Let me ask you thi s, Mr. Comey: There was a 

memo that some had sai d had somethi ng to do -- and you maybe even 

sai d -- had somethi ng to do wi th your goi ng forth on July 5 to 

announce that you and not the Attorney General was goi ng to not 

i nvesti gate and go further wi th the Cli nton emai l i nvesti gati on, 

and that that memo was somethi ng that the FBI had i n thei r 

possessi on for some ti me concerni ng, allegedly, Attorney General 

Lynch communi cati ng to Ms. Renteri a that thi s was goi ng to be 

ki nd of not goi ng to be pursued and not to worry about i t. And 

then later, I thi nk, many thi nk that that was really a Russi an 

operati ve that got somehow some i nformati on that wasn' t true and 

got i t i nto the Justi ce Department. 

Do you know what I' m talki ng about? 

Mr. Comey. I know generally, and I have to tread carefully 

here, because I thi nk the underlyi ng materi al i s sti ll 

classi fi ed. So there was materi al -- thi s i s what I' ve sai d 

publi cly, and so I' ll say i t agai n, there was materi al that was 

classi fi ed that i f unclassi fi ed, released, would open the 

Attorney General up to the a cusati on -- whether i t was true or 

not -- the a cusati on that she had not been acti ng fai rly and 

i mparti ally i n overseei ng the i nvesti gati on. 

So far as I knew at the ti me, and sti ll thi nk, the materi al 
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i tself was genui ne, whi ch i s a separate questi on, though, from 

whether i t was what i t sai d was a curate. 

Mr. Cohen. When you say i t was genui ne, I mean, di d you 

not thi nk that at thi s poi nt that i t was conj ured up by the 

Russi ans to try to maybe i nfluence acti ons at the Justi ce 

Department or at the FBI? 

Mr. Comey. We di dn' t thi nk that at the ti me. I don' t know 

whether that vi ew has changed. 

Mr. Cohen. Okay. Was Peter Strzok consi dered the top 

counteri ntelli gence FBI agent? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t know whether Peter Strzok was 

consi dered the top. He was very hi ghly regarded as a 

counteri ntelli gence professi onal, and I saw that borne out i n 

the nature and quali ty of hi s work wi th me. But whether he' s 

the top or not, I don' t know, but certai nly among the best. 

Mr. Cohen. In the past, had hi s work not resulted i n the 

outi ng of some Russi an spi es and thei r bei ng returned to Russi an, 

expelled from thi s country? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t remember speci fi cally. I j ust 

remember hi s reputati on was very, very strong i n the 

counteri ntelli gence world. 

Mr. Cohen. So i t would make sense that he would be assi gned 

to thi s i nvesti gati on? 

Mr. Comey. It would make sense that he' d be assi gned to 

the i nvesti gati on i nto the potenti al mi shandli ng of classi fi ed 
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i nformati on  by  Secretary  Cli nton.  It  would  also  make  sense  he' d  

be  assi gned  to  the  Russi a  i nvesti gati ons.  

Mr.  Cohen.  And  what  was  Ms.  Page' s  reputati on  as  an  

attorney  and  as  a  publi c servant?  

Mr.  Comey.  Ms.  Page  was  less  well-known.  She  was  a  more  

j uni or  attorney  assi gned  to  the  deputy  attorney  -- excuse  me,  

the  deputy  di rector,  so  I  knew  less  about  her.  In  my  

i nteracti ons  wi th  her,  what  I  li ked  about  her  i s  she  would  be  

candi d  and  blunt  and  often  di srupti ve  i n  a  meeti ng,  whi ch  I  ki nd  

of  li ked.  The  FBI  can  be  very  hi erarchal.  She  would  tend  to  

speak  up  even  when,  i n  a  normal  FBI  meeti ng,  i t  wasn' t  her  turn,  

and  I  found  that  very  helpful.  

Mr.  Cohen.  The  attacks  that  Mr.  Trump  has  made  on  the  FBI  

and  the  Justi ce  Department,  and  parti cularly  Mr.  Strzok  and  Ms.  

Page  and  you  and  others,  can  you  tell  us  how  that' s  affected  the  

morale  of  the  FBI?  

Mr.  Comey.  It' s  hard  for  me  to  give  you  a  hi gh-confi dence  

answer  because  I' m  not  there  any  longer,  so  I' ll  gi ve  you  my  

sense,  whi ch  I  thi nk  i s  ri ght  but  I  don' t  have  hi gh  confi dence  

i n  i t,  i s  that  i t  has  hurt  morale  i n  some  senses,  and  i n  other  

senses,  has  redoubled  the  commi tment  of  the  people  of  the  FBI  

to  i ts  mi ssi on  and  i ts  apoli ti cal  nature.  So  I  thi nk  i t' s  

actually  a  tale  of  two  ci ti es  i n  that  way.  

Mr.  Cohen.  When  you  were  at  the  FBI,  di d  you  have  any  reason  

to  i nvesti gate  the  people  who  propagated  stori es  that  Seth  Ri ch  
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was  murdered  by  folks  wi thi n  the  DNC  or  other  democrati c  

operati ves  or  any  of  the  people  that  talked  about  thi s  pi zza  

operati on,  the  pi zzagate  thi ng?  Di d  you  ever  i nvesti gate  the  

people  that  started  those  conspi ratori al  stori es?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  remember.  I  don' t  remember  

i nvesti gati ons  on  those  topi cs.  I  remember  at  one  poi nt  

recei vi ng  an  emai l  from  someone,  a  pri vate  ci ti zen,  to  my  

personal  account,  rai si ng  i ssues  about  the  -- i s  i t  Pi ng  Pong?  

Whatever  the  pi zza  place was  that  was  i nvolved  i n  some  conspi racy  

theori es.  I  remember  sendi ng  i t  to  my  staff  sayi ng,  make  sure  

thi s  gets  to  the  appropri ate  place,  but  I  don' t know  whether  there  

were  i nvesti gati ons.  

Mr.  Cohen.  If  Mr.  Mueller  were  fi red,  how  would  that  

affect  further  i nvesti gati ons  of  cri me  that  are  ongoi ng  now?  

Mr.  Comey.  I don' t know  at  thi s  poi nt.  I don' t know.  And  

as  an  i nformed  outsi der,  I  thi nk  that  i t  would  -- you' d  almost  

have  to  fi re  everyone  i n  the  FBI  and  the  Justi ce  Department  to  

derai l  the  relevant  i nvesti gati ons,  but  I  don' t know  exactly  what  

the  effect  would  be.  

Mr.  Cohen.  Mr.  Trump  has  sai d  that  the  folks  that  work  for  

hi m  are  12  angry  Democrats.  Do  you  know  those  12  or  so  people  --

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t.  

Mr.  Cohen.  -- who  they  are?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  know  by  name  some  of  them,  and  I  thi nk  I' ve  

met  some  of  them  personally,  but  I  don' t  know  them  well.  
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Mr.  Cohen.  Do  you  know  i f  any  of  them  are  angry?  

Mr.  Comey.  Not  to  my  knowledge,  but  I' m  sure  they' re  li ke  

all  normal  humans;  someti mes  they' re  happy,  someti mes  they' re  

sad,  someti mes  they' re  angry,  but  I  can' t  comment  on  that  

characteri zati on  beyond  that.  

Mr.  Cohen.  All  ri ght.  Despi te  the  emai ls  between  

Mr.  Strzok  and  Ms.  Page,  was  there  anythi ng  you  ever  saw  that  

you  beli eve  caused  the  FBI  or  the  Justi ce  Department,  

parti cularly  the  FBI,  to  not  operate  and  i nvesti gate  i n  an  

unbi ased  fashi on?  

Mr.  Comey.  No,  I  never  saw  -- and  i n  those  two  people' s  

cases  -- I  never  saw  any  i ndi cati on  at  all  of  bi as  by  Mr.  Strzok  

or  Ms.  Page.  And,  i n  fact,  Peter  Strzok  helped  draft  my  letter  

to  Congress  on  October  28th  that  Hi llary  Cli nton  blames  for  her  

defeat.  So  i t' s  hard  for  me  to  see  how  he  was  on  Team  Cli nton  

secretly  at  that  poi nt  i n  ti me.  And  he  also  was  one  of  the  

handful  of  people  i n  the  enti re  world  who  knew  we  were  

i nvesti gati ng  four  Ameri cans  who  had  some  connecti on  to  

Mr.  Trump  duri ng  the  summer  of  2016,  and  he  di dn' t  tell  a  soul.  

So  i t' s  hard  to  reconci le  that  wi th  hi s  bei ng  on  Team  Cli nton.  

And  so  all  of  that  i s  consi stent  wi th  my  vi ew,  I  never  saw  

any  i ndi cati on  of  anythi ng  but  the  facts  and  the  law  from  those  

people.  

Mr.  Cohen.  Thank  you  for  your  testi mony.  And  thank  you  

for  your  servi ce  to  our  country.  
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I  yi eld.  

Mr.  Nadler.  Thank  you.  

Mr.  Comey,  I' ve  been  troubled  by  escalati ng  attacks  agai nst  

the  Department  of  Justi ce,  the  Speci al  Counsel' s  Offi ce,  and  the  

FBI,  attacks  agai nst  the  i ndependence  of  the  i nsti tuti ons,  the  

i ntegri ty  of  thei r  employees,  and  the  legi ti macy  of  the  

Department  of  Justi ce  and  FBI  i nvesti gati ons.  

As  I' m  sure  you' re  aware,  Presi dent  Trump  and  hi s  alli es  

have  repeatedly  descri bed  Speci al  Counsel  Mueller  and  hi s  

i nvesti gati on  as  i llegi ti mate  and  poli ti cally  bi ased.  

On  November  27th,  Presi dent  Trump  tweeted  i n  reference  to  

the  speci al  counsel,  quote:  The  fake  news  medi a  bui lds  Bob  

Mueller  up  as  a sai nt,  when  i n  actuali ty,  he' s the  exact opposi te.  

He  i s  doi ng  tremendous  damage  to  our  cri mi nal  j usti ce  system  

where  he' s  only  looki ng  at  one  si de  and  not  the  other.  Heroes  

wi ll  come  of  thi s  and  i t  won' t  be  Mueller  and  hi s  terri ble  gang  

of  angry  Democrats.  Look  at  thei r  past  and  look  where  they  come  

from.  And  now  a  $30  mi lli on  wi tch  hunt  conti nues  and  they  have  

got  nothi ng  but  rui ned  li ves.  Where  i s  the  server?  Let  these  

terri ble  people  go  back  to  the  Cli nton  Foundati on  and  Justi ce  

Department,  close  quote.  

On  December  3rd,  Presi dent  Trump  tweeted,  quote:  Bob  

Mueller,  who  i s  a  much  di fferent  man  than  people  thi nk,  and  hi s  

out-of-control  band  of  angry  Democrats  don' t want  the  truth,  they  

only  want  li es.  The  truth  i s  very  bad  for  thei r  mi ssi on,  close  
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quote.  

I' ll  note  that  Robert  Mueller  i s  well-known  to  be  a li felong  

Republi can.  

Now,  generally  speaki ng,  does  bei ng  i denti fi ed  as  a  

Democrat  mean  a  prosecutor  would  be  too  confli cted  to  conduct  

a  fai r  i nvesti gati on  of  a  Republi can  or  vi ce  versa?  

Mr.  Comey.  No,  i t  does  not.  

Mr.  Nadler.  Are  you  aware  of  any,  quote,  "confli cted"  

people  on  the  speci al  counsel' s  team?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  am  not.  

Mr.  Nadler.  Do  you  agree  wi th  the  characteri zati on  that  

the  speci al  counsel' s  i nvesti gati on  i s  a  wi tch  hunt?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  do  not.  

Mr.  Nadler.  What  i s  your  general  i mpressi on  of  the  

i ndi vi duals  on  the  speci al  counsel' s  team?  

Mr.  Comey.  I know  them  by  reputati on,  and  i t' s an  all-star  

team  of  people  whose  names  I' ve  known  for  years  as  great  Federal  

prosecutors.  Others  are  unknown  to  me.  But  I  know  the  

reputati on  and  substance  of  the  person  leadi ng  them,  the  best.  

Although  we' re  not  fri ends,  I  admi re  Bob  Mueller.  He  i s  more  

than  people  reali ze.  

Mr.  Nadler.  Do  you  agree  wi th  the  characteri zati on  that  

the  speci al  counsel' s  team  i s  out  of  control  and  are  not  seeki ng  

the  truth?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  have  any  reason  to  beli eve  that' s  true.  
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Mr.  Nadler.  And  how  confi dent  are  you  that  the  members  of  

the  speci al  counsel  team  are  conducti ng  the  i nvesti gati on  based  

solely  on  the  facts  and  the  law  and  not  on  thei r  poli ti cal  

affi li ati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  I' ve  seen  no  i ndi cati on.  Agai n,  all  I  follow  

i t  through  i s  the  publi c medi a.  I' ve  seen  no  i ndi cati on  of  that  

i n  the  medi a.  And,  agai n,  I  also  know  the  person  who  leads  them  

and  the  ki nd  of  culture  he  creates,  and  i t' s  one  of  i ntegri ty.  

Mr.  Nadler.  Why  do  you  thi nk  the  Presi dent  publi cly  

attacks  Robert  Mueller  and  hi s  i nvesti gators  as  frequently  as  

he  does?  Is  i t  to  undermi ne  publi c confi dence  i n  thei r  fi ndi ngs  

or  some  other  reason?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know.  

Mr.  Nadler.  Do  you  agree  wi th  the  Presi dent' s  

characteri zati on  that  Robert  Mueller  i s  damagi ng  the  cri mi nal  

j usti ce  system?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  do  not.  

Mr.  Nadler.  How  would  you  characteri ze  the  speci al  counsel  

i nvesti gati on  and  i ts  i mportance,  not  only  to  our  nati onal  

securi ty,  but  as  a  means  of  restori ng  publi c confi dence  i n  our  

electi ons  and  law  enforcement  agenci es?  

Mr.  Comey.  Watchi ng  i t  from  the  outsi de,  my  j udgment  as  

an  experi enced  prosecutor  and  i nvesti gator  i s  i t' s  been  

conducted  wi th  extraordi nary  speed,  wi th  extraordi nary  

professi onali sm,  and  zero  di sclosure  outsi de  of  publi c court  
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fi li ngs.  It  represents  the  way  our  cri mi nal  j usti ce  system  i s  

supposed  to  work  i n  i nvesti gati ng,  and  I  beli eve  i t' s  i ncredi bly  

i mportant  to  the  rule  of  law  i n  thi s  country  that  the  work  be  

allowed  to  fi ni sh.  

Mr.  Nadler.  Now,  you  may  have  answered  thi s  already,  but  

one  speci fi c asserti on  i s  that  you  and  Speci al  Counsel  Mueller  

are,  quote,  "best  fri ends. "  

On  September  5th,  Presi dent  Trump  brought  up  Speci al  

Counsel  Mueller  i n  an  i ntervi ew  wi th  The  Dai ly  Caller  stati ng,  

quote:  And  he' s  Comey' s  best  fri end,  and  I  could  gi ve  you  a  

hundred  pi ctures  of  hi m  and  Comey  huggi ng  and  ki ssi ng  each  other.  

You  know  he' s  Comey' s  best  fri end,  close  quote.  

Are  you  best  fri ends  wi th  Robert  Mueller?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  am  not.  I  admi re  the  heck  out  of  the  man,  

but  I  don' t  know  hi s  phone  number,  I' ve  never  been  to  hi s  house,  

I  don' t  know  hi s  chi ldren' s  names.  I  thi nk  I  had  a  meal  once  

alone  wi th  hi m  i n  a  restaurant.  I  li ke  hi m.  I  am  not  a  -- I' m  

an  associ ate  of  hi s  who  admi res  him  greatly.  We' re  not  fri ends  

i n  any  soci al  sense.  

Mr.  Nadler.  Thank  you.  I wi ll  not  ask  whether  you' ve  ever  

hugged  and  ki ssed  hi m.  

Mr.  Comey.  A  reli ef  to  my  wi fe.  

Mr.  Nadler.  On  page  88  of  your  book,  A  Hi gher  Loyalty:  

Truth,  Li es  i n  Leadershi p,  you  recount  a  hospi tal  scene  duri ng  

the  Bush  admi ni strati on  wi th  then-FBI  Di rector  Robert  Mueller.  

Document  ID:  0.7.1278.5117-000034  



 

 

          


          


           


            


          

          


         

            


           


       


          


        


             


           


          


 

             


    

           

            


         


  

             


              


          


  

63  

In  the  fi rst  full  paragraph  you  wrote,  quote:  Mueller  and  

I  were  not  parti cularly  close  and  had  never  seen  each  other  

outsi de  of  work,  but  I  knew  Bob  understood  and  respected  our  legal  

posi ti on  and  cared  deeply  about  the  rule  of  law.  Hi s  whole  li fe  

was  about  doi ng  thi ngs  the  ri ght  way,  close  quote.  

How  do  you  know  Robert  Mueller  cares  deeply  about  the  rule  

of  law  and  doi ng  thi ngs  the  ri ght  way?  

Mr.  Comey.  Well,  from  watchi ng  hi m  work.  I  was  hi s  

supervi sor  when  I  was  deputy  attorney  general  and  he  was  the  FBI  

di rector.  But  most  i mportantly,  through  that  i nci dent,  

watchi ng  hi m  be  prepared  to  resi gn,  to  end  hi s  career,  because  

he  thought  the  Bush  admi ni strati on  was  doi ng  thi ngs  i nconsi stent  

wi th  the  law,  and  he  wasn' t  goi ng  to  be  any  part  of  i t,  wasn' t  

goi ng  to  have  i t.  And  that  strength  bolstered  me  duri ng  that  

di ffi cult  peri od  but  was  j ust  typi cal  of  the  way  he  approached  

thi ngs.  

Mr.  Nadler.  And  he  was  at  that  poi nt  part  of  the  Bush  

admi ni strati on.  Is  that  correct?  

Mr.  Comey.  Correct.  He  was  the  FBI  di rector.  

Mr.  Nadler.  And  how  confi dent  are  you  that  he  wi ll  do  

thi ngs  the  ri ght  way  wi th  respect  to  the  speci al  counsel  

i nvesti gati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  There  are  not  many  thi ngs  I  would  bet  my  li fe  

on.  I would  bet  my  li fe  that  Bob  Mueller  wi ll  do  thi ngs  the  ri ght  

way,  the  way  we  would  all  want,  whether  we' re  Republi cans  or  
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Democrats, the way Ameri cans should want. 

Mr. Nadler. And i s i t fai r to say that there are no facts 

that you know of to support the noti on that Speci al Counsel 

Mueller i s poli ti cally moti vated or bi ased? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t know of any. I' m smi li ng at thi s moment 

because I can' t i magi ne any, gi ven the nature of that person and 

hi s li fe. 

Mr. Nadler. And i t' s sti ll a curate that you' re not 

parti cularly close to Robert Mueller? 

Mr. Comey. It i s a curate. 

Mr. Nadler. On October 17th, the FBI responded to a 

Freedom of Informati on Act request for, quote, "photographs of 

former FBI Di rector James Comey and Robert Mueller huggi ng and 

ki ssi ng each other, " by sayi ng "no responsi ve records were 

located. " 

I assume you' re not aware of any such photographs? 

Mr. Comey. I' m not aware of any such photograph. I have 

never hugged or ki ssed the man. Agai n, I' m an admi rer but not 

that ki nd of admi rer. 

Mr. Nadler. The FBI and the Department of Justi ce have been 

more broadly a cused of conducti ng i nvesti gati ons dri ven by 

poli ti cal bi as i nstead of j ust by the facts and the rule of law. 

Duri ng your tenure at the FBI and the Department of Justi ce, 

were you aware of any FBI i nvesti gati on moti vated by poli ti cal 

bi as? 
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Mr.  Comey.  None.  Never.  

Mr.  Nadler.  Were  you  aware  of  any  Justi ce  Department  

i nvesti gati ons  that  were  moti vated  by  poli ti cal  bi as?  

Mr.  Comey.  Never.  None.  

Mr.  Nadler.  On  May  22nd,  Republi can  Members  of  Congress  

i ntroduced  House  Resoluti on  907  requesti ng  that  the  Attorney  

General  appoi nt  a  second  speci al  counsel  to  i nvesti gate  

mi sconduct  at  the  Department  of  Justi ce  and  the  FBI.  

That  resoluti on  alleged,  quote,  "Whereas,  there  i s  an  

urgent  need  for  the  appoi ntment  of  a  second  speci al  counsel  i n  

li ght  of  evi dence  that  rai ses  cri ti cal  concerns  about  deci si ons,  

acti vi ti es,  and  i nherent  bi as  di splayed  at  the  hi ghest  levels  

of  the  Department  of  Justi ce  and  the  Federal  Bureau  of  

Investi gati on  regardi ng  FISA  abuse,  how  and  why  the  Hi llary  

Cli nton  emai l  probe  ended,  and  how  and  why  the  Donald  

Trump-Russi a  probe  began, "  close  quote.  

Is  there  any  evi dence  of  i nherent  bi as  di splayed  at  the  

hi ghest  levels  of  the  DOJ  and  the  FBI  regardi ng  how  and  why  the  

Hi llary  Cli nton  emai l  probe  ended?  

Mr.  Comey.  Not  that  I' m  aware  of.  

Mr.  Nadler.  Are  you  aware  of  any  evi dence  of  i nherent  bi as  

di splayed  at  the  hi ghest  levels  of  the  DOJ  and  the  FBI  agai nst  

Donald  Trump  as  part  of  the  Trump-Russi a  i nvesti gati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  am  not.  

Mr.  Nadler.  Are  you  aware  of  any  acti ons  ever  taken  to  

Document  ID:  0.7.1278.5117-000034  



 

 

          


      

       

            


         


       

       

           


        


       


          


          


          

      

             


   

       

            


        


    

        


            


           


          


          


  

66  

damage  the  Trump  campai gn  at  the  hi ghest  levels  of  the  Department  

of  Justi ce  or  the  FBI?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  am  not.  

Mr.  Nadler.  Are  you  aware  of  any  acti ons  ever  taken  to  

personally  target  Donald  Trump  at  the  hi ghest  levels  of  the  

Department  of  Justi ce  or  the  FBI?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  am  not.  

Mr.  Nadler.  And  you  have  previ ously  noted,  I beli eve,  that  

i f  Agent  Strzok,  who  had  expressed  hi s  personal  poli ti cal  

opi ni ons  negati vely  about  then-candi date  Trump,  had  wanted  to  

mi suse  hi s  offi ce  to  damage  the  Trump  campai gn,  he  could  easi ly  

have  done  so  by  leaki ng  i nformati on  about  the  fact  that  there  

was  an  ongoi ng  i nvesti gati on.  Is  that  not  correct?  

Mr.  Comey.  Certai nly,  yes.  

Mr.  Nadler.  And  he  could  have  done  that,  but  he  di d  not  

do  that?  

Mr.  Comey.  He  di d  not.  

Mr.  Nadler.  That  would  be  evi dence  that  he  was  not  doi ng  

anythi ng  to  bri ng  hi s  poli ti cal  opi ni ons  i nto  maki ng  j udgments  

at  the  FBI?  

Mr.  Comey.  Certai nly  i nconsi stent  wi th  the  conspi racy  

theory  that  he  was  tryi ng  to  hurt  Donald  Trump.  If  you' re  goi ng  

to  have  a conspi racy theory,  you' ve  got  to  explai n  all  the  facts.  

And  i t' s  hard  to  reconci le  hi s  not  leaki ng  that  Trump  associ ates  

were  under  i nvesti gati on  and  hi s  drafti ng  of  a  letter  to  Congress  
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on  October  28th  that  Secretary  Cli nton  beli eved  hurt  her  chances  

of  bei ng  elected.  

Mr.  Nadler.  At  a campai gn  rally  i n  August,  Presi dent  Trump  

sai d,  quote,  "Our  Justi ce  Department  and  our  FBI  have  to  start  

doi ng  thei r  j obs  and  doi ng  i t  ri ght  and  doi ng  i t  now  because  

people  are  angry.  People  are  angry, "  close  quote.  

In  another  rally  i n  September,  the  Presi dent  sai d,  quote,  

"Look  what' s  bei ng  exposed  at  the  Department  of  Justi ce  and  the  

FBI.  You  have  some  real  bad  ones.  You  see  what' s  happeni ng  at  

the  FBI.  They' re  all  gone.  They' re  all  gone.  But  there' s  a  

li ngeri ng  stench  and  we' re  goi ng  to  get  ri d  of  that  too, "  close  

quote.  

Do  you  agree  wi th  the  Presi dent' s  characteri zati on  that  the  

Department  of  Justi ce  and  the  FBI  are  not  doi ng  thei r  j obs?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  do  not.  

Mr.  Nadler.  Do  you  beli eve  there  are  some  "real  bad  ones"  

at  the  FBI  or  DOJ?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  do  not.  

Mr.  Nadler.  Are  you  at  all  concerned  that  the  Presi dent  

of  the  Uni ted  States  i s  tryi ng  to  smear  and  undermi ne  the  

credi bi li ty  of  hi s  i nvesti gators  at  the  Justi ce  Department?  

Mr.  Comey.  Deeply  concerned.  I  thi nk  the  part  of  that  

that' s  ri ght  i s  that  people  are  angry.  Some  people  are  angry  

because  they' ve  been  li ed  to  for  so  long  about  the  nature  and  

quali ty  of  the  FBI  and  the  Department  of  Justi ce.  
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Mr.  Nadler.  I' m  sorry.  Li ed  to  --

Mr.  Comey.  Li ed  to  by  the  Presi dent  and  hi s  supporters  

about  the  nature  and  quali ty  of  the  Department  of  Justi ce  and  

the  FBI.  It' s  shortsi ghted,  and  anybody  who  knows  those  

organi zati ons,  knows  i t' s  not  true.  

Mr.  Nadler.  And  what  i mpli cati ons  mi ght  there  be  under  the  

Justi ce  Department  and  the  rule  of  law?  

Mr.  Comey.  Those  ki nd  of  li es  hurt  the  abi li ty  of  the  FBI  

to  be  beli eved  at  a  doorway  or  i n  a  courtroom.  That  makes  all  

of  us  less  safe.  These  are  honest  i nsti tuti ons  made  up  of  normal  

flawed  human  bei ngs,  but  people  commi tted  to  doi ng  thi ngs  the  

ri ght  way.  When  they' re  li ed  about  constantly,  i t  hurts  the  

fai th  and  confi dence  of  the  Ameri can  people  i n  them,  and  that  

i s  bad  for  all  of  us.  I  don' t  care  what  your  poli ti cal  stri pe  

i s.  

Mr.  Nadler.  And  how  does  that  i mpact  our  nati onal  

securi ty?  

Mr.  Comey.  Our  nati onal  securi ty  turns  upon  the  abi li ty  

of  an  FBI  agent  to  convi nce  the  gi rlfri end  of  a  j i hadi  that  we  

wi ll  protect  her  i f  she  cooperates  wi th  us.  If  we' re  seen  as  

a poli ti cal  group  of  one  ki nd  or  another,  an  untrustworthy  group,  

that  trust  i s  eroded  and  the  agent  loses  the  abi li ty  to  make  that  

case.  If  a j ury  doesn' t beli eve  an  FBI  agent  when  he  or  she  says,  

I  found  thi s  or  I  heard  thi s  i n  the  course  of  thi s  case,  we' re  

less  safe  because  the  case  can' t  be  made.  
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Mr.  Nadler.  Okay.  And  these  are  di rect  consequences  of  

statements  made,  such  as  I' ve  quoted,  by  the  Presi dent  and  by  

other  people  who  go  along  wi th  hi m?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  beli eve  they  are.  

Mr.  Nadler.  And  what  i mpact  do  you  beli eve  that  acti ons  

of  thi s  Congress'  resoluti ons,  such  as  H. R.  907  that  I  quoted  

a few  mi nutes  ago,  and  i nvesti gati ons,  frankly,  such as  thi s  one,  

have  on  the  abi li ty  of  the  Justi ce  Department  to  conduct  fai r  

and  thorough  i nvesti gati ons  and  prosecuti ons?  

Mr.  Comey.  To  the  extent  i t  echoes  the  li es  and  the  smears  

from  the  Presi dent,  i t  si mply  i ncreases  the  chances  that  the  

Department  of  Justi ce  and  the  FBI' s  credi bi li ty  wi ll  be  

undermi ned.  

I' m  a  bi g  fan  of  oversi ght  and  truth-seeki ng,  but  when  

people  veer  from  truth-seeki ng  i nto  tryi ng  to  fi nd  any  excuse  

to  bad-mouth  an  organi zati on  that' s  i nvesti gati ng  the  Presi dent,  

we' ve  lost  our  way.  

Mr.  Nadler.  Would  you  be  surpri sed  to  know  that  cri mi nal  

defendants  are  usi ng  attacks  si mi lar  to  those  levi ed  by  the  

Presi dent  and  Republi cans?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  

[Comey  Exhi bi t  No.  1  

Was  marked  for  i denti fi cati on. ]  

Mr.  Nadler.  And  I  want  to  i ntroduce  an  exhi bi t.  It' s  an  

arti cle  from  the  Huffi ngton  Post.  The  headli ne,  Trump' s  FBI  
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Attacks Are Helpi ng A cused Terrori sts Defend Themselves i n 

Court. 

Thi s arti cle detai ls the defense of three alleged domesti c  

terrori sts i n Kansas. They are anti -Musli m mi li ti a members 

a cused of planni ng to bomb an apartment complex wi th 

predomi nantly Somali i mmi grant resi dents. 

Defense counsel argued the men were targeted by, quote, "a 

bi ased FBI conspi red agai nst them i n the lead up to the 2016 

electi on due to thei r poli ti cal beli efs, " close quote. 

What i s your reacti on to that? 

Mr. Comey. Well, agai n, I don' t know the parti cular case, 

but taki ng the news arti cle at face value, i t' s an example of 

the ki nd of thi ng that I worry about. When corrosi ve attacks 

are di rected at our i nsti tuti ons of j usti ce, we wi ll all pay a 

pri ce for that. 

Mr. Nadler. And, therefore, you' d beli eve that the current 

poli ti cal rhetori c endorsed by the Presi dent and hi s alli es, such 

as I' ve quoted, i s potenti ally damagi ng to law enforcement' s 

abi li ty to keep Ameri cans safe? 

Mr. Comey. I do. I' m not agai nst cri ti ci zi ng law 

enforcement organi zati ons or law enforcement leaders. I' ve 

been cri ti ci zed, I thi nk, reasonably. But when you attack the 

fi ber of the i nsti tuti on and say i t' s corrupt and untrustworthy 

and ai mi ng at poli ti cal enemi es, you do lasti ng damage to an 

i nsti tuti on thi s country reli es upon, and everybody should 
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reali ze  that' s  a  mi stake.  

Mr.  Nadler.  Thank  you.  I  have  no  further  questi ons.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  Good  morni ng,  movi ng  i nto  good  afternoon.  

Thank  you  for  your  presence  here.  

I  want  to  put  on  the  record  that  Democrats  never  recei ved  

a  copy  of  the  agreement.  So  I  hope  that,  i n  short  order,  the  

maj ori ty  wi ll  provi de  us  wi th  the  agreement  regardi ng  the  

quashi ng  of  the  subpoena.  

Mr.  Kelley.  I  wi ll  be  more  than  happy  to,  and  i ts  merely  

an  emai l  correspondence.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  I  appreci ate  getti ng  somethi ng  i n  

wri ti ng.  Thank  you  so  very  much.  

Let  me  thank  you,  Mr.  Comey,  for  your  servi ce to  the  Nati on.  

I  share  your  vi ew  that  the  Ameri can  people  would  have  been  better  

served  i f  the  lame  duck  House  Republi can  maj ori ty  of  thi s  

commi ttee  had  scheduled  a  publi c heari ng  i nstead  of  a  pri vate  

i ntervi ew  behi nd  closed  doors  to  di scuss  matters  that  are  vi tal  

to  the  health  of  our  democracy.  

I  fully  expect  that  to  be  a  standard  practi ce  for  thi s  

commi ttee  i n  the  116th  Congress  under  a  new  Democrati c maj ori ty.  

So  I  have  several  questi ons,  whi ch  I' d  li ke  to  lay  the  predi cate  

for.  

Deali ng  wi th  the  FBI  i nvesti gati on  of  Secretary  Cli nton' s  

emai ls,  the  i nvesti gati on  was  an  outgrowth  of  the  House  
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Republi can  Benghazi  i nvesti gati on.  A  sad  i nvesti gati on,  whi ch  

we  now  know,  because  i t  was  confi rmed  by  House  Maj ori ty  Leader  

McCarthy  that  i t  was  for  one  purpose.  It  had  at  i ts  pri nci pal  

ai m  was  to  undermi ne  and  damage  the  publi c i mage  and  standi ng  

of  Secretary  Hi llary  Cli nton,  whom  House  Republi cans  feared  

would  be  the  2016  Democrati c Presi denti al  nomi nee.  

You' ll  recall  that  House  Republi cans  relentlessly  

questi oned,  second-guessed,  and  attacked  her  i ntegri ty  and  that  

of  career  FBI  agents  when  you  announced  at  your  famous  July  5th,  

2016,  press  conference  that  the  FBI  concluded  that  there  was  no  

evi dence  to  support  a  fi ndi ng  Secretary  Cli nton  had  vi olated  the  

law.  House  Republi cans  bi tterly  cri ti ci zed  you  and  questi oned  

the  i ntegri ty  and  legi ti macy  of  the  i nvesti gati on.  

For  your  part,  you  were  confi dent  enough  i n  the  

determi nati on  reached  by  the  FBI  that  you' ve  stated  under  oath  

the  case  i tself  was  not  a  cli ffhanger  and  that  no  reasonable  

prosecutor  would  ever  bri ng  such  a  case  on  these  facts.  House  

Republi cans  di sagreed  wi th  you  extensi vely.  They  wanted  you  to  

prosecute  Secretary  Cli nton  regardless  of  the  facts.  

And  from  July  2016  through  October  2016,  House  Republi cans  

engaged  i n  an  almost  dai ly  ri tual  of  holdi ng  heari ngs,  

desperately  tryi ng  to  tear  down  your  i nvesti gati on  and  your  

recommendati on.  They  di d  not  stop  attacki ng  you  unti l  

October  28th,  the  day  you  sent  your  letter  to  the  congressi onal  

leaders  announci ng  that,  i n  an  unrelated  i nvesti gati on,  the  FBI  
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had learned of the exi stence of emai ls that appeared to be 

perti nent to an i nvesti gati on of Secretary Cli nton' s emai l 

server. 

House Republi cans promptly leaked your update, a cordi ng 

to the medi a, characteri zi ng your acti on as a deci si on by the 

FBI to reopen i ts i nvesti gati on, even though the FBI had not at 

that ti me revi ewed any of the emai ls i n questi on and 

notwi thstandi ng the fact that you advi sed them the FBI was not 

then i n a posi ti on to assess whether or not thi s materi al may 

be si gni fi cant. 

For the next 8 days, a peri od i n whi ch mi lli ons of Ameri cans 

were casti ng thei r ballots duri ng early voti ng, the baseless 

clai ms of House Republi cans were repeated ad nauseam by them and 

candi date, Mr. Trump, domi nati ng medi a coverage i n the fi nal 

days, and di d not stop even after your announcement 2 days before 

the electi on on November 5th, 2016. That upon further revi ew, 

that the FBI had agai n found no basi s to beli eve that Secretary 

Cli nton had commi tted a cri me. 

Gi ven thi s chronology and the benefi t of hi ndsi ght, do you 

regret not followi ng the Justi ce Department' s poli cy and 

practi ce of refrai ni ng from taki ng i nvesti gatory or prosecutory 

acti ons that could affect the outcome of an electi on to be held 

wi thi n the ensui ng 60 days of an electi on? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t. I regret bei ng i nvolved at all, but 

even i n hi ndsi ght, I thi nk that that was the deci si on I had to 
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take.  And  I  don' t  want  to  qui bble,  but  there' s  no  poli cy  around  

taki ng  acti on  i n  a  runup  to  an  electi on,  but  there' s  a  really  

i mportant  norm  that  I  beli eve  i n.  If  you  can  avoi d  i t,  you  take  

no  acti on  i n  the  runup  to  an  electi on.  It  mi ght  have  an  i mpact  

on  the  electi on,  I  beli eve  i n  that,  even  today.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  Well,  I  can' t  put  words  i n  your  mouth,  

but  you  were,  i n  essence,  engaged  or  i nterferi ng  or  parti ci pati ng  

i n  an  electi on  of  the  known  and  documented  leaders  of  the  free  

world.  

I  would  consi der  the  electi ons  of  the  Presi dent  of  the  

Uni ted  States  i n  a  world  context  as  one  of  the  most  si gni fi cant  

electi ons  that  we  would  ever  have  i n  the  world.  

Agai n,  would  you  not  consi der  that  maybe  i n  that  context  

that  the  ti mi ng  was  very  di ffi cult?  

Mr.  Comey.  Oh,  excruci ati ng.  Causes  me  great  pai n  even  

to  si t  here  and  talk  about  i t  today,  but  the  two  alternati ves  

I saw,  I chose  the  least  bad.  I sti ll  thi nk  the  other  alternati ve  

was  worse.  And  as  between  bad  and  worse,  I  had  to  choose  bad.  

I  wi sh  we  weren' t  i nvolved,  but  gi ven  that  we  were  i nvolved,  we  

tri ed  to  make  the  ri ght  deci si on  for  the  ri ght  reasons.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  You  sent  a  letter  dated  October  28th,  

2016,  to  i ndi cate  that  there  was  a  reopeni ng  of  the  

i nvesti gati on.  I  count  the  numbers  of  addressees  as  16.  

Why  would  you  need  to  send  -- di d  you  send  thi s  classi fi ed?  

Di d  you  send  thi s  wi th  an  i ndi cati on  that  thi s  was  not  to  be  
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exposed  to  the  medi a?  Di d  you  make  the  poi nt  or  have  your  

li ai sons  make  the  poi nt  to  the  Members  of  Congress  that  thi s  

should  not  have  been  exposed?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  for  sure.  It  wasn' t  classi fi ed.  

It  was  a  pri vate  communi cati on  to  the  ei ght  chai rs  and  ranki ngs  

of  the  commi ttees  that  had  recei ved  i nformati on  from  the  FBI.  

And  the  Congressi onal  Affai rs  staff  of  the  FBI  thought  those  were  

the  people  i t  ought  to  go  to.  It  was  not,  as  you  sai d  earli er,  

we  di dn' t  release  anythi ng  to  the  publi c,  but  i t  wasn' t  

classi fi ed.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  But  I  thi nk  you  can  -- would  you  pretty  

well  agree  that  16  addressees  i s  almost  i nevi tably  goi ng  to  be  

released?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  Do  you  thi nk  that  the  FBI  could  have  been  

more  cauti ous,  whether  you  di d  government  affai rs,  8  days  out  

or  how  many  days  out  before  the  electi on?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know,  i s  the  honest  answer.  The  staff  

that  works  Congressi onal  Affai rs  thought  we  had  to  i nform  these  

ei ght  commi ttee  chai rs  and  ranki ngs.  And  so  I  thi nk  about  i t  

the  way  you  do,  that  rai sed  the  seri ous  prospect  i t  would  be  

released  to  the  publi c,  and  -- but  that  was  a  ri sk  we  thought  

we  had  to  run.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  Why  di d  not  Attorney  General  Lynch  or  

Deputy  Attorney  General  Yates  not  make  the  announcements  of  
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July  5th,  October  28th,  or  November  -- 2016?  

Were  they  consulted?  Di d  they  concur  i n  your  j udgment?  

Mr.  Comey.  Separate  i nci dents.  July  5th,  I  i nformed  them  

that  I  was  goi ng  to  make  an  announcement,  and  so  they  weren' t  

consulted  on  the  substance  of  the  announcement.  

The  October  28th  letter,  I i nformed  them  the  day  before  that  

I  thought  I  had  to  i nform  Congress  but  would  be  happy  to  di scuss  

i t  wi th  them.  And  they  sai d  they  di dn' t  wi sh  to  di scuss  i t  wi th  

me.  

And  so  i n  the  fi rst  i nstance,  I  don' t  thi nk  they  had  much  

opportuni ty  to  engage  wi th  me  on  i t  because  I  sai d  I  thi nk  I  need  

to  do  thi s  separately.  In  October,  they  di d  but  chose  not  to  

take  the  chance  -- take  the  opportuni ty.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  Why  wouldn' t you  yi eld  to  Deputy  Attorney  

General  Yates  to  make  that  announcement?  Is  that  not  the  normal  

protocol  i n  any  structured  law  enforcement  versus  prosecutor  

from  the  low  level  -- let  me  not  call  local  di stri ct  attorneys  

low  level  -- but  from  the  level  of  local  government  all  the  way  

up  to  the  Federal  Government,  that  the  di stri ct  attorney,  the  

prosecutor,  the  attorney  general,  the  attorney  general  of  the  

State  of  whatever,  makes  the  announcement  regardi ng  any  

prosecutori al  stance?  

Mr.  Comey.  Defi ni tely.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  And  then  why  was  that  not  done  here?  

Mr.  Comey.  Fi rst  of  all,  to  agree  wi th  the  fi rst  part  of  
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your questi on, yeah, the normal ci rcumstances, the Attorney 

General would make that announcement wi th the FBI di rector --

Ms. Jackson Lee. Absolutely. 

Mr. Comey. -- standi ng next to her. Absolutely. And so 

I had never even actually heard of a ci rcumstance where the FBI 

made an announcement separate from the -- wi thout coordi nati ng 

i t wi th the Attorney General. I thought we had to do that i f 

the Ameri can people are goi ng to have confi dence that the result 

was apoli ti cal. 

Now, i t would have been great i f Loretta Lynch had recused 

herself and made Sally Yates the acti ng attorney general. 

thi nk what I would have done i n that ci rcumstance i s hand i t to 

Sally, who di d not have the i ssues that Loretta had -- I li ke 

them both -- but di dn' t have the i ssues that Loretta had wi th 

potenti al appearance of bi as, but Loretta announced that she 

would not recuse herself. She would j ust a cept my 

recommendati on and that of the career prosecutors. 

And so I felt li ke I di dn' t have the opti on to hand i t to 

Sally because Loretta had stayed i n charge. That makes sense. 

And so I called each of them and sai d, I' m goi ng to make an 

announcement thi s morni ng. I' m not goi ng to coordi nate i t wi th 

you. I hope when you see i t, you' ll understand why. 

And the goal was to make sure the Ameri can people knew, thi s 

wasn' t the Obama admi ni strati on. Thi s wasn' t some poli ti cal 

fi x. There was no case there because apoli ti cal professi onals 
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thought  so.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  Let  me  move  on.  

It  i s  true,  i s  i t  not,  that  Secretary  Cli nton' s  campai gn  

was  not  the  subj ect  of  a  Federal  counteri ntelli gence  

i nvesti gati on  by  our  Nati on' s  law  enforcement?  

Mr.  Comey.  To  my  knowledge,  i t  was  not.  

You' re  sayi ng  the  Cli nton  campai gn?  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  Yes.  

Mr.  Comey.  To  my  knowledge,  i t  was  not.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  But  the  same  i s  not  true  wi th  respect  to  

the  Trump  campai gn,  whi ch  was  under  i nvesti gati on  for  colludi ng  

wi th  a  hosti le  forei gn  power  to  i nfluence  the  outcome  of  the  2016  

electi on?  

Mr.  Comey.  The  Trump  campai gn  was  not  under  

i nvesti gati on.  The  FBI,  i n  late  July,  opened  

counteri ntelli gence  i nvesti gati ons  of  four  Ameri cans  to  see  i f  

they  were  worki ng  i n  any  way  wi th  the  Russi ans  to  i nfluence  our  

electi ons.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  Those  i ndi vi duals  were  affi li ated  wi th  

the  campai gn?  I  beli eve  they  were  i n  some  form.  

Mr.  Comey.  At  least  some  of  them  were.  The  FBI  and  the  

Department  of  Justi ce have  not  confi rmed  the  names  of  those  folks  

publi cly,  whi ch  i s  why  I' m  not  goi ng  i nto  the  speci fi cs.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  However,  duri ng  the  di scovery  of  that  

i nvesti gati on,  whi ch  was  comparable  to  an  i nvesti gati on  of  
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another  candi date,  that  i nformati on  was  not  announced  or  

presented  to  the  Ameri can  people  or  asked  of  the  Attorney  General  

to  make  a  statement  based  upon  the  facts  that  the  FBI  had.  No  

announcement  was  made  about  that.  Is  that  correct?  

Mr.  Comey.  That' s correct.  And  i t  was  treated  the  way  the  

Cli nton  i nvesti gati on  had  been  treated.  We  sai d  nothi ng  duri ng  

the  begi nni ng  of  i t.  It  wasn' t  unti l  the  followi ng  spri ng  that  

we  confi rmed  to  Congress  that  there  even  was  an  i nvesti gati on  

of  any  sort  wi thout  nami ng  the  people.  So  the  rule  actually  was  

consi stently  appli ed.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  But  you  never  ever  came  to  the  Ameri can  

people  duri ng  the  electi on  to  i ndi cate  that  there  were  

i nvesti gati ons  of  pri nci pals  that  may  have  been  i nvolved  i n  the  

Trump  campai gn  on  any  matter?  

Mr.  Comey.  That' s  correct,  because  of  our  poli ci es  and  

approach  to  those  i nvesti gati ons,  all  i nvesti gati ons.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  Let  me  offer  to  say,  I  don' t  know  i f  the  

Ameri can  people  could  deci pher  between  the  di sti ncti on.  What  

i s  left  i n  the  mi nds  i s  you  announced  one,  you  di dn' t  announce  

the  other.  

Mr.  Comey.  Yeah,  I  agree  wi th  that  --

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  When  you  met  wi th  the  Presi dent  at  the  

Whi te  House  on  January  27th,  2017,  the  meeti ng  duri ng  whi ch  he  

asked  you  to  let  Flynn  go,  di d  the  Presi dent  know  at  the  ti me  

that  the  FBI  was  i nvesti gati ng  Russi a' s  i nterference  i n  the  2016  
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electi ons?  

Mr.  Comey.  The  meeti ng  you' re  referri ng  to  was  Valenti ne' s  

Day,  February  14th  of  2017,  not  the  27th.  And  I  don' t  know  --

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  I  stand  corrected.  Thank  you.  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  what  the  Presi dent  knew  at  that  

poi nt.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  What  di d  you  understand  the  Presi dent  to  

be  aski ng  for  when  he  requested  that  you  let  Flynn  go?  To  stop  

i nvesti gati ng  Mi chael  Flynn' s  conduct  or  stoppi ng  i nvesti gati ng  

Russi an  i nterference  of  the  2016  electi on?  

Mr.  Comey.  The  fi rst.  As  I' ve  testi fi ed,  I understood  hi m  

to  be  di recti ng  me  -- aski ng,  but  I  took  i t  as  a  di recti on  -- to  

drop  an  i nvesti gati on  of  Flynn' s  i nteracti on  wi th  the  FBI  over  

hi s  conversati ons  wi th  the  Russi ans  i n  the  transi ti on.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  What  was  your  i mpressi on  of  that  request?  

Mr.  Comey.  That  i t  was  i mproper  and  that  I  was  not  goi ng  

to  abi de  by  i t.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  Were  you  si lent  at  that  ti me  or  di d  you  

i ndi cate  that  to  the  Presi dent?  

Mr.  Comey.  My  recollecti on  i s  he  sai d  somethi ng  about  

Flynn  bei ng  a  good  guy  and  that  he  hoped  I  would  let  i t  go.  And  

I  answered,  "I  agree  he' s  a  good  guy, "  or  words  to  that  effect,  

but  I  di dn' t  agree  to  hi s  request.  I  actually  j ust  commented  

on  part  of  what  he  had  sai d.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  And  di d  you  pursue  respondi ng  back  to  hi m  
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or  was  there  si lence  after  that?  Meani ng,  di d  you  engage  

subsequent  to  that  of  hi s  poi nt?  Because,  obvi ously,  when  the  

Presi dent  of  the  Uni ted  States  speaks,  and  though  you' re  i n  an  

i ndependent  agency,  he  mi ght  beli eve  that  work  should  begi n  on  

respondi ng  to  hi s  request.  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  what  he  beli eved.  I  never  spoke  

to  hi m  about  i t  agai n.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  Di d  you  feel  a  certai n  pressure?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  felt  that  he  was  aski ng  me,  di recti ng  me  to  

drop  a  cri mi nal  i nvesti gati on,  whi ch  I  thought  was  i mproper,  so  

I  went  back,  wrote  a  memo  about  i t,  bri efed  the  leadershi p  of  

the  FBI  so  we  could  fi gure  out  what  to  do  about  i t.  

[Comey  Exhi bi t  No.  2  

Was  marked  for  i denti fi cati on. ]  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  Thi s  i s  my  last  questi on,  and  i t  requi res  

an  exhi bi t.  Pages  68,  69  of  the  transcri pt  from  former  FBI  

General  Counsel  James  Baker.  

The  questi on  was:  "You  had  sai d  that  the  Presi dent' s  

fi ri ng  of  Di rector  Comey,  you  consi dered  to  be  a  threat  to  

nati onal  securi ty.  And  my  questi on  was,  i n  what  way  was  i t  a  

threat  to  nati onal  securi ty?"  

The  answer  was:  "So  the  i nvesti gati on  at  a  hi gh  level  was  

about  Russi a,  peri od,  full  stop.  And  i t  was  tryi ng  to  assess,  

i n  thi s  parti cular  i nstance,  what  the  Russi ans  were  doi ng  or  had  

done  wi th  respect  to  the  2016  Presi denti al  electi on.  We  are  
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tryi ng  to  i nvesti gate  what  the  Russi ans  di d  and  what  any  -- and  

whether  there  were  any  Ameri cans  or  others  who  had  done  thi ngs  

i n  support  of  those  efforts,  ei ther  knowi ngly  or  unknowi ngly,  

so  that  we  could  understand  the  full  nature  and  scope  of  what  

the  Russi ans  had  attempted  to  do.  

And  so  to  the  extent  that  thi s  acti on  of  fi ri ng  Di rector  

Comey  may  have  been  caused  by  or  was  the  result  of  a  deci si on  

to  shut  down  that  i nvesti gati on,  whi ch I thought  was  a legi ti mate  

i nvesti gati on,  then  that  would  frustrate  our  abi li ty  to  some  

degree  to  ascertai n  what  the  Russi ans  as  well  as  any  other  

Ameri cans  or  others  had  done  i n  furtherance  of  the  obj ecti ves  

of  the  Russi an  Federati on.  

So  not  only  -- I  guess  the  poi nt  i s  not  only  would  i t  be  

an  i ssue  about  obstructi ng  the  i nvesti gati on,  but  the  

obstructi on  i tself  would  hurt  our  abi li ty  to  fi gure  out  what  the  

Russi ans  had  done  and  what  i s  and  what  would  be  the  threat  to  

the  nati onal  securi ty.  Our  i nabi li ty  or  our  -- the  i nabi li ty  

or  the  delays,  the  di ffi culti es  that  we  mi ght  have  wi th  respect  

to  tryi ng  to  fi gure  out  what  the  Russi ans  were  doi ng,  because  

our  mai n  obj ecti ve  was  to  thwart  them. "  

Di rector  Comey,  do  you  agree  wi th  Mr.  Baker' s  assessment  

that  Presi dent  Trump' s  fi ri ng  you  was  a  threat  to  nati onal  

securi ty?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  enough  to  say  to  the  -- i f  i t' s  

true  that  the  fi ri ng  was  desi gned  to  thwart  the  Russi an  
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i nvesti gati on,  then  I  would  agree,  understandi ng  of  what  Russi a  

was  doi ng.  But  I  don' t  know  enough  about  the  reasons  -- what  

the  real  reasons  were  for  the  fi ri ng  to  gi ve  you  a  defi ni ti ve  

answer.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  Well,  Mr.  Comey,  di dn' t  you  wri te  memos  

about  the  conversati on?  Wasn' t  i t  i mportant  enough  to  you  as  

a  law  enforcement  offi cer  who  deals  wi th  nati onal  securi ty  to  

soli di fy  or  to  cement  your  memory  i n  a  memo?  

Mr.  Comey.  Sure.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  So  wouldn' t that  lead  to  a conclusi on  that  

thi s  was  really  a  dangerous  posture  to  be  i n  and  i t  mi ght  

j eopardi ze  nati onal  securi ty?  

Mr.  Comey.  Sure,  i t  mi ght.  I  j ust  can' t  answer  the  

ulti mate  questi on  as  to  whether  i t  di d  because  I  don' t  know  for  

certai n  what  the  moti vati on  was  i n  fi ri ng  me.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  In  hi ndsi ght  as  well?  

Mr.  Comey.  Well,  I' ve  heard  Presi dent  Trump  say  on  

televi si on  that  he  fi red  me  because  of  the  Russi a  thi ng.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  So  wi th  that  i n  mi nd,  would  you  say  that  

was  a  threat  to  nati onal  securi ty?  

Mr.  Comey.  If  that  was  the  reason  for  the  fi ri ng.  But  I' ve  

also  heard  hi m  say  other  thi ngs  at  other  ti mes  that  that  wasn' t  

the  reason,  and  so  i t' s  really  not  -- I' m  not  able  to  answer  i t  

because  I  can' t  see  enough  of  the  facts.  I' m  sure  that' s  

somethi ng  the  speci al  counsel  i s  exami ni ng.  
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Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  Do  you  agree  that  your  fi ri ng  could  have  

threatened  the  abi li ty  of  the  FBI  to  learn  what  the  Russi ans  as  

well  as  any  other  Ameri cans  or  others  had  done  i n  the  furtherance  

of  the  obj ecti ves  of  the  Russi an  Federati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  Potenti ally.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  In  the  past  18  months  si nce  that  

testi mony,  do  you  feel  more  certai n  that  you  were  fi red  because  

of  the  Russi an  i nvesti gati on?  If  so,  why?  

Mr.  Comey.  I' m  sti ll  i n  the  same  place,  that  I' ve  heard  

the  Presi dent  say  that,  but  I' ve  also  heard  hi m  say  di fferent  

thi ngs.  So  I  can' t  answer  the  questi on.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  Is  there  any  need  to  further  i nvesti gate  

Hi llary  Cli nton' s  emai ls  based  upon  the  deci si on  that  you  made  

not  to  prosecute?  

Mr.  Comey.  Not  that  I  can  possi bly  see.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  You  consi der  thi s  case  closed?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes.  There' s  no  seri ous  person  who  thi nks  

there' s  a  prosecutable  case  there.  And  so,  not  that  can  I  see.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  I  yi eld.  Thank  you.  

Mr.  Cummi ngs.  Thank  you  very  much.  

Di rector  Comey,  Eli j ah  Cummi ngs,  the  ranki ng  member  of  the  

Oversi ght  Commi ttee.  

You' ve  already  testi fi ed  to  Congress  about  the  Russi a  

i nvesti gati on  a  number  of  ti mes.  The  last  ti me  was  June  2017  

duri ng  the  Senate  Intelli gence  Commi ttee  heari ng,  so  that  was  
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about  18  months  ago.  

Duri ng  your  June  2017  testi mony  before  the  Senate  

Intelli gence  Commi ttee,  you  stated,  and  I  quote,  "The  Russi a  

i nvesti gati on  i tself  i s  vi tal  because  of  the  threat,  and  I  know  

I  should  have  sai d  thi s  earli er,  but  i t' s obvi ous  i f  any  Ameri cans  

were  part  of  helpi ng  the  Russi ans  do  that  to  us,  that  i s  a  very  

bi g  deal, "  end  of  quote.  

Di rector  Comey,  can  you  elaborate  on  what,  quote,  "the  

threat, "  unquote,  i s  that  makes  the  Russi a  i nvesti gati on  so  

vi tal?  

Mr.  Comey.  The  ai m  of  the  Russi an  effort  i n  2016  was  to  

destabi li ze,  undermi ne,  damage  our  democracy.  That  was  thei r  

overwhelmi ng  goal.  And  so  you  have  a  forei gn  nati on  that  i s  

attacki ng  the  Uni ted  States  of  Ameri ca  i n  an  effort  to  undermi ne  

that  whi ch i s  essenti ally  us,  our  democrati c process.  So  that' s  

a  very  seri ous  threat.  And  understandi ng  whether  any  Ameri cans  

were  part  of  that  effort  i s  i ncredi bly  i mportant  because  the  

threat  of  those  Ameri cans  by  vi rtue  of  thei r  alli ance  wi th  the  

Russi ans  would  pose  to  our  country.  

Mr.  Cummi ngs.  Can  you  descri be  for  us  the  magni tude  of  the  

nati onal  securi ty  threat  the  FBI  was  i nvesti gati ng?  

Mr.  Comey.  Well,  I don' t know  that  I can  say  i t  better  than  

I  j ust  sai d  i t.  We  saw,  as  di d  the  rest  of  the  i ntelli gence  

communi ty,  i n  2016,  the  Russi ans  engaged  i n  a  wi despread,  

sophi sti cated  effort  to  undermi ne  thi s  democracy,  to  hurt  one  
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of the candi dates, Secretary Cli nton, and to help the other 

candi date, Donald Trump. Gi ven the stakes of the electi on and 

the nature that we are a democracy, i t i s hard to i magi ne anythi ng 

more i mportant than understandi ng and thwarti ng that threat. 

Mr. Cummi ngs. If someone were to i mpede or prematurely 

halt the speci al counsel' s Russi a i nvesti gati on, how severe 

would the i mpli cati ons be to our nati onal securi ty, i n your 

opi ni on? 

Mr. Comey. Well, i n my opi ni on, i t would undermi ne our 

nati onal securi ty by not holdi ng a countable people who mi ght 

have been i nvolved i n ei ther the Russi ans or people who worked 

wi th them, fi rst. And second, i t would send an absolutely 

appalli ng message about the rule of law i n thi s country of ours. 

Mr. Cummi ngs. And would there also be severe i mpli cati ons 

for our democracy and the rule of law? 

Mr. Comey. Yes. The Russi ans' goal was for everyone i n 

the world to have doubt about the nature and credi bi li ty of the 

Ameri can democracy, to di rty i t up so i t' s not a shi ni ng ci ty 

on the hi ll. So thei r attack had i mpli cati ons for that, the role 

of the Ameri can democrati c experi ment. And i f someone were to 

order i t stopped, the i nvesti gati on i nto that, i t would have a 

si mi lar effect. 

Mr. Cummi ngs. You stated i t was, quote, "obvi ous, " end 

quote, that any Ameri cans helpi ng the Russi ans i nterfere wi th 

our electi on i s a bi g deal. And I agree. 
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Can  I  ask  you  to  spell  out  i n  as  basi c terms  as  possi ble  

why  that  would  be  a  very  bi g  deal?  I  also  thi nk  i t  i s  a  bi g  deal  

that  the  Presi dent' s  campai gn  chai rman  and  hi s  nati onal  securi ty  

advi sor  both  pleaded  gui lty  to  commi tti ng  cri mes.  Mi chael  Flynn  

and  the  Presi dent' s  nati onal  securi ty  advi sor  pleaded  gui lty  to  

havi ng  li ed  to  the  FBI  about  hi s  contacts  wi th  the  Russi an  

Government,  about  sancti ons.  So  the  nati onal  securi ty  advi sory  

li ed  about  hi s  contacts  wi th  the  forei gn  government  over  a  

nati onal  securi ty  i ssue.  

How  seri ous  of  a  nati onal  securi ty  ri sk  i s  i t  to  have  the  

nati onal  securi ty  advi sor  lyi ng  about  hi s  contacts  wi th  a forei gn  

government  adversary  to  the  FBI  and  the  Ameri can  people?  

Mr.  Comey.  Mr.  Cummi ngs,  I  don' t  thi nk  I  can  answer  the  

last  part  of  that  questi on  because  i t  touches  on  the  work  of  the  

speci al  counsel.  

I  can  answer  the  fi rst  part,  whi ch  i s,  the  reason  i t' s  a  

bi g  deal  i s  you  have  an  adversary  nati on  attacki ng  Ameri ca.  If  

Ameri cans  i n  our  country  are  assi sti ng  them,  i t' s  ai di ng  and  

abetti ng  the  enemy  i n  attacki ng  our  country.  

We  take  i t  seri ously  when  people  were  helpi ng  German  

saboteurs  i nfi ltrate  Long  Island  duri ng  World  War  II.  We  take  

i t  seri ously  when  sci enti sts  are  selli ng  secrets  to  the  Sovi ets  

about  our  nuclear  capabi li ti es.  I  take  i t  j ust  as  seri ously  i f  

there  are  Ameri cans  who  were  -- and  I' m  not  sayi ng  that  there  

were  -- but  i f  there  were  Ameri cans  who  were  assi sti ng  thi s  
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attack on our democracy, i t' s of the same type, whi ch i s why I 

sai d i t' s so obvi ous. 

Mr. Cummi ngs. The Presi dent' s nati onal securi ty advi sor 

has a cess to our country' s most closely held secrets. The 

Russi ans knew that, and they had talked to Flynn and what he 

talked about, and they knew that Flynn and others i n the Whi te 

House were lyi ng about those communi cati ons. 

Does that create the concern that the nati onal securi ty 

advi sor had been compromi sed by a forei gn adversary? 

Mr. Comey. I thi nk I have to gi ve you the same answer about 

the parti cular, that even though the man has pled gui lty, i t' s 

sti ll somethi ng I thi nk i s wi thi n the purvi ew of the speci al 

counsel, so I ought not to be opi ni ng on i t. 

Mr. Cummi ngs. All ri ght. What i s the ri sk to our country 

of havi ng the person wi th a cess to our most closely held secrets 

be compromi sed or potenti ally compromi sed by a forei gn 

adversary? And I' m not sayi ng that you' re concludi ng that i t 

happened. I am j ust aski ng, what' s the ri sk, i f that were the 

case? 

Mr. Comey. Thank you for that. 

Mr. Cummi ngs. You follow me? 

Mr. Comey. Yeah, I follow you, and I' d li ke to take i t to 

one more level of abstracti on. 

Mr. Cummi ngs. Sure. 

Mr. Comey. Not talk about any parti cular person. 
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A bi g part of the FBI' s counteri ntelli gence work i n the 

Uni ted States i s tryi ng to understand whether forei gn 

adversari es have gai ned any leverage over anyone i n a posi ti on 

to i nfluence a poli cy of the Uni ted States Government or to reveal 

i ts secrets. And so i t' s at the heart of our counteri ntelli gence 

work, because that' s how the bad guys overseas hurt us. One of 

the ways i s they co-opt people, recrui t them, or coerce them i nto 

gi vi ng up i nformati on that' s i nconsi stent wi th Ameri can 

i nterest. And so i t' s a cri ti cal i ssue wi thout regard to the 

person. 

Mr. Cummi ngs. Okay. When Deputy Attorney General Sally 

Yates learned of the si gni fi cant nati onal securi ty ri sk, she went 

over and warned the Whi te House counsel, who was Don McGahn. 

Proper protocol when the Whi te House learned about that 

potenti al nati onal securi ty ri sk would have been for the Whi te 

House to suspend General Flynn' s a cess to classi fi ed 

i nformati on whi le they looked i nto the matter, but they di dn' t 

do that. So we' ve been told that General Flynn held hi s acti ve 

clearance unti l he was fi red by the Whi te House about 18 days 

later. 

In your experi ence at the FBI, when the FBI learned that 

an i ndi vi dual who had an acti ve securi ty clearance mi ght be a 

ri sk to our nati onal securi ty, di d the FBI follow the standard 

procedure I descri bed and suspend that i ndi vi dual' s securi ty 

clearance pendi ng an i nvesti gati on? 
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Mr. Comey. Well, obvi ously I can' t comment on the 

parti culars of the Flynn case. 

Mr. Cummi ngs. Ri ght. 

Mr. Comey. But i n general --

Mr. Cummi ngs. Would that be -- no, you go ahead. 

Mr. Comey. A normal response would be to suspend thei r 

clearance, but there may be operati onal reasons why you wouldn' t 

do that. Say you have somebody i nsi de the FBI you thi nk mi ght 

be a spy. You don' t want to alert them to the fact that you' re 

on to them. Suspendi ng thei r clearance mi ght alert them that 

you' re on to them. So you mi ght i nstead j ust try to put them 

i n a bi t of a box and restri ct the i nformati on there wi thout them 

knowi ng. 

Mr. Cummi ngs. Assumi ng -- so the questi on then becomes, 

i n your opi ni on, why would a suspensi on of a clearance be 

si gni fi cant there, assumi ng you don' t have that hi story that you 

j ust stated? 

Mr. Comey. Well, i f we had someone i n the FBI that we 

thought mi ght be worki ng for a forei gn power, you want to stop 

the damage. And so that' s why the normal practi ce, absent 

operati onal concerns, would be to stop the damage by cutti ng off 

thei r a cess to i nformati on that they mi ght gi ve to the 

adversary. 

Mr. Cummi ngs. Just a few more questi ons. 

You have decades of dedi cated servi ce to our country and 
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have  served  i n  seni or  roles  at  the  Department  of  Justi ce  and  as  

the  head  of  the  FBI,  and  so  I  want  to  get  your  vi ews  about  nati onal  

securi ty.  

Do  you  thi nk  that  Presi dent  Trump' s  acti ons  pose  a  treat  

to  our  nati onal  securi ty?  Can  you  explai n?  

Mr.  Comey.  Well,  I  thi nk  -- maybe  the  best  answer  I  can  

gi ve  i s,  I  thi nk  the  relentless  attacks  on  the  i nsti tuti ons  of  

j usti ce  are  somethi ng  we  wi ll  all  be  sorry  we  stood  si lent,  i f  

we  stood  si lent  and  watched  that  happened.  Because  those  

i nsti tuti ons,  the  Justi ce  Department  and  the  FBI,  and  the  rest  

of  the  i ntelli gence  communi ty,  are  essenti al  to  our  nati onal  

securi ty,  that  they  are  credi ted  and  beli eved,  whi ch  they  should  

be.  And  when  you  run  them  down  for  poli ti cal  reasons,  you  may  

see  a  short-term  gai n;  you  see  a  long-term  damage  to  our  country  

and  i ts  securi ty.  

Mr.  Cummi ngs.  Where  do  we  go  from  here,  Mr.  Comey,  and  how  

do  we  rebui ld  after  the  attacks  on  our  democrati c i nsti tuti ons  

and  the  constant  breachi ng  of  our  ethi cal  norms?  

Mr.  Comey.  Well,  our  consolati on  should  be  the  depth  and  

strength  of  Ameri ca' s  values.  The  FBI  wi ll  be  fi ne.  It  wi ll  

snap  back,  as  wi ll  the  rest  of  our  i nsti tuti ons.  There  wi ll  be  

short-term  damage,  whi ch  worri es  me  a  great  deal,  but  i n  the  long  

run,  no  poli ti ci an,  no  presi dent  can,  i n  a  lasti ng  way,  damage  

those  i nsti tuti ons,  because  thei r  values  are  too  strong.  The  

Ameri can  mi li tary,  the  i ntelli gence  communi ty,  the  law  

Document  ID:  0.7.1278.5117-000034  



 

 

        


             

             


           


             


            


   

            

       

         

           


            


          

          


       


        


             


        

             


            


            


             


          


            


              


  

92  

enforcement  communi ty,  i t  would  take  generati ons  to  screw  them  

up  i n  a  permanent  way.  So  we' re  goi ng  to  be  okay.  

What  falls  to  all  of  us  i s  to  speak  up  so  that  we  reduce  

the  damage  i n  the  short  run  and  don' t  become  numb  to  somethi ng  

that,  frankly,  we  should  all  be  ashamed  of.  And  I  thi nk  a  whole  

lot  of  people  wi ll  be  ashamed  of  some  day  that  they  stood  si lent  

whi le  thi s  happened.  

Mr.  Cummi ngs.  Well,  thank  you  for  your  servi ce,  si r.  

Mr.  Gomez.  Thank  you.  

Mr.  Comey,  Congressman  Ji mmy  Gomez  from  Cali forni a.  

A few  questi ons.  There  have  been  a lot  of  di scussi on  about  

bi as  here.  I  wanted  to  bri ng  up  the  potenti al  nomi nee  for  the  

next  Attorney  General  of  the  Uni ted  States,  Bi ll  Barr.  

Bi ll  Barr  has  stated  that  he  sees  more  reason  for  the  

Department  of  Justi ce  to  i nvesti gate  Hi llary  Cli nton' s  tenure  

as  Secretary  of  State  than  i nvesti gate  conspi racy  between  the  

Trump  campai gn  and  Russi a.  Do  you  thi nk  thi s  i s  a  useful  and  

reasonable  allocati on  of  DOJ  or  FBI  resources?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t.  So  i t' s  hard  for  me  to  react,  

Congressman,  to  a  statement.  I  don' t  know  what  he  meant  by  that  

or  what  the  full  context  was.  Unless  there  are  facts  that  I  

di dn' t  see  when  I  was  Di rector  of  the  FBI,  I  don' t  see  a  basi s  

for  conti nued  i nvesti gati on  on  the  emai l  front.  I  don' t  know  

what  he  -- I  can' t  i magi ne  he  saw  somethi ng  as  a  pri vate  ci ti zen,  

so  I  don' t  know  what  to  thi nk  of  that.  And  I  thi nk  very  hi ghly  
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of  hi m.  I  mean,  I  used  to  work  for  hi m.  I  probably  know  hi m  

better  than  I  know  Bob  Mueller.  I  probably  j ust  damned  hi m  by  

sayi ng  he' s  a  fri end  of  mi ne,  but  I  respect  hi m.  I  j ust  don' t  

know  what  he  meant  by  that.  

Mr.  Gomez.  Do  you  thi nk  Bi ll  Barr  may  be  acti ng  out  of  

poli ti cal  moti vati on  when  suggesti ng  a  new  Cli nton  probe?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know.  

Mr.  Gomez.  Bi ll  Barr  supported  Trump  duri ng  the  campai gn.  

And  then  duri ng  the  campai gn,  he  also  publi cly  supported  your  

deci si on  to  di sclose  the  Cli nton  i nvesti gati on  had  been  

reopened.  Later,  however,  he  supported  Presi dent  Trump' s  

deci si on  to  fi re  you  on  the  basi s  that  you,  quote/unquote,  

sandbagged  the  Department  of  Justi ce  wi th  your  uni lateral  acti on  

on  the  Cli nton  probe.  

Do  you  thi nk  that  Bi ll  Barr  i s  fi t  to  oversee  the  FBI  and  

the  speci al  counsel  i nvesti gati on  i n  a  nonparti san  manner  i f  he  

were  to  return  to  serve  as  Attorney  General?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  thi nk  he' s  certai nly  fi t  to  be  Attorney  

General.  As  I  sai d,  I  thi nk  very  hi ghly  of  hi m.  Whether  he  

should  be  i nvolved  i n  those  parti cular  cases  or  not  i s  a  questi on  

I  can' t  answer.  I' m  sure  he' ll  reflect  on  i t  carefully,  he' s  

a  very  smart  guy,  and  get  expert  advi ce  on  i t.  I  j ust  can' t  

answer  i t  wi thout  knowi ng  more.  

Mr.  Gomez.  What  factors  would  he  take  i nto  consi derati on  

i f  he  were  to  be  i nvolved  i n  overseei ng  the  speci al  counsel  
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i nvesti gati on? 

Mr. Comey. Well, most i mportantly you want to consi der, 

any ti me you are a leader of an i nsti tuti on of j usti ce, whether 

there' s a reasonable appearance that you lack the i mparti ali ty 

necessary to be i nvolved i n a parti cular case. And so you' d want 

to look at pri or statements, pri or engagement i n li ti gati on, 

those ki nds of thi ngs to see whether reasonable folks could have 

a doubt about whether you are calli ng i t as you see i t or on one 

team or the other. And gi ven the thi ngs you j ust lai d out, i t 

rai ses a questi on wi th respect to hi m, so I' m sure he' s goi ng 

to want to look at i t, as wi ll the Senate, very closely. 

Mr. Gomez. What do you thi nk may be the factors that led 

Presi dent Trump to nomi nate or wi ll nomi nate Bi ll Barr as 

Attorney General? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t know. I know Bi ll for years and hi s 

record as a lawyer and as the Attorney General, and I thi nk 

they' re i mpressi ve. But I don' t know what the Presi dent was 

thi nki ng. 

Mr. Gomez. I do beli eve that Congress has a role i n the 

oversi ght of the executi ve branch. My concern i s what are the 

li nes of that oversi ght. What factors could you take i nto 

a count that oversi ght leads to i nterference wi th an ongoi ng 

i nvesti gati on? Or i s there anythi ng i n your mi nd that would be 

off li mi ts? 

Mr. Comey. Well, hard to answer i n the abstract. I mean, 
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I  can  say  thi s:  I' m  a  bi g  fan  of  oversi ght.  My  staff  used  to  

thi nk  I  was  ki ddi ng  when  I  sai d  I  want  to  come  here  and  answer  

every  questi on  when  I  was  Di rector  of  the  FBI.  

I  thi nk  i t' s  i mportant  that  thi s  branch  of  government  

exerci se  i ts  power.  I  thi nk  one  of  the  really  bad  thi ngs  about  

the  dri ft  of  Ameri can  hi story,  i n  my  li feti me,  i s  thi s  

organi zati on,  thi s  i nsti tuti on  has  gi ven  up  a  lot  of  i ts  power.  

And  so  I  li ke  the  i dea  of  oversi ght.  

That  sai d,  i nvesti gati ons  have  to  be  done  wi th  a  Lady  

Justi ce  wi th  a  bli ndfold  on,  and  so  you  really  can' t  have  

oversi ght  by  a  poli ti cal  branch  of  ongoi ng  i nvesti gati ons  and  

sti ll  credi bly  clai m  that  the  Lady  Justi ce  i s  weari ng  the  

bli ndfold.  So  what  I  would  suggest  i s  you  do  oversi ght  after  

i nvesti gati ons  are  completed  to  see  i f  the  i nsti tuti on  was  acti ng  

i n  an  appropri ate  way.  

As  I  sai d,  when  I  moved  to  quash  the  subpoena,  I  support  

oversi ght  of  the  executi ve  branch.  I  j ust  have  concerns  about  

i nterference  wi th  ongoi ng  i nvesti gati ons,  and  when  oversi ght  

moves  from  seeki ng  truth  to  seeki ng  somethi ng  else,  i t  concerns  

me.  

Mr.  Gomez.  Some  of  the  questi ons  that  have  been  brought  

up  to  me  from  my  consti tuents  relate  to  the  deci si on  to  reveal  

the  Hi llary  Cli nton  i nvesti gati on  11  days  before  an  electi on  but  

not  regardi ng  the  i ndi vi duals  that  were  bei ng  i nvesti gated  i n  

regards  to  any  potenti al  conspi racy  wi th  the  Trump  
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admi ni strati on  or  the  Russi an  Government.  

Can  you  get  i nto  that  a li ttle  bi t?  I know  you  di d  earli er,  

but  there  i s  sti ll  -- you' re  getti ng  shots  from  both  si des  of  

the  ai sle  and  on  some  of  the  deci si onmaki ng.  And  my  consti tuents  

are  really  i nterested  i n  that  response.  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes.  It' s  a  reasonable  questi on,  yes.  

Everybody  seems  to  thi nk  I' m  on  somebody  else' s  si de,  but  the  

treatment  of  the  two  cases  i llustrates  the  rule.  

In  the  Cli nton  i nvesti gati on,  we  di dn' t  say  anythi ng  about  

that  i nvesti gati on  for  a  year,  except  si mply  3  months  i n  to  

confi rm  that  we  had  an  i nvesti gati on.  And  that  was  an  

i nvesti gati on  that  began  publi cly,  wi th  a  publi c referral.  So  

the  whole  world  knew  we  had  i t.  We  formally  confi rmed  i t  after  

i nvesti gati ng  for  3  months,  then  we  sai d  nothi ng  unti l  i t  was  

done.  

That' s  the  way  we  treated  the  Russi an  counteri ntelli gence  

i nvesti gati ons.  We  opened  them  i n  late  July,  di dn' t  know  

whether  we  had  anythi ng.  In  fact,  when  I  was  fi red  as  di rector,  

I  sti ll  di dn' t  know  whether  there  was  anythi ng  to  i t.  And  so  

we  would  never  consi der  maki ng  a  statement  about  classi fi ed  

i nvesti gati ons  that  were  j ust  begi nni ng.  

The  problem  i n  late  October  was  we  -- me  and  Loretta  

Lynch  -- had  told  the  world,  "We' re  done  wi th  the  Cli nton  emai l  

i nvesti gati on.  Move  on. "  And  I  got  hammered  i n  thi s  room  by  

Republi cans,  and  i n  many  other  rooms.  And  I  stood  my  ground  and  
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sai d,  "No,  there' s  no  there,  there.  Move  on. "  

On  October  27th,  I  learned  that  that  was  no  longer  true.  

And  I  had  my  team  telli ng  me,  not  only  i s  i t  no  longer  true,  but  

the  result  may  change  from  our  revi ew  of  these  hundreds  of  

thousands  of  emai ls,  and  we  can' t  fi ni sh  i t  before  the  electi on.  

And  so  what  do  I do?  Do  I stay  si lent  and  leave  the  Congress  

and  the  Ameri can  people  relyi ng  on  somethi ng  I  now  know  i s  a  li e  

or  do  I  speak?  And  those  are  two  really  bad  opti ons.  And  my  

choi ce  was  to  take  the  least  bad.  Tell  Congress  what  I  told  you  

repeatedly  i s  no  longer  true  and  try  to  make  sure  i t' s,  "we  don' t  

know, "  "we' re  not  sure, "  but  to  speak.  Because  to  conceal  would  

be  to  destroy  the  FBI  and  the  Department  of  Justi ce.  

Forget  Hi llary  Cli nton' s  Presi dency,  although  that  would  

be  severely  damaged  i f  she  became  Presi dent  on  that  basi s.  

made  the  j udgement  that  the  Department  of  Justi ce  and  the  FBI  

wi ll  be  rui ned  i f  I  concealed  a  li e  from  thi s  Congress.  

Reasonable  people  can  di sagree  about  that,  but  i t  i llustrates  

that  we  treated  the  two  consi stently.  And  what  trapped  us  i n  

October  was  we  had  told  everybody  i t  was  over  i n  the  summerti me.  

Mr.  Gomez.  Thank  you.  

Ms.  Sachsman  Grooms.  We' re  out  of  ti me.  

We' ll  go  off  the  record.  
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[1: 00  p. m. ]  

Mr.  Gowdy.  We' ll  go  back  on  the  record.  

Di rector  Comey,  I' m  goi ng  to  summari ze  from  a  porti on  of  

what  we  refer  to  as  the  Comey  memos.  Thi s  one  i s  from  February  

of  2017.  I  don' t  know  whether  or  not  you  have  a  copy  of  your  

memos  or  whether  or  not  you  have  recollecti on  of  what' s  i n  them.  

Mr.  Kelley.  We  don' t  have  copi es  wi th  us.  If  you  want  to  

gi ve  them  to  us,  i t  mi ght  expedi te  thi ngs.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  And,  agai n,  thi s  i s  one  from  February  of  2017.  

Mr.  Comey.  Whi ch  date  i n  February?  

Mr.  Gowdy.  I  want  to  say  i t' s  the  14th,  but  I  could  be  

wrong  -- 14th.  

Mr.  Comey.  Okay.  Got  i t.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  And  at  the  top,  i t  says,  "I  attended  an  Oval  

Offi ce"  -- you  got  that  one?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  got  i t.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Fourth  paragraph,  and  j ust  tell  me  whether  or  

not  I' m  fai rly  summari zi ng  thi s.  I' m  not  goi ng  to  read  i t  all,  

but:  He  -- and  I  assume  "he"  i s  the  Presi dent,  Presi dent  

Trump  -- began  by  sayi ng  he  wanted  want  to  talk  about  Mi ke  Flynn.  

That' s  i n  quotes.  He  sai d  that,  although  Flynn  hadn' t  done  

anythi ng  wrong  i n  hi s  call  wi th  the  Russi ans,  he  had  to  let  hi m  

go  because  he  mi sled  the  Vi ce  Presi dent,  whom  he  descri bed  as  

a  good  guy.  Now,  was  the  "he"  -- i s  the  "he"  modi fyi ng  Vi ce  

Presi dent  Pence  or  Mi ke  Flynn,  when  you  say  whom  he  descri bed  
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as  a,  quote,  good  guy?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  took  hi m  to  be  meani ng  Mr.  Flynn  i s  a  good  

guy.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Okay.  He  explai ned  that  he  j ust  couldn' t  have  

Flynn  mi sleadi ng  the  Vi ce  Presi dent.  In  any  event,  he  had  other  

concerns  about  Flynn;  he  had  a  great  guy  comi ng  i n,  so  he  had  

to  let  Flynn  go.  Have  I  fai rly  summari zed  that  paragraph?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  All  ri ght.  Next  page,  second  full  paragraph,  

I  thi nk.  Yeah,  second  full  paragraph,  i t  begi ns:  He  then.  

You  got  i t?  

Mr.  Comey.  Got  i t.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  He  then  returned  to  the  topi c of  Mi ke  Flynn,  

sayi ng:  Flynn' s  a  good  guy  and  has  been  through  a  lot.  He  

mi sled  the  Vi ce  Presi dent,  but  he  di dn' t  do  anythi ng  wrong  i n  

the  call.  Sai d:  I  hope  you  can  see  your  way  clear  of  letti ng  

thi s  go,  to  letti ng  Flynn  go.  He  i s  a  good  guy.  I  hope  you  can  

let  thi s  go.  I  repli ed  by  sayi ng  I  agree  he  i s  a  good  guy,  but  

sai d  no  more.  

Have  I  fai rly  descri bed  that  paragraph?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes.  In  fact,  I  thi nk  you  read  i t.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Do  the  contents  of  that  paragraph,  are  they  

suffi ci ent  to  launch  an  obstructi on  of  j usti ce  i nvesti gati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  Potenti ally.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  What  part  of  i t  potenti ally  could  lead  to  the  
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i ni ti ati on  of  an  obstructi on  of  j usti ce  i nvesti gati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  The  Presi dent  aski ng  -- one  i nterpretati on  of  

i t  i s  the  Presi dent  aski ng  the  FBI  to  drop  a  cri mi nal  

i nvesti gati on.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Di d  you  act  or  fai l  to  act  i n  any  way  i n  the  

Flynn  matter  because  of  what  the  Presi dent  sai d  to  you?  

Mr.  Comey.  Act  or  fai l  to  act?  I  di dn' t  abi de  thi s  

di recti on.  In  fact,  kept  i t  to  a  fai rly  small  group  i n  FBI  

headquarters  so  i t  would  not  have  any  i mpact  on  the  

i nvesti gati on.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  But  I' m  aski ng  you  speci fi cally  --

Mr.  Comey.  I  took  acts  -- the  reason  I' m  hesi tati ng  i s  I  

took  acts  to  make  sure  i t  had  no  i mpact  on  the  i nvesti gati on.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  I' m wi th  you,  but  i t  di d  not  -- di d  hi s  comments  

prevent  you  from  followi ng  the  leads  that  you  thought  should  have  

been  followed?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Di d  hi s  comments  prevent  you  from  taki ng  any  

act  as  the  Di rector  of  the  FBI  that  you  thought  were  warranted  

by  the  other  fact  pattern?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  Thi s  had  -- I  di d  not  abi de  thi s.  And  i t  

di d  not  affect  the  i nvesti gati on,  so  far  as  I' m  aware,  i n  any  

way.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Di d  you  i ni ti ate  an  obstructi on  of  j usti ce  

i nvesti gati on  based  on  what  the  Presi dent  sai d?  
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Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  thi nk  so.  I  don' t  recall  doi ng  that,  

so  I  don' t  thi nk  so.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Would  you  recall  i ni ti ati ng  a  cri mi nal  

i nvesti gati on  i nto  the  Presi dent  of  the  Uni ted  States?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes,  I' m  sorry.  I  di dn' t  personally,  but  I  

took  i t  also  to  mean,  di d  anyone  else  i n  the  FBI  open  a  fi le  wi th  

an  obstructi on  headi ng  or  somethi ng?  Not  to  my  knowledge  i s  the  

answer.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Di d  you  talk  to  Andy  McCabe  the  day  you  were  

fi red?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  thi nk  so.  I  don' t  thi nk  -- i t' s  

possi ble,  but  I  don' t  thi nk  so.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Di d  you  talk  to  Li sa  Page  the  day  you  were  fi red?  

Mr.  Comey.  That  I' m  sure  of.  No.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Di d  you  talk  to  Peter  Strzok  the  day  you  were  

fi red?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Do  you  know  whether  or  not  an  obstructi on  of  

j usti ce  i nvesti gati on  was  launched  the  day  you  were  fi red?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  If  Flynn  had  sai d,  "Di rector  Comey"  -- I' m  

sorry.  

If  Presi dent  Trump  had  sai d,  "Di rector  Comey,  General  Flynn  

made  a mi stake,  and  he  di dn' t have  the  i ntent  to  vi olate  the  law, "  

would  you  have  vi ewed  that  as  obstructi on?  
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Mr.  Comey.  I  can' t  answer  that  hypotheti cal.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Well,  we' re  goi ng  to  have  to  get  our  way  through  

i t  a  li ttle  bi t.  Is  someone  sayi ng,  "Look,  he  j ust  made  a  

mi stake"  -- mi stake  i s  a  defense  to  certai n  cri mes,  ri ght?  So  

that  could  be  i nterpreted  as  di dn' t  commi t  a  cri mi nal  offense.  

Mr.  Comey.  The  reason  I  don' t  feel  comfortable  goi ng  i nto  

hypotheti cals  i s  obstructi on  i s  a  cri me  that  turns  on  i ntent,  

and  I  can' t  speak  i n  -- ei ther  i n  fact  or  i n  hypotheti cals  to  

i ntent  here.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Well,  what  was  the  Presi dent' s  i ntent  

when  -- i n  your  opi ni on,  when  he  sai d,  "I  hope  you  can  see  your  

way  clear  to  letti ng  thi s  go"?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  for  sure.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  So  i t  would  be  the  fai lure  of  an  essenti al  

element  of  an  obstructi on  of  j usti ce  case  i f  the  person  who  

recei ved  that  i nformati on  di d  not  vi ew  i t  as  an  attempt  to  i mpact  

hi s  deci si onmaki ng?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  thi nk  that' s  ri ght  as  a  matter  of  law.  

I  don' t  thi nk  the  reacti on  of  the  obj ect  of  the  obstructi ve  

effort,  thei r  percepti on,  i s  di sposi ti ve.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Were  you  obstructed?  

Mr.  Comey.  Because  I thi nk  I could  have  -- I could  endeavor  

to  obstruct  somethi ng  and  you  not  reali ze  what  I' m  doi ng.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Were  you  obstructed?  

Mr.  Comey.  Well,  I  don' t  know  -- there  was  no  i mpact,  so  
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far  as  I' m  aware,  on  the  i nvesti gati on,  from  thi s  conversati on.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  If  he  had  sai d,  "Look,  General  Flynn  doesn' t  

have  the  i ntent  to  commi t  a  cri me, "  how  would  you  have  vi ewed  

that?  

Mr.  Kelley.  Do  you  understand  the  questi on?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yeah,  I  sti ll  would  not  offer  an  opi ni on  as  to  

what  hi s  i ntenti on  was  i n  doi ng  that.  I  would  fi nd  i t  very  

concerni ng,  j ust  as  I  found  thi s  very  concerni ng,  but  I  di dn' t  

then,  and  I  don' t  now,  have  an  opi ni on  on  the  ulti mate  questi on  

about  whether  i t  was  obstructi on.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Well,  the  reason  I  ask  general  -- Di rector  

Comey,  i s,  there  was  another  Chi ef  Executi ve  who  referred  to  an  

ongoi ng  cri mi nal  matter  by  sayi ng  she  made  a  mi stake,  and  she  

lacked  cri mi nal  i ntent.  Di d  you  vi ew  that  as  potenti ally  

obstructi on  of  j usti ce?  

Mr.  Comey.  Talki ng  about  Presi dent  Obama  now?  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Yes.  

Mr.  Comey.  I  di dn' t  see  i t  as  -- through  the  lens  of  

obstructi on  of  j usti ce.  I  saw  i t  as  threateni ng  our  abi li ty  to  

credi bly  complete  the  i nvesti gati on.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  In  what  way?  

Mr.  Comey.  The  Presi dent  of  the  Uni ted  States  offeri ng  a  

vi ew  on  a  matter  or  a  case  that' s  under  i nvesti gati on,  when  that  

Presi dent  i s  of  the  same  party  as  the  subj ect  of  the  i nvesti gati on  

and  worki ng  for  her  electi on,  would  tend  to  cast  doubt  i n  
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reasonable  people' s  mi nds  about  whether  the  i nvesti gati on  had  

been  conducted  and  completed  fai rly,  competently,  and  

i ndependently.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  So,  i f  i t  doesn' t  ri se  to  the  level  of  

obstructi on,  how  would  you  characteri ze  the  Chi ef  Executi ve  

sayi ng  that  the  target  of  an  i nvesti gati on  that  was  ongoi ng  

si mply  made  a  mi stake  and  lacked  the  requi si te  cri mi nal  i ntent?  

Mr.  Comey.  It  would  concern  me.  It  concerns  me  whenever  

the  Chi ef  Executi ve  comments  on  pendi ng  cri mi nal  i nvesti gati ons,  

somethi ng  we  see  a  lot  today,  whi ch  i s  why  i t  concerned  me  when  

Presi dent  Obama  di d  i t.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Well,  i t  concerns  me  too,  Di rector  Comey.  I' m  

also  concerned  that  people  treat  si mi larly  si tuated  people  the  

same.  And  di d  you  make  a  memo  after  Presi dent  Obama  sai d  she  

made  a  mi stake  and  lacked  the  requi si te  cri mi nal  i ntent?  

Mr.  Comey.  He  sai d  that  on  FOX  News.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Ri ght.  

Mr.  Comey.  I  di d  not  make  a  memo  about  the  FOX  News  

broadcast.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Di d  you  have  a  meeti ng  wi th  your  i nvesti gati ve  

team  to  make  sure  that  they  were  not  i n  any  way  i mpacted  by  what  

he  sai d?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Who  i s  Chri stopher  Steele?  Well,  before  I  go  

to  that,  let  me  ask  you  thi s.  
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At  any  -- who  i ntervi ewed  General  Flynn,  whi ch  FBI  agents?  

Mr.  Comey.  My  recollecti on  i s  two  agents,  one  of  whom  was  

Pete  Strzok  and  the  other  of  whom  i s  a  career  li ne  agent,  not  

a  supervi sor.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Di d  ei ther  of  those  agents,  or  both,  ever  tell  

you  that  they  di d  not  adduce  an  i ntent  to  decei ve  from  thei r  

i ntervi ew  wi th  General  Flynn?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Have  you  ever  testi fi ed  di fferently?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Do  you  recall  bei ng  asked  that  questi on  i n  a  

HPSCI  heari ng?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  I  recall  -- I  don' t  remember  what  questi on  

I  was  asked.  I  recall  sayi ng  the  agents  observed  no  i ndi ci a  of  

decepti on,  physi cal  mani festati ons,  shi fti ness,  that  sort  of  

thi ng.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Who  would  you  have  gotten  that  from  i f  you  were  

not  present  for  the  i ntervi ew?  

Mr.  Comey.  From  someone  at  the  FBI,  who  ei ther  spoke  to  -- I  

don' t  thi nk  I  spoke  to  the  i ntervi ewi ng  agents  but  got  the  report  

from  the  i ntervi ewi ng  agents.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  All  ri ght.  So  you  would  have,  what,  read  the  

302  or  had  a  conversati on  wi th  someone  who  read  the  302?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  remember  for  sure.  I  thi nk  I  may  have  

done  both,  that  i s,  read  the  302  and  then  spoke  to  people  who  
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had  spoken  to  the  i nvesti gators  themselves.  It' s  possi ble  I  

spoke  to  the  i nvesti gators  di rectly.  I  j ust  don' t  remember  

that.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  And,  agai n,  what  was  communi cated  on  the  i ssue  

of  an  i ntent  to  decei ve?  What' s  your  recollecti on  on  what  those  

agents  relayed  back?  

Mr.  Comey.  My  recollecti on  was  he  was  -- the  conclusi on  

of  the  i nvesti gators  was  he  was  obvi ously  lyi ng,  but  they  saw  

none  of  the  normal  common  i ndi ci a  of  decepti on:  that  i s,  

hesi tancy  to  answer,  shi fti ng  i n  seat,  sweati ng,  all  the  thi ngs  

that  you  mi ght  associ ate  wi th  someone  who  i s  consci ous  and  

mani festi ng  that  they  are  bei ng  -- they' re  telli ng  falsehoods.  

There' s  no  doubt  he  was  lyi ng,  but  that  those  i ndi cators  weren' t  

there.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  When  you  say  "lyi ng, "  I  generally  thi nk  of  an  

i ntent  to  decei ve  as  opposed  to  someone  j ust  utteri ng  a  false  

statement.  

Mr.  Comey.  Sure.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Is  i t  possi ble  to  utter  a  false  statement  

wi thout  i t  bei ng  lyi ng?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  can' t  answer  -- that' s  a  phi losophi cal  

questi on  I  can' t  answer.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  No,  I  mean,  i f  I  sai d,  "Hey,  look,  I  hope  you  

had  a great  day  yesterday  on  Tuesday, "  that' s demonstrably  false.  

Mr.  Comey.  That' s  an  expressi on  of  opi ni on.  
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Mr. Gowdy. No, i t' s a fact that yesterday was --

Mr. Comey. You hope I have a great day --

Mr. Gowdy. No, no, no, yesterday was not Tuesday. 

Mr. Comey. Oh, see, I di dn' t even know that. Yeah. 

Mr. Gowdy. So i s i t possi ble to make a false statement 

wi thout havi ng the i ntent to decei ve? 

Mr. Comey. Yes. 

Mr. Gowdy. All ri ght. Is maki ng a false statement wi thout 

the i ntent to decei ve a cri me? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t know. I can' t answer that wi thout 

thi nki ng better about i t. 

Mr. Gowdy. So would i t, therefore, be relevant, whether 

or -- I' ll let you fi ni sh talki ng to your lawyer. 

Mr. Comey. Sorry, go ahead. 

Mr. Gowdy. Would i t, therefore, be relevant whether or not 

General Flynn had an i ntent to decei ve? 

Mr. Comey. Let me step away from the case. In 

i nvesti gati ng any false statement case, you want to understand, 

di d the defendant, the subj ect, know they were maki ng a false 

statement? Because you aren' t prosecuted for a ci dents, sli ps 

of memory, thi ngs li ke that. So, i n any false-statement case, 

i t' s i mportant to understand, what' s the proof that they knew 

what they were sayi ng was false? 

Mr. Gowdy. And, agai n -- because I' m afrai d I may have 

i nterrupted you, whi ch I di dn' t mean to do -- your agents, i t 
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was  relayed  to  you  that  your  agents'  perspecti ve  on  that  

i ntervi ew  wi th  General  Flynn  was  what?  Because  where  I  stopped  

you  was,  you  sai d:  He  was  lyi ng.  They  knew  he  was  lyi ng,  but  

he  di dn' t  have  the  i ndi ci a  of  lyi ng.  

Mr.  Comey.  Correct.  All  I  was  doi ng  was  answeri ng  your  

questi on,  whi ch  I  understood  to  be  your  questi on,  about  whether  

I  had  previ ously  testi fi ed  that  he  -- the  agents  di d  not  beli eve  

he  was  lyi ng.  I  was  tryi ng  to  clari fy.  I  thi nk  that  reporti ng  

that  you' ve  seen  i s  the  product  of  a  garble.  What  I  recall  

telli ng  the  House  Intelli gence  Commi ttee  i s  that  the  agents  

observed  none  of  the  common  i ndi ci a  of  lyi ng  -- physi cal  

mani festati ons,  changes  i n  tone,  changes  i n  pace  -- that  would  

i ndi cate  the  person  I' m  i ntervi ewi ng  knows  they' re  telli ng  me  

stuff  that  ai n' t  true.  They  di dn' t  see  that  here.  It  was  a  

natural  conversati on,  answered  fully  thei r  questi ons,  di dn' t  

avoi d.  That  notwi thstandi ng,  they  concluded  he  was  lyi ng.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Would  that  be  consi dered  Brady  materi al  and  

hypotheti cally  a  subsequent  prosecuti on  for  false  statement?  

Mr.  Comey.  That' s  too  hypotheti cal  for  me.  I  mean,  

i nteresti ng  law  school  questi on:  Is  the  absence  of  

i ncri mi nati ng  evi dence  exculpatory  evi dence?  But  I  can' t  

answer  that  questi on.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Well,  you  used  to  be  the  Uni ted  States  Attorney  

for  the  Southern  Di stri ct  of  New  York.  Would  you  have  turned  

over  that  i nformati on?  
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Mr.  Comey.  I  can' t  answer  that  i n  the  abstract.  I  j ust  

can' t.  It  depends  upon  too  many  uni que  ci rcumstances  to  a  case.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Who  i s  Chri stopher  Steele?  

Mr.  Comey.  My  understandi ng  i s  that  Chri stopher  Steele  i s  

a  former  i ntelli gence  offi cer  of  an  alli ed  nati on  who  prepared  

a  seri es  of  reports  i n  the  summer  of  2016  that  have  become  known  

as  the  Steele  dossi er.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  How  long  di d  he  have  a  relati onshi p  wi th  the  

FBI?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Di d  you  ever  meet  hi m?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Never  met  hi m,  never  talked  to  hi m?  

Mr.  Comey.  Sorry.  

Okay.  No,  I  never  met  hi m,  never  spoken  to  the  man.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  When  di d  you  learn  he  was  worki ng  for  Fusi on  

GPS?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  that  I  ever  knew  that  -- certai nly  

whi le  I worked  at  the  FBI.  I thi nk  I' ve  read  that  i n  open  source,  

but  I  di dn' t  know  that  whi le  I  was  FBI.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Who  di d  you  thi nk  he  was  worki ng  for?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  thought  he  was  retai ned  as  part  of  a  

Republi can-fi nanced  effort  -- retai ned  by  Republi cans  adverse  

to  Mr.  Trump  duri ng  the  pri mary  season,  and  then  hi s  work  was  

underwri tten  after  that  by  Democrats  opposed  to  Mr.  Trump  duri ng  
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the  general  electi on  season.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  When  di d  you  learn  that  hi s  work  went  from  bei ng  

fi nanced  by  what  you  descri bed  as  Republi cans  to  what  you  

descri bed  as  Democrats?  

Mr.  Comey.  Someti me  i n  September,  October,  i s  my  best  

guess.  I  don' t  remember  for  sure,  when  I  was  bri efed  on  the  

materi als  that  had  been  provi ded  to  the  FBI.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Well,  ordi nari ly,  i t  wouldn' t  be  i mportant  

whether  i t  was  December  or  October,  but  --

Mr.  Comey.  September  or  October.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Ri ght.  Ordi nari ly,  i t  wouldn' t  be  i mportant.  

Just  so  happens,  i n  thi s  fact  pattern,  i t  mi ght  be.  

Pardon  me?  

Mr.  Kelley.  I  thought  you  sai d  "December  or  October. "  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Oh,  December  -- or  September?  

Mr.  Kelley.  You  sai d  September  fi rst;  he  sai d  --

Mr.  Gowdy.  Ordi nari ly  -- let  me  correct  i t  then.  

Ordi nari ly,  i t  wouldn' t  be  i mportant  whether  i t  was  

September  or  October.  In  thi s  fact  pattern,  i t  may  be.  Do  you  

have  any  recollecti on,  di d  anythi ng  else  happen  i n  September  or  

October  that  may  refresh  your  recollecti on  on  when  you  learned  

i t?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  It  was  ei ther  September/October,  i s  my  

best  recollecti on.  If  I  had  to  say,  whi ch  I  wi ll,  more  li kely  

September  than  October,  but  I' m  really  not  certai n.  
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Mr.  Gowdy.  Do  you  know  whether  you  learned  i t  before  there  

were  any  court  fi li ngs  or  pleadi ngs  fi led  i n  connecti on  wi th  the  

Russi a  i nvesti gati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  Court  fi li ngs?  I  don' t  remember  court  

fi li ngs.  Oh,  you' re  talki ng  about  FISA?  Sorry.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  I was  tryi ng  to  avoi d  use  of  the  word,  but  that' s  

okay.  

Mr.  Comey.  I  thi nk  i t' s  been  used  publi cly,  whi ch  i s  why  I  

j ust  used  i t.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  I  thi nk  i t  has  too,  but  that  doesn' t  mean  i t  

should  have  been.  

Mr.  Comey.  Yeah.  

I  certai nly  learned  of  i t  before  the  end  of  October.  And  

I  thi nk  the  fi li ng  that  you' re  referri ng  to  obli quely  was  at  the  

end  of  October  someti me.  So  i t  was  before  that.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  When  di d  you  learn  that  Fusi on  GPS  was  hi red  

by  Perki ns  Coi e?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  never  learned  that,  certai nly  not  whi le  I  was  

Di rector.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Well,  when  di d  you  learn  the  DNC  had  hi red  

Perki ns  Coi e?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  never  learned  that.  Agai n,  whi le  I  was  

Di rector.  I  thi nk  I' ve  read  i t  i n  the  medi a,  but,  yeah,  even  

today,  I  don' t  know  whether  i t' s  true.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Now,  when  you  say  you  never  learned  i t  but  may  
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have  read  i t  i n  the  medi a  --

Mr.  Comey.  After  I  left  as  Di rector.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Whi le  you  were  the  Di rector,  you  never  knew  that  

the  DNC  hi red  a  law  fi rm  that  hi red  an  oppo  research  fi rm  that  

hi red  Chri stopher  Steele?  

Mr.  Comey.  No,  I  don' t  thi nk  so.  I  don' t  have  any  

recollecti on  of  bei ng  told  that  or  readi ng  that  or  learni ng  that  

whi le  I  was  Di rector.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Is  i t  relevant  to  you  who  was  payi ng  Chri s  

Steele?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes,  i n  the  sense  that  I  thought  i t  was  

i mportant  to  understand  that  i t  was  poli ti cally  moti vated  

effort,  fi rst  by  Republi cans,  then  by  Democrats.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Whose  obli gati on  i n  the  Bureau  would  i t  have  

been  to  bri ng  i t  to  your  attenti on?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  about  your  use  of  the  word  

"obli gati on. "  I' d  have  to  thi nk  that  through  more  carefully,  

but  I  do  know  that  I  was  told  about  i t,  I  thi nk,  by  the  general  

counsel,  but  I' m not  sure.  And  I don' t know  whether  that  stemmed  

from  an  obli gati on.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  All  ri ght.  We' ll  get  at  that  another  way.  The  

word  "obli gati on"  stemmed  from  the  fact  that  thi s  i s  a  

counteri ntelli gence  i nvesti gati on  i nto  a  poli ti cal  campai gn.  

I  thi nk  you  testi fi ed  -- and  I  hope  you  agree  -- the  source  who  

was  payi ng  for  that  i nformati on  would  be  relevant.  
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Mr. Comey. Fi rst of all, I have to di sagree wi th your 

asserti on that i t was a counteri ntelli gence i nvesti gati on i nto 

a poli ti cal campai gn. I' ve sai d that earli er, that i t wasn' t. 

It was four counteri ntelli gence fi les on four Ameri cans. The --

Mr. Gowdy. I know you sai d that, Di rector Comey, but I 

thi nk you --

Mr. Kelley. Let hi m fi ni sh hi s answer, please. 

Mr. Comey. Who -- who pai d and the parti culars of who pai d 

would be i mportant to people worki ng the case, but the level of 

speci fi ci ty that the Di rector needed to know i s, to my mi nd, a 

di fferent questi on. 

Mr. Gowdy. If the Di rector were si gni ng a court fi li ng that 

had a representati on i n i t, the Di rector would want to know 

whether or not those representati ons were a curate. 

Mr. Comey. The Di rector would want to know that the 

process -- carefully constructed process of the FBI had been 

followed, that the ri ght people had revi ewed thi ngs, that the 

ri ght si gnoffs had been held, before I would si gn the 

certi fi cati on that came wi th i t. That' s probably the most I can 

say about the role of the Di rector i n a FISA. 

Mr. Gowdy. Was Chri stopher Steele also worki ng wi th or for 

the Bureau whi le he was worki ng for Fusi on GPS? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t know. 

Mr. Gowdy. Do you know whether the FBI was payi ng 

Chri stopher Steele for any of hi s work i n the fall -- summer or 
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fall  of  2016?  

Mr.  Comey.  My  recollecti on  i s  that  the  FBI  was  not  payi ng  

hi m,  that  the  FBI  had  rei mbursed  hi m  for  some  travel  expenses  

and  had  rai sed  the  prospect  that  i f  there  was  frui tful  further  

work,  he  could  be  pai d  for  i t.  But  my  recollecti on  i s  that  he  

was  not  pai d.  These  are  the  thi ngs  I  remember  learni ng  when  I  

was  Di rector.  Could  be  wrong,  but  I thi nk  that' s what  I was  told.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  I  thi nk  you  have  answered  the  next  questi on  

then.  Assumi ng  that  you  are  i ncorrect  and  the  FBI  was  payi ng  

hi m,  you  don' t  recall  how  much  the  FBI  pai d  hi m?  

Mr.  Comey.  Well,  as  I  sai d,  my  recollecti on  i s  that  he  was  

rei mbursed  for  expenses  and  that  he  was  not  pai d  for  hi s  work  

i n  connecti on  wi th  the  Russi a  subj ect,  but  that  the  prospect  was  

rai sed.  So,  of  course,  gi ven  that  I  don' t  recall  that  he  was  

pai d  for  hi s  work,  the  answer  would  be  I  don' t  recall  how  much  

he  was  pai d  because  he  wasn' t  pai d,  i n  my  recollecti on.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  When  the  Bureau  uses  sources  or  i nformants,  are  

there  agreements  si gned?  Are  there  certai n  obli gati ons  on  

behalf  of  the  source  or  the  i nformant?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yeah,  I' m  not  expert  enough  to  answer  that.  

I' m  sure  that  there  are,  but  I  don' t  know  the  parti culars.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Is  i t  -- would  i t  be  unusual  for  the  FBI  to  tell  

a  source  or  an  i nformant,  you  can' t  commi t  any  other  cri mes  whi le  

you' re  worki ng  for  the  Bureau?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  beli eve  that' s  the  case.  
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Mr.  Gowdy.  Would  i t  be  unusual  for  the  Bureau  to  tell  a  

source  or  an  i nformant,  you  can' t  have  medi a  contacts  whi le  

you' re  worki ng  for  the  Bureau?  

Mr.  Comey.  I don' t know  whether  that' s part  of  the  standard  

warni ngs  or  di recti ons  to  a  source.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  And  you' re  not  fami li ar  --

Mr.  Kelley.  Excuse  me.  One  second,  please.  

Mr.  Comey.  Okay,  thank  you.  

I' m  sorry.  Go  ahead.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  How  di d  Chri s  Steele' s  i nformati on  reach  the  

FBI?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  for  sure.  I  have  some  

recollecti on  that  he  passed  i t  to  an  agent  that  he  knew  and  that  

that  agent  sent  i t  on  to  headquarters.  I  thi nk  that' s  the  way  

i n  whi ch i t  reached  the  Counteri ntelli gence Di vi si on,  but  I  don' t  

remember  the  speci fi cs  of  that.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  How  di d  the  Bureau  i nvesti gate  whatever  

i nformati on  Steele  provi ded?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  i n  parti cular.  I  know  that  the  

Counteri ntelli gence  Di vi si on  was  i nvesti gati ng  vari ous  aspects  

of  the  reports  he  had  suppli ed,  and  that  i nvesti gati on  was  

ongoi ng  when  I  was  fi red.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Do  you  know  whether  the  Bureau  endeavored  to  

ei ther  contradi ct  or  corroborate  factual  asserti ons  made  i n  what  

has  later  been  descri bed  as  the  Steele  dossi er?  
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Mr.  Comey.  My  understandi ng  i s  that  that  effort  -- that  

an  effort  was  under  way  to  try  to  repli cate,  ei ther  rule  i n  or  

rule  out,  as  much  of  that  collecti on  of  reports  that' s  commonly  

now  called  the  Steele  dossi er  as  possi ble,  and  that  that  work  

was  ongoi ng  when  I  was  fi red.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  When  di d  that  work  begi n?  

Mr.  Comey.  My  recollecti on  i s  someti me  i n  ' 16,  but  I  don' t  

know  when.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Before  or  after  i t  was  used  i n  a  court  fi li ng?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  thi nk  before  that.  I  thi nk  -- I  thi nk  when  

i t  was  recei ved,  there  was  an  effort  i mmedi ately  to  try  and  

evaluate  i t  to  understand  i t,  and  that  conti nued  over  the  next  

6  months.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  What  i s  the  basi s  of  your  beli ef  that  there  was  

an  i mmedi ate  attempt  to  corroborate  or  contradi ct  the  underlyi ng  

factual  asserti ons?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  have  some  recollecti on,  vague,  of  bei ng  told  

we' re  tryi ng  to  assess  thi s  to  understand  what  we  can  make  of  

i t,  what  parts  we  can  rely  on,  what  parts  we  can' t.  But  I  

don' t  -- I  don' t  remember  more  than  that.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Was  Steele  the  ori gi nal  source  of  the  

i nformati on,  or  di d  he  hi mself  have  sources  and  subsources?  

Ms.  Bessee.  Mr.  Chai rman,  to  the  extent  that  i t  

goes  -- your  li ne  of  questi oni ng  goes  beyond  Chri stopher  Steele  

i n  parti cular  and  i nto  other  sources  that  may  i mpact  speci al  
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counsel' s i nvesti gati on, I wi ll have to i nstruct the wi tness not 

to answer the questi ons. 

Mr. Gowdy. He can' t answer whether Chri s Steele was the 

ori gi nal source for all of the i nformati on i n the Steele dossi er? 

Ms. Bessee. To the extent i t goes i nto --

Mr. Gowdy. I di dn' t menti on the phrase "speci al counsel. " 

Ms. Bessee. I know you have not, Mr. Chai rman. 

Mr. Gowdy. I' m j ust aski ng the former Di rector of the FBI, 

who recei ved i nformati on from a source, whether that source had 

knowledge of the underlyi ng a curacy of that i nformati on or 

whether the source was relyi ng on other sources. I don' t know 

how that i mpli cates anythi ng Bob Mueller' s doi ng. 

Ms. Bessee. If the source reli es on other i nformati on, 

because thi s i s all part of an ongoi ng i nvesti gati on, i t may 

i mpact --

Mr. Gowdy. How? 

Ms. Bessee. Why don' t we have the wi tness -- i f i t i mpacts 

the i nvesti gati on, because the wi tness has knowledge as to 

whether i t would or not, he may not be able to answer the questi on. 

So I wi ll have the wi tness --

Mr. Gowdy. That' s a di fferent answer i f he doesn' t -- i f 

he doesn' t have recollecti on. 

Do you know whether Chri s Steele reli ed on sources and 

subsources to compi le the i nformati on that ulti mately made i t 

to the FBI? 
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Mr. Comey. My recollecti on i s he di d have a source network 

of sources and subsources and that thi s collecti on of reports 

reflected reporti ng by those, that source network. 

Mr. Gowdy. Di d the FBI make any effort to i denti fy those 

sources and subsources that Steele would have reli ed upon? 

Mr. Comey. Yes. 

Mr. Gowdy. Wi th su cess? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t remember, and I thi nk I don' t remember 

because the work was not fi ni shed before I left. 

Mr. Gowdy. I' m not aski ng you for names, but I' m aski ng 

you for a sense of scope. How many sources and subsources di d 

Steele rely upon? 

Ms. Bessee. Mr. Chai rman, agai n, the number or the how 

many sources or subsources would go to thi ngs i nvolved i n the 

speci al counsel i nvesti gati on. So the wi tness wi ll not be able 

to answer that. 

Mr. Gowdy. For the li fe of me, I don' t understand how that 

could possi bly be so. What I do know to be so i s I need -- and 

thi nk I have a ri ght -- to ask the former Di rector of the FBI, 

gi ven the fact that we' ve already establi shed Steele had sources 

and subsources, whether or not the Bureau made an effort to 

contact and corroborate or contradi ct the i nformati on provi ded 

by those sources. Is i t the Bureau' s posi ti on that I' m 

i ncorrect? 

Ms. Bessee. Could we have a mi nute to talk to the wi tness? 
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Mr.  Gowdy.  Well,  i f  i t' s -- yeah,  i f  we  can  toll  the  clock.  

I  mean,  I' m  already  runni ng  out  of  ti me.  

Mr.  Comey.  Can  I  have  your  questi on  agai n,  Mr.  Gowdy?  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Pardon  me?  

Mr.  Comey.  What' s  the  questi on  agai n?  

Mr.  Gowdy.  God,  i f  I  remember.  I  thi nk  i t  was  whether  or  

not  the  Bureau  made  any  effort  -- oh,  I  thi nk  what  I  asked  i s  

whether  or  not  you  had  an  i dea  the  scope,  the  breadth,  of  the  

number  of  sources  or  subsources  Steele  reli ed  upon.  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t.  I  have  a  recollecti on  that  there  were  

a  vari ety  of  sources  and  subsources,  but  I  don' t  have  a  sense  

of  the  scope.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Do  you  have  a  sense  that  the  Bureau  was  able  

to  i denti fy  every  source  and  subsource  Steele  reli ed  upon?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  one  way  or  another.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  I' m  goi ng  to  let  Mr.  Ratcli ffe  take  over  from  

here,  other  than  I' m  goi ng  to  ask  you  whether  hearsay  i s  

ordi nari ly  admi ssi ble  i n  court  or  not.  

Mr.  Comey.  Is  thi s  a  qui z?  

Mr.  Gowdy.  No.  Well,  i f  I  di dn' t  thi nk  you  could  answer  

i t,  I  wouldn' t  have  asked  you.  I  know  you  know  the  answer.  

Mr.  Comey.  It  depends  upon  whether  i t  fi ts  wi thi n  one  of  

the  excepti ons  to  the  hearsay  rule.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Assumi ng  -- what' s  the  general  rule?  We  won' t  

get  to  the  excepti ons.  The  general  rule,  i s  hearsay  admi ssi ble  
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or  not  admi ssi ble?  

Mr.  Comey.  Well,  the  general  rule  i s  that  hearsay  i s  not  

admi ssi ble  unless  i t  falls  wi thi n  one  of  the  excepti ons  to  the  

hearsay  rule.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Ri ght.  And  we' re  goi ng  to  assume  for  the  sake  

of  argument  that  there' s  no  excepti on  unless  you  can  i denti fy  

one.  What  i s  the  defi ni ti on  of  -- well,  i s  i t  an  out-of-court  

statement  offered  to  prove  the  truth  of  the  matter  asserted?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes,  that' s  my  recollecti on.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  All  ri ght.  

Mr.  Kelley.  You  know,  Mr.  Gowdy,  we' ve  agreed  to  be  here  

to  talk  about  the  questi ons  and  deci si ons  made  and  not  made  i n  

connecti on  wi th  the  i nvesti gati on  of  Russi a  and  Cli nton' s  

emai ls.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Yes.  

Mr.  Kelley.  And  we' ve  been  very  pati ent,  but  why  don' t  we  

get  to  the  poi nt  i nstead  of  aski ng  ri di culous  questi ons  about  

the  defi ni ti on  --

Mr.  Gowdy.  The  fact  that  you  thi nk  i t' s  ri di culous  i s  of  

no  consequence  to  me  whatsoever,  Mr.  Kelley.  

Mr.  Kelley.  I' m  sure  i t' s  not.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  It' s  not.  And  I' ve  asked  almost  every  other  

wi tness,  none  of  whom  had  an  attorney  that  di dn' t  understand  the  

relevance  of  that  questi on.  So  that' s  between  you  and  

Mr.  Comey.  But  the  reason  that  I  want  to  ask  about  hearsay  i s  
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the  abi li ty  to  rely  upon  i nformati on  that  cannot  be  

cross-exami ned.  That' s  why  I  want  to  ask  about  i t.  And  i f  you  

can' t  see  that,  then  y' all  can  di scuss  that  on  the  next  break,  

but  I' m  goi ng  to  go  back  i nto  i t,  and  for  now,  i t  wi ll  be  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe' s  turn.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Mr.  Comey,  do  you  recall  that  you  si gned  

a  FISA  appli cati on  on  October  21st,  2016,  relati ng  to  Carter  

Page?  

Mr.  Comey.  I don' t recall  the  date.  I do  remember  si gni ng  

such  a  FISA  i n  October.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Would  you  have  revi ewed  the  FISA  

appli cati on  before  you  si gned  i t?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Do  you  recall  that  the  FISA  appli cati on  

would  have  been  ti tled  -- or  was  ti tled  "veri fi ed  appli cati on"?  

Mr.  Comey.  No,  I  don' t  recall  that.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Don' t all  FISA  appli cati ons  state  that  they  

are  veri fi ed  appli cati ons?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know.  I  don' t  -- si tti ng  here  today,  

I  can' t  remember  the  word  "veri fi ed. "  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  What  di d  the  FISA  appli cati on  that  you  

si gned  on  October  21st  of  2016,  aver  i n  terms  of  probable  cause  

for  a  warrant  on  Carter  Page?  

Ms.  Bessee.  Congressman,  he  can  only  respond  to  

i nformati on  that' s  not  classi fi ed  or  that' s  been  put  out  there  
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i n  the  publi c.  If  there  i s  somethi ng  that  he  can  look  at,  

because,  as  you  know,  part  of  that  -- parts  of  that  appli cati on  

i s  classi fi ed.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  I  was  told  that  -- that  the  Di rector  di dn' t  

want  to  revi ew  any  classi fi ed  i nformati on  today  and  that  he  came  

here  wi thout  any  provi si onal  clearances  because  he  di dn' t  want  

them,  but  yet  he  was  prepared  to  answer  any  questi ons  that  may  

pertai n  to  classi fi ed  i nformati on.  Is  that  i ncorrect?  

Mr.  Kelley.  That  i s  i ncorrect.  We  were  told  i n  advance  

that  thi s  would  not  deal  wi th  anythi ng  law  enforcement  sensi ti ve  

or  classi fi ed  i nformati on.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Who  told  you  that?  

Mr.  Kelley.  House  counsel.  Not  so  much  who  told  me,  so  

much  as  a  representati on  made  before  a  Uni ted  States  di stri ct  

j udge.  

Mr.  Meadows.  So,  Mr.  Chai rman,  I  would  recommend  that  

there  are  two  di fferent  statements  that  the  attorney  j ust  made.  

One  was  classi fi ed;  the  other  was  law  enforcement  sensi ti ve.  

can' t  i magi ne  that  House  counsel  would  have  i nadvertently  agreed  

to  that.  We  need  to  check  wi th  Mr.  Hungar  and  make  sure  that  

we' re  consi stent  wi th  that.  

Chai rman  Goodlatte.  We' ll  do  that.  The  House  counsel' s  

posi ti on  i s  very  clear,  that  the  Congress  does  not  recogni ze  an  

ongoi ng  i nvesti gati on  prohi bi ti on  on  answeri ng  questi ons.  We  

do  obvi ously  recogni ze  a classi fi ed,  and  we' re  prepared  to  create  
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that  envi ronment,  i f  necessary,  to  ask  that  questi on  i n  that  

envi ronment.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Di d  the  FISA  appli cati on  that  you  

certi fi ed,  or  veri fi ed,  allege  that  there  was  probable  cause  to  

beli eve  that  Carter  Page  was  worki ng  for  or  wi th  the  Russi an  

Government?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  remember  speci fi cally.  My  

recollecti on  i s  i t  was  -- i t  was  submi tted  to  the  court  as  part  

of  an  appli cati on  where  the  Department  of  Justi ce  was  allegi ng  

that  he  was  an  agent  of  a  forei gn  power,  namely,  the  Russi an  

Federati on,  but  I  can' t  remember  what  i t  sai d  about  probable  

cause.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Would  i t  have  averred  that  there  was  

probable  cause  to  beli eve  that  he  was  i n  a  posi ti on  to  i nfluence  

the  Trump  campai gn  or  Trump  campai gn  offi ci als?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  remember  that.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  But  you  di d  revi ew  i t?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes.  I  remember  readi ng  i t  for  the  purpose  of  

si gni ng  the  certi fi cati on  that  the  FBI  Di rector  has  to  si gn.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Do  you  recall  that  part  of  the  probable  

cause  submi tted  to  the  court  was  the  -- what  you' ve  referred  to  

as  the  Steele  dossi er?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Followi ng  up  on  Mr.  Gowdy' s  questi on  about  

Chri stopher  Steele,  do  you  know  whether  he  had  any  di rect  
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knowledge about collusi on, coordi nati on, or conspi racy between 

anyone associ ated wi th the Trump campai gn, or was i t based on 

other sources and subsources? 

Mr. Comey. My recollecti on i s that i t was the latter, that 

he di dn' t have personal knowledge of most, maybe all, of the 

thi ngs that were i n the reports, but they were reported to hi m 

by sources and that the, sort of, the core allegati on of the 

dossi er, as I recall, was that there was an effort to coordi nate 

wi th the Russi an i nterference campai gn, but that was not the 

product of Steele' s personal knowledge i s my -- I could be wrong 

about that, but that' s my recollecti on. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. All ri ght, so, i f there were other sources 

or subsources, would you agree that that i nformati on would be 

double and tri ple hearsay? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t know. Could be. I don' t know. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. Do you know whether each appli cati on -- or 

do you know whether the appli cati on that you si gned states that 

the FBI has revi ewed thi s veri fi ed appli cati on for a curacy? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t remember that speci fi cally. It sounds 

li ke the ki nd of thi ng that would be i n there as a matter of 

course, but I don' t remember. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. And what would be the purpose of veri fyi ng 

to the FISA court that the Department of Justi ce and the FBI have 

corroborated the allegati ons? 

Mr. Comey. Well, you' re tryi ng to convi nce a Federal j udge 
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that  you  have  probable  cause,  and  so  the  better  you  can  present  

your  evi dence  and  the  way  i t  mi ght  overlap  or  i nterlock,  the  

better  the  chance  you  have  of  convi nci ng  the  j udge  you  have  

probable  cause.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  So  I  want  to  relate  to  you  some  of  the  

testi mony  that  we' ve  already  recei ved.  FBI  Deputy  Di rector  Andy  

McCabe  testi fi ed  before  Congress  that  the  FBI  could  provi de  no  

poi nts  of  veri fi cati on  to  veri fy  the  Steele  i nformati on  other  

than  the  fact  that  Carter  Page  had  traveled  to  Russi a  i n  July  

of  2016.  Were  you  aware  of  that  when  you  si gned  the  appli cati on  

on  October  21st  of  2016?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  remember  any  of  that  ri ght  now.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Bi ll  Pri estap  who  -- what  does  Bi ll  

Pri estap  do  at  the  FBI?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  thi nk  he' s  sti ll  the  Assi stant  Di rector  i n  

charge  of  the  Counteri ntelli gence  Di vi si on.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Okay.  He  testi fi ed  that  corroborati on  of  

the  Steele  dossi er  was  i n  i ts,  quote/unquote,  i nfancy,  at  the  

ti me  of  the  appli cati on  that  you  si gned  on  October  21st,  2016.  

Di d  you  know  that?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  remember  heari ng  that,  but  that  makes  

sense  to  me,  i f  my  recollecti on  i s  correct,  that  we  got  i t  i n  

September  or  maybe  October.  It  would,  by  defi ni ti on,  be  i n  i ts  

i nfancy  i n  October.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  All  ri ght.  And  do  you  know  when  
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Chri stopher Steele was termi nated as a source for the FBI? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t. And I don' t know for a fact that he 

was termi nated. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. So have you revi ewed any FBI source 

vali dati on report on Chri stopher Steele? 

Mr. Comey. I have not. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. So you don' t know whether or not such a 

report would reflect that, as of November 1st of 2016, 

Chri stopher Steele' s reporti ng i n the Steele dossi er was 

determi ned by the FBI to be only, quote, mi ni mally corroborated, 

end quote? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t know that. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. So those thi ngs that I' ve j ust related to 

you about testi mony as I' ve represented i t from Andy McCabe and 

Bi ll Pri estap, and the report as I' ve represented i t to you from 

the FBI, does that cause you any concern about the fact that you 

si gned a veri fi ed appli cati on for a warrant to survei l Carter 

Page when the Steele dossi er was only mi ni mally corroborated or 

i n i ts i nfancy i n i ts corroborati on? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t know enough or remember enough 2 years 

later to have a reacti on. I don' t know thei r testi mony. 

haven' t looked at the thi ng. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. I' m j ust aski ng you to a cept what I' ve 

represented as true, and i f i t i s true, does that cause you 

concern? Should the FISA court have been granti ng warrants 
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where the i nformati on submi tted and veri fi ed, i n fact, had only 

been mi ni mally corroborated? 

Mr. Comey. Yeah, I can' t answer that because I -- look, 

I a cept what you' re sayi ng, but I don' t know what else you' re 

not telli ng me that was i n the FISA appli cati on and what was done. 

I j ust don' t know enough about what happened to offer a vi ew one 

way or the other. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. Okay. Well, do you recall that, on 

numerous occasi ons subsequent to October 21st of 2016, you, i n 

your capaci ty as the FBI Di rector, referred to the Steele dossi er 

as salaci ous and unveri fi ed? 

Mr. Comey. Yes. I don' t know that I was referri ng to all 

of i t. Maybe I was, but I had i n mi nd some parti cular porti ons 

of i t that were salaci ous and unveri fi ed. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. But, agai n, your characteri zati on of i t was 

that i t was unveri fi ed, even though you had veri fi ed i t to the 

court? 

Mr. Comey. Well, i t was comi ng to us from a reli able source 

wi th a track record, and i t' s an i mportant thi ng when you' re 

seeki ng a PC warrant. But what I understand by veri fi ed i s we 

then try to repli cate the source i nformati on so that i t becomes 

FBI i nvesti gati on and our conclusi ons rather than a reli able 

source' s. That' s what I understand i t, the di fference to be. 

And that work wasn' t completed by the ti me I left i n May of 2017, 

to my knowledge. 
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Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Well,  when  you  talk  about  getti ng  a warrant  

and  the  PC  and  the  i mportance  there,  i sn' t  i t  i mportant  for  the  

j udge  to  be  able  to  wei gh  the  reli abi li ty  and  the  credi bi li ty  

of  all  the  sources  for  the  i nformati on,  parti cularly  those  that  

saw  or  heard  the  relevant  i nformati on  that  serves  as  the  

predi cate  for  seeki ng  the  warrant?  

Mr.  Comey.  Not  necessari ly.  I  mean,  I  can  i magi ne  -- I  

thi nk  I' ve  dealt  wi th  warrants  where  you  j ust  i denti fy  that  your  

pri mary  CI,  or  pri mary  source,  has  subsources,  and  so  long  as  

the  court  i s  aware  of  that  phenomenon  and  that  you' re  speaki ng  

to  the  reli abi li ty  of  the  pri mary  source,  to  my  mi nd,  that' s  a  

totally  legi t  warrant  appli cati on.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Who  i s  Sally  --

Mr.  Comey.  And  I  don' t  remember  thi s  one  well  enough  to  

comment  on  i t.  I' m  thi nki ng  about  other  cri mi nal  cases  I' ve  

worked.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Who  i s  Sally  Moyer?  Sally  Moyer?  

Mr.  Comey.  A  lawyer  i n  the  General  Counsel' s  Offi ce.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Do  you  know  i f  she  was  i nvolved  i n  the  

preparati on  of  the  FISA  appli cati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  If  she  testi fi ed  -- and  I' ll  represent  to  

you  that  she  testi fi ed  that  the  FISA  court  -- i t  was  49-51,  maybe  

50-50,  that  the  FISA  court  would  have  approved  the  warrant  

wi thout  the  Steele  dossi er.  If  I  represent  that  to  you,  does  
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that  cause  you  concern  that  the  court  was  relyi ng  on  a  document  

that  was  largely  unveri fi ed  and  mi ni mally  corroborated?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  Because  i t  asked  me  to  assume  the  truth  

of  the  last  part  of  your  questi on,  and  I  don' t  know  that  to  be  

the  case.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Who  -- you' ve  already  sai d  you' re  not  sure  

that  Chri stopher  Steele  was  termi nated  as  a  source  for  the  FBI,  

correct?  

Mr.  Comey.  Correct.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  If  he  was  termi nated  as  a  source  for  the  

FBI,  i t  would  be  i mproper  for  hi m  to  conti nue  to  do  work  for  the  

FBI.  Would  you  agree  wi th  that,  as  a  source?  

Mr.  Comey.  I guess  I don' t know  what  "work"  means.  I would  

say  i n  general,  but  I  would  i magi ne  there  would  be  ci rcumstances  

where  someone  -- i n  fact,  I  know  -- sorry,  go  ahead.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  So  let  me  see  i f  I  can  break  i t  down.  So  

does  the  FBI  -- the  FBI  has  an  enti re  manual,  don' t  they,  on  

governi ng  the  use  of  confi denti al  human  sources?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  All  ki nds  of  rules  and  vali dati ons,  

correct?  

Mr.  Comey.  Correct.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  And  i f  Chri stopher  Steele  was,  i n  fact,  

termi nated,  i t  would  have  been  for  vi olati ng  those  standards  or  

rules  or  vali dati ons?  

Document  ID:  0.7.1278.5117-000034  



 

 

             


           


    

             


         


          

              


              


           

           


            


           


       

             


           


             


       

          


         


      

            


      

          


        

         

  

130  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  for  sure.  It  could  be  for  

vi olati ng  them,  but  -- I  don' t  know  for  sure  whether  i t  could  

be  somethi ng  else  too.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  As  you' ve  sat  here  today  -- as  you  si t  here  

today,  have  you  heard  anythi ng  about  the  fact  that  Chri stopher  

Steele  was  termi nated  for  leaki ng  i nformati on  to  the  press?  

Mr.  Comey.  As  I  si t  here  today,  si nce  I  left  the  FBI,  I' ve  

read  stuff  i n  the  medi a  about  that.  I  don' t  beli eve  I  had  ever  

heard  anythi ng  about  that  whi le  I  was  sti ll  at  the  FBI.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Okay.  So,  i f  Chri stopher  Steele  -- agai n,  

I  know  you  don' t  know  whether  he  had  been  termi nated,  but  i f  he  

was  and  he  conti nued  to  provi de  i nformati on  as  a  source  to  the  

FBI,  who  would  have  authori zed  that?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know.  And  i t' s  too  much  of  a  

hypotheti cal  for  me  to  even  begi n  to  answer.  I  don' t  know.  

Because  I  don' t  know  -- I  don' t  know  whether  any  of  the  -- the  

preamble  to  your  questi on  i s  true.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Are  you  aware  that  Chri stopher  Steele  had  

a  relati onshi p  -- and  by  "relati onshi p, "  I  mean  a  worki ng  

relati onshi p  -- wi th  Bruce  Ohr?  

Mr.  Comey.  Am  I  aware  that  he  had  a  worki ng  relati onshi p  

wi th  Bruce  Ohr?  No.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Are  you  aware  of  any  communi cati ons  or  

contact  between  Chri stopher  Steele  and  Bruce  Ohr?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  am  not  aware.  
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Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Who  i s  Bruce  Ohr?  

Mr.  Comey.  He' s  a  lawyer  for  the  Department  of  Justi ce,  

who  I  don' t  know  exactly  what  hi s  j ob  was.  I  remember  hi m  from  

the  Southern  Di stri ct  of  New  York.  But  a  DOJ  lawyer.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Would  you  expect  a  DOJ  lawyer  to  be  part  

of  the  chai n  of  custody  of  evi dence  relati ng  to  the  Steele  dossi er  

or  a  FISA  appli cati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  I' m  not  sure  I  know  what  that  means.  Chai n  of  

custody  wi th  respect  to  a  FISA  appli cati on.  Wi th  respect  to  

the  -- I  j ust  don' t  understand  that  questi on.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Yeah.  Should  a  DOJ  lawyer  be  used  as  a  

cutout  to  transfer  evi dence  i n  connecti on  wi th  a  FISA  

appli cati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Who  would  have  approved  that?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know.  I  keep  tryi ng  to  i magi ne  

ci rcumstances  i n  whi ch  -- I' m  not  fami li ar  wi th  a  ci rcumstance  

i n  whi ch  i t' s  happened,  but  I  don' t  know  enough  --

Mr.  Meadows.  Are  you  aware  of  any  other  ti me  where  a  DOJ  

attorney  actually  acted  as  a  condui t  to  provi de  i nformati on  that  

would  go  i nto  a  FISA  appli cati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  What  do  you  mean  by  "condui t"?  

Mr.  Meadows.  Well,  wi th  Mr.  Ohr,  Mr.  Steele,  i t' s  been  

wi dely  reported  -- I' m  sure  you' ve  read  the  reports,  Di rector  

Comey,  but  i n  testi mony,  we  would  have  an  i nteracti on  between  
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Mr.  Steele,  Mr.  Si mpson,  and  Mr.  Ohr,  and  then  that  i nformati on  

was  gi ven  to  two  i ndi vi duals  at  the  FBI,  

.  Are  you  aware  of  any  other  ti me  where  a  DOJ  attorney  

was  used  i n  that  manner  to  gi ve  i nformati on  that  ulti mately  went  

i nto  a  FISA  appli cati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  can' t  remember  a  ci rcumstance  li ke  that.  

Mr.  Meadows.  So  the  answer  i s  no?  

Mr.  Comey.  Well,  yeah,  I  -- I' m  only  hesi tati ng  because  

i t' s  possi ble.  I  j ust  -- i n  my  personal  experi ence,  I' ve  

not  -- I  don' t  remember  anythi ng  li ke  that.  

Mr.  Meadows.  All  ri ght.  

I  yi eld  back.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Di rector  Comey,  does  the  FBI  and  the  

Department  of  Justi ce,  i s  there  a  duty  to  present  exculpatory  

evi dence  to  the  FISA  court?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  whether  there' s  a  legal  duty.  We  

certai nly  consi der  i t  our  obli gati on,  because  of  our  trust  

relati onshi p  wi th  Federal  j udges,  to  present  evi dence that  would  

pai nt  a  materi ally  di fferent  pi cture  of  what  we' re  presenti ng.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  So,  i f  there  was  -- i f  the  FBI  and  the  

Department  of  Justi ce  had  i nformati on  that  was  contradi ctory  to  

the  predi cate  for  whi ch  the  warrant  i s  bei ng  sought  before  the  

FISA  court,  you  would  expect  that  i nformati on  to  be  presented  

to  the  court  so  that  they  could  wei gh  the  suffi ci ency  of  all  of  

the  i nformati on?  
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Mr.  Comey.  In  general,  I  thi nk  that' s  ri ght.  You  want  to  

present  to  the  j udge  revi ewi ng  your  appli cati on  a  complete  

pi cture  of  the  evi dence,  both  i ts  flaws  and  i ts  strengths.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  What' s  a  defensi ve  bri efi ng?  

Mr.  Comey.  In  the  counteri ntelli gence  world,  i t' s  a  

mechani sm  by  whi ch  the  FBI  wi ll  alert  somebody  to  a  

counteri ntelli gence  threat  that  mi ght  tend  to  defeat  the  threat.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Are  they  done  for  Presi denti al  candi dates?  

Mr.  Comey.  Not  routi nely.  What' s  routi nely  done  for  

candi dates  i s  a general  bri efi ng  of  -- what  I meant  by  "defensi ve  

bri efi ng"  i s  i t' s speci fi c to  you  and  threats  we  see  at  you.  Wi th  

candi dates,  my  recollecti on  i s  we  gave  a  general  

counteri ntelli gence  bri efi ng  about  the  threat  comi ng  from  

di fferent  nati ons.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Do  you  recall  doi ng  that  for  

Secretary  Cli nton  when  she  was  the  nomi nee?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t.  But  I  assume  that  someone  di d.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Okay.  Do  you  know  i f  one  was  done  for  

candi date  Trump?  

Mr.  Comey.  Agai n,  I  don' t  know  for  sure,  but  I  expect  i t  

was  done,  j ust  as  i t  was  done  for  Secretary  Cli nton.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Where  would  I  get  that  i nformati on?  Who  

would  I  ask,  si nce  you  don' t  know?  

Mr.  Comey.  Probably  the  Di rector  of  Nati onal  

Intelli gence' s  Offi ce.  I  have  some  recollecti on  that  they  
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arranged  for  bri efi ngs  of  the  candi dates  once  they  were  

nomi nated,  and  then  part  of  that  bri efi ng  would  i nclude  a  threat  

bri efi ng  from  the  FBI  about  the  counteri ntelli gence  threat.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  So  you  -- you  would  not  have  parti ci pated  

i n  that,  i s  what  i t  sounds  li ke.  

Mr.  Comey.  Yeah,  I  di d  not.  That' s  why  I  don' t  have  any  

recollecti on  of  i t,  but  --

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  But  someone  from  the  FBI  would  have?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Do  you  know  who  that  would  have  been?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  And  i t  could  have  been  -- let  me  j ust  add  

thi s  for  clari ty  as  you' re  looki ng  -- there  was  an  FBI  seni or  

executi ve  who  was  assi gned  to  the  Di rector  of  Nati onal  

Intelli gence  as  the  Nati onal  Counteri ntelli gence  Executi ve,  

NCIX  or  somethi ng,  i t  may  well  have  been  that  executi ve  who  works  

for  the  DNI  doi ng  i t,  but  who  that  person  -- sorry.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  So  I' m  goi ng  to  ask  the  questi on  -- I  thi nk  

I  know  the  answer  based  on  what  you' ve  j ust  sai d.  But  at  the  

ti me  a  defensi ve  bri efi ng  was  done  for  candi date  Trump,  do  you  

know  i f  the  FBI  had  any  evi dence  that  anyone  associ ated  wi th  the  

Trump  campai gn  had  colluded  or  conspi red  or  coordi nated  wi th  

Russi a  i n  any  way?  

Mr.  Comey.  I don' t know  the  dates,  whether  -- I don' t know  

whether  i t  was  before  late  July  when  we  opened  the  four  

counteri ntelli gence  fi les,  or  not.  And  so,  i f  i t  was  after  July  
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29th,  then  the  answer  would  be,  yes,  we  had  some  reason  to  suspect  

that  there  were  Ameri cans  who  mi ght  have  assi sted  the  Russi ans.  

If  i t  was  before  then,  the  answer  i s  no.  

I  can' t  remember  when  the  conventi ons  were  and  that  sort  

of  thi ng.  

Mr.  Meadows.  So  your  testi mony  here  today  i s  that,  before  

July  31st  of  2016,  you  had  no  i ndi cati on  that  there  was  someone  

wanti ng  to  i ntrude  i nto  the  Trump  campai gn?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  when  I  learned  anyone  wanted  to  

i ntrude  i nto  the  Trump  campai gn.  I  knew  as  of  late  July  that  

the  Russi ans  had  a  massi ve  effort  to  mess  wi th  our  democracy  

ongoi ng.  I  don' t  thi nk  before  the  end  of  July  I  had  any  

i nformati on  that  Ameri cans  mi ght  be  assi sti ng  that  effort.  

Mr.  Meadows.  And  so  at  what  poi nt  di d  George  Papadopoulos  

come  on  your  radar,  Di rector  Comey?  

Mr.  Comey.  Late  July,  whi ch  i s  what  -- oh,  sorry.  

Mr.  Meadows.  So,  you' re  sayi ng  late  July  --

Ms.  Bessee.  Congressman?  

Mr.  Meadows.  Well,  hold  on.  Hear  me  out.  Hear  the  

questi on.  Because  we' ve  had  other  testi mony  that  would  

i ndi cate,  i n  a  nonclassi fi ed  setti ng,  that  goes  ri ght  to  the  

heart  of  thi s  matter,  even  from  Mr.  Papadopoulos  hi mself.  So,  

pri or  to  July  31st  of  2016,  when  you  opened  what  i s  now  known  

as,  I  guess,  Crossfi re  Hurri cane,  or  thi s  i nvesti gati on,  was  

there  no  effort  on  part  -- on  the  part  of  the  FBI  or  no  
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knowledge  -- let  me  correct  that  -- no  knowledge  on  the  part  of  

the  FBI  of  anybody,  George  Papadopoulos  or  any  others,  that  

potenti ally  could  have  been  i nvolved  i n  thi s  Russi an  narrati ve?  

Mr.  Comey.  Thi s  -- Counsel,  thi s  I' ve  sai d  publi cly,  and  

i t' s  been  cleared,  I  thi nk,  i n  my  book,  so  I' m  goi ng  to  say  i t  

agai n.  My  recollecti on  i s  the  fi rst  i nformati on  we  had,  

certai nly  the  fi rst  i nformati on  that  came  to  my  attenti on  that  

Ameri cans  mi ght  be  worki ng  wi th  the  Russi ans  as  part  of  thei r  

efforts,  came  at  the  end  of  July  -- I  thi nk  the  31st  i s  too  late,  

but  the  last  week  of  July  -- when  we  recei ved  i nformati on  from  

an  alli ed  nati on  about  the  conversati ons  thei r  ambassador  had  

i n  England  wi th  George  Papadopoulos.  

That  was  the  begi nni ng  of  i t,  whi ch  i s  the  fi rst  ti me  we  

turned  to  tryi ng  to  fi gure  out  whether  any  Ameri cans  were  worki ng  

wi th  the  Russi ans.  

Mr.  Meadows.  So  any  i nformati on  that  was  collected  pri or  

to  that  would  have  been  done  wi thout  the  FBI' s knowledge,  wi thout  

your  di rect  knowledge?  Is  that  what  you' re  telli ng  me?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  what  you  mean  by  "any  i nformati on  

that  was  collected. "  

Mr.  Meadows.  So  any  counteri ntelli gence  collecti on  that  

was  done  by  the  FBI  would  have  been  done  wi thout  your  knowledge  

pri or  to  the  last  week  of  July  2016?  

Mr.  Comey.  I' m  sorry  to  keep  qui bbli ng,  but  I  don' t  know  

what  you  mean  by  "any  i nformati on  collected. "  The  FBI  has  lots  
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of  collecti on  goi ng  on  all  the  ti me.  

Mr.  Meadows.  As  i t  relates  to  Russi an  i nterference and  the  

potenti al  use  of  people  wi thi n  the  Trump  campai gn,  was  there  any  

i ni ti ati on  on  the  part  of  the  FBI  to  collect  i nformati on  pri or  

to  the  last  week  of  July  of  2016?  And  i f  so  -- well,  answer  that  

questi on.  

Mr.  Comey.  So  I  want  to  make  sure  I' m  getti ng  i t  ri ght.  

Was  there  --

Mr.  Meadows.  I  want  you  to  get  i t  ri ght,  too,  because  i t' s  

at  confli ct  wi th  -- what  you' re  sayi ng  i s  at  confli ct  wi th  what  

we' ve  had  i n  other  testi mony.  

Mr.  Comey.  Okay.  Well,  I  mean,  I  can' t  help  that.  I' ll  

tell  you  what  I  -- what  I  know,  that,  i f  you' re  aski ng,  was  there  

any  i nformati on  that  the  FBI  had  that  people  associ ated  wi th  the  

Trump  campai gn  mi ght  be  worki ng  wi th  the  Russi ans  -- i f  we  had  

any  such  i nformati on  before  the  end  of  July?  Is  that  the  

questi on?  

Mr.  Meadows.  Well,  you  can  answer  that  questi on.  

Mr.  Comey.  Yeah,  I' m  not  aware  of  any  i nformati on  before  

the  end  of  July  on  that  subj ect  --

Mr.  Meadows.  Ri ght.  

Mr.  Comey.  -- and  i t  was  our  fi rst  i nformati on  at  the  end  

of  July  that  prompted  the  openi ng  of  those  four  fi les.  

Mr.  Meadows.  So,  pri or  to  the  end  of  July,  di d  you  di rect  

or  di d  you  have  knowledge  of  the  FBI  tryi ng  to  collect i nformati on  

Document  ID:  0.7.1278.5117-000034  



 

 

          


          


   

              


            


          


            


         


    

      

             

              


            


        

       

         

              


           


  

           


           


            


           


  

       

  

138  

about  the  possi ble  Russi an-Trump  campai gn  -- and  I  won' t  use  the  

word  "collusi on"  -- but  i nteracti ons  as  i t  relates  to  the  2016  

Presi denti al  electi on?  

Mr.  Comey.  Not  that  I' m  aware  of.  I' m  sure  there  was  lots  

of  effort  to  fi gure  out  what  the  heck  was  goi ng  on  wi th  the  

Russi ans  because  we  saw  thei r  effort  blossom  i n  the  mi ddle  of  

June.  But  I' m  not  aware  of  any  i nformati on  before  that  at  the  

end  of  July  about  the  possi bi li ty  that  Ameri cans  were  worki ng  

wi th  the  Russi ans.  

Mr.  Meadows.  So  --

Mr.  Comey.  That' s  what  led  to  the  openi ng  of  those  --

Mr.  Meadows.  So,  i f  Mr.  Baker  or  anyone  wi thi n  the  FBI  had  

acti vely  engaged  i n  that  pri or  to  the  last  week  of  July  of  2016,  

that  would  have  been  wi thout  your  knowledge?  

Mr.  Comey.  See  I  don' t  --

Mr.  Meadows.  That' s  what  you' re  testi fyi ng  --

Mr.  Comey.  -- i t' s  possi ble  I  knew  at  the  ti me.  I  don' t  

remember  any  i nformati on  before  the  end  of  July  that  bore  on  that  

topi c.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Di rector,  we  only  have  a  couple  mi nutes  before  

i t' s  the  Democrats'  turn.  I  thi nk  duri ng  the  last  ti me  we  

talked  -- well,  the  fi rst  ti me  we  talked,  you  sai d  you  di d  not  

talk  to  Rod  Rosenstei n  after  you  recei ved  word  that  you  had  been  

termi nated?  

Mr.  Comey.  That' s  correct.  
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Mr.  Gowdy.  Have  you  had  a  conversati on  wi th  the  Presi dent  

si nce  you  were  termi nated?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Have  you  had  a  conversati on  wi th  Jeff  Sessi ons?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Di d  you  have  a  conversati on  wi th  Bob  Mueller  

from  the  ti me  you  were  termi nated  unti l  the  ti me  he  was  appoi nted  

speci al  counsel?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Di d  you  have  a  conversati on  wi th  anyone  who  i s  

currently  on  Speci al  Counsel  Mueller' s  team  between  the  ti me  you  

were  termi nated  and  the  ti me  speci al  counsel  was  appoi nted?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  

Mr.  Meadows.  Let  me  ask  one  clari fyi ng  questi on,  i f  you  

don' t  mi nd.  

Di rector  Comey,  you  were  sayi ng  that  you  had  no  knowledge  

that  Perki ns  Coi e  was  actually  i nvolved  wi th  the  Democrat  

Nati onal  Commi ttee  and  i nvolved  i n  thi s  parti cular  i nvesti gati on  

that  ulti mately  was  i ni ti ated.  Is  that  correct?  

Mr.  Comey.  I,  when  I  was  FBI  Di rector,  don' t  remember  ever  

bei ng  told  anythi ng  about  Perki ns  Coi e.  I  thi nk  I' ve  si nce  read  

stuff  i n  the  medi a,  but  not  when  I  was  Di rector.  

Mr.  Meadows.  So  are  you  sayi ng  that  James  Baker,  your  

general  counsel,  who  recei ved  di rect  i nformati on  from  Perki ns  

Coi e,  di d  so  and  conveyed  that  to  your  team  wi thout  your  
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knowledge?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know.  

Mr.  Meadows.  What  do  you  mean  you  don' t  know?  I  mean,  di d  

he  tell  you  or  not?  

Mr.  Comey.  Oh,  I  -- well  --

Mr.  Meadows.  James  Baker,  we  have  testi mony  that  would  

i ndi cate  that  he  recei ved  i nformati on  di rectly  from  Perki ns  

Coi e;  he  had  knowledge  that  they  were  representi ng  the  Democrat  

Nati onal  Commi ttee  and,  i ndeed,  collected  that  i nformati on  and  

conveyed  i t  to  the  i nvesti gati ve  team.  Di d  he  tell  you  that  he  

recei ved  that  i nformati on  from  them?  And  I  can  gi ve  you  a  name  

i f  you  want  to  know  who  he  recei ved  i t  from.  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  remember  the  name  Perki ns  Coi e  at  all.  

Mr.  Meadows.  What  about  Mi chael  Sussmann?  

Mr.  Comey.  I thi nk  I' ve  read  that  name  si nce then.  I don' t  

remember  learni ng  that  name  when  I  was  FBI  Di rector.  

I  was  goi ng  to  ask  you  a  followup,  though.  When  you  say  

"that  i nformati on, "  what  do  you  mean?  

Mr.  Meadows.  Well,  i t  was  cyber  i nformati on  as  i t  relates  

to  the  i nvesti gati on.  

Mr.  Comey.  Yeah,  I  have  some  recollecti on  of  Baker  

i nteracti ng  wi th  -- you  sai d  the  DNC,  whi ch  sparked  my  

recollecti on  -- wi th  the  DNC  about  our  effort  to  get  i nformati on  

about  the  Russi an  hack  of  them  --

Mr.  Meadows.  Yeah,  that' s  -- that' s  not  -- that' s  not  what  
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I' m  referri ng  to.  

Mr.  Comey.  -- but  I  don' t  -- I  don' t  remember  anythi ng  

beyond  that.  

Mr.  Meadows.  And  so  I  can  gi ve  you  somethi ng  so  that  

you  -- your  counsel  can  look  at  i t  and  refresh  your  memory,  

perhaps,  as  we  look  at  that,  but  I  guess  my  concern  i s  your  earli er  

testi mony  acted  li ke  thi s  was  news  to  you  that  Perki ns  Coi e  

represented  the  Democrati c Nati onal  Commi ttee,  and  yet  your  

general  counsel  not  only  knew  that  but  recei ved  i nformati on  from  

them  that  was  transmi tted  to  other  people  i n  the  i nvesti gati ve  

team.  And  I fi nd  i t  i nteresti ng  that  the  Di rector  would  not  know  

about  that  because  i t  i s  not  normal  that  your  general  counsel  

would  be  a  custodi an  of  evi dence.  Is  that  correct?  Was  

i t  -- was  i t  normal  that  people  sought  out  your  general  counsel  

to  make  them  aware  of  potenti al  concerns?  Is  that  normal?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  ki nd  of  thi nk  i t  i s  not  as  uncommon  as  you' re  

suggesti ng  i t  i s.  

Mr.  Meadows.  Well,  Mr.  Baker  thought  i t  was  uncommon.  He  

sai d  he  couldn' t  ever  recall  i t  ever  happeni ng  before.  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  what  the  "i t"  i s.  What  I' m  

struggli ng  wi th  here  i s  --

Mr.  Meadows.  Where  someone  reaches  out  to  the  general  

counsel  to  gi ve  them  evi dence  to  say  that  they  want  the  FBI  to  

look  i nto  i t.  He  couldn' t  recall  another  ti me.  And  you' re  

sayi ng  i t' s  not  uncommon.  
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Mr.  Comey.  Used  to  happen  to  me  all  the  ti me.  People  would  

emai l  me,  sayi ng,  check  thi s  out,  check  that  out,  so  --

Mr.  Meadows.  It  may  happen  wi th  the  Di rector,  but  i t  di dn' t  

happen  wi th  the  general  counsel.  

Mr.  Comey.  Okay.  That  surpri ses  me  a  li ttle  bi t,  but  i n  

any  event,  I  don' t  remember  hi m  rai si ng  i t.  I  don' t  thi nk  i t' s  

parti cularly  noteworthy  that  he  wouldn' t  tell  me,  but  I  don' t  

know  enough  to  react  to  i t.  

Mr.  Meadows.  So  he  says  a  uni que  si tuati on  that  had  only,  

i n  hi s  mi nd,  happened  twi ce  i n  hi s  hi story  wi th  the  Bureau,  and  

you' re  sayi ng  that  i t  was  so  uni que  there  that  -- yet  he  di d  not  

tell  you  about  that?  Is  that  your  testi mony?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  

Mr.  Meadows.  That' s  not  your  testi mony?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  

Mr.  Meadows.  Or  he  di dn' t  tell  you?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  I  -- I  di dn' t  -- I  heard  you  

characteri zi ng  my  testi mony  as  me  sayi ng  i t' s so  uni que.  I don' t  

remember  --

Mr.  Meadows.  I' m  sayi ng  he  sai d  i t  was  uni que;  di d  he  tell  

you?  

Mr.  Comey.  I' m  struggli ng  because  I  haven' t  seen  hi s  

testi mony.  So  maybe  you  could  let  me  look  at  i t  duri ng  the  break,  

and  then  I  can  answer  on  our  next  round.  

Mr.  Meadows.  Yeah,  i t' s  -- i t' s  j ust  a  two  -- two  
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sentence, and I' ll read i t to you: It was unusual for me to be 

the reci pi ent of i nformati on di rectly from the publi c or a lawyer 

or anyone else about an allegati on of a cri me, close quote. 

Mr. Comey. Okay. I mean, I a cept your readi ng of i t. It 

doesn' t change my reacti on that i t doesn' t -- I don' t remember 

i t. Second, i t doesn' t stri ke me as extraordi nary that, i f that 

had happened, he wouldn' t gi ve me the parti culars. 

Mr. Meadows. We' re out of ti me. 

[Recess. ] 
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[2: 12 p. m. ] 

Ms. Sachsman Grooms. Okay. We' ll go back on the 

record. It i s 2: 12. I j ust have a li ttle bi t of cleanup from 

the last round, and then I' ll pass off to the members. 

BY MS. SACHSMAN GROOMS: 

Q In the last round, you were talki ng about the i mportance 

of the FBI and DOJ shari ng the complete pi cture of the evi dence 

wi th the FISA court. Is that a curate? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. Does that requi re every detai l of that 

i nformati on or a general pi cture? 

A No, i t doesn' t -- look, I don' t thi nk there' s a Brady 

obli gati on that appli es i n the probable cause presentati on 

requi rement context or you have to turn over your enti re fi le. 

You have a general duty of candor to the court, so you try to 

make them generally aware of the state of the evi dence that 

they' re relyi ng upon. 

Q And I thi nk thi s mi ght have gotten a li ttle bi t garbled 

through the questi ons i n the last round. I thi nk you sai d that 

i t was relevant to you to provi de to the court the i nformati on 

regardi ng who was payi ng Chri stopher Steele. Is that a curate? 

A I don' t remember whether I focused on i t at the ti me. 

I thi nk i t' s i mportant that any materi al i ssue of bi as be 

surfaced for a court about one of your sources, and so I thi nk 

i t made sense for the Department of Justi ce to alert the court 
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that there was poli ti cally moti vated fi nanci al support for thi s 

effort. 

Q And so i n order to do that, you thought i t was i mportant 

to say the sort of general statement that i t had been funded or 

poli ti cally moti vated i n the fi nanci ng by Republi cans or 

Democrats i n general? 

A Ri ght. And the parti culars of whi ch Democrats, whi ch 

Republi cans, I wouldn' t thi nk would be i mportant to the court. 

They' d want to be aware of the general bi as, and that' s my 

reacti on. 

Q Okay. And I wanted to be really clear on that because, 

i n the last round, I thi nk there were a number of questi ons about 

the parti culars of whether you knew or the court knew that the 

DNC had speci fi cally pai d Perki ns Coi e as a law fi rm and that 

had been the condui t to payi ng Chri stopher Steele. 

Di d you thi nk the parti culars of that were i mportant to 

ei ther your analysi s or to the FISA court? 

A No, I wouldn' t thi nk so. It actually doesn' t even seem 

i mportant to me now, who cares what parti cular organi zati ons or 

parti cular people. The court needed to be aware that there' s 

a potenti al for bi as because there' s a poli ti cal moti vati on to 

the support for thi s effort. 

Q Di d you then or do you know have any concerns about the 

process that o curred around the Carter Page FISA? 

A I do not. 
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Q In the last round, I thi nk you were asked a number of 

questi ons around the ti mi ng of the i ni ti ati on of the Russi a 

i nvesti gati on as i t pertai ns to the connecti on to U. S. persons. 

And I thi nk duri ng that you sai d that was towards the end of July 

that that o curred. Is that ri ght? 

A That' s my recollecti on, yes. 

Q I thi nk the underlyi ng questi ons that came up have to 

do wi th some acti ons that were taken by Peter Strzok and by others 

i n the ti me peri od before the end of July. They traveled to 

London, they di d i nvesti gatory work on a number of di fferent 

thi ngs. 

If they were doi ng that work, i s i t fai r to say that that 

work would not have been part of i nvesti gati ng U. S. persons 

connected to the Russi ans i n that ti me peri od pri or to the end 

of July? 

A I don' t know. If my recollecti on i s correct that we 

opened the cases on the U. S. persons at the end of July, then 

i t' s possi ble there was work bei ng done i mmedi ately before that 

to flesh out and understand the i nformati on that would then 

predi cate the cases that would be opened at the end of July, but 

I don' t know that. I remember the cases bei ng opened at the end 

of July, and I don' t know the nature and quali ty of any work that 

went on before that. 

Q But Peter Strzok and hi s team were worki ng on larger 

scale Russi a thi ngs before that, ri ght? 
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A  Ri ght,  to  try  to  understand  what  are  the  Russi ans  doi ng,  

what' s  the  scope  of  i t,  what' s  i ts  i ntenti on.  

Q  And  wi thout  getti ng  i nto  the  parti culars  of  what  they  

were  doi ng,  those  thi ngs  could  have  i ncluded  traveli ng  to  forei gn  

countri es  or  i ntervi ewi ng  wi tnesses,  et  cetera?  

A  Of  course.  I  j ust  don' t  remember  i t.  

Q  And  then  I  j ust  had  one  more  thi ng.  At  the  end  of  the  

last  round,  there  was  a  long  di scussi on  about  Mr.  Baker  and  hi s  

testi mony  and  how  he  had  testi fi ed  that  there  was  thi s  uni que  

i nstance,  and  I  j ust  wanted  to  read  i nto  the  record  some  of  hi s  

testi mony  from  hi s  second  day  when  he  came  back,  because  we  saw  

hi m  twi ce.  

And  i n  that,  at  the  very  begi nni ng,  he  sai d  he  wanted  to  

bri ng  up  thi s  thi ng  that  he  had  not  recalled  from  the  previ ous  

one,  and  I' m  j ust  goi ng  to  read  from  the  record.  He  sai d:  So  

I  recalled  after,  j ust  actually  a  few  days  ago,  that  another  

i nci dent  when  thi s  ti me  an  attorney  on  behalf  of  a  cli ent  came  

to  me  and  wanted  -- came  speci fi cally  to  me  and  wanted  to  make  

i nformati on  avai lable  to  the  FBI  i n  the  form  of  electroni c medi a  

that  he  wanted  to  get  i nto  the  --

Mr.  Jordan  asked:  Di fferent  case  or  same  case?  

Mr.  Baker  sai d:  Di fferent  case.  

Mr.  Jordan  sai d:  Okay.  

Mr.  Baker  sai d:  Well,  a  completely  di fferent  case,  

di fferent  attorney,  di fferent  cli ent,  but  i nsi sted  on  meeti ng  

Document  ID:  0.7.1278.5117-000034  



 

 

             


            


              


             


         

           

         


          

         


         


       


        


        


        


       

          


        


   

             


        

       

      

           


          


       


  

c

148 

only wi th me or the Di rector, and then he di d not have the materi al 

wi th hi m at the ti me. We had to actually di spatch FBI agents 

to go to a -- from a fi eld offi ce to go to collect thi s materi al. 

It was i n the -- to the best of my recollecti on, i t was roughly 

i n the late summer, fall of 2016 ti meframe. 

So I j ust wanted to clari fy that for the record. 

Mr. Kri shnamoorthi . Di rector Comey, thank you for comi ng, 

and thank you for your servi ce to your country. 

In March 2017, you di sclosed i n publi c testi mony that the 

FBI had begun an i nvesti gati on i nto, quote: The Russi an 

Government' s efforts to i nterfere i n the 2016 Presi denti al 

electi on, i ncludi ng, quote, the nature of any li nks between 

i ndi vi duals associ ated wi th the Trump campai gn and the Russi an 

Government and whether there was any coordi nati on between the 

campai gn and Russi a' s efforts, close quote. 

When di d the FBI fi rst learn of credi ble evi dence that the 

Russi an Government was tryi ng to i nterfere i n the 2016 

Presi denti al electi on? 

Mr. Comey. I beli eve i t was wi th the release i n mi d June 

of the DCLeaks and Gu ci fer 2. 0 stolen emai ls. 

Mr. Kri shnamoorthi . Mi d June 2016? 

Mr. Comey. Correct. 

Mr. Kri shnamoorthi . Were you, at that ti me, aware of the 

meeti ng at Trump Tower on June 9th, 2016, between Donald Trump, 

Juni or, Paul Manafort, Jared Kushner, and some Russi an 
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nati onals?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  thi nk  that' s  a  questi on  that  I  can' t  answer  

because  i t  di ves  i nto  a nonpubli c level  of  detai l  about  the  Russi a  

i nvesti gati on.  

Mr.  Kri shnamoorthi .  Okay.  So  i n  mi d  June  2016,  you  fi rst  

learned  about  the  Russi an  Government' s  i nterference  or  attempt  

to  i nterfere  i n  the  2016  Presi denti al  electi on.  When  di d  the  

FBI  fi rst  learn  of  credi ble  evi dence  that  i ndi vi duals  associ ated  

wi th  the  Trump  campai gn  may  be  coordi nati ng  wi th  the  Russi an  

Government?  

Mr.  Comey.  The  fi rst  I' m  aware  of  that  was  the  end  of  July  

of  2016,  whi ch  i s  what  led  us  to  open  counteri ntelli gence  cases  

on  four  di fferent  Ameri cans.  

Mr.  Kri shnamoorthi .  Okay.  And  what  was  your  reacti on  to  

thi s?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  remember  a  parti cular  reacti on,  other  

than  that  i t  was  goi ng  to  be  very  i mportant  that  we  do  thi s  i n  

a  close  hold  way  so  that  we  don' t  alert  the  people  we' re  goi ng  

to  i nvesti gate  that  we' re  looki ng  at  thi s  and  so  that  the  

i nvesti gati on  i s  able  to  be  done  i n  a  quali ty  way  i n  the  mi ddle  

of  a  poli ti cal  season.  I  remember  bei ng  concerned  about  that.  

And  then  j ust  open  mi nded  about  whether  there' s  anythi ng  to  i t  

or  not.  I  couldn' t  tell  at  the  begi nni ng  whether  there  was.  

Mr.  Kri shnamoorthi .  Have  you  ever  been  affi li ated  wi th  any  

ki nd  of  i nvesti gati on  si mi lar  to  thi s  where  a  forei gn  government  
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may  be  coordi nati ng  or  somehow  connecti ng  wi th  a  poli ti cal  

campai gn  of  the  Uni ted  States?  

Mr.  Comey.  Not  -- I  don' t  remember.  I' ve  been  i nvolved  

wi th  a  lot  of  cases  where  forei gn  governments  may  be  connected  

i n  an  i lli ci t  way  to  publi c fi gures.  That' s  a  bi g  part  of  the  

FBI' s  counteri ntelli gence  work.  I  don' t  remember  a  campai gn  

context.  

Mr.  Kri shnamoorthi .  Got  i t.  Has  the  FBI  ever  

i nvesti gated  the  potenti al  coordi nati on  between  a  Presi denti al  

campai gn  and  a  forei gn  adversary  before?  

Ms.  Bessee.  Congressman,  to  the  extent  i t  goes  to  

any  -- any  i nvesti gati ve  acti vi ty  that  the  FBI  may  be  

i nvesti gati ng,  the  wi tness  wi ll  not  be  able  to  answer  to  ei ther  

confi rm  or  deny.  Do  you  want  to  ask  that  questi on  i n  general?  

I  don' t  know  how  you  ask  that  hypotheti cally,  but  --

Mr.  Kri shnamoorthi .  No,  thi s  i s  about  past,  not  the  

current  Mueller  i nvesti gati on  or  any  current  i nvesti gati on.  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  remember  bei ng  i nvolved  i n  any  such  

i nvesti gati on  pri or  to  2016.  

[Comey  Exhi bi t  No.  3  

Was  marked  for  i denti fi cati on. ]  

Mr.  Kri shnamoorthi .  Okay.  I  would  li ke  to  i ntroduce  the  

followi ng  document  from  the  Baker  transcri pt,  page  72.  Thi s  i s  

the  transcri pt  of  former  FBI  general  counsel  James  Baker' s  

October  18th,  2018,  i ntervi ew  wi th  the  commi ttees.  

Document  ID:  0.7.1278.5117-000034  



 

 

        


      

          


          


          


           


      

          

         

         


     


      

         


       

          


              


              

          


       


      


        


  

        

         


       


  

151  

It  begi ns,  questi on:  And  what  was  the  i ni ti al  

concern/i ssue  rai sed  i n  the  i nvesti gati on?  

Answer:  Well,  the  i ni ti al  -- the  i ni ti al  i ssue  was  whether  

there  had  been  i nteracti ons  of  an  unlawful  nature  or  that  were  

a  threat  to  the  nati onal  securi ty  or  both  i n  connecti on  wi th  

the  -- at  least  some  people  i n  the  now  Presi dent' s  campai gn  wi th  

the  Russi an  Federati on,  wi tti ng  or  unwi tti ng.  

Questi on:  And  these  were  related  to  George  Papadopoulos?  

Answer:  Yes.  Informati on  that  he  conveyed,  yes.  

Questi on:  Can  you  confi rm  that  the  i ni ti al  allegati on  that  

started  the  Russi a  counteri ntelli gence  i nvesti gati on  had  

nothi ng  to  do  wi th  the  Steele  dossi er?  

And  there' s  an  i nterrupti on  by  the  counsel  to  cauti on  hi m  

to  answer  i n  an  unclassi fi ed  setti ng.  

And  then  he  answers,  answer:  Based  on  the  i nformati on  that  

I  have  seen  i n  the  publi c domai n,  I  thi nk  I  can  answer  i t.  And  

I  thi nk  the  answer  i s  i t  di d  not  have  to  do  wi th  the  dossi er.  

Di rector  Comey,  do  you  agree  wi th  Mr.  Baker  that  the  i ni ti al  

allegati on  i n  the  FBI' s  counteri ntelli gence  operati on  i nto  the  

Trump  campai gn' s  potenti al  coordi nati on  wi th  the  Russi an  

Government,  quote/unquote,  had  nothi ng  to  do  wi th  the  Steele  

dossi er?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes.  That' s  correct.  

Mr.  Kri shnamoorthi .  And  do  you  agree  the  i ni ti al  

allegati on  was  actually  related  to  i nformati on  that  George  
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Papadopolous  conveyed?  

Mr.  Comey.  That  he  conveyed  to  a  di plomat  that  was  then  

conveyed  to  the  U. S.  several  months  after  he  fi rst  conveyed  i t,  

yes.  

Mr.  Kri shnamoorthi .  Thank  you.  

Let  me  go  i nto  another  topi c.  So  earli er  i n  these  

proceedi ngs,  I  had  the  chance  to  questi on  Peter  Strzok  about  

leaks  from  the  FBI,  and  we  had  thi s  exchange.  

Thi s  i s  me  aski ng  the  questi on:  Could  you  explai n  to  me  

a  li ttle  bi t  about  Di rector  Comey' s  fear  of  leaks  from  the  New  

York  fi eld  offi ce  and  how  that,  i n  your  vi ew,  affected  the  

revelati on  of  the  warrant  for  Wei ner' s  laptop?  

Answer  from  Strzok:  You  have  to  ask  Di rector  Comey  that.  

I  thi nk  there  was  di scussi on  I  remember  and  parti cularly  some  

of  i t  was  i n  the  context  of  reporti ng  from  Mr.  Gi uli ani  and  others  

about  connecti ons  to  New  York.  

So  let  me  j ust  ask  you  what  I asked  hi m.  How  concerned  were  

you  about  leaks  from  the  New  York  fi eld  offi ce  to  Rudy  Gi uli ani  

or  other  medi a  personali ti es  i n  2016?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  was  concerned  that  there  appeared  to  be  i n  

the  medi a  a  number  of  stori es  that  mi ght  have  been  based  on  

communi cati ons  reporters  or  nonreporters  li ke  Rudy  Gi uli ani  were  

havi ng  wi th  people  i n  the  New  York  fi eld  offi ce.  In  parti cular,  

i n  I  want  to  say  mi d  October,  maybe  a  li ttle  bi t  later,  Mr.  

Gi uli ani  was  maki ng  statements  that  appeared  to  be  based  on  hi s  
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knowledge of worki ngs i nsi de the FBI New York. And then my 

recollecti on i s there were other stori es that were i n the same 

ballpark that gave me a general concern that we may have a leak 

problem -- unauthori zed di sclosure problem out of New York, and 

so I asked that i t be i nvesti gated. 

Mr. Kri shnamoorthi . Oh, okay. So the i nvesti gati on began 

at some poi nt after you asked for the i nvesti gati on to start? 

Mr. Comey. I thi nk someti me i n October, maybe they di dn' t 

get goi ng on i t unti l November, an effort led by our i nternal 

affai rs component, as I understand i t, began to try and 

understand, do we have leaks and what are they? 

Mr. Kri shnamoorthi . And to your knowledge, has anyone been 

held a countable for these purported leaks? 

Mr. Comey. Not to my knowledge. The i nvesti gati on 

ulti mately led to di sci pli ni ng of FBI Deputy Di rector McCabe 

because the i nvesti gati on turned up communi cati ons that he had 

apparently authori zed about a pendi ng i nvesti gati on of the 

Cli nton Foundati on, but I don' t know beyond that. 

Mr. Kri shnamoorthi . How about anythi ng related to the New 

York fi eld offi ce? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t -- I never got a report out on that 

before I was fi red. 

Mr. Kri shnamoorthi . I see. Okay. Here' s the concern, 

Di rector Comey. If no one' s been held a countable, especi ally 

from the New York fi eld offi ce, and i f there are leaks from the 
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New  York  fi eld  offi ce  to  potenti ally  people  li ke  Rudy  Gi uli ani ,  

who' s  the  current  lawyer  for  the  Presi dent,  then  they  have  an  

acti ve  wi ndow  i nto  the  i nvesti gati on  of  them,  and  that' s  why  I  

thi nk  a  lot  of  people  are  concerned  about  whether  that  

i nvesti gati on  concluded  or  not.  

Who  would  we  talk  to  about  thi s  parti cular  i ssue  i f  we  wanted  

to  learn  the  status  of  that  i nvesti gati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  Well,  the  FBI,  whoever  you  normally  talk  to  

there,  would  be  the  place to  start.  I don' t know  whether  they' re  

i n  a  posi ti on  to  comment  or  not.  I  don' t  know  what  i ts  status  

was  when  I  was  fi red  i n  May.  

Mr.  Kri shnamoorthi .  Got  i t.  

Okay.  Next  topi c.  The  Washi ngton  Post  reported  

previ ously  and  The  Atlanti c confi rmed  that  former  acti ng  FBI  

Di rector  McCabe  opened  an  obstructi on  of  j usti ce  i nvesti gati on  

i nto  the  Presi dent  after  your  fi ri ng.  Pri or  to  that,  had  an  

obstructi on  of  j usti ce  i nvesti gati on  been  opened  i nto  the  

Presi dent  or  other  seni or  offi ci als  wi th  regard  to  Mi chael  Flynn?  

Mr.  Comey.  Not  to  my  knowledge,  no.  

Mr.  Kri shnamoorthi .  Okay.  I was  readi ng  i n  your  book  that  

on  February  14th,  2017,  after  your  conversati on  wi th  the  

Presi dent,  you  then  returned  to  your  car  and  then  emai led  your  

colleagues  about  thi s  parti cular  conversati on  wi th  regard  to  Mr.  

Flynn.  

What  came  of  that  at  that  poi nt?  Di d  you  hold  off  on  a  

Document  ID:  0.7.1278.5117-000034  



 

 

        


            


              


        


      

            


          


          


          


           


         


          


             


        


            


            


           


         

     

             


           


         


     

           


         


  

155  

potenti al  i nvesti gati on  i nto  obstructi on  of  j usti ce  or  what  was  

your  -- what  was  your  thought  process  there?  Because  I  know  that  

you  also  sai d  i n  the  book  that  you  di dn' t  know  who  to  go  to,  you  

couldn' t  go  to  Sessi ons  and  the  Deputy  Attorney  General  

was  -- I' ll  let  you  answer.  

Mr.  Comey.  I  met  wi th  the  seni or  leadershi p  team  of  the  

FBI,  shared  wi th  them  a  memo  that  I  created  about  the  

February  14th  conversati on,  and  we  debated  what  to  do.  And  

because  we  di dn' t  feel  we  could  go  to  Attorney  General  Sessi ons  

because  he  was  about  to  be  recused,  there  was  no  Deputy  Attorney  

General  because  Mr.  Rosenstei n  had  not  been  confi rmed  yet,  and  

we  di dn' t  want  to  do  anythi ng  that  mi ght  chi ll  the  i nvesti gati ve  

team.  We  deci ded  that  we  would  si mply  hold  on  to  i t,  keep  the  

i nformati on  close  hold  unti l  the  Department  of  Justi ce  sorted  

out  how  they  were  goi ng  to  supervi se  thi s  and  then  we  could  bri ng  

them  i nto  i t  and  fi gure  out  what  should  we  do  to  i nvesti gate  thi s.  

And  so  that' s  why  I  say,  to  my  knowledge,  no  i nvesti gati on  was  

opened  on  the  obstructi on  of  j usti ce  at  that  poi nt.  

Mr.  Kri shnamoorthi .  Okay.  

Mr.  Comey.  We  held  i t,  and  we  actually  never  got  to  the  

chance  -- the  Department  of  Justi ce  di dn' t  get  to  the  poi nt  of  

fi guri ng  out  how  they  were  goi ng  to  supervi se  the  i nvesti gati on  

unti l  after  I  was  fi red.  

Mr.  Kri shnamoorthi .  Why  -- for  a  layperson  who  may  not  

understand  why  you  even  thought  about  thi s  amounti ng  to  potenti al  
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obstructi on  of  j usti ce,  can  you  walk  us  through  that?  Why  i s  

thi s  somethi ng  that  mi ght  cause  the  concern  about  an  allegati on  

of  obstructi on  of  j usti ce?  

Mr.  Comey.  Well,  the  Presi dent  of  the  Uni ted  States  asked  

me,  di rected  me  i n  my  apprehensi on  of  i t  to  drop  a  cri mi nal  

i nvesti gati on,  and  so  that  i s  an  extraordi nary  use  of  power  and  

could  amount  to  obstructi on  of  j usti ce.  That  i s  a  corrupt  

endeavor  to  i mpede  the  admi ni strati on  of  j usti ce.  I  don' t  know  

what  the  answer  i s  to  the  ulti mate  questi on,  but  gi ven  that,  i t  

was  somethi ng  that  needed  to  be  i nvesti gated.  

Mr.  Kri shnamoorthi .  And  i s  the  reason  why  you  say  "could"  

because  you  need  to  get  to  the  i ntent  behi nd  why  the  i nvesti gati on  

i s  bei ng  asked  to  be  dropped?  

Mr.  Comey.  Correct.  

Mr.  Kri shnamoorthi .  Okay.  You  know,  we  are  goi ng  to  be  

i n  the  maj ori ty  i n  the  House  starti ng  i n  January,  and  so  one  of  

the  questi ons  that  folks  li ke  myself  have  i s,  steppi ng  back  for  

a  second,  you  know,  you  were  there  for  qui te  a  whi le  duri ng  the  

Russi a  i nvesti gati on,  from  end  of  July  2016  through  the  ti me  that  

you  were  let  go  i n  May  2017.  So  almost  1  year.  You  learned  a  

lot  probably  duri ng  that  ti me.  

What  lessons  di d  you  learn  duri ng  that  ti me  that  would  

i nform  us  as  we  conduct  oversi ght,  not  necessari ly  from  the  

standpoi nt  of  a  forensi c cri mi nal  i nvesti gati on,  but  from  the  

standpoi nt  of  protecti ng  our  democracy?  
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Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  that  I  can  gi ve  you  a  thoughtful  

enough  answer  si tti ng  here  after  5 hours  of  questi ons.  I' d have  

to  thi nk  about  that  one  because  i t' s an  i mportant  questi on  I  would  

not  want  to  answer  causally.  So  I' m  goi ng  to  have  to  take  a  rai n  

check  on  that  one.  Yeah.  

Maybe  the  one  thi ng  i s,  as  you  exerci se  i ncredi bly  i mportant  

oversi ght  power,  I  sai d  earli er,  I  thi nk  thi s  branch  of  

government  has  neglected  i ts  authori ti es  and  needs  to  assert  i ts  

authori ti es,  but  i n  doi ng  that,  to  be  sensi ti ve  about  the  need  

to  coordi nate  wi th  ongoi ng  i nvesti gati ons  so  nothi ng  happens  to  

affect  or  to  cast  doubt  on  the  credi bi li ty  of  an  ongoi ng  

i nvesti gati on.  

Mr.  Kri shnamoorthi .  Very  good.  Let  me  j ust  make  sure  I  

don' t  have  a  fi nal  questi on  here  for  you.  

I  thi nk  that' s  i t  for  me.  Thank  you.  

Mr.  Comey.  Thank  you.  

Mr.  Deutch.  Mr.  Comey,  thanks  for  bei ng  here.  Ni ce to  see  

you  agai n.  

Mr.  Comey.  You  too.  

Mr.  Deutch.  Just  one  qui ck  followup  to  what  you  j ust  sai d  

that  thi s  branch  that  has  neglected  i ts  responsi bi li ti es  

shouldn' t  act  i n  a  way  that  would  cast  doubt  on  any  of  the  

i nvesti gati ons.  You' re  referri ng  -- are  you  referri ng  to  the  

acti ons  of  thi s  branch  i n  recent  days  or  years?  

Mr.  Comey.  Not  i n  the  second  part  of  that  sentence;  i n  the  
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fi rst  part,  yes,  generally.  But  what  I  meant  by  the  second  one  

i s  speci al  counsel' s  i nvesti gati on  i s  goi ng  to  be  ongoi ng,  I  

would  assume,  when  the  maj ori ty  changes,  and  I  thi nk  i t' s  j ust  

very  i mportant  for  whoever  i s  i n  the  maj ori ty  to  be  sure  to  be  

sensi ti ve  to  the  need  to  balance  oversi ght  wi th  an  ongoi ng  

cri mi nal  i nvesti gati on.  That' s  what  I  meant  by  that.  

Mr.  Deutch.  I  appreci ate  that.  

I  wanted  to  pi ck  up  on  thi s  last  li ne  of  questi ons.  There  

were  press  reports  that  on  May  10th,  2017,  the  day  after  the  

Presi dent  fi red  you,  he  met  wi th  Russi a' s  forei gn  mi ni ster  and  

the  Russi an  ambassador  i n  the  Oval  Offi ce,  and  told  them,  quote:  

I  j ust  fi red  the  head  of  the  FBI.  He  was  crazy,  a  real  nut  j ob.  

I  face  great  pressure  because  of  Russi a.  That' s  taken  off,  

closed  quote.  

Then  the  next  day,  Presi dent  Trump  stated  duri ng  a  

nati onally  televi sed  i ntervi ew  wi th  Lester  Holt  that,  quote,  

"thi s  Russi a  thi ng, "  close  quote,  was  on  hi s  mi nd  when  he  deci ded  

to  fi re  you.  

And  then  duri ng  your  June  2017  Senate  Intelli gence  

Commi ttee  heari ng,  you  were  asked  why  you  beli eve  Presi dent  Trump  

fi red  you,  and  you  responded,  and  I  quote  you:  I  guess  I  don' t  

know  for  sure.  I  beli eve  I  take  the  Presi dent  at  hi s  word  that  

I  was  fi red  because  of  the  Russi a  i nvesti gati on.  Somethi ng  

about  the  way  I  was  conducti ng  i t  the  Presi dent  felt  created  

pressure  on  hi m  that  he  wanted  to  reli eve,  closed  quote.  
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Do you sti ll beli eve that the Presi dent fi red you because 

of the Russi a i nvesti gati on? 

Mr. Comey. I thi nk on balance that I do. The only 

hesi tati on I have i s I' ve seen the Presi dent si nce sayi ng other 

thi ngs that i t wasn' t because of that, and so I' m i n a posi ti on 

where I can' t know for sure. 

Mr. Deutch. When you stated, "I take the Presi dent at hi s 

word, " were you referri ng to ei ther hi s meeti ng wi th the Russi ans 

or hi s i ntervi ew wi th Lester Holt? 

Mr. Comey. Both, but more so to the Holt i ntervi ew because 

i t was on the record. I don' t know whether the Washi ngton -- I 

thi nk i t was The Washi ngton Post reporti ng on that encounter wi th 

the Russi an ambassador and forei gn mi ni ster was a curate, so I 

tend to put more wei ght on hi s own words speaki ng to Lester Holt. 

[Comey Exhi bi t No. 4 

Was marked for i denti fi cati on. ] 

Mr. Deutch. I' d li ke to i ntroduce exhi bi t 4. It' s the 

Baker 10/3/18 transcri pt, pages 147 to 148. That' s the 

transcri pt of former FBI general counsel James Baker' s 

October 3rd i ntervi ew wi th the commi ttee. 

It reads, questi on: Can you explai n what the atmosphere 

was li ke at the FBI after the Presi dent fi red Comey? 

Answer: I' m not sure that I can reduce i t to one or two 

words. It was an, I guess, horri ble atmosphere. It was shock, 

di smay, confusi on at least i ni ti ally that ni ght and then -- and 
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then  a  sense  of  resolve  that  came  pretty  qui ckly  as  well  to  

conti nue  the  FBI' s  mi ssi on.  And  as  I  was  sayi ng  earli er  to  the  

Congressman,  make  sure  that  we  were  all  adheri ng  to  our  oaths  

to  the  consti tuti on  and  executi ng  our  responsi bi li ti es.  

Questi on:  Was  there  concern  at  the  FBI  that  the  Presi dent  

had  fi red  Di rector  Comey  because  he  was  tryi ng  to  obstruct  the  

FBI' s  i nvesti gati on  i nto  the  Russi a  matter?  

Answer:  Yes.  

Questi on:  Was  that  the  concern  you  had?  

Answer:  Yes.  

Questi on:  Was  that  concern  shared  by  others?  

Answer:  I  thi nk  so,  yes.  

Questi on:  Who?  Who  else?  

Answer:  The  leadershi p  of  the  FBI,  so  the  acti ng  di rector.  

I  can' t  remember  i f  we  appoi nted  an  acti ng  deputy  di rector  

i mmedi ately.  The  heads  of  the  national  securi ty  apparatus,  the  

nati onal  securi ty  folks  wi thi n  the  FBI,  the  people  that  were  

aware  of  the  underlyi ng  i nvesti gati on  and  who  had  been  focused  

on  i t.  

And,  Di rector  Comey,  di d  you  share  Mr.  Baker' s  concern  that  

the  Presi dent  had  fi red  you  because  he  wanted  to  obstruct  or  

i mpede  the  FBI' s  i nvesti gati on  i nto  the  Russi a  matter?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  di d  because  of  hi s  words.  

Mr.  Deutch.  And  does  i t  surpri se  you  to  hear  that  the  

leadershi p,  the  nati onal  securi ty  offi ci als  at  the  FBI  were  
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concerned  that  Presi dent  Trump  fi red  you  i n  an  attempt  to  

obstruct  the  FBI' s  i nvesti gati on  i nto  the  Russi a  matter?  

Mr.  Comey.  No,  i t  doesn' t  surpri se  me  at  all.  

Mr.  Deutch.  Turni ng  j ust  for  a  moment  before  I  wrap  up  to  

summer  -- earli er  summer  of  2018,  July  29th,  i n  fact,  the  

Presi dent  tweeted,  and  I  quote:  There  i s  no  collusi on.  The  

Robert  Mueller  ri gged  wi tch hunt  headed  now  by  17,  i ncreased  from  

13,  i ncludi ng  an  Obama  Whi te  House  lawyer,  angry  Democrats,  was  

started  by  a  fraudulent  dossi er  pai d  for  by  crooked  Hi llary  and  

the  DNC.  Therefore,  the  wi tch  hunt  i s  an  i llegal  scam.  

Mr.  Comey,  was  the  FBI' s  i nvesti gati on  i nto  Russi an  

i nterference  and  potenti al  coordi nati on  wi th  the  Trump  campai gn  

started  by  a  fraudulent  dossi er?  

Mr.  Comey.  It  was  not.  

Mr.  Deutch.  Can  you  explai n  how  you  know  that?  

Mr.  Comey.  Because  I  know  what  the  basi s  was  for  starti ng  

the  i nvesti gati on.  It  was  the  i nformati on  we' d  recei ved  about  

a  conversati on  that  a  Trump  forei gn  -- campai gn  forei gn  poli cy  

advi ser  had  wi th  an  i ndi vi dual  i n  London  about  stolen  emai ls  that  

the  Russi ans  had  that  would  be  harmful  to  Hi llary  Cli nton.  It  

was  weeks  or  months  later  that  the  so-called  Steele  dossi er  came  

to  our  attenti on.  

Mr.  Deutch.  Was  there  anythi ng  i llegal  or  i mproper  about  

the  way  the  FBI  started  the  Trump-Russi a  i nvesti gati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  And,  i n  fact,  I  would  hope  that  
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Republi cans  and  Democrats  would  agree  that  we  would  have  been  

dereli ct  not  to  i nvesti gate.  

Mr.  Deutch.  On  May  20th,  2018,  Presi dent  Trump  tweeted,  

agai n  I  quote:  I  hereby  demand,  and  wi ll  do  so  offi ci ally  

tomorrow,  that  the  Department  of  Justi ce  look  i nto  whether  or  

not  the  FBI/DOJ  i nfi ltrated  or  survei lled  the  Trump  campai gn  for  

poli ti cal  purposes,  and  i f  any  such demands  or  requests  were  made  

by  people  wi thi n  the  Obama  admi ni strati on.  

Di rector  Comey,  do  you  beli eve  the  FBI  or  DOJ  ever  

i nvesti gated  the  Trump  campai gn  for  poli ti cal  purposes?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  not  only  don' t  beli eve  i t,  I  know  i t  not  to  

be  true.  

Mr.  Deutch.  I' m  sorry,  would  you  repeat  that?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  know  i t  not  to  be  true.  I  know  that  we  never  

i nvesti gated  the  Trump  campai gn  for  poli ti cal  purposes.  

Mr.  Deutch.  Di d  Presi dent  Obama  or  anyone  i n  hi s  

admi ni strati on  ever  make  a  demand  or  a  request  the  FBI  or  DOJ  

i nfi ltrate  or  survei l  the  Trump  campai gn?  

Mr.  Comey.  No,  not  to  my  knowledge.  

Mr.  Deutch.  And,  Mr.  Comey,  how  would  you  have  reacted  i f  

you  had  recei ved  a  request  of  thi s  nature  from  any  

admi ni strati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  Well,  they  wouldn' t  -- no  one  would  dare  ask  

me  or  anybody  else  at  the  FBI  that  because  they  know  the  reacti on,  

whi ch  would  be  not  only  no,  but  hell  no.  
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Mr.  Deutch.  In  the  tweet  I  read,  Presi dent  Trump  appears  

to  be  di rectly  demandi ng  that  the  Department  of  Justi ce  launch  

an  i nvesti gati on  i nto  hi s  poli ti cal  opponents.  You' ve  already  

stated  the  answer  to  a  request  li ke  that  would  be  hell  no.  And  

why  i s  that,  Mr.  Comey?  

Mr.  Comey.  Because  that  represents  the  fi nal  corrupti on  

and  destructi on  of  our  system  of  j usti ce.  If  we  start  

i nvesti gati ng  people  by  fi at  from  the  leader  because  of  thei r  

poli ti cal  affi li ati on,  what  are  we  anymore,  whi ch  i s  why  i t  has  

been  so  di spi ri ti ng  not  to  see  both  si des  of  the  poli ti cal  ai sle  

react  to  thi s  wi th  shock  and  loud  voi ces.  It' s  j ust  not  who  we  

are.  I  don' t  care  who  the  Presi dent  i s,  i t' s  not  who  we  are.  

Mr.  Deutch.  I  appreci ate  that.  

My  fi nal  questi on  j ust  refers  to  somethi ng  you  sai d  earli er  

today.  You  sai d  that  there' s no  cri me  of  collusi on  as  i t' s used,  

I  thi nk,  i n  terms  of  conspi racy  or  ai di ng  and  abetti ng.  

haven' t  heard  the  term  collusi on  i n  my  years  at  Justi ce.  

Thi s  i nvesti gati on  or  I  would  say  j ust  to  try  to  make  thi s  

easi er  for  you  to  answer,  gi ven  your  descri pti on  of  collusi on,  

collusi on  would  not  be  the  basi s  for  an  i nvesti gation  conducted  

by  the  FBI?  

Mr.  Comey.  Ri ght,  because  i t' s  not  a  thi ng  i n  the  cri mi nal  

statutes,  that  I  understand  at  least.  It  would  be  i nvesti gati ng  

where  anyone  conspi red  wi th  the  Russi ans  or  ai ded  and  abetted  

the  Russi ans.  
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Mr.  Deutch.  Thank  you,  Mr.  Comey.  I  appreci ate  i t.  

Ms.  Plaskett.  Good  afternoon.  Good  afternoon,  everyone.  

Mr.  Comey,  before  we  begi n,  I  wanted  to  ask  a  questi on  from  

the  last  round  j ust  as  a  poi nt  of  clari fi cati on.  In  the  

di scussi on  about  why  you  put  -- i n  late  October  made  an  

announcement  agai n  about  the  Hi llary  Cli nton  emai l  

i nvesti gati on,  you  sai d  i t  was  for  consi stency.  What  precluded  

or  what  made  you  beli eve  or  the  FBI  not  beli eve  that  allowi ng  

the  publi c to  be  aware  of  the  i nvesti gati on  of  Russi a  and  possi ble  

i nterference  or  ai di ng  and  abetti ng  by  Trump  ai des  i n  hi s  

campai gn  would  j usti fy  that  as  well?  

Mr.  Comey.  Why  wouldn' t  we  announce  --

Ms.  Plaskett.  Why  wouldn' t  you  have  announced  that?  

Mr.  Comey.  Well,  for  a  number  of  reasons.  It  

would  -- there  wouldn' t be  any  poli cy excepti on  that  would  permi t  

i t;  that  i s,  i t  would  j eopardi ze  the  ongoi ng  i nvesti gati on  and  

i t  would  be  brutally  unfai r  because  we  di dn' t  know  whether  we  

had  anythi ng.  We  li terally  j ust  started.  And  as  I  sai d,  by  the  

ti me  I  was  fi red,  we  sti ll  hadn' t  come  to  a  conclusi on.  And  so  

we' d  be  reveali ng  somethi ng  that  was  i nherently  mi sleadi ng  and  

j eopardi zi ng  our  abi li ty  to  i nvesti gate  by  reveali ng  i t.  

It' s  for  that  reason  -- I  actually  don' t  remember  any  

di scussi on  about  whether  to  reveal  that  we  had  these  classi fi ed  

counteri ntelli gence  fi les.  Instead,  what  we  debated  a  lot  was  

should  we  tell  the  Ameri can  people  that  the  Russi ans  are  messi ng  
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wi th  our  electi on  more  broadly.  

Ms.  Plaskett.  But  you  stated  i n  the  last  round  that  when  

you  made  the  announcement  i n  October  about  new  emai ls,  you  di dn' t  

know  what  i t  would  conclude  ei ther.  So  why  would  you  make  the  

announcement  i f  you  had  no  i dea  what  those  second  round  of  emai ls  

mi ght  lead  you  to  beli eve?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  see.  Because  we  had  already,  not  only  told  

the  world  about  the  Cli nton  Foundati on  -- excuse  me,  the  Cli nton  

i nvesti gati on  at  i ts  conclusi on,  we  had  then  vi gorously  

defended,  i n  my  vi ew,  ri ghtly,  the  result  and  told  people  to  move  

on,  thi s  was  done  well,  thi s  was  done  competently  and  honestly,  

you  can  trust  your  FBI.  

Now  I  know  that' s  not  true,  and  so  that  leaves  me  wi th  two  

choi ces:  I  can  ei ther  let  the  Ameri can  people  conti nue  to  rely  

upon  somethi ng  I  know  not  to  be  true  --

Ms.  Plaskett.  Whi ch  part  was  not  true?  

Mr.  Comey.  That  the  case  i s  done,  you  can  move  on.  

Ms.  Plaskett.  Okay.  That  the  case  was  done.  

Mr.  Comey.  -- or  I  can  tell  Congress  that  what  I  sai d  

repeatedly  i s  no  longer  true.  Both  of  those  are  bad  opti ons.  

One,  i n  my  vi ew,  i s  catastrophi c,  that  conceali ng  from  the  

Ameri can  people  and  Congress  that  what  we  told  you  over  and  over  

and  over  agai n  i n  the  summer  i s  no  longer  true  would  be  

devastati ng  to  the  organi zati ons.  Now,  reasonable  people  can  

di sagree  about  that,  but  those  were  the  two  choi ces.  And  so  i t  
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wasn' t we  were  begi nni ng  a new  i nvesti gati on;  we  were  restarti ng  

an  i nvesti gati on  that  the  whole  world  knew  about  and  was  relyi ng  

upon  what  were  now  false  statements  about  i t  bei ng  completed.  

And  then  obvi ously  cri ti cal  to  that  was  my  troop  sayi ng,  not  only  

can  we  not  fi ni sh  thi s  before  the  electi on,  the  result  may  change,  

because  i n  thi s  huge  trove  of  emai ls  appear  to  be  emai ls  that  

were  mi ssi ng  from  her  Blackberry  that  we  never  found  before.  

And  so  gi ven  that  constellati on  of  ci rcumstances,  I  really  

di dn' t feel  li ke  I had  any  choi ce.  I had  to  choose  speaki ng  over  

conceali ng.  

Ms.  Plaskett.  Okay.  Thank  you.  Thank  you  for  that  

clari fi cati on.  

Mr.  Comey.  Yeah.  Good  questi on.  

Ms.  Plaskett.  What  I  wanted  to  ask  a  few  questi ons  about  

the  body  of  evi dence  you' re  aware  of  related  to  Presi dent  Trump  

and  obstructi on  of  j usti ce.  And  I' m  referri ng  to  your  book,  A  

Hi gher  Loyalty:  Truth,  Li es  i n  Leadershi p.  And  on  page  271,  

you  wri te  i n  the  fi rst  full  paragraph,  I' m quoti ng:  I also  don' t  

know  whether  the  speci al  counsel  wi ll  fi nd  cri mi nal  wrongdoi ng  

by  the  Presi dent  or  others  who  have  not  been  charged  as  of  thi s  

wri ti ng.  One  of  the  pi votal  questi ons  I  presume  that  Bob  

Mueller' s  team  i s  i nvesti gati ng  i s  whether  or  not,  i n  urgi ng  me  

to  back  the  FBI  off  our  i nvesti gati on  of  hi s  nati onal  securi ty  

advi sor  and  fi ri ng  me,  Presi dent  Trump  was  attempti ng  to  obstruct  

j usti ce,  whi ch  i s  a  Federal  cri me.  It' s  certai nly  possi ble  
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there  i s  at  least  ci rcumstanti al  evi dence  i n  that  regard,  and  

there  may  be  more  that  the  Mueller  team  wi ll  assemble,  end  of  

quote.  

So  I  guess  my  fi rst  questi on  was,  were  you  aware  of  

i ndi vi duals  charged  -- that  were  charged  as  of  that  wri ti ng?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  thi nk  I  meant  -- I  can' t  thi nk  of  

anybody  I  was  thi nki ng  of,  i f  that  makes  sense.  

Ms.  Plaskett.  Ri ght.  

Mr.  Comey.  I  wasn' t  -- I  don' t  -- maybe  that' s  an  awkward  

sentence  constructi on,  but  I  don' t  thi nk  I  was  tryi ng  to  carve  

somebody  out.  

Ms.  Plaskett.  But  were  you,  i n  your  mi nd,  thi nki ng  of  

people  who  you  beli eve  would  probably  be  charged  but  had  not  been  

charged  as  yet?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  thi nk  so.  

Ms.  Plaskett.  Okay.  And  what  were  the  ci rcumstanti al  

evi dence  that  you  were  referri ng  to?  

Mr.  Comey.  That  the  Presi dent  of  the  Uni ted  States  asked  

me  to  drop  a  pendi ng  cri mi nal  i nvesti gati on.  

Ms.  Plaskett.  And  that' s  --

Mr.  Comey.  And  di d  i t  after  cleari ng  the  room  and  removi ng  

my  boss  and  the  Vi ce-Presi dent  of  the  Uni ted  States  from  the  room  

i n  order  to  speak  to  me  alone.  

Ms.  Plaskett.  Okay.  And  those  were  the  only  pi eces  of  

ci rcumstanti al  evi dence  that  you  had?  
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Mr.  Comey.  That' s  all  I  can  thi nk  of  ri ght  now.  

Ms.  Plaskett.  Okay.  And  do  you  consi der  Presi dent  Trump  

aski ng  you  to  back off  the  FBI  -- back the  FBI  off  of  i nvesti gati ng  

then  nati onal  securi ty  advi sor  the  ci rcumstanti al  evi dence,  

ri ght?  

Mr.  Comey.  Well,  a pi ece of  i t,  yes,  and  the  manner  i n  whi ch  

i t  was  done.  

Ms.  Plaskett.  And  the  manner  i n  whi ch  i t  was  done.  

Do  you  consi der  Presi dent  Trump  fi ri ng  you  a  ci rcumstanti al  

evi dence  of  attempti ng  to  obstruct  j usti ce?  

Mr.  Comey.  Potenti ally,  and  that  would  requi re  a  lot  of  

facts  I  can' t  see,  so  I  wouldn' t  gi ve  you  as  strong  an  answer  

there.  It' s  potenti ally  ci rcumstanti al  evi dence.  The  fi rst  

bi t,  the  Oval  Offi ce  conversati on  i s  ci rcumstanti al  evi dence.  

Ms.  Plaskett.  So  we' ve  talked  about  the  Oval  Offi ce  

i nci dent  as  well  as  your  fi ri ng  as  potenti al  ci rcumstanti al  

evi dence.  Can  you  i denti fy  anythi ng  else  outsi de  of  those  

thi ngs  that' s  ci rcumstanti al  or  potenti ally  di rect  evi dence  of  

Presi dent  Trump  attempti ng  to  obstruct j usti ce,  i ncludi ng  publi c  

i nformati on  and  recent  events?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  thi nk  that' s  for  me  to  answer.  

Ms.  Bessee.  Okay.  I  was  goi ng  to  say  the  same  thi ng  the  

wi tness  sai d.  To  the  extent,  because  he' s  also  a  potenti al  

wi tness  for  an  ongoi ng  i nvesti gati on,  he  may  be  li mi ted  to  

what  -- or  he  may  not  be  able  to  answer  the  questi on.  
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Ms. Plaskett. Would he be able to answer the questi on 

related to those thi ngs that have o curred after hi s fi ri ng? 

Ms. Bessee. To the extent that he has knowledge of them 

based on hi s -- because he' s a potenti al wi tness -- i t depends 

on the questi on, so maybe i f you ask the questi on we can assess --

Ms. Plaskett. So the questi on would be, can you i denti fy 

any ci rcumstanti al or di rect evi dence that you may have obtai ned 

after bei ng fi red whi ch would lead you to beli eve that the 

Presi dent has obstructed j usti ce? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t thi nk I can answer that for thi s reason, 

that I' m not aware of any evi dence that mi ght be responsi ve to 

that questi on that' s not i n the publi c realm. 

Ms. Plaskett. Ri ght. 

Mr. Comey. And so the next part of i t would requi re me to 

characteri ze tweets and statements and thi ngs, whi ch I don' t 

thi nk I can do. 

Ms. Plaskett. You can' t characteri ze tweets? I 

characteri ze them. 

Mr. Comey. That' s what I' m sayi ng. You' re as quali fi ed 

to do i t as I, and so I don' t thi nk I ought to be i n a posi ti on 

of tryi ng to characteri ze thi ngs that are publi cly avai lable. 

Ms. Plaskett. Well, I thi nk because of your years of 

experi ence havi ng prosecuted people, you would be able to 

i denti fy what a j ury would fi nd as ci rcumstanti al better than 

most of us i n thi s room. But i f not, we can move on. 
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Mr.  Comey.  But  I' m  a  potenti al  wi tness.  

Ms.  Plaskett.  Got  i t.  

Mr.  Comey.  So  I  j ust  thi nk  i t' s  a  sli ppery  slope  for  me  

to  start  characteri zi ng  publi c i nformati on.  

Ms.  Plaskett.  Sure.  You  stated  that  attempti ng  to  

obstruct  j usti ce,  even  i f  i t  does  not  work,  i s  sti ll  a  Federal  

cri me.  Would  you  agree?  

Mr.  Comey.  That' s  my  recollecti on.  

Ms.  Plaskett.  And  there' s been  a growi ng  narrati ve  amongst  

conservati ve  medi a  that  obstructi on  of  j usti ce  i s  a  mere  process  

cri me,  that  even  i f  Presi dent  Trump  di d  obstruct  j usti ce,  i t  

really  i sn' t  that  bi g  of  a  deal  i f  Speci al  Counsel  Mueller  can' t  

also  demonstrate  that  he  commi tted  the  ostensi ble  underlyi ng  

cri me  of  colludi ng  wi th  or  ai di ng  and  abetti ng  wi th  Russi a  to  

i nterfere  wi th  the  electi on.  Do  you  agree  wi th  that?  

Mr.  Comey.  No,  and  I' ve  been  heari ng  that  for  30  years.  

Cri mes  that  i nvolve  i nvesti gati on  -- that  i nvolve  attacks  on  the  

cri mi nal  j usti ce  system,  perj ury,  false  statements,  obstructi on  

of  j usti ce,  j ury  tamperi ng,  are  thi ngs  -- are  statutes  that  

Congress  passed  to  protect  the  core  of  thi s  country' s  rule  of  

law,  and  so  I  never  thi nk  of  them  as  process  cri mes.  They' re  

seri ous  and  i mportant  Federal  cri mes.  

Ms.  Plaskett.  And  how  i mportant  do  you  thi nk  i t  would  be  

i f  the  Presi dent  of  the  Uni ted  States  attempted  to  i mpede  a  

cri mi nal  i nvesti gati on  i nto  hi s  associ ates  or  hi s  campai gn?  
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Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  thi nk  I' m  comfortable  answeri ng  wi th  

respect to  the  Presi dent,  but  I  don' t  have  to  because  I  can  answer  

generally.  I  thi nk  i t' s  very  seri ous  when  anybody  endeavors  to  

obstruct  the  due  admi ni strati on  of  j usti ce.  

Ms.  Plaskett.  Well,  i f  i t  was  -- anybody  would  be  a  very  

seri ous  thi ng,  but  how  much  more  seri ous  would  that  i ssue  be  to  

the  functi oni ng  of  our  democracy  i f  i t  was,  i n  fact,  the  

Presi dent?  

Mr.  Comey.  You  know,  I' m  worri ed  about  offeri ng  that  

opi ni on.  I  thi nk  i t' s  very  i mportant  that  all  of  us  i n  seni or  

leadershi p  posi ti ons  i n  the  government  uphold  our  oaths,  and  

cri ti cal  to  the  Presi dent' s  oaths  i s  to  ensure  that  the  laws  are  

fai thfully  executed.  So  i f  someone  who' s  taken  that  oath  i s  

obstructi ng  j usti ce,  as  we  learned  45  years  ago  i n  Watergate,  

i t' s  an  i ncredi bly  i mportant  offense.  

Ms.  Plaskett.  And  does  that  present  a  nati onal  securi ty  

threat?  

Mr.  Comey.  That' s  a  hard  one  to  answer.  It  would  depend  

upon  who  i t  i s  and  the  ci rcumstances  and  whatnot.  I  don' t  thi nk  

I  can  answer  that  i n  the  abstract.  

Ms.  Plaskett.  Okay.  Thank  you.  

Mr.  Comey.  Thank  you.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  Shei la  Jackson  Lee.  Mr.  Comey,  i t  looks  

li ke  we' re  goi ng  to  be  doi ng  a  bi oni c,  I  may  be  talki ng  really  

fast  and  meteori c,  and  so  I  may  be  looki ng  to  put  thi ngs  i n  the  

Document  ID:  0.7.1278.5117-000034  



 

 

        

           


         


          


        


          


           


         


       


        


       

       


        


  

            


           


             


       

            


          


          


            


         


           


            


  

1 2  

record  and  not  really  seeki ng  a  questi on.  

So  let  me  j ust  do  thi s.  On  the  overall  obstructi on  of  

j usti ce,  New  York  Ti mes  arti cle  that  i ndi cated  they  had  i t  

however  here:  Mr.  Comey' s fi ri ng  was  more  unusual  and  i mportant  

because  he  was  overseei ng  the  Russi a  i nvesti gati on,  a  certai n  

number  of  experts  sai d.  Questi ons  about  what  wi ll  happen  wi th  

that  i nvesti gati on  now  that  he  i s  gone  are  the  mai n  reason  they  

sai d  hi s  fi ri ng  i s  li kely  to  be  hi ghly  si gni fi cant,  wi th  

long-term  rami fi cati ons  for  poli cy  and  government.  These  

experts  came  from  the  Uni versi ty  of  Chi cago,  Denver,  Harvard,  

Maryland,  Uni versi ty  of  Vi rgi ni a,  Yale  Uni versi ty.  

Do  you,  frankly,  thi nk  that  your  fi ri ng  wi thout  

determi nati on  of  why  wi ll  have  long-term  poli cy  and  governmental  

i mpact?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know.  It' ll  depend  upon  whether  the  

law  i s  able  to  work  as  i ntended  and  the  speci al  counsel  can  

complete  hi s  work.  I don' t know  where  he' ll  end  up,  so  i t' s hard  

for  me  to  answer  at  thi s  poi nt.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  Let  me  answer  -- or  ask  some  questi ons  

regardi ng  the  i nspector  general' s report.  I thi nk  i t  was  around  

the  26th  that  -- September  26  that  you  recei ved  some  i ndi cati on  

about  the  Wei ner  laptop,  2016.  And  i t  started  i n  New  York,  and  

people  started  to  see  emai ls  flouri shi ng,  and  FBI  agents  thought  

i t  was  cruci al  -- I' m  looki ng  for  my  materi als  here  -- thought  

i t  was  cruci al  that  you  -- that  they  begi n  to  i nvesti gate.  And  
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i t  seems  that  there  was  some  suggesti on  i n  the  IG' s  report  of  

a  questi on  whether  there  was  unnecessary  delay.  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes,  I  remember  that.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  But  i t  seems  that  he  concluded  that  no  

emai ls,  texts,  anythi ng,  conversati ons  he  could  fi nd  to  suggest  

that  i t  was  purposeful  delay,  and  I  thi nk  that' s  i mportant  to  

be  on  the  record.  Do  you  agree  wi th  that?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  agree.  I' ve  seen  -- I  di dn' t  reali ze  unti l  

I  read  the  IG' s  report  that  chronology,  because  i t  wasn' t  

presented  to  me  for  deci si on  unti l  the  end  of  October,  but  there  

was  reason  to  beli eve  i t  would  have  been  ready  for  deci si on  

earli er  than  that.  But  I  never  saw  any  i ndi cati on  that  that  was  

i ntenti onal  delay.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  So  let  me  read  thi s  last  text  or  last  

comment.  As  I  sai d,  I' m  goi ng  to  go  as  qui ckly  as  I  can.  

The  last  paragraph  on  that  parti cular  secti on  regardi ng  

Mr.  Wei ner' s  laptop:  Comey,  Lynch,  and  Yates  face  di ffi cult  

choi ces  i n  October  2016.  However,  we  found  i t  extraordi nary  

that  Comey  assessed  that  i t  was  best  that  the  FBI  Di rector  not  

speak  di rectly  wi th  the  Attorney  General  and  Deputy  Attorney  

General  about  how  best  to  navi gate  thi s  most  i mportant  deci si on  

and  mi ti gate  the  resulti ng  harms,  and  that  Comey' s  deci si ons  

resulted  i n  the  Attorney  General  and  Deputy  Attorney  General  

concludi ng  that  i t  would  be  counterproducti ve  to  speak  di rectly  

wi th  the  FBI  Di rector.  We  beli eve  that  open  and  candi d  
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communi cati ons  among  leaders  i n  the  department  and  i ts  

components  i s  essenti al  for  the  effecti ve  functi oni ng  of  the  

department.  

Wi thout  you  suggesti ng  what  thei r  thoughts  were,  upon  

reflecti on,  because  thi s,  as  I  started  out,  was  an  electi on  of  

the  leaders  of  the  free  world,  one  of  them  was  goi ng  to  be  elected.  

And  I  know  earli er  i n  hi s  report  you  had  -- i t  was  an  assumpti on  

that  Secretary  Cli nton  would  wi n,  and  I  don' t  consi der  that  a  

factual  basi s  to  not  do  somethi ng,  and  then  the  i dea  that  you  

di dn' t  want  to  be  i n  the  -- i n  the  posi ti on  of  conceali ng.  

Upon  reflecti on  or  not  reflecti on,  why  di d  you  not  speak  

to  or  fi nd  i t  i mportant  to  speak  to  both  the  deputy  and  the  

Attorney  General  so  there  could  have  been  a  collaborati ve  

deci si on  on  what  to  do?  

Mr.  Comey.  That' s  a  really  good  questi on.  My  thi nki ng  at  

the  ti me  was,  I need  to  gi ve  them  the  chance to  take  thi s  deci si on  

from  me,  but  I  also  need  to  gi ve  them  the  chance  to  avoi d  i t,  

and  so  that' s  what  I  di d.  I  told  them,  I  thi nk  I  -- I  had  my  

staff  tell  them  -- I  thi nk  I  need  to  tell  Congress  about  thi s,  

but  I' d  be  happy  to  talk  to  you.  And  they  came  back  sayi ng,  we  

thi nk  i t' s  a  bad  i dea,  but  we  don' t  want  to  talk  to  hi m.  

I  read  that  -- I  may  be  wrong,  but  I  read  that  as  them  sayi ng,  

over  to  you  Ji m.  And  thi s  dri ves  my  wi fe  crazy  that  I was  wi lli ng  

to  take  that  hi t,  but  I  thought  i t  was  i mportant  that  i f  they  

don' t  want  to  be  i nvolved  i n  the  deci si on,  that  I  make  the  
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deci si on.  Now,  what  I  maybe  should  have  done  was  say,  no,  back  

to  you  Loretta  and  Sally,  but  that  felt  cowardly  to  me  at  the  

ti me.  And  i f  I were  to  li ve  li fe  over  agai n,  I mi ght  have  marched  

across  the  street  and  sai d,  hey,  you  folks  see  i t  di fferently  

than  I  and  why,  i nstead  of  the  way  I  approached  i t.  But  I  gave  

them  the  chance  and  they  sai d,  don' t  need  to  talk  to  you.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  So  we  look  at  good  practi ces,  can  we  leave  

i t  on  the  poi nt  that,  yes,  march  across  the  street  and  you  si t  

down  as  a  group  and  make  the  fi nal  deci si on?  Would  that  have  

been,  you  know,  wi thout  sayi ng  i t  was  cowardly,  wi thout  sayi ng  

they  di dn' t  want  to  do  i t,  but  that' s  sort  of  DOJ,  because  you  

were  havi ng  somethi ng  so  much  so  at  a  hei ghtened  level  that  that  

would  have  been  the  better  practi ce?  

Mr.  Comey.  Maybe,  but  I  actually  don' t  want  to  -- I  really  

li ke  those  two  people.  I  don' t  let  them  too  much  off  the  hook.  

They' re  the  Attorney  General  and  the  Deputy  Attorney  General  of  

the  Uni ted  States  for  heaven' s  sakes.  They  know  that  I  thi nk  

I  have  to  do  thi s  thi ng,  so  call  me  up  and  talk  to  me  about  i t,  

gi ve  me  your  vi ews  of  i t,  you' re  my  boss.  But  i nstead,  they  

communi cate  back  sayi ng  over  to  you,  Ji m.  

So  I' m  not  sure  I  want  to  take  all  the  fault  for  that.  

agree  wi th  you.  I  thi nk  the  best  practi ce  would  have  been  the  

three  of  us  to  si t  down  and  talk  i t  through.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  Okay.  I  wi ll  -- the  poi nt  behi nd  that  

was  that  maybe  the  October  5th  di d  not  need  to  be  announced  only  
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1 6  

pri mari ly  because  you  were  j ust  i n  the  mi dst  of  your  October  

28  -- j ust  i n  the  mi dst  of  the  i nvesti gati on,  and  I  don' t  thi nk  

you  would  have  been  consi dered  a  concealer  i f  you  were  j ust  i n  

the  mi dst  of  the  i nvesti gati on.  

But  let  me  qui ckly  go  to  thi s  i ssue  here.  Let  me  rai se  thi s  

questi on,  and  then  I  have  about  1  mi nute  and  50  seconds  or  

somethi ng  to  ask  these  questi ons  here.  

Di rector  Comey,  i n  your  June  8,  2017,  wri tten  testi mony  to  

the  Senate  Intelli gence  Commi ttee,  you  wrote  about  a  

February  14,  2017,  meeti ng  wi th  Presi dent  Trump  i n  whi ch  he  

stated,  quote,  I  hope  you  can  see  your  way  clear  to  letti ng  thi s  

go,  to  letti ng  Flynn  go.  He' s  a  good  guy.  I  hope  you  can  let  

thi s  go.  

You  then  descri bed  your  reacti on,  quote,  I  had  understood  

that  the  Presi dent  to  be  requesti ng  that  we  drop  any  

i nvesti gati on  of  Flynn  i n  connecti on  wi th  false  statements  about  

hi s  conversati ons  wi th  the  Russi an  ambassador  i n  December.  

Di rector  Comey,  i s  that  sti ll  your  understandi ng?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes.  

[Comey  Exhi bi t  No.  5  

Was  marked  for  i denti fi cati on. ]  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  And  I' d  li ke  to  i ntroduce  the  followi ng  

document  as  exhi bi t  5,  whi ch  i s  pages  90  to  91  of  the  transcri pt  

from  former  FBI  general  counsel  James  Baker' s  October  18,  2018,  

i ntervi ew  wi th  the  commi ttee.  
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And  j ust  i n  goi ng  to  that  earli er  comment,  you  obvi ously  

you  see  now,  today,  of  the  fi nal  results  of  Di rector  Flynn  i n  

terms  of  the  Mueller  i ndi ctment  on  the  very  facts  that  you  were  

deali ng  wi th,  and  I  j ust  want  to  put  that  on  the  record.  

I  would  li ke  to  i ntroduce  the  followi ng  exhi bi t,  No.  5,  and  

whi ch  i s  pages  90  to  91  of  the  transcri pt  from  former  FBI  general  

counsel  James  Baker' s  October  18,  2018,  i ntervi ew  wi th  the  

commi ttee.  It  reads:  Di d  you  also  have  concerns  that  the  

statements  by  the  Presi dent  were  requesti ng  that  the  FBI  drop  

the  i nvesti gati on  of  General  Flynn?  

Mr.  Comey.  I' m  sorry,  I  thought  you  were  readi ng  hi s  

statement.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  The  answer  i s  yes.  Forgi ve  me.  

And  why  would  i t  be  concerni ng  i f  the  Presi dent  asked  the  

FBI  to  drop  the  i nvesti gati on  of  hi s  nati onal  securi ty  advi sor?  

You  sai d:  Well,  i t' s  an  --

Mr.  Comey.  Ji m  Baker  sai d.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  Ji m  Baker.  

It' s an  i nvesti gati on,  peri od.  It' s the  Presi dent,  I mean,  

I  guess  you  would  say  breaki ng  the  norm  i n  that  sense,  the  

Presi dent  actually  i nterveni ng  --

Let  me  be  very  clear.  I' m  readi ng  Ji m  Baker' s  comments.  

Thank  you  very  much.  

-- i nterveni ng  whi le  i t' s  goi ng  on  wi th  respect  to  a  

parti cular  i nvesti gati on.  
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1 8  

It  also  goes  back  to  what  we  talked  about  earli er.  It  has  

to  -- i t' s  not  j ust  some  i nvesti gati on;  i t' s  an  i nvesti gati on  

that  i s  also  related  to  the  i nvesti gati on  -- or  to  Russi a  -- to  

the  Russi a  matter  that  we  were  i nvesti gati ng,  ri ght?  So  i t  was  

not  a  free-standi ng  i ndependent  i nvesti gati on;  i t  was  somethi ng  

related  to  these  other  thi ngs.  So  i t  was  alarmi ng  i n  that  regard  

too.  

Do  you  share  Mr.  Baker' s concerns  about  the  Presi dent  aski ng  

the  FBI  to  drop  the  i nvesti gati on  of  hi s  nati onal  securi ty  

advi sor?  Do  you  agree  that  the  Flynn  i nvesti gati on  was  related  

to  the  Russi a  matter?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  do.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  The  transcri pt  conti nues:  Is  i t  

alarmi ng  even  i f  the  FBI  has  no  i ntenti on  of  droppi ng  the  

i nvesti gati on?  

Well,  we  di dn' t  have  any  i ntenti on  of  droppi ng  the  

i nvesti gati on,  so  -- but  i t' s alarmi ng  nonetheless,  yes,  because  

we' ll  know  at  a  mi ni mum  the  exi stence  of  the  fact  of  the  -- at  

a bare  mi ni mum,  the  fact of  thi s  conversati on.  Just  agai n,  looks  

bad  i f  i t  were  ever  to  -- i f  i t  was  ever  -- would  look  bad  i f  

i t  was  ever  to  become  publi c,  because  i t  looks  li ke  the  

Presi dent' s  tryi ng  to  put  hi s  fi nger  on  the  scale  to  cause  the  

i nvesti gati on  to  go  i nto  a  parti cular  way,  and  that  would  hurt  

the  FBI' s  credi bi li ty,  reputati on  for  i ndependence.  That  was  

very  alarmi ng.  
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Questi on:  You  sai d  i t  would  look  li ke  that  to  the  publi c.  

Di d  you  beli eve  that  that' s  what  actually  was  goi ng  on?  

The  answer:  The  Presi dent  was  tryi ng  to  put  hi s  fi nger  on  

the  scale.  Yes,  that' s  what  I  thought  was  goi ng  on.  

Do  you  agree  wi th  Mr.  Baker' s  assessment  that  Presi dent  

Trump  was  tryi ng  to  put  hi s  fi nger  on  the  scale  by  aski ng  you  

to  drop  Flynn' s  i nvesti gati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  Potenti ally.  As  I  sai d  earli er,  I  would  want  

to  understand  more  about  the  Presi dent' s  i ntent  before  I  reached  

a  conclusi on.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  And  so  you  thi nk  potenti ally,  not  

affi rmati vely?  

Mr.  Comey.  Well,  i t  would  look  li ke  the  Presi dent  was  

tryi ng  to  put  hi s  fi nger  on  the  scale,  but  I  understand  the  term  

"put  hi s  fi nger  on  the  scale"  to  mean  obstructi ng  j usti ce.  And  

as  I  sai d  earli er,  I' d  want  to  know  more  of  the  facts,  whi ch  I' m  

sure  the  speci al  counsel' s  work  to  understand,  about  the  

Presi dent' s  i ntent  before  I  reached  that  conclusi on.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  And  you  don' t  beli eve  that  the  statement  

on  publi c televi si on  "i t  was  a  Russi a  thi ng"  i s  an  affi rmati ve  

statement  wi thout  quali fi cati on  by  the  Presi dent  of  the  Uni ted  

States?  It  was  a  Russi a  thi ng  that  I  fi red  Mr.  Comey  on.  

Mr.  Comey.  Oh,  I  do.  And  the  only  thi ng  I  added,  though,  

i s  si nce  then  he  has  sai d  other  thi ngs  tryi ng  to,  i t  seems,  walk  

that  back.  And  so  agai n,  I  rely  on  hi s  words.  I  saw  hi m  say  
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that,  but  I' ve  si nce  seen  hi m  try  to  say  other  thi ngs.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  Well,  you' re  a  qui ntessenti al  law  

enforcement  offi cer  and  you  know  that  i s  probably  the  tendency  

of  any  wi tness  to  walk  back.  Is  that  not  true?  

Mr.  Comey.  No,  the  tendency  of  thi s  wi tness  i s  tryi ng  to  

be  fai r  and  open  mi nded.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  No,  I' m  proj ecti ng  i t  to  the  Presi dent.  

Anybody  who' s  bei ng  asked  about  somethi ng  they  sai d  and  i t  gets  

a  lot  of  fury,  i t  i s  a  tendency  to  walk  back.  

Mr.  Comey.  Well,  i t  depends  upon  the  person.  Some  people  

wi ll  try  to  walk  back  thi ngs,  others  not.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  Were  you  also  worri ed  that  i t  would  hurt  

the  FBI' s  credi bi li ty  and  reputati on  for  i ndependence?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes.  

Ms.  Jackson  Lee.  Thank  you.  

Mr.  Comey.  Thank  you.  

Mr.  Raski n.  Mr.  Comey,  I' m  Jami e  Raski n  from  Maryland.  

want  to  start,  Di rector  Comey,  wi th  your  wri tten  testi mony  of  

the  Senate  Intelli gence  Commi ttee  on  June  8th  of  2017,  when  you  

wrote  about  your  famous  di nner  wi th  Presi dent  Trump  at  the  Whi te  

House  on  January  27th.  And  you  sai d  that  the  Presi dent  was  

tryi ng  to,  quote,  create  some  sort  of  patronage  relati onshi p.  

And  at  one  poi nt  he  sai d  to  you,  quote,  I  need  loyalty.  I  expect  

loyalty.  Is  that  your  recollecti on?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes.  
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Mr.  Raski n.  Okay.  On  pages  237  and  238  of  your  book,  A  

Hi gher  Loyalty,  you  also  recount  your  di nner  wi th  Presi dent  Trump  

and  your  reacti on  to  thi s  request.  At  the  bottom  of  page  237  

you  wri te,  quote,  to  my  mi nd,  the  demand  was  li ke  Sammy  the  Bull' s  

Cosa  Nostra  i nducti on  ceremony  wi th  Trump  i n  the  role  of  the  

fami ly  boss  aski ng  me  i f  I  have  what  i t  takes  to  be  a  made  man.  

I  di d  not  and  would  never.  

Can  you  j ust  elaborate  on  why  that  was  the  fi rst  thi ng  that  

came  i nto  your  mi nd,  thi s  compari son  to  a  made  boss  ceremony  for  

La  Cosa  Nostra?  

Mr.  Comey.  It  was  an  i mpressi on  that  kept  poppi ng  i nto  my  

head  when  I  i nteracted  wi th  Presi dent  Trump,  and  parti cularly  

i t  started  when  I  watched  hi m  i nteract  as  Presi dent-elect  that  

fi rst  week  of  January  at  Trump  Tower,  and  I  kept  tryi ng  to  push  

i t  away  because  i t  seemed  too  dramati c.  But  hi s  leadershi p  

style  -- I' m  not  tryi ng  to  suggest  he' s  out  robbi ng  banks  -- but  

hi s  leadershi p  style  remi nded  me  of  that  of  a  mafi a  boss,  of  a  

Cosa  Nostra  boss,  because  i t' s  all  about  me,  what  you  can  do  for  

me,  i t' s  all  about  your  loyalty  to  me.  It' s  not  about  any  hi gher  

values  or  i nsti tuti onal  values.  It' s  about  how  are  you  feedi ng  

me  the  boss,  how  are  you  taki ng  care  of  me  the  boss.  

Mr.  Raski n.  And  that  was  novel  to  your  experi ence  i n  terms  

of  deali ng  wi th  Presi dents  of  the  Uni ted  States?  

Mr.  Comey.  Correct.  I  dealt  closely  wi th  three,  and  thi s  

was  the  fi rst  ti me  I' d  had  that  reacti on.  

Document  ID:  0.7.1278.5117-000034  



 

 

             


           

  

          


         


          


            


       


 

          


        


           


    

             


          


    

            


   

     

       

            


         


         


        

          


  

182  

Mr.  Raski n.  Okay.  And  j ust  to  be  clear,  what  i s  your  

loyalty  to,  as  the  di rector  of  the  FBI  or  a  law  enforcement  

offi ci al?  

Mr.  Comey.  To  a  vari ety  of  external  values,  most  

i mportantly,  the  Consti tuti on  and  the  laws  of  the  Uni ted  States,  

and  then  to  the  regulati ons  that  restri ct  and  govern  the  FBI,  

and  also  to  the  values  that  make  the  FBI  such  an  i mportant  part  

of  Ameri can  li fe:  i ntegri ty,  i ndependence,  competence,  and  

fai rness.  

Mr.  Raski n.  Has  anythi ng  happened  si nce  these  events  that  

have  changed  your  percepti on  of  the  Presi dent' s  modus  operandi  

i n  terms  of  hi s  deali ng  wi th  hi s  subordi nates  and  people  who  work  

for  the  government?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  I  thi nk  people  who  thought  maybe  I  was  

bei ng  dramati c have  come  to  beli eve  that  maybe  I  wasn' t  bei ng  

dramati c i n  that  observati on.  

Mr.  Raski n.  Yeah.  How  many  -- have  you  ever  prosecuted  

mafi a  bosses?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes.  

Mr.  Raski n.  How  many?  

Mr.  Comey.  Well,  not  the  -- I' ve  prosecuted  capos.  I' m  

si tti ng  next  to  an  organi zed  cri me  prosecutor.  So  I' ve  

prosecuted  probably  fi ve  to  seven  seni or  leaders.  I' ve  never  

prosecuted  the  boss  of  an  organi zed  cri me  fami ly.  

Mr.  Raski n.  Got  you.  The  Presi dent' s  former  personal  
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attorney,  Mi chael  Cohen,  has  been  i n  the  headli nes  recently.  

I' m  not  goi ng  to  ask  you  speci fi c questi ons  about  hi s  case,  but  

I  wanted  to  clari fy  for  the  record  some  of  the  legal  and  

i nvesti gati ve  processes  that  lend  i tself  to  that  type  of  case.  

You  may  recall  that  when  Mr.  Cohen' s  apartment,  offi ce,  and  

hotel  room  were  fi rst  rai ded  by  the  FBI  i n  Apri l  of  thi s  year,  

the  Presi dent  attacked  these  steps.  He  declared  that,  quote,  

attorney-cli ent  pri vi lege  i s  dead.  It  was,  quote,  a  total  wi tch  

hunt.  And  he  descri bed  the  i nvesti gati on  as  a,  quote,  

di sgraceful  si tuati on  and  an  attack  on  our  country.  

Now,  the  rai d  was  conducted  by  the  FBI  pursuant  to  a  search  

warrant  and  at  the  di recti on  of  the  Offi ce  of  the  U. S.  Attorney  

for  the  Southern  Di stri ct,  I  thi nk.  Can  you  walk  us  through  the  

steps  that  the  FBI  and  DOJ  take  before  approvi ng  a  search  warrant  

on  an  attorney  and  sei zi ng  documents  that  mi ght  i nclude  

potenti ally  pri vi leged  materi als?  

Mr.  Comey.  In  very  shorthand  I  wi ll.  It' s  a  compli cated  

process,  but  i t  i nvolves  a  long  seri es  of  approvals  because  i t' s  

what  we  would  call  a  sensi ti ve  i nvesti gati ve  matter.  It  touched  

on  attorney-cli ent  relati onshi ps  potenti ally,  whi ch are  the  core  

of  our  Nati on,  and  so  i t  would  requi re  approval  to  a  very  hi gh  

level  i n  the  FBI,  a  very  hi gh  level  i n  the  Department  of  Justi ce,  

and  then  have  to  go  to  a  Federal  j udge.  

Mr.  Raski n.  Okay.  Was  there  anythi ng  that  took  place  i n  

these  i nvesti gati ve  steps  that  destroyed  the  attorney-cli ent  
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pri vi lege  such  that  i t  would  j usti fy  the  Presi dent' s  statement  

that  the  attorney-cli ent  pri vi lege  i s  dead?  

Mr.  Comey.  Well,  I  can  answer  i n  general,  because  I  don' t  

know  that  case.  The  enti re  sensi ti ve  i nvesti gati ve  matter  

process  i s  desi gned  to  be  respectful  of  the  pri vi leges  that  mi ght  

be  touched  by  a  search  on  a  lawyer' s  offi ce.  

Mr.  Raski n.  Okay.  Presi dent  Trump  has  kept  up  hi s  drum  

beat  agai nst  hi s  former  lawyer.  Most  recently,  the  attacks  were  

i n  response  Mr.  Cohen' s  plea  deal  wi th  the  speci al  counsel' s  

offi ce  i n  whi ch  he  admi tted  to  lyi ng  about  the  Trump  Tower  Moscow  

proj ect  i n  contact  wi th  Russi an  Government  offi ci als  duri ng  the  

2016  campai gn.  

The  Presi dent  responded  wi thi n  hours  tweeti ng,  quote:  

Mi chael  Cohen  asks  j udge  for  no  pri son  ti me.  You  mean  he  can  

do  all  of  the  terri ble  unrelated  to  Trump  thi ngs  havi ng  to  do  

wi th  fraud,  bi g  loans,  taxes,  et  cetera,  and  not  serve  a  long  

pri son  term?  He  makes  up  stori es  to  get  a  great  and  already  

reduced  deal  for  hi mself  and  get  hi s  wi fe  and  father-i n-law  who  

has  the  money,  questi on  mark,  off  scot-free.  He  li ed  for  thi s  

outcome  and  should,  i n  my  opi ni on,  serve  a  complete  sentence.  

I  would  li ke  to  draw  on  your  years  of  experi ence  as  an  

organi zed  cri me  prosecutor  and  seni or  DOJ  offi ci al  and  head  of  

the  FBI  to  unpack some  of  the  prosecutori al  methods  that  are  under  

attack  by  the  Presi dent.  

Fi rst,  why  do  cri mi nal  defendants  such  as  Mi chael  Cohen  
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deci de to change course and fli p? 

Mr. Comey. I can only answer that i n general not about the 

case i n parti cular. 

Mr. Raski n. In general. 

Mr. Comey. Because they conclude that i t' s i n thei r 

self-i nterest to try to obtai n a reducti on i n thei r sentence by 

provi di ng substanti al assi stance to the people of the Uni ted 

States by helpi ng solve other cri mes. 

Mr. Raski n. Yes. At certai n poi nts, I thi nk the Presi dent 

has medi tated the possi bi li ty of maki ng i t a cri me to fli p or 

sayi ng i t should be agai nst the law to fli p. What do you make 

of that suggesti on, as a prosecutor? 

Mr. Comey. It' s a shocki ng suggesti on comi ng from any 

seni or offi ci al, no less the Presi dent. It' s a cri ti cal and 

legi ti mate part of the enti re j usti ce system i n the Uni ted 

States. 

Mr. Raski n. Does the government routi nely grant 

defendants who cooperate wi th the government and render honest 

testi mony reduced sentences i n exchange for thei r cooperati on? 

Mr. Comey. Routi nely, the prosecutors ask the j udge to 

take that substanti al assi stance i nto a count and reduce thei r 

sentences. 

Mr. Raski n. Okay. So i t' s not di rectly up to the 

prosecutor --

Mr. Comey. Correct. 
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Mr.  Raski n.  -- but  they  wi ll  recommend  to  the  court,  i f  

the  person  follows  through  --

Mr.  Comey.  Ri ght,  i f  they  tell  the  truth  and  provi de  

substanti al  assi stance  i n  the  i nvesti gati on  or  prosecuti on  of  

others.  

Mr.  Raski n.  Yes.  You  know  --

Mr.  Comey.  That' s  how  we  make  mob  cases,  terrori sm  cases,  

chi ld  abuse  cases,  drug  cases,  ki dnappi ng  cases.  It' s essenti al  

to  the  worki ngs  of  our  cri mi nal  j usti ce  system.  

Mr.  Raski n.  Yes.  It  may  be  di ffi cult  to  extri cate  

ourselves  from  the  last  couple  of  years,  but  i f  we  were  to  go  

back to  a more  i nnocent  ti me,  would  you  agree  that  i t' s dangerous  

or  would  you  di sagree  that  i t' s  dangerous  to  have  a  si tti ng  

Presi dent  commenti ng  on  acti ve  cri mi nal  proceedi ngs  and  

i nvesti gati ons  and  tryi ng  to  i nterfere  i n  them?  

Mr.  Comey.  I thi nk  we  have  become  numb  to  lyi ng  and  attacks  

on  the  rule  of  law  by  the  Presi dent,  all  of  us  have  to  a  certai n  

extent,  and  i t' s  somethi ng  we  can' t  ever  become  numb  to.  

Mr.  Raski n.  Okay.  I wi ll  close  wi th  that.  Thank  you  very  

much,  Di rector  Comey.  

Ms.  Hari haran.  It  i s  3: 13,  and  we' ll  go  off  the  record.  

[Recess. ]  
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[3: 23  p. m. ]  

Chai rman  Goodlatte.  Back  on  the  record.  

Mr.  Jordan.  Mr.  Chai rman,  i s  i t  okay?  Okay,  thank  you.  

Di rector,  let  me  j ust  go  back and  try  to  clear  up  a few  thi ngs  

probably  mostly  for  me.  The  last  hour  I  thi nk  you  were  talki ng  

about  thi s  wi th  the  mi nori ty  as  well.  

You  have  your  meeti ng  wi th  the  Presi dent  i n  February  of  

2017,  where  the  Presi dent  talks  about  can  you  see  your  way  clear  

to  go  easy  on  Mi ke  Flynn  or  whatever,  somethi ng  to  that  effect.  

You  then  had  a  meeti ng  wi th  your  seni or  staff  and  wrote  a  memo  

memori ali zi ng  what  took  place  i n  your  meeti ng  wi th  the  Presi dent.  

Is  that  ri ght?  

Mr.  Comey.  Correct.  I met  wi th  the  seni or  leadershi p  team  

and  prepared  and  revi ewed  wi th  them  a  memo.  

Mr.  Jordan.  Say  i t  agai n.  I' m  sorry.  Prepared  to  what?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  prepared  and  then  revi ewed  wi th  them  my  memo.  

Mr.  Jordan.  So  they  worked  on  the  memo  wi th  you?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  I  wrote  the  memo.  I  gave  them  a  copy  of  

i t  to  read,  and  then  we  sat  down  and  talked.  

Mr.  Jordan.  You  sat  down  and  talked  about  i t,  okay.  And  

who  all  was  i n  that  meeti ng,  agai n?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  for  sure,  but  I' m  sure  Deputy  

Di rector  McCabe  was  there;  General  Counsel  Baker  was  there;  my  

chi ef  of  staff;  Ji m  Rybi cki  was  there.  I  beli eve  the  number  

three  at  the  FBI  at  that  poi nt,  who  was  the  Associ ate  Deputy  
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Di rector,  was  there.  

Mr.  Jordan.  That  i ndi vi dual' s  name?  

Mr.  Comey.  At  that  poi nt,  i t  was  Davi d  Bowdi ch.  

Mr.  Jordan.  Bowdi ch,  okay.  

Mr.  Comey.  And  then  I  beli eve  that  -- and  thi s  I' m  less  

certai n  of  -- that  the  head  of  the  Nati onal  Securi ty  Branch,  Carl  

Ghattas,  was  there,  and  -- or  Bi ll  Pri estap,  the  head  of  

Counteri ntelli gence.  I' m not  sure  about  wi th  the  last  two  guys,  

but  I  thi nk  i t' s  a  possi bi li ty.  

Mr.  Jordan.  Deputy  Di rector  McCabe,  Chi ef  Counsel  Baker,  

Chi ef  of  Staff  Rybi cki ,  Mr.  Bowdi ch,  Mr.  Ghattas,  Mr.  Pri estap.  

Mr.  Comey.  That' s the  uni verse  of  people  I thi nk  could  have  

been  there.  

Mr.  Jordan.  You  thi nk  they  were  all  there.  Was  Peter  

Strzok  there?  

Mr.  Comey.  I' m  sorry.  I  di dn' t  say  I  thi nk  they  were  all  

there.  I  sai d  that' s  the  uni verse  of  people  who  could  have  been  

there.  I' m  certai n  about  McCabe,  Rybi cki ,  and  Baker.  

Mr.  Jordan.  You' re  certai n  of  the  top  three?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yeah.  

Mr.  Jordan.  The  other  three  that  you  menti oned  could  have  

been  there.  

Mr.  Comey.  Yeah.  

Mr.  Jordan.  What  about  Mr.  Strzok?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  remember  hi m  bei ng  there.  
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Mr.  Jordan.  And  Ms.  Page?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  remember  her  bei ng  there.  

Mr.  Jordan.  And  what  di d  McCabe,  Baker,  and  Rybi cki  advi se  

you  to  do,  and  then  any  of  the  others  who  -- i f  you  can  remember,  

what  di d  they  advi se  you  to  do  after  you  showed  them  the  memo  

and  then  talked  about  your  -- you  know,  what  had  happened  wi th  

you  and  the  Presi dent?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  remember  who  sai d  what,  but  I  remember  

two  poi nts  of  consensus:  We  were  all  very  concerned  about  i t;  

and,  second,  we  agreed  that  we  ought  to  hold  i t  very  close,  not  

bri ef  the  i nvesti gati ve  team  at  thi s  poi nt  and  not  go  over  and  

talk  to  the  leadershi p  of  the  Department  of  Justi ce,  to  hold  onto  

i t  unti l  we  got  a  new  Deputy  Attorney  General  and  they  sorted  

out  how  they  were  goi ng  to  supervi se  the  Russi a  i nvesti gati on.  

Mr.  Jordan.  Why  di d  you  deci de  not  to  share  i t  wi th  the  

leadershi p  of  the  Justi ce  Department?  

Mr.  Comey.  Because  we  beli eved  that  the  Attorney  General,  

Mr.  Sessi ons,  was  --

Mr.  Jordan.  Excuse  me  one  second.  I' ve  got  to  move.  I' m  

havi ng  trouble  seei ng  you  here.  

Mr.  Comey.  We  beli eved  that  the  Attorney  General,  

Mr.  Sessi ons,  was  on  the  cusp  of  recusi ng  hi mself  from  anythi ng  

related  to  Russi a,  so  i t  di dn' t  make  any  sense  to  bri ef  hi m  on  

i t,  and  that  there  was  no  Deputy  Attorney  General  at  that  poi nt.  

Mr.  Jordan.  Why  would  you  make  that  assumpti on?  I  mean,  
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j ust  because  -- I  mean,  fi rst  of  all,  i f  he  was  on  the  cusp  of  

leavi ng,  that' s  a  j udgment  call.  Maybe  he  was;  maybe  -- I  can' t  

recall  exactly  what  was  goi ng  on  i n  February.  

But  he' s  sti ll  the  Attorney  General.  He  had  not  recused  

hi mself.  If  thi s  i s  somethi ng  i mportant  enough  for  you  to  

memori ali ze,  talk  to  your  top  people,  why  not  then  share  i t  wi th  

the  top  law  enforcement  offi ci al  i n  the  government?  

Mr.  Comey.  Because  we  beli eved  -- i t  turns  out  

correctly  -- that  he  was  about  to  step  out  of  any  i nvolvement,  

anythi ng  related  to  Russi a.  

Mr.  Jordan.  I  understand  that.  But  j ust  because  you  

beli eve  he' s  about  to  do  somethi ng  doesn' t  change  the  fact  that  

he' s  the  Attorney  General  and,  frankly,  as  the  Attorney  General  

for  our  government,  should  recei ve  that  ki nd  of  i nformati on,  I  

would  thi nk.  

Mr.  Comey.  It' s a j udgment  call  we  made  that  i t  was  prudent  

to  wai t,  gi ven  our  expectati on  he  wouldn' t  be  the  Attorney  

General  i n  a  matter  of  days  wi th  respect  to  that  topi c.  

Mr.  Jordan.  Okay.  So,  i f  you' re  that  concerned  about  

Mr.  Sessi ons,  why  di dn' t  you  share  i t  wi th  the  Deputy  Attorney  

General?  

Mr.  Comey.  There  was  no  Deputy  Attorney  General  at  that  

poi nt  i n  ti me.  

Mr.  Jordan.  Ms.  Yates  had  already  stepped  down.  

Mr.  Comey.  Correct.  
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Mr.  Jordan.  Okay.  So  who  i s  number  three  at  the  Justi ce  

Department?  Why  not  share  i t  wi th  them?  

Mr.  Comey.  I don' t know  who  was  number  three  at  that  poi nt.  

There  was  an  acti ng  -- there  was  a  U. S.  Attorney  acti ng  as  the  

Deputy  Attorney  General,  who  we  knew  would  be  i n  the  seat  only  

unti l  Rod  Rosenstei n  was  confi rmed.  And  so  i t  di dn' t  make  sense  

to  bri ef  a  matter  li ke  that  to  hi m,  i t  was  our  j udgment,  and  so  

we  would  j ust  hold  i t.  

And  there  was  no  -- we  saw  no  i nvesti gati ve  urgency.  If  

there  was  somethi ng  we  had  to  do  ri ght  away,  we  mi ght  have  thought  

about  i t  di fferently,  but  gi ven  how  we  thought  about  the  

i nvesti gati ve  state  i n  whi ch  i t  was,  i t  made  sense  to  hold  onto  

i t.  

Mr.  Jordan.  I  j ust  want  to  be  clear.  So  you  knew  at  the  

ti me  that  there  was  no  Deputy  Attorney  General;  Ms.  Yates  had  

stepped  down.  You  knew  at  the  ti me  that  Jeff  Sessi ons  was  the  

Attorney  General,  but  you  thought  he  may  be  recusi ng  hi mself  at  

some  poi nt  i n  the  near  future.  And  you  also  knew  at  the  ti me  

Rod  Rosenstei n  had  been  nomi nated  to  fulfi ll  or  to  fi ll  the  DAG  

posi ti on.  Is  that  all  ri ght?  

Mr.  Comey.  Correct.  

Mr.  Jordan.  That  was  what  you  knew  and  assumed  at  the  ti me.  

And  so  you  made  a  deci si on  we' re  goi ng  to  wai t  unti l  

Mr.  Rosenstei n  has  the  posi ti on  and  we' re  goi ng  to  go  talk  to  

hi m?  

Document  ID:  0.7.1278.5117-000034  



 

 

             


           


         


            


         


         


         


   

              


            


  

             


           


              


        


              


         


      

         

        

           

            


     

          


         


  

c

192 

Mr. Comey. I thi nk what we deci ded was -- I don' t thi nk 

we were that speci fi c. We sai d: Let' s wai t unti l the 

Department of Justi ce gets i ts leadershi p team on and fi gures 

out how i t wants to staff the -- thi s case. Because you' ll 

recall, duri ng hi s confi rmati on heari ng, one of the thi ngs Rod 

Rosenstei n had promi sed the Senate was he would thi nk about 

whether to appoi nt a speci al prosecutor once he became Deputy 

Attorney General. 

Mr. Meadows. So how di d you know that he was on the cusp, 

a cordi ng to your words, the cusp of recusal? How would you know 

that? 

Mr. Comey. A couple of reasons. It seemed li ke an obvi ous 

case for recusal, gi ven hi s role i n the campai gn. And I 

thi nk -- i n fact, I know we had been told by that poi nt that the 

career offi ci als at the Department of Justi ce were recommendi ng 

that he recuse hi mself. I thi nk we knew that at that poi nt. So 

i t seemed a foregone conclusi on the Attorney General was goi ng 

to step out of Russi a matters. 

Mr. Meadows. So who told you? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t remember. 

Mr. Meadows. Why would they have told you? 

Mr. Comey. Well, the person who told me would have been 

someone on my seni or team. 

Mr. Meadows. Yeah, but why would that have been 

communi cated? Before a recusal actually took place, why would 
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they  be  communi cati ng  that  to  you,  Di rector  Comey?  

Mr.  Comey.  Why  would  my  staff  be  telli ng  me?  

Mr.  Meadows.  No.  Why  would  someone  at  the  Department  of  

Justi ce  tell  you  that  Jeff  Sessi ons  i s  goi ng  to  recuse  hi mself  

that  would  actually  change  your  acti ons  and  what  you  deci ded  to  

do?  

Mr.  Comey.  Fi rst  of  all,  I  know  I  sai d  thi s  before,  but  

no  one  told  me  from  the  Department  of  Justi ce.  If  your  questi on  

i s,  why  would  someone  at  the  Department  of  Justi ce  tell  someone  

at  the  FBI,  that  I  don' t  know.  

Mr.  Meadows.  So  who  told  you?  I  mean,  obvi ously,  i t  

changed  your  deci si on.  So  you' re  sayi ng  that  you  have  no  

knowledge  of  who  told  you  that  Jeff  Sessi ons  was  on  the  cusp  of  

recusal?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yeah.  It  di dn' t  --

Mr.  Meadows.  That' s  your  testi mony?  

Mr.  Comey.  It  di dn' t  change  my  deci si on.  It  was  --

Mr.  Meadows.  Well,  i t  obvi ously  di d  because  you  di dn' t  

take  i t  to  the  Attorney  General,  whi ch  i s  the  hi ghest  law  

enforcement  offi cer.  You  di dn' t  take  i t  to  hi m.  So  your  

testi mony  j ust  now  suggested  that  i t  di d  change  your  acti ons.  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  I' m  suggesti ng  i t  was  a  factor  i n  a  

deci si on  I  made.  It  was  reali ty,  and  I  stared  at  that  reali ty  

and,  based  on  that  reali ty,  I made  a deci si on.  The  deci si on  was,  

let' s  hold  onto  i t  unti l  they  sort  out  thei r  leadershi p.  
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Mr.  Jordan.  Di dn' t  i n  your  memos  you  hi ghli ght  the  i dea  

that  i f  the  Presi dent  has  somethi ng  li ke  what  he  told  you  i n  thi s  

meeti ng  that  prompted  the  memo  and  prompted  thi s  meeti ng,  that  

there' s  a  proper  chai n  he' s  supposed  to  follow?  In  fact,  the  

Presi dent  should  go  to  the  Attorney  General.  They  should  look  

at  the  i nformati on,  and  then  they  should  bri ng  i t  to  you  as  the  

di rector  of  the  FBI.  

You  lai d  out  a  chai n  and  a  sequence  that  should  happen  i f  

the  Presi dent  wants  to  get  i nformati on  to  you,  but  i t  seems  to  

me  here  we  are  now,  you  have  thi s  i nformati on  that  should  be,  

I  thi nk,  shared  wi th  the  Attorney  General  and  wasn' t.  

Mr.  Comey.  I' m  not  sure  I  follow  your  questi on,  

Mr.  Jordan.  I  don' t  remember  a  conversati on  wi th  the  Presi dent  

i n  thi s  context  about  who  he  should  talk  to.  

Mr.  Jordan.  I  thi nk  you,  i f  I  remember  your  memo  -- I  have  

to  go  back  and  look  -- but  i f  I  remember  your  memo,  one  of  the  

thi ngs  you  talked  about  i s  that  i f  the  Presi dent  wants  to  share  

i nformati on  li ke  he  shared  wi th  you  about  General  Flynn,  he  

should  do  that  through  the  appropri ate  channels,  bei ng  through  

the  Attorney  General,  then  through  the  Attorney  General,  Justi ce  

Department,  and  then  i t  comes  to  you,  as  the  Di rector  of  the  FBI.  

Mr.  Comey.  Yeah.  I' m  not  recalli ng  that.  He  wasn' t  

shari ng  i nformati on  about  Mr.  Flynn.  He  was  aski ng  me  to  drop  

an  i nvesti gati on  of  Flynn.  

There  are  other  contexts  i n  whi ch  at  the  end  of  March  or  
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Apri l  where  I  told  the  Presi dent  that  the  way  i t  should  work  i f  

he  has  an  i nqui ry  i s  to  have  the  Whi te  House  counsel  call  over  

to  the  leadershi p  of  the  Department  of  Justi ce  and  do  i t  that  

way.  

Mr.  Jordan.  Okay.  Okay.  I  want  to  move  on  to  -- I  want  

to  go  back  to  Bruce  Ohr  and  Chri stopher  Steele  real  qui ck,  i f  

I  can.  Do  you  know  Bruce  Ohr  personally?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes.  Not  well.  I' ve  met  hi m,  and  he  was  a  

prosecutor  i n  New  York  around  the  ti me  that  I  was  a  prosecutor  

i n  New  York.  

Mr.  Jordan.  And  di d  you  -- j ust  to  recap,  I thi nk  Mr.  Gowdy  

was  here  earli er  today.  Di d  you  know  that  Chri stopher  Steele  

was  gi vi ng  i nformati on  to  Mr.  Ohr?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  di dn' t  know  that,  and  I  don' t  know  that  for  

a  fact.  

Mr.  Jordan.  So  you  di dn' t  know  that  Chri stopher  Steele  was  

passi ng  i nformati on  to  Mr.  Ohr  and  he  was  then  provi di ng  i t  -- Mr.  

Ohr  was  then  provi di ng  i t  to  the  FBI?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  i f  that' s  true,  and  I  di dn' t  know  

anythi ng  li ke  that  when  I  was  Di rector.  

Mr.  Jordan.  Di d  you  know  i f  Chri stopher  Steele  had  any  bi as  

agai nst  Presi dent  Trump?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  

Mr.  Jordan.  Di d  you  -- I' m  j ust  curi ous  your  thoughts.  

Maybe  you  can' t  comment  on  thi s.  But  why  di d  the  FBI  need  Bruce  
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Ohr?  If  you  were  getti ng  i nformati on  di rectly  from  Mr.  Steele,  

why  di d  you  need  Bruce Ohr  to  also  get  i nformati on  from  Mr.  Steele  

and  then  gi ve  i t  to  the  FBI?  

Mr.  Comey.  I can' t answer  that  because  I don' t -- as  I sai d  

i n  response  to  your  earli er  questi ons,  I  don' t  know  anythi ng  

about  a  Bruce  Ohr  connecti on  to  Mr.  Steele.  

Mr.  Jordan.  Why  was  Chri stopher  Steele  termi nated,  hi s  

relati onshi p  wi th  the  FBI  termi nated,  i n  November  of  2016?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know.  

Mr.  Jordan.  Okay.  Di d  you  know  that  the  FBI  conti nued  to  

use  Mr.  Steele' s  i nformati on  after  he  was  termi nated  by  the  FBI?  

Mr.  Comey.  What  do  you  mean  by  use  hi s  i nformati on?  

Mr.  Jordan.  The  fact  that  after  he' s  termi nated,  he  

conti nues  to  gi ve  i nformati on  to  Bruce  Ohr,  who  Bruce  Ohr,  after  

each and  every  ti me  he  communi cates  wi th  Chri stopher  Steele,  then  

si ts  down  wi th  the  FBI,  and  there  are,  my  understandi ng,  several  

302s,  I  thi nk  more  than  a  dozen  302s  that  talk  about  those  

i nteracti ons  that  Mr.  Ohr  had  wi th  Mr.  Steele.  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  anythi ng  about  that.  

Mr.  Jordan.  Okay.  Were  you  aware  that  Chri stopher  Steele  

had  met  wi th  representati ves  i n  the  medi a  i n  September  of  2016?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  

Mr.  Jordan.  So  di dn' t  know  anythi ng  about  that  and  di dn' t  

know  that  he  had  met  wi th  Mr.  Isi koff  wi th  Yahoo  News?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  And  I don' t even  know  whether  that' s true,  
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but  I  di dn' t  know  anythi ng  about  i t.  

Mr.  Jordan.  Okay.  It' s  been  reported  that  there' s  a  

seri es  of  emai ls  that  talk  about  the  i dea  that  Chri stopher  

Steele  -- not  the  i dea,  the  fact  that  Chri stopher  Steele  had  met  

wi th  representati ves  i n  the  press  i n  September  of  2016.  Do  you  

know  anythi ng  about  that  seri es  of  emai ls?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  I  don' t  -- no,  I  don' t  remember  anythi ng  

about  i t.  Don' t  thi nk  I  ever  got  an  emai l  about  i t  or  saw  an  

emai l  about  i t.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Di rector  Comey,  what  element  was  mi ssi ng  i n  

July  of  2016,  when  you  had  the  press  conference,  that  mi ght  have  

been  found  i n  October  on  Anthony  Wei ner' s  computer?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  i t' s  an  element,  but  what  

was  -- the  key  i ngredi ent  that  was  mi ssi ng  i n  the  Cli nton  

i nvesti gati on  was  any  i ndi cati on  that  she  knew  she  was  doi ng  

somethi ng  she  shouldn' t  be  doi ng.  And  so  what  the  Wei ner  trove  

potenti ally  held  was  evi dence  of  that  i ntenti on,  especi ally  i n  

the  form  of  the  emai ls  from  her  BlackBerry  duri ng  her  fi rst  3  

months  as  Secretary  of  State.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Tell  me  how  the  exi stence  of  that  i nformati on  

may  have  i mpacted  the  element  of  i ntent.  

Mr.  Comey.  Agai n,  I  don' t  know  that  I' d  call  -- I  don' t  

know  whether  I would  descri be  i t  as  an  element.  My  understandi ng  

i s  -- and  I  remember  you  and  I  talki ng  about  thi s  i t  seems  li ke  

years  ago  -- the  Department  of  Justi ce has  always  requi red  before  
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i t wi ll bri ng that mi sdemeanor i ndi cati ons of i ntenti on or harm 

to the Uni ted States or obstructi on of j usti ce, those ki nds of 

thi ngs. And that was the i ngredi ent we di dn' t have i n the 

Cli nton case. 

And so the Wei ner trove held the prospect that we -- because 

i t mi ght contai n evi dence of the begi nni ng of her use of her 

unclass system, mi ght hold that evi dence. 

Mr. Gowdy. Well, I' m sure you can see, because a smart guy 

and a good lawyer, the next questi on i s, how can you begi n to 

even draft a non-pros memo i f you haven' t i ntervi ewed two dozen 

wi tnesses, i ncludi ng the target, but you' re already drafti ng a 

non-pros, but the moment you fi nd out that there may be a computer 

you have not a cessed, you reopen the i nvesti gati on; whatever 

you found on Wei ner' s computer, could you not have also found 

when you were i ntervi ewi ng the two dozen wi tnesses? 

Mr. Comey. Potenti ally. What I was doi ng i n May was 10 

months i nto an i nvesti gati on, seei ng on the current course and 

speed where i t' s goi ng to end, planni ng. Just -- I' m sure you 

di d too. I drafted plenty of i ndi ctments before I fi ni shed 

i nvesti gati ons because i t looked li ke we were goi ng to get enough 

to charge a person. And so that' s what i t was about. 

And, agai n -- I know I sai d thi s i n response to the 

Democrats' questi ons -- the prospect, what made Wei ner' s 

computer a horse of a di fferent color was the si ze of the trove 

and the emai ls potenti ally from the fi rst 3 months as Secretary 
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of  State  a  very  di fferent  kettle  of  fi sh.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Is  i t  because  -- and,  agai n,  I  know  you  don' t  

li ke  answeri ng  hypos,  and  I  don' t  actually  li ke  aski ng  

them  -- but  what  i n  parti cular  the  begi nni ng  stages  of  her  tenure  

would  have  addressed  an  element  that  you  thought  was  mi ssi ng?  

Mr.  Comey.  Oh,  that' s  easy  to  answer.  If  there  was  goi ng  

to  be  evi dence  that  she  knew  she  was  communi cati ng  i n  a  way  she  

shouldn' t,  expli ci t  evi dence,  common  sense  tells  you  i t' s  li kely  

to  be  at  the  begi nni ng  when  someone  encountered  her  mode  or  means  

of  communi cati on  and  sai d:  Hey,  boss,  you  know  you  can' t  do  

that.  You  know  you  can' t  talk  about  thi s  ki nd  of  thi ng  or  that  

ki nd  of  thi ng  on  an  unclass  system.  

It' s much more  li kely  to  be  at  the  begi nni ng,  whi ch we  never  

found,  those  3  months,  than  much  later.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  All  ri ght.  Well,  let  me  ask  you  about  the  

begi nni ng.  Bryan  Pagli ano,  when  the  FBI  i ntervi ewed  hi m,  who  

di d  he  say  i nstructed  hi m  to  set  up  the  server?  

Mr.  Kelley.  I' m  sorry.  Who  i s  the  name,  please?  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Bryan  Pagli ano.  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  remember.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Do  you  remember  Bryan  Pagli ano?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yeah,  I  remember  the  name.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  A  Department  of  State  employee  who,  by  all  

i ndi cati ons,  set  up  the  server  for  Secretary  Cli nton.  Do  you  

know  whether  he  was  asked  what  he  was  told  about  why  thi s  was  
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bei ng  done?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  today.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Could  that  wi tness  also  have  provi ded  some  

evi dence  of  i ntent,  based  on  those  conversati ons?  

Mr.  Comey.  The  guy  who  set  up  the  server?  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Sure.  

Mr.  Comey.  Maybe.  Maybe.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Do  you  know  where  he  worked?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  I  mean,  I' m  sure  I  di d  at  some  poi nt.  I  

don' t  remember.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  He  worked  at  the  Department  of  State,  or  he  was  

pai d  by  the  Department  of  State.  Di d  the  Bureau  pull  any  hour  

sheets  or  performance  evaluati ons  to  see  whether  or  not  he  

actually  di d  work  at  the  Department  of  State?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Di d  the  Bureau  talk  to  hi s  supervi sor?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  -- I  don' t  remember  certai nly  today.  

I  don' t  know  whether  I  ever  knew  that.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  What  was  he  granted  i mmuni ty  for  and  from?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  recall.  I' m  sure  I  knew  2  years  ago,  

but  I  don' t  remember.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Who  i s  Paul  Combetta?  

Mr.  Comey.  Another  one  of  the  fi gures  somehow  i n  the  setup  

of  the  server  or  somethi ng.  I  can' t  -- I  remember  the  name,  but  

I  don' t  remember  what  hi s  role  was.  

Document  ID:  0.7.1278.5117-000034  



 

 

            


   

           


           


         


   

            


  

            


    

           

        

            

            


   

           


       


           


  

           


  

           


         


  

              


  

201  

Mr.  Gowdy.  He  worked  at  Platte  Ri ver.  Does  that  refresh  

your  recollecti on?  

Mr.  Comey.  Platte  Ri ver  Networks,  yeah.  I  forget  whether  

they  suppli ed  the  server  or  one  of  the  servers.  They  were  

i nvolved  i n  the  setup  or  mai ntenance  of  the  Secretary' s  pri vate  

emai l  server.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Were  they  also  i nvolved  i n  any  deleti ons  of  her  

emai ls?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know.  It  sounds  fami li ar,  but  I  

honestly  can' t  remember.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Do  you  recall  the  product  BleachBi t?  

Mr.  Comey.  Oh,  yes,  I  do.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Do  you  know  where  that  came  from?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  certai nly  don' t  today.  I  don' t  know  whether  

I  ever  di d.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Do  you  recall  a  conference  call  between  Cheryl  

Mi lls,  Davi d  Kendall,  perhaps  Heather  Samuelson,  and  Platte  

Ri ver  about  the  time  the  publi c learned  she  had  thi s  unusual  emai l  

arrangement?  

Mr.  Comey.  Vaguely.  I' m  not  sure  I  remember  those  

parti ci pants.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Do  you  recall  emai ls  bei ng  destroyed  by  Platte  

Ri ver  after  the  publi c learned  that  she  had  thi s  emai l  

arrangement?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes.  That  ri ngs  more  of  a  bell.  I  remember  

Document  ID:  0.7.1278.5117-000034  



 

 

           


            


           

     

           


            


            


            


           


         


        


     

            


   

            


          

            


          


      

          

          

         


          


         


         


  

c

202 

somethi ng about -- and I don' t know whether i t was Combetta or 

not -- but somebody havi ng fai led to do what they asked hi m to 

do and pani cki ng and goi ng back and deleti ng emai ls on one of 

the old servers maybe. 

Mr. Gowdy. That i s defi ni tely one versi on of how that 

conference call went, that he i n the past had been told to have 

a short retenti on, and he got on the phone wi th some of Secretary 

Cli nton' s attorneys and had -- I won' t use the word -- but an 

oh-somethi ng bad moment and reali zed he had not done i t. There 

are other versi ons that we don' t have a cess to because 

pri vi leges were asserted surroundi ng that conversati on. Do you 

recall anythi ng about that? 

Mr. Comey. No. I remember pri vi lege i ssues, but not about 

that conversati on. 

Mr. Gowdy. Who made the deci si on to allow Cheryl Mi lls and 

Heather Samuelson to si t i n on Secretary Cli nton' s i ntervi ew? 

Mr. Comey. I thi nk the DOJ di d, although I' m tryi ng to 

remember whether I knew personally. FBI people knew about i t 

and di dn' t obj ect to i t. 

Mr. Gowdy. They di d or di d not? 

Mr. Comey. Di d not, to my recollecti on. 

Mr. Gowdy. We' ve i ntervi ewed some Bureau employees who 

thought i t was a very unusual arrangement that they were not 

fami li ar wi th. How would you descri be allowi ng multi ple fact 

wi tnesses to be present whi le a fact wi tness i s bei ng 
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i ntervi ewed?  

Mr.  Comey.  Certai nly  unusual  i n  that  you  had  two  people  

who  had  been  wi tnesses,  who  were  the  Secretary  -- the  subj ect' s  

lawyers,  who  after  we  cleared  as  to  them  were  allowed  to  attend  

the  i ntervi ew.  Unusual.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  When  you  say  "unusual, "  i n  the  ti me  you  spent  

i n  the  Southern  Di stri ct  and  at  the  FBI  and  the  Department  of  

Justi ce,  can  you  recall  another  ti me  where  fact  wi tnesses  also  

served  as  potenti al  counsel?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes.  I can' t -- and  we  would  have  to  negoti ate  

that  wi th  -- I' m tryi ng  to  remember  the  terms  -- a Curci o  heari ng  

and  havi ng  all  ki nds  of  di scussi ons  about  how  to  handle  i t  i n  

a  charged  case.  

I  don' t  know  that  I  can  remember  -- si tti ng  here,  I  can' t  

remember  an  uncharged,  so  an  i nvesti gati ve  stage  case,  where  a  

lawyer  for  the  subj ect  emerged  as  a  fact  wi tness.  I  can' t.  I' m  

sure  i f  I  have  more  ti me  to  thi nk  about  i t,  maybe  I  wi ll,  but  

I  can' t  ri ght  now.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Why  does  the  Bureau  typi cally  not  i ntervi ew  

multi ple  fact  wi tnesses  at  the  same  ti me?  

Mr.  Comey.  Because  you' d  i deally  li ke  people  not  to  know  

what  others'  stori es  are  so  they' re  not  able  to  get  thei r  story  

together.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Some  of  the  same  reasons  they  have  a  

sequestrati on  rule.  So  you  don' t  want  wi tnesses  to  hear  other  

Document  ID:  0.7.1278.5117-000034  



 

 

  

             


   

            

              


            


           


           


            


          


  

           


      

      

           

         

           

        

        

             


        

            


          


           


      

  

204  

wi tnesses.  

Mr.  Comey.  Yeah,  i deally.  You  want  to  keep  them  all  i n  

separate  boxes.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  So  why  was  thi s  i ntervi ew  handled  di fferently?  

Mr.  Comey.  I don' t remember  for  sure.  I thi nk  a key  factor  

was  they  were  her  lawyers,  and  so  our  abi li ty  to  keep  them  from  

talki ng  to  each  other  was  sli m  to  none  regardless  and  that  they  

had  been  -- we  had  fi ni shed  our  evaluati on  of  them  as  potenti al  

subj ects.  And  so  I  thi nk  the  j udgment  of  the  team  was  i t' s  

unusual,  but  i t' s  really  not  somethi ng  that' s  goi ng  to  hurt  our  

i nvesti gati on.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Can  you  thi nk  of  another  i nvesti gati on  you  were  

i nvolved  wi th  where  that  happened?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Di d  you  i ntervi ew  Patri ck  Kennedy?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  di dn' t  i ntervi ew  anybody.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Di d  the  Bureau  i ntervi ew  Patri ck  Kennedy?  

Mr.  Comey.  State  Department  offi ci al?  

Mr.  Gowdy.  State  Department  offi ci al.  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know.  It  ri ngs  some  bell,  but  maybe  

I  know  hi s  name  from  somethi ng  else.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Di d  the  Bureau  gai n  an  understandi ng  of  how  she  

could  have  kept  her  emai ls  from  the  ti me  she  separated  from  

servi ce  at  the  State  Department,  but  yet  felt  the  need  to  delete  

them  i n  March  of  2015?  
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Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Destructi on  of  evi dence  can  be  consi dered  

evi dence  of  what?  

Mr.  Comey.  It  can  ei ther  be  a  separate  offense  or  evi dence  

of  consci ousness  of  gui lt.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Of  the  statutes  the  Bureau  had  under  

i nvesti gati on  -- and  what  I  mean  by  that  i s  the  fact  pattern  may  

have  appli ed  to  certai n  statutes  -- whi ch  statutes  do  you  recall  

were  at  i ssue  or  at  play  i n  thi s  i nvesti gati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  i f  I  remember  even  the  numbers  

anymore.  I  thi nk  i t  was  18  U. S. C.  1924,  whi ch  I  thi nk  i s  the  

mi sdemeanor,  and  793,  whi ch  i s  a  vari ety  of  secti ons  relati ng  

to  espi onage,  mi shandli ng  of  classi fi ed  i nformati on,  theft  of  

classi fi ed  i nformati on.  I  thi nk  those  were  the  two.  I  could  

be  wrong  about  that.  I' ve  tri ed  to  suppress  i t,  but  I thi nk  those  

are  the  two.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  So  maybe  a felony  retenti on,  a gross  negli gence  

standard,  also  a  felony,  I  thi nk,  and  then  a  mi sdemeanor?  Does  

that  sound  ri ght?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes.  Maybe  you  can  help  me.  I  thi nk  i t  was  

793  and  1924.  I  thi nk  1924  i s  the  mi sdemeanor.  793  --

Mr.  Gowdy.  You  are  correct.  1924,  you  are  correct.  793,  

and  there' s  a  secti on  (f) ,  whi ch  i s  gross  negli gence,  and  then  

there' s a secti on  (d) ,  whi ch i s  a hi gher  level  of  sci enter.  Does  

that  sound  ri ght?  
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Mr. Comey. It does sound ri ght. 

Mr. Gowdy. In your j udgment, what element was mi ssi ng that 

prevented or thwarted a su cessful -- well, let me ask you thi s: 

Is i t your posi ti on there was i nsuffi ci ent evi dence to charge 

or your posi ti on that there was i nsuffi ci ent evi dence, even i f 

charged, to secure a convi cti on? 

Mr. Comey. As I recall, our j udgment was that, gi ven the 

way the Department of Justi ce for 50 or 100 years had treated 

those statutes, we di d not have suffi ci ent evi dence of i ntent 

for any -- anybody i n the counterespi onage secti on to bri ng those 

charges, that they would never bri ng a gross negli gence 

prosecuti on, and that all the mi sdemeanor cases i nvolved some 

other element of proof that rai sed i t up to the level at whi ch 

they would bri ng that statute to bear. 

So I don' t -- I don' t thi nk we spent a lot of ti me fi guri ng 

out whether we had a beyond a reasonable doubt case, because i t 

was so obvi ous we had a case that nobody would prosecute. 

Mr. Gowdy. Had there ever been prosecuti ons under the 

gross negli gence statute? 

Mr. Comey. One, as I recall, si nce 1917. 

Mr. Gowdy. Was the statute ever used i n appli cati ons for 

search warrants? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t know. I don' t know i f I ever knew that. 

Mr. Gowdy. So, as we si t here today -- and I know you and 

I have had thi s conversati on, and i t' s been a whi le -- your best 
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explanati on  for  what  was  lacki ng  -- I  get  the  fact  the  statute  

wasn' t  used  that  often,  but  no  statute  i s  used  for  the  fi rst  ti me  

unti l  i t  i s.  

So  what  -- di d  you  vi ew  the  statute  as  bei ng  

unconsti tuti onal?  Di d  you  vi ew  i t  as  bei ng  so  vague  as  to  not  

sustai n  a  convi cti on,  or  was  there  an  element  of  the  statute  you  

thi nk  was  mi ssi ng?  

Mr.  Comey.  See  i f  I  get  thi s  ri ght.  My  recollecti on  i s  

not  crystal  clear  at  thi s  poi nt.  I  remember  learni ng  that  there  

were  grave  reservati ons  for  decades  i n  the  Department  of  Justi ce  

about  the  consti tuti onali ty  of  793(f) ,  I  thi nk  i t  i s,  and  an  

understandi ng  -- and  I  confi rmed  that  understandi ng  by  readi ng  

the  legi slati ve  hi story  myself  -- that  when  Congress  passed  that  

statute  and  made  i t  a  felony  i n  1917,  thei r  i ntenti on  was  for  

the  defi ni ti on  of  gross  negli gence to  approach wi llfulness,  very  

si mi lar  to  the  ki nd  of  i ntenti on  that  the  Department  of  Justi ce  

would  requi re  for  a  1924  prosecuti on.  

And  we  had  proof  that  got  us  nowhere  near  wi llfulness.  And  

so  our  j udgment  was  we  got  no  chance  on  793,  even  i f  they  would  

bri ng  the  second  prosecuti on  i n  Ameri can  hi story  i n  thi s  context,  

and  we  sure  got  no  chance  on  the  i ntenti on  requi rement  that  

they' ve  i mposed  on  the  statute  forever.  And  so  our  j udgment  was,  

look,  we  worked  thi s  hard;  we' re  nowhere  near  where  anybody  would  

bri ng  thi s.  

It  turns  out  I  got  cri ti ci zed  that  my  case  for  havi ng  no  
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case was not strong enough. The i nspector general hi t me that 

I should have told the publi c they also would never bri ng a case 

where the people communi cati ng all had a clearance and a need 

to know the i nformati on, and that Di rector Comey fai led to be 

a curate wi th the Ameri can people i n sayi ng not only was thi s 

no case; i t was more of a no case than he reali zed. 

Mr. Gowdy. All ri ght. You have smart lawyers at the 

Department, smart lawyers at the Bureau. So you knew all of that 

pretty early on i n the i nvesti gati on. Thi s i s one of the fi rst 

thi ngs you' re going to ask i s, what i s the case law? Have there 

been other prosecuti ons? 

Mr. Comey. Yeah. I di dn' t know i t to that level of detai l 

unti l the spri ng, but I knew from j ust talki ng to our troops early 

on i t' s goi ng to be a hard case to make, gi ven the way the 

Department of Justi ce has always understood these statutes. 

Let' s get at i t, see what we can fi nd. 

Mr. Gowdy. So what were you looki ng for? What could have 

changed that analysi s? What speci fi c pi ece or pi eces of 

evi dence could have changed that? 

Mr. Comey. Si gni fi cant evi dence of knowledge of 

lawlessness, the nature of the unlawful conduct, si gni fi cant 

evi dence of communi cati on wi th people wi thout a clearance or a 

need to know, si gni fi cant evi dence of obstructi on of j usti ce and 

false statements by the subj ect, and probably other thi ngs that 

are i n the other cases, but those are three that pop i nto my head 
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2 years on. 

Mr. Gowdy. Di d you fi nd any evi dence of ei ther su cessful 

or attempted forei gn i ntrusi ons i n her server? 

Mr. Comey. My recollecti on i s that we di d not fi nd evi dence 

that forei gn actors had i ntruded i nto the server, but that our 

experts thought we wouldn' t see i t, gi ven the nature of the server 

and the nature of the adversary. That' s my best recollecti on. 

Mr. Gowdy. So there was no draft of your July 5th statement 

that may have i ncluded any language about possi bly hosti le actors 

havi ng a cess to emai ls? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t remember for sure, but i t wouldn' t 

surpri se me i f there were because I was tryi ng to descri be what 

our folks sai d, whi ch i s: We don' t see the evi dence, but gi ven 

the nature of the actors, we wouldn' t be li kely to see the 

evi dence. But I don' t remember exactly how I phrased i t. 

Mr. Gowdy. So you don' t recall a draft that may have used 

phrases li ke li keli hood, si gni fi cant li keli hood edi ted down to 

a potenti al? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t, si tti ng here. It wouldn' t surpri se 

me, though, as part of the edi ti ng process. 

Mr. Gowdy. If there had been evi dence, i n your j udgment, 

would that have met the allowed a cess by people wi thout 

suffi ci ent securi ty classi fi cati ons? 

Mr. Comey. Not necessari ly, because the ki nd of evi dence 

I understand that DOJ looks for i s I i ntenti onally shared 
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i nformati on  wi th  you,  who  di dn' t  have  a  clearance.  The  

carelessness  i nvolved  i n  havi ng  a  system  that  a  bad  guy  could  

hack i nto  i s  a di fferent  sort,  and  so  that' s not  what  I  was  talki ng  

about  earli er.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Di d  all  of  Secretary  Cli nton' s  attorneys  have  

the  requi si te  securi ty  clearances?  

Mr.  Comey.  Not  to  my  knowledge.  Not  all  of  them,  no.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Do  you  recall  whi ch ones  di d  not,  and  would  they  

have  been  any  of  the  ones  who  actually  culled  through  her  emai ls?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  recall  as  to  people.  I  have  some  

recollecti on  that  maybe  Davi d  Kendall  from  another  case  had  a  

clearance  or  somethi ng.  But  of  the  attorneys,  surely  not  all  

of  them  had  the  requi si te  clearance  to  be  vi ewi ng  classi fi ed  

i nformati on.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Would  that  have  met  the  evi denti ary  burden  for  

an  element  i f  you  gave  emai ls  to  someone  who  di d  not  have  a  

securi ty  clearance?  

Mr.  Comey.  No.  DOJ  would  laugh  us  across  the  street  i f  

we  came  over  wi th  that,  that  someone  i n  the  course  of  legal  

representati on  had  thei r  lawyer  revi ew  somethi ng.  No  chance.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  It  sounds  to  me,  though,  wi th  all  due  respect,  

that  you  are  descri bi ng  an  i ntent  statute,  an  i ntent  to  

di ssemi nate  or  share  classi fi ed  i nformati on  wi th  somebody  who  

i s  not  enti tled  to  i t.  So  why  would  Congress  come  up  wi th  a gross  

negli gence  standard  i f  we' re  goi ng  to  read  i t  as  i ntent?  
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Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  for  sure.  You' d  have  to  ask  the  

1917  Congress.  But  my  recollecti on  of  the  readi ng  the  hi story  

of  i t  i s  there  was  a  movement  to  try  and  have  the  espi onage  statute  

sweep  more  broadly  than  j ust  i ntenti onal  mi sconduct.  And  there  

was  a  debate  i n  Congress,  whi ch  i s  why  people  who  voted  i t  for  

i t  sai d:  I' ll  go  along  wi th  gross  negli gence,  but  i t  better  be  

up  at  the  wi llful  level,  close  to  i ntenti onal  mi sconduct.  But  

I  don' t  know  beyond  that.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Do  you  know  whether  anyone  at  the  Bureau  or  the  

Department  shared  questi ons  wi th  Ms.  Mi lls'  or  Samuelson' s  

attorney  before  the  i ntervi ew?  

Mr.  Comey.  No,  I  don' t.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Would  you  be  surpri sed  i f  that  happened?  Is  

that  outsi de  the  normal  protocol,  from  your  experi ence?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know.  It  would  depend.  I  guess  I  

could  i magi ne  i t  i f  they  were  negoti ati ng  over  pri vi leged  spheres  

and  tryi ng  to  navi gate  pri vi lege.  I  could  i magi ne  an  

i nvesti gator  shari ng,  "Look,  thi s  i s  what  I  want  to  talk  about,  

thi s,  thi s  and  thi s, "  to  try  and  avoi d  a  pri vi lege  asserti on,  

but  I  don' t  know.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  What  other  i nvesti gatory  tools  di d  you  have  

other  than  a  voluntary  i ntervi ew?  

Mr.  Comey.  Wi th  respect  to?  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Ei ther  Mi lls,  Samuelson,  Kendall,  Pagli ano,  

Combetta.  
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Mr.  Comey.  Concei vably,  you  could  -- lots  of  

i nvesti gati ve  tools,  but  the  closest  to  an  i ntervi ew  would  be  

a  grand  j ury  subpoena,  questi oni ng  someone  i n  the  grand  j ury.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  And  tell  me  why  that  was  not  done  for  any  of  

the  wi tnesses.  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  for  sure.  The  j udgment  of  the  

i nvesti gati ve  team  surely  that  i t  wasn' t  necessary.  My  

recollecti on,  whi ch i s  not  crystal  clear,  as  to  Secretary  Cli nton  

i s  that  there  were  more  degrees  of  freedom  i n  doi ng  an  i ntervi ew  

than  doi ng  i t  i n  a  grand  j ury  setti ng,  where,  as  you  know,  i t' s  

very  restri cti ve.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  I  do  know  that.  I  also  know,  unless  

somethi ng' s  changed,  the  attorney' s  not  allowed  i n  a  grand  j ury  

when  a  wi tness  i s  bei ng  i ntervi ewed,  and  there  would  be  no  

si tuati on  under  whi ch  multi ple  wi tnesses  would  be  i ntervi ewed  

at  the  same  ti me  by  a  grand  j ury.  

Mr.  Comey.  That' s  ri ght.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Fai r?  

Mr.  Comey.  Fai r,  although,  as  you  know,  because  thi s  i s  

what  gums  i t  up,  the  wi tness  can  ask  to  go  outsi de  and  consult  

wi th  thei r  attorney  --

Mr.  Gowdy.  Absolutely.  

Mr.  Comey.  -- as  frequently  as  they  li ke  duri ng  a  grand  

j ury  proceedi ng.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Absolutely.  So  what  I' m  tryi ng  to  get  at  i s,  
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what  do  you  gi ve  up  by  usi ng  the  grand  j ury?  

Mr.  Comey.  What  di d  the  --

Mr.  Gowdy.  What  do  you  gi ve  up?  What  i nvesti gatory  

advantage  do  you  lose?  If  you  have  a  choi ce  between  a  voluntary  

i ntervi ew  and  a  grand  j ury  appearance,  what  are  you  ri ski ng  

losi ng  wi th  the  grand  j ury  i ntervi ew?  

Mr.  Comey.  A  number  of  thi ngs.  If  you' re  goi ng  to  talk  

about  TS/SCI  i nformati on,  you  have  a  real  problem  wi th  the  grand  

j ury.  You' ll  have  to  clear  a grand  j ury,  whi ch i s  really  tri cky,  

and  both  because  of  the  i ntrusi on  on  thei r  pri vate  li ves  and  j ust  

how  di ffi cult  i t  i s  to  clear  23  U. S.  ci ti zens  who  have  been  

summoned  for  j ury  duty.  

And  so  you  have  to  fi gure  out  what  can  we  di scuss  i n  the  

grand  j ury  and  what  can' t  we  di scuss  i n  the  grand  j ury.  So  what  

you' re  gai ni ng  wi th  the  i nformal  i ntervi ew  i s,  i n  a  SCIF,  an  

agi li ty  that  you  wouldn' t  have  i n  a  grand  j ury  and  then  the  

abi li ty  of  a  group  of  i nvesti gators  all  to  fi re  at  the  person  

and  watch  and  poke  and  watch  and  poke  i n  a  way  you  can' t  i n  a  

grand  j ury.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  Well,  I' m  out  of  ti me.  I' m  goi ng  to  let  

Ratcli ffe  go.  But  I  do  need  you  to  -- i f  the  wi tnesses  don' t  

have  clearances,  then  how  much  conversati on  would  there  be  wi th  

those  wi tnesses  about  classi fi ed  i nformati on  over  whi ch  they  had  

no  clearance?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  thi nk  they  gave  everybody  i n  that  room  an  
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i nteri m  clearance  to  di scuss  TS/SCI  i nformati on  that  day.  So  

you  were  able  to  gi ve  i nteri m  clearances  to  a  small  group  of  

people.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  I  was  more  referri ng  to  the  lawyers  that  may  

have  culled  through  the  emai ls  when  they  were  asked  to  do  so,  

and  do  you  know  whether  they  had  clearances  when  they  went  through  

her  emai ls?  

Mr.  Comey.  As  I  sai d  earli er,  I' m  sure  at  least  some  of  

them  di dn' t.  Maybe  all  of  them  di dn' t.  I  have  some  

recollecti on  that  maybe  Davi d  Kendall  or  somebody  had  a  

clearance,  but  certai nly  not  all  of  them.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  And  he  would  have  had  a  clearance  -- well,  who  

represented  Davi d  Petraeus?  

Mr.  Comey.  Maybe  i t  was  Davi d  Kendall.  Maybe  that' s  why  

I' m  rememberi ng  i t.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  It  was.  

Mr.  Comey.  He' s  an  experi enced  lawyer  who  has  represented  

a  lot  of  people  i n  classi fi ed  i nvesti gati ons.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  He  i s.  

Mr.  Comey.  Maybe  he  di d.  But  others,  I' m  sure  they  all  

di dn' t  have  clearances.  

Mr.  Gowdy.  And  I  thi nk  Congressman  Ratcli ffe  made  

reference  to  the  fact  that  you  -- or  at  least  there  are  quotes  

attri buted  to  you  -- are  not  happy  wi th  the  deci si on  to  let  hi m  

plead  to  a  mi sdemeanor  as  opposed  to  a  felony.  Is  that  true?  
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Mr. Comey. That' s true. 

Mr. Gowdy. And part of i t was because you assi gned a hi gher 

level of knowledge or duty to hi m, gi ven hi s role as a general? 

Mr. Comey. And the nature of the offense was j ust proof 

that he knew he was doi ng somethi ng he shouldn' t do was 

overwhelmi ng, and on top of that, he li ed about i t to the FBI. 

Mr. Gowdy. Ri ght. I really am goi ng to let John go now. 

He li ed to the FBI; that i s a cri me. Lyi ng to the publi c i s not, 

as we' ve establi shed. But i s i t not evi dence of i ntent and/or 

consci ousness of gui lt? I mean, Secretary Cli nton told the 

publi c that no classi fi ed i nformati on traversed her server, and 

that was false, ri ght? 

Mr. Comey. She mai ntai ned that -- as I recall, that she 

di d not -- she thought she had su cessfully talked around the 

classi fi ed subj ects. And the challenge for the prosecutors and 

i nvesti gators was provi ng that i s false. 

Mr. Gowdy. Well, and i t would have been really i nteresti ng 

had she phrased i t to the publi c: I di d my best to avoi d talki ng 

around any documents that may have been classi fi ed. 

But that i s not what she sai d. She sai d: No classi fi ed 

i nformati on was ei ther sent or recei ved. 

Do you recall that? 

Mr. Comey. Generally. I thi nk that' s ri ght. And, as you 

sai d, duri ng her i ntervi ew, she mai ntai ned that: I beli eved we 

had su cessfully talked -- we had not crossed the li ne. We had 
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talked around these subj ects and were suffi ci ently vague as to 

not i mpli cate the classi fi cati on requi rements. 

Mr. Gowdy. She also sai d that no records were destroyed, 

that they were all retai ned. Do you recall her sayi ng that? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t remember. I beli eve you, but I don' t 

remember that. 

Mr. Gowdy. Do you recall her sayi ng her attorneys were 

overly i nclusi ve i n what they consi dered to be publi c as opposed 

to pri vate? 

Mr. Comey. No, I don' t remember that one. 

Mr. Gowdy. You agree false statements someti mes i s as much 

evi dence of i ntent as you' re goi ng to get? 

Mr. Comey. In some cases. 

Mr. Gowdy. Demonstrably false exculpatory statements. 

Mr. Comey. Hard to answer i n the abstract, but i n some 

cases i t can be your best evi dence. 

Mr. Jordan. Thank you, Mr. Chai rman. 

Di rector, I want to have you look at an emai l, i f you would, 

please. I' m more concerned wi th the second emai l where the from 

li ne i s McCabe, Andrew McCabe. I' ll gi ve you a mi nute to look 

i t over and then j ust want to run through i t. 

Mr. Comey. The one dated Sunday, January 8th? 

Mr. Jordan. Yes, 12: 08. 

Mr. Comey. Okay, I' ve read i t. 

Mr. Jordan. Okay. So i n the fi rst li ne: "A cordi ng to 
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Kortan,  CNN  i s  close  to  goi ng  forward  wi th  the  sensi ti ve  story. "  

What  i s  "the  sensi ti ve  story"?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  thi nk  i t  i s  the  salaci ous  -- the  sexual  

detai ls  from  a  porti on  of  the  Steele  dossi er.  

Mr.  Jordan.  Okay.  What' s  been  commonly  called  the  

salaci ous  and  unveri fi ed,  that  part  of  the  dossi er?  

Mr.  Comey.  That' s  what  I  call  i t,  yep.  

Mr.  Jordan.  All  ri ght.  Second  paragraph:  "CNN  states  

that  they  beli eve  the  pressure  has  bui lt  and  i s  unavoi dable. "  

Actually,  let' s  go  to  the:  "Mi ke  relates  that  he  wi ll  try  

to  ski rt  the  most  controversi al  stuff,  focus  on  the  questi on  of  

possi ble  compromi se  generally. "  

What  does  "possi ble  compromi se"  refer  to?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  what  he  means.  It  means  i n  the  

begi nni ng,  i t  sounds  li ke  he' ll  try  to  avoi d  the  sex  stuff,  but  

I  don' t  know  what  he  means  by  "focus  on  the  questi on  of  possi ble  

compromi se  generally. "  

Mr.  Jordan.  You  read  that  the  way  I  do.  The  most  

controversi al  stuff  i s  what  you  j ust  told  me  the  sensi ti ve  story  

i s.  But  the  second  clause,  the  questi on  of  possi ble  compromi se  

generally,  you  don' t  know  what  that  means?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t.  Yeah,  I  don' t  know  what  he  means.  

Mr.  Jordan.  Okay.  Next  sentence:  "The  tri gger  for  them  

i s  they  know  the  materi al  was  di scussed  i n  the  bri ef  and  presented  

i n  an  attachment. "  
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I  have  an  i dea  what  I  thi nk  that  sentence  means,  but  you  

tell  me,  i f  you  would.  

Mr.  Comey.  I  take  that  as  a  reference  to  someone  has  told  

them  that  the  Presi dent-elect  was  bri efed  on  thi s  controversi al  

stuff,  and  -- yeah,  that  he  was  bri efed  on  thi s  controversi al  

stuff  and  that  thei r  knowledge  of  that  i s  what  i s  tri ggeri ng  them  

to  do  the  reporti ng.  

My  recollecti on  i s,  we  understood  that  CNN  had  the  salaci ous  

and  unveri fi ed  i nformati on,  whi ch  was  one  of  the  reasons  we  told  

the  Presi dent-elect  about  i t.  And  i n  i t' s  ki nd  of  a  

bootstrappi ng,  they' re  now  sayi ng,  we  have  found  out  that  the  

Presi dent-elect  was  bri efed  on  i t  and  so  we' re  goi ng  to  go  wi th  

i t.  That' s  what  -- I  could  be  wrong  about  that,  Mr.  Jordan,  but  

that' s  how  I  understand  that.  

Mr.  Jordan.  That' s  exactly  how  I  read  i t.  Now,  j ust  to  

be  clear,  the  materi al  that  was  di scussed  i n  the  bri ef,  that' s  

the  bri ef  you  gave  the  Presi dent-elect?  

Mr.  Comey.  Correct.  

Mr.  Jordan.  All  ri ght.  And  somehow  someone  told  CNN  that  

you  had  done  j ust  that?  

Mr.  Comey.  It  appears  so  from  thi s  emai l.  That' s  how  I' m  

readi ng  --

Mr.  Jordan.  Any  i dea  who  told  them  that?  

Mr.  Comey.  Say  agai n,  I' m  sorry?  

Mr.  Jordan.  Any  i dea  who  told  them  that  you  had  actually  

Document  ID:  0.7.1278.5117-000034  



 

 

       

      

       

      

            


          


    

            

          

          

            


          


         

         

               

        

              


         


        


        


          


           


          

           


          


  

c

219 

bri efed the Presi dent-elect about thi s subj ect? 

Mr. Comey. No. 

Mr. Jordan. No i dea? 

Mr. Comey. No i dea. 

Mr. Jordan. It' s been reported that Mr. Clapper may have 

been i nvolved i n gi vi ng that i nformati on to CNN. Any i ndi cati on 

that that' s a curate? 

Mr. Comey. No. Same answer, I don' t know. 

Mr. Jordan. Okay. What' s the attachment? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t see an attachment. 

Mr. Jordan. The tri gger for them i s they know the materi al 

was di scussed i n the bri ef that you gave to the Presi dent-elect 

on January 6 and presented i n an attachment. 

Di d you gi ve -- was there some attachment? 

Mr. Comey. Oh, I see. I thi nk I know what that means. 

Mr. Jordan. What i s that? 

Mr. Comey. The way i n whi ch -- I j ust want to be careful 

here because I don' t want to talk about classi fi ed i nformati on. 

I beli eve they' re di scussi ng the li teral format, wri tten format 

i n whi ch materi al was presented to the Presi dent-elect' s team 

and to the Presi dent-elect, and they' re referri ng to some of the 

materi al bei ng i n an attachment and not i n the body of the 

document. That' s what I understand that to mean. 

Mr. Jordan. So, i n other words, you told the Presi dent 

certai n thi ngs, but you also left hi m some ki nd of attachment, 
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some  wri tten,  some  pi ece  of  paper  or  somethi ng  as  well,  and  they  

knew  about  that?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yeah.  And  that' s  a  garble,  because  that  -- I  

take  them  to  mean  an  attachment,  but  the  attachment,  to  my  

recollecti on,  di dn' t contai n  the  salaci ous  and  unveri fi ed  stuff,  

and  that  that  was  si mply  conveyed  orally  from  me  to  the  

Presi dent-elect.  

Mr.  Jordan.  I  understand.  Any  i dea  how  they  got  -- how  

CNN  gets  ahold  of  the  attachment  that  you  gave  the  Presi dent  of  

the  Uni ted  States?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  understand  i t  to  be  sayi ng  that  they  

have  the  attachment.  I  read  thi s  sentence  to  say  the  tri gger  

for  them  i s  they  know  the  materi al  was  di scussed  i n  the  bri ef  

and  presented  i n  an  attachment.  

Mr.  Jordan.  Okay.  So  they  di dn' t  physi cally  have  that,  

they  j ust  knew  that  that' s  how  i t  was  presented  to  the  Presi dent?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know.  I' m  j ust  readi ng  thi s.  

Mr.  Jordan.  All  ri ght.  Next  sentence:  "So  far  i t  does  

not  look  li ke  they  wi ll  characteri ze  FBI  efforts. "  

What  does  that  mean?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  for  sure,  but  I  have  enough  of  a  

reacti on  I' ll  offer  i t  to  you,  that  I  take  thi s  as  li kely  bei ng  

that  the  FBI  Di rector  bri efed  the  Presi dent-elect  about  thi s  

materi al.  I  could  be  wrong  about  that,  but  I  don' t  know  what  

other  FBI  efforts  he  could  be  referri ng  to.  
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Mr.  Jordan.  So  Andy  McCabe  i s  telli ng  you,  so  far,  based  

on  what  he  has  learned  or  Mr.  Kortan  has  learned,  that  CNN  i s  

goi ng  to  run  wi th  thi s  story,  but  they  don' t  fully  know  that  

you' re  the  i ndi vi dual  who  bri efed  the  Presi dent  on  thi s  i ssue?  

That' s  what  that  sentence  i s  about?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yeah,  that' s  how  I' m  readi ng  i t.  And  I  could  

be  wrong,  but  I' m  readi ng  thi s  as  CNN  has  somehow  gotten  on  to  

the  i dea  that  the  Presi dent-elect  was  told  about  certai n  

i nformati on,  but  they  actually  don' t  know  who  di d  the  telli ng,  

whi ch  i s  an  i ndi cati on  -- I  could  be  wrong  about  thi s  too  -- that  

i t  di dn' t  come  from  the  FBI.  

Mr.  Jordan.  In  the  questi on  secti on,  he  says,  "a  few  

questi ons, "  and  he  has  two  here.  Aski ng  you:  "Do  you  have  any  

gui dance  on  who,  i f  any,  we  should  noti fy?"  

Di d  you  noti fy  anyone  about  thi s?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  remember.  I  don' t  remember  noti fyi ng  

anybody,  but  i t' s  possi ble.  

Mr.  Jordan.  He  suggests  that  you  tell  Deputy  Attorney  

General  Yates.  Di d  you  do  that?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  remember  doi ng  that.  

Mr.  Jordan.  What  about,  he  next  says,  "the  bri efi ng  

partners. "  Di d  you  let  them  know?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  -- i t' s  possi ble.  I  don' t  remember  

doi ng  that,  though,  and  I  take  that  to  mean  the  di rectors  of  CIA,  

NSA,  and  Nati onal  Intelli gence,  but  I  don' t  remember  doi ng  that.  
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Mr. Jordan. That was my next questi on. The bri efi ng 

partners are who, those i ndi vi duals? 

Mr. Comey. That' s what I understand thi s to mean. 

Mr. Jordan. And those would be the i ndi vi duals who 

a compani ed you to New York for thi s bri efi ng wi th the Presi dent? 

Mr. Comey. Correct. 

Mr. Jordan. Presi dent-elect at the ti me? 

Mr. Comey. Correct. 

Mr. Jordan. Okay. Okay. That' s all I got. Thank you. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. Di rector Comey, I want to pi ck up where we 

were talki ng earli er, and I want to gi ve you back your statement 

from your July 5th press conference. 

Setti ng asi de the questi ons about whether or not Secretary 

Cli nton had the i ntent to or was j ust reckless or careless i n 

mi shandli ng classi fi ed i nformati on, do you take i ssue wi th the 

characteri zati on by your former general counsel, Ji m Baker, who 

told thi s commi ttee that Secretary Cli nton' s mi shandli ng of 

classi fi ed -- that Secretary Cli nton mi shandled classi fi ed 

i nformati on i n a manner that he descri bed as appalli ng? 

Mr. Kelley. Could we see that porti on of the transcri pt, 

please? 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. I don' t have the porti on. I' ll represent 

to you --

Mr. Kelley. And whi ch day was that testi mony? 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. If you want to take the ti me, i t' s referred 
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to i n the i nspector general report, and I' ll fi nd where he 

represented, not j ust to thi s commi ttee, but to the i nspector 

general and used the word "appalli ng. " You want me to do that? 

Mr. Kelley. Yes, si r. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. Okay. 

Mr. Kelley. If you' re goi ng to refer to transcri pts, we 

ought to take a look at them. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. Let me j ust ask you, Di rector, whether i t' s 

i n the transcri pt or not, was Hi llary Cli nton' s mi shandli ng of 

classi fi ed i nformati on appalli ng? 

Mr. Comey. It' s not -- I a cept your representati on. 

It' s not a term that I have used. I thi nk of i t as really sloppy 

and --

Mr. Ratcli ffe. Okay, really sloppy? Look at your press 

conference. I guess by your counti ng, i t looks li ke Hi llary 

Cli nton mi shandled classi fi ed i nformati on on at least -- and by 

mi shandled, I mean that classi fi ed i nformati on went across an 

unclassi fi ed devi ce or server -- on at least 110 emai ls and 52 

emai l chai ns. Is that ri ght? 

Mr. Comey. I thi nk that' s ri ght. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. And that ei ght of those were top secret. 

She mi shandled top secret i nformati on at least ei ght ti mes, by 

your counti ng? 

Mr. Comey. That' s correct. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. And that she mi shandled classi fi ed 
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i nformati on at a secret level 36 ti mes, by your counti ng? 

Mr. Comey. That' s ri ght. These are all -- thi s i s what 

makes up the 110 or whatever i t i s. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. Exactly. She mi shandled confi denti al 

i nformati on at least ei ght ti mes, by your counti ng? 

Mr. Comey. Correct. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. Doesn' t -- your statement doesn' t reflect 

i t, but do you know i f any of those were speci al a cess program, 

SCI, Sensi ti ve Compartmentali zed Informati on? Do you know i f 

any of those were releasable only to fi ve alli ed partners? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t -- I don' t remember. I beli eve some 

of the topi cs that were di scussed i n the top secret category were 

also desi gnated as Sensi ti ve Compartmented Informati on. I' m 

not certai n of that, but I beli eve that to be the case. I don' t 

know wi th respect to the other restri cti ons on di ssemi nati on. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. Okay. So -- and I found the reference i n 

the i nspector general report where page 166 --

Mr. Kelley. Thank you. 166? 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. 166, the bottom paragraph: Baker told the 

OIG that he thought the conduct of former Secretary Cli nton and 

her ai des was appalli ng wi th respect to how they handled 

classi fi ed i nformati on, and arrogant i n terms of thei r knowledge 

and understandi ng of these matters. 

Di d I read that correctly? 

Mr. Comey. Yes, si r. 
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Mr. Ratcli ffe. So he says appalli ng and you say really 

sloppy. Okay. 

And as Congressman Gowdy related, Secretary Cli nton, about 

that mi shandli ng, made a number of statements under oath -- or 

made a number of statements i n publi c that were i na curate, and 

I represented to you that at least one o casi on she made that 

statement under oath when she sai d, I never sent or recei ved 

classi fi ed i nformati on, correct? 

Mr. Comey. Yes, she di d say that. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. I want to let you take a look at -- we were 

looki ng for i t before, but Hi llary Cli nton' s 302. And on the 

page that I' ve referenced, I found the place where the agents 

and prosecutors were revi ewi ng wi th her an emai l that had been 

marked. Do you fi nd where I' m followi ng? 

Mr. Comey. The bottom paragraph? 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. Yes. Take a second and read that. 

Mr. Comey. [Revi ewi ng. ] 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. All ri ght. Does that refresh your 

recollecti on about, duri ng the i ntervi ew, Secretary Cli nton 

bei ng confronted wi th emai ls that had been marked classi fi ed? 

Mr. Comey. It looks li ke at least one. Here' s the 

confusi on, though. It had porti on marki ngs on the ori gi nal. I 

thi nk what they' re explai ni ng here i s the overall document 

marki ng had been added later. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. Okay. 
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Mr.  Comey.  But  i t  was  defi ni tely  she  was  asked  about  a  C,  

whi ch  those  of  us  who  know  thi s  busi ness,  that  was  a  porti on  

marki ng  for  a  confi denti al  classi fi cati on.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Okay.  But  they  had  a  di scussi on  about  

that.  So  duri ng  at  least  i n  the  ti me  that  she  was  bei ng  

i ntervi ewed,  she  understood  that  she  had  ei ther  sent  or  recei ved  

i nformati on  that  had  been  marked  classi fi ed?  

Mr.  Comey.  She  appears  to  from  thi s,  yep.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Do  you  recall  that  i n  the  course  of  the  

Mi dyear  i nvesti gati on,  that  the  FBI  became  aware  that  personal  

ai des,  Huma  Abedi n,  and  Hi llary  Cli nton' s  lawyer,  Cheryl  Mi lls,  

also  mi shandled  classi fi ed  i nformati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  -- I  don' t  remember  speci fi cally.  I  

remember  there  was  some  -- no,  that  was  after.  I  --

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  And,  agai n,  by  mi shandled,  I' m  referri ng  

to  classi fi ed  i nformati on  goi ng  across  an  unclassi fi ed  devi ce  

that  they  -- personal  or  work  devi ce  that  they  had.  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  remember  that  about  Ms.  Mi lls.  I  

remember  a  concern  about  that  about  Ms.  Abedi n,  but  what  I  was  

rememberi ng  i s  from  the  Wei ner  stuff  from  after  -- I  remember  

that  bei ng  an  i ssue  after  October  27th  or  8th.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  All  ri ght.  Congressman  Gowdy  asked  you  

about  Paul  Combetta.  I  was  surpri sed  that  you  di dn' t  really  

remember  the  role  that  he  played  i n  thi s,  so  let  me  -- do  you  

recall  that  Paul  Combetta  was  an  employee  at  the  Platte  Ri ver  
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Network who i ntenti onally destroyed evi dence known to be subj ect 

to a congressi onal subpoena and a preservati on order and then 

li ed to the FBI about i t? 

Mr. Comey. I thi nk so. I thi nk Mr. Gowdy refreshed me on 

that. And whi ch was the reason, as I recall, that there was an 

i ssue as to whether he would get any ki nd of i mmuni ty i n exchange 

for hi s testi mony thereafter. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. But he di d recei ve i mmuni ty? 

Mr. Comey. Yeah. I j ust couldn' t remember, i n response 

to Mr. Gowdy' s questi ons about hi m and the other guy, what the 

form of i mmuni ty was. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. All ri ght. So I guess as I try and 

summari ze what I' ve heard today, Hi llary Cli nton mi shandled 

classi fi ed i nformati on more than a hundred ti mes. She made 

false statements about i t. The FBI was aware that at least one 

of her ai des also mi shandled classi fi ed i nformati on. And one 

of the folks employed on behalf of Secretary Cli nton 

i ntenti onally destroyed evi dence known to be subj ect to a 

congressi onal subpoena and preservati on order and li ed to the 

FBI about i t. 

And on July 5th, 2016, you stood before the Ameri can people 

and sai d that nei ther you nor any reasonable prosecutor would 

bri ng any charges i n thi s fact pattern. Is that a curate? 

Mr. Comey. Yep. I beli eved i t then, I beli eve i t now. 

And anybody that thi nks we were on team Cli nton tryi ng to cut 
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her  a  break  i s  smoki ng  somethi ng.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  I' ll  obj ect  to  everythi ng  after  "yep"  as  

nonresponsi ve  to  my  questi on.  

But  i s  Ji m  Baker  a  reasonable  prosecutor?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yeah,  I  thi nk  he  i s.  He  hasn' t  done  a  lot  of  

cri mi nal  prosecuti on,  he' s i n  the  i ntelli gence world,  but  I  thi nk  

he' s  a  reasonable  prosecutor.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Do  you  recall  what  Ji m  Baker' s response  was  

on  May  the  2nd  when  you  presented  hi m  wi th  the  non-pros  memo  or  

exonerati on  memo  about  whether  or  not  Hi llary  Cli nton  should  be  

charged  wi th  mi shandli ng  classi fi ed  i nformati on?  

Mr.  Comey.  You  mean  my  draft  of  a  possi ble  publi c  

statement?  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Yes.  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  remember  exactly.  He  was  a  bi g  part  

of  the  edi ti ng  process.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Let' s  see  i f  I  can  fi nd  

what  -- Mr.  Baker  -- well,  let  me  -- do  we  have  the  Baker  

transcri pt?  

Mr.  Jordan.  Di rector,  I' m  j ust  curi ous,  where  di d  the  

names  Mi dyear  Exam  and  Crossfi re  Hurri cane  come  from?  

Mr.  Comey.  I  don' t  know  for  sure.  What  I  was  long  told  

i s  that  the  names  for  all  of  these  thi ngs  came  from  some  random  

name  generator  i n  the  bowels  of  the  Counteri ntelli gence  

Di vi si on.  I  never  had  any  i nformati on  to  the  contrary,  but  
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o casi onally I would see names that seemed li ke they couldn' t 

be random. Those both seem ki nd of random to me. 

Mr. Jordan. So i s i t customary for any i nvesti gati on the 

FBI does, i t recei ves some code name or some name? 

Mr. Comey. I thi nk no. Almost -- maybe all of the 

classi fi ed counteri ntelli gence i nvesti gati ons are gi ven a code 

name that' s unclassi fi ed so that people who are outsi de of a 

classi fi ed space can make reference to i t wi thout gi vi ng anythi ng 

away. 

Mr. Jordan. Is thi s a random li st, you know, that someti mes 

we hear some algori thm gi vi ng us thi s -- spi tti ng us out thi s 

i nformati on, or are these j ust people on the i nvesti gati on comi ng 

up wi th a name that they choose? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t know. I never found -- I was curi ous 

about the name Mi dyear Exam, so I used to ask. Never found any 

reason to thi nk i t was connected i n any way to the case or the 

ci rcumstances of i t. But there were -- as I sai d, there were 

other cases where I saw names -- I can' t remember ri ght 

now -- that seemed li ke they were tai lored. Thi s one di dn' t seem 

tai lored to me. 

Mr. Jordan. Does the same answer apply to Crossfi re 

Hurri cane? 

Mr. Comey. Yes. 

Mr. Jordan. Okay. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. Mr. Comey, I want you to have the benefi t 
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of the transcri pt. I hi ghli ghted my exchange wi th Mr. Baker on 

page --

Mr. Kelley. Do you know what the date of thi s testi mony 

was? The second day? Di d he testi fy about thi s subj ect on the 

fi rst day? 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. He di d not. 

Mr. Comey. Where are we? I' m sorry, si r. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. Page 152. I asked the questi on: All 

ri ght. And I have reason to beli eve that you ori gi nally beli eved 

i t was appropri ate to charge Hi llary Cli nton wi th regard to 

vi olati ons of the law, vari ous laws, wi th regard to the 

mi shandli ng of classi fi ed i nformati on. Is that a curate? 

Mr. Baker' s answer was yes. 

Di d you fi nd that? 

Mr. Comey. I' m readi ng the rest where he explai ns. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. He does, and I wi ll j ust -- the 

conversati on conti nues, as you' ll see, that he explai ned that 

you persuaded hi m that Hi llary Cli nton should not be charged 

after revi ewi ng a bi nder of emai ls. 

Mr. Kelley. Could you poi nt to the spot where i t says Mr. 

Comey persuaded hi m? 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. No. I' m not referri ng to the transcri pt 

there. I sai d I was paraphrasi ng i t. 

Do you see that? 

Mr. Kelley. I' m sorry, I mi sunderstood the questi on. 
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You' re paraphrasi ng what? 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. So my questi on -- I read the questi on and 

the answer. The questi on was to Mr. Baker: I have reason to 

beli eve that you ori gi nally beli eved i t was appropri ate to charge 

Hi llary Cli nton wi th regard to vi olati ons of the law, vari ous 

laws, wi th regard to the mi shandli ng of classi fi ed i nformati on. 

Is that a curate? 

And hi s response was yes. 

Then I was commenti ng that he went on to explai n that he 

had -- whether he was persuaded or changed hi s mi nd after 

revi ewi ng a bi nder of emai ls. I was offeri ng that i n fai rness 

to the wi tness. 

Mr. Kelley. I j ust thought -- maybe I mi sheard you. I 

thought you sai d that Mr. Comey had persuaded hi m. I di dn' t see 

that i n the transcri pt. 

Mr. Ratcli ffe. I may have been mi staken. 

Do you recall, Di rector Comey, havi ng a conversati on wi th 

Mr. Baker about thi s i ssue? 

Mr. Comey. I don' t. I mean, I remember hi m edi ti ng my 

statement. And he also -- he says here, I di scussed i t 

i nternally and eventually became persuaded that chargi ng her was 

not appropri ate, and he goes on to explai n why. But I don' t know 

wi th -- he says wi th a number of di fferent folks. I don' t know 

who he talked to. 

I don' t remember hi m bei ng of the vi ew at any poi nt that 
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she  should  be  prosecuted.  But  i n  any  event,  by  the  ti me  we  got  

to  May,  he  defi ni tely  wasn' t  expressi ng  that  vi ew.  He  was  

helpi ng  me  understand  how  we  mi ght  close  thi s  thi ng  i n  a  

transparent  way.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  So  i n  your  transcri pt  statement,  you  closed  

your  remarks  by  sayi ng  -- have  you  got  those?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  -- that  we,  referri ng  to  the  FBI,  we  di d  

the  i nvesti gati on  i n  a  professi onal  way.  Only  facts  matter,  and  

the  FBI  found  them  here  i n  an  enti rely  apoli ti cal  and  

professi onal  way.  

Do  you  see  that?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yep.  I  got  i t.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  In  li ght  of  the  text  messages  of  Agent  

Strzok  and  Attorney  Li sa  Page  and  Agent  1  and  all  of  the  folks  

that  have  been  referred  to  today,  do  you  sti ll  beli eve  that?  

Mr.  Comey.  Yes,  very  much.  

Mr.  Ratcli ffe.  Our  ti me  expi red?  

Chai rman  Goodlatte.  I' ll  j ust  put  thi s  on  the  record  now.  

Thi s  does  not  complete  the  questi ons  that  we  have,  and  I  know  

there  have  been  some  di scussi ons  about  scheduli ng  a  second  date  

and  we  would  li ke  to  get  that  fi nali zed  for  everybody' s  planni ng  

purposes.  

Mr.  Kelley.  Mr.  Somers  and  I  have  spoken  about  that,  and  

we' ve  agreed  to  return  on  Monday,  the  17th  of  December.  But  we  
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would  li ke  to  know  i n  advance how  much  more,  many  rounds  you  need.  

I  mean,  we  went  through  a  full  day  today.  

Chai rman  Goodlatte.  Got  i t.  We' ll  do  the  best  we  can  on  

that.  And  we  wi ll  --

Mr.  Gaetz.  Before  we  go  off  the  record,  Mr.  Chai rman,  I  

have  a  questi on.  The  rules  that  I  don' t  consi der  myself  bound  

by  but  that  were  expressed  earli er  i n  the  commi ttee,  do  those  

carry  over  to  the  subsequent  questi oni ng  of  the  wi tness,  or  i s  

i t  the  i nterpretati on  of  the  chai rs  that  duri ng  the  -- that  thi s  

i s  a  suspensi on  of  the  questi oni ng  but  not  a  suspensi on  of  the  

rules  package  whi ch  you  beli eve  bi nds  the  members?  

Mr.  Goodlatte.  I  was  j ust  about  to  get  to  that.  I  thi nk  

that  the  best  way  to  proceed  would  be  to  release  the  transcri pt  

tomorrow,  and  i t  wi ll  be  avai lable  at  some  poi nt  tomorrow,  and  

that  comment  by  Mr.  Comey  and  anyone  else  i s  fai r  game  after  the  

conclusi on  of  thi s.  And  then  we' ll  i mpose  the  same  rules  when  

we  get  to  the  second  one.  

Mr.  Kelley.  We  agree  that' s  appropri ate.  

Mr.  Goodlatte.  Very  good.  

Ms.  Sachsman  Grooms.  Back  on  the  record.  Just  two  qui ck  

follow-up  questi ons.  
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[4: 29 p. m. ] 

Ms. Sachsman Grooms. At the end of the last round, 

Mr. Ratcli ffe went through ki nd of a summary of what I 

i nterpreted to be hi s conclusi ons about the Cli nton case. He 

went through Cli nton mi sclassi fi ed i nformati on, she made false 

statements, the FBI knew that her staff had mi shandled 

unclassi fi ed i nformati on. He went through a number of di fferent 

thi ngs. At the end, he asked you about your deci si on not to move 

forward to prosecute or recommend prosecuti on of the case. 

I j ust wanted to clari fy, when you were answeri ng that, were 

you adopti ng that set of sort of summary comments by 

Mr. Ratcli ffe or were you j ust commenti ng on that last bi t? 

Mr. Comey. I was answeri ng hi s questi on, whi ch was, do you 

have a di fferent vi ew -- or do you have the same vi ew of the case 

today, i s what I understood i t to be. And the answer i s, 

absolutely, I do. 

Ms. Sachsman Grooms. And j ust to be clear, I di dn' t hear 

you say any ti me duri ng today that you had uncovered any proof 

that Secretary Cli nton had made false statements. Is that 

a curate? 

Mr. Comey. That' s correct. 

Ms. Sachsman Grooms. Okay. Thank you. That' s all I had. 

We can go off the record. 

[Whereupon, at 4: 38 p. m. , the i ntervi ew was recessed, to 
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reconvene  on  Monday,  December  17,  2018. ]  
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